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TNTRODUCTION Introduction
1. This is the Counter-Memorial of the Government of
Chile filed pursuant to Order No. 7 made by the Court of
Arbitration on 6th January, 1966, as amended by Order
No. 9 made by the Court on 1llth May, 1966. |
2. The Counter-Memorial contailns, in addition to the
present Introduction, the Chilean Government!s observa-
tions, contentions and submissibns regarding the case
presented to fthe Court in the Argentine Memorial and
Memorandum on Land Use, Settlement and Circulation of
Local Trade and, in addition, further information,
evidence and submisslons supplementing the case
presented to the Court by Chile in her Memorial. The
Chilean Government has, for the convenlence of the Court,.
divided the Counter-Memorial into Parts and Chapters
which correspond, broadly speaking, to those in the
Chilean Memorial. In commenting upon the case presented
to the Court by Argentina, the Chllean Government has not
followed the order adopted in the Argentine Memorial,
but has dealt with the various elements of the Argentlne
case under each Part and Chapter of the Chilean case %o which
which 1% seemed primarlly relevant. ,
3, At the end of the present Volume of the Counter-
Memorilal, there appears an Appendlx to which the Chilean
Government wishes to draw the Court's attentibn. This

Appendlx contalns notes onvcertain'points in some of

I,
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Introduction

the maps, plans and sheets'annexed to the Argentine

Memorial. .

4. TIn their letter dated 25th April, 1966, to Brigadier
Papworth (begins acting as Reglstrar), the Agents of the
Government of Chile stated‘thafrthey.intended to deal

in the Counter-Memorial with the request made by the
Argentine Agent - in his letter of the 1lst April, 1966,
that’any”mab‘prepared'under-the‘authority of the Court
and %o be‘ﬁSed‘by the Court for any purpose should
repreSent’the‘Whole course of the River Encuentro
according %o the Argentine vefsion of that river,
including the small. stream which is referred %o 1n

Ma jor Rushworth!s Minute as Stream Z. This request,
although couched in generszl terms, was made with
particu1ar reference to the possible uée_by the Court

of the Outline Map at the Oral Hearings. Meanwhile,
however, in Section (1i11) of his letter of the 2nd June;'
1966, the President has informed the parties that,

- because of 1ts limitations except as a medium for the

collection of place names and road classifications,

-~ the Outline Map is not iIntended to play any part in the

Oral Hearings. And he has further stated:
"At these Hearings, it will be for the Partiles
%o rely on maps of thelr own c¢hoosing, elfher
already annexed to the Memorials or possibly
to be annexed to the Counter-Memorials."

Having regard to the terms of the President!s letter,

the Chilean Government does not now find it necessary

II,




to develop in this Counter-Memorial the considerations
which 1t desired to present %o the Court with respect to
the above mentionédﬁrequést of the Argenfine_ﬂgent.
5e At the same time, the Chilean Government feels that
the request of the fArgentine Government respecting the
represenﬁation of Stream Z on any map to be used by the
Court calls for certain comments, The Argentine Govern-
ment did not in any of 1ts letters chéllenge the correct-
ness of the observatlons made by Major Rushworth in the
field, and reported in his Minute of the 4th February
1966. In effect, 1t asked the Court in the letter of
the 1lst April, 1966 to mark on the map at any cost the
course of Stream Z, neglectling any dlsproportion between
Stream Z and other streams which this might occasion.
It sald (pages 2 to.3_of the letter): |
"For the purpose of the preéené proceedings, no
comparison ought to be drawn between the deplction,
upon the Outline Map, of the upper course of the
River Encuentro and the depiction of other water-
courses 1in the area of a comparable volume, but
upon which neither Party places any lmportance or
relevance, "
Yét, the Argentine Government could not fail to have been
aware from i1ts reading of the Chilean Memorial (pages
300-301, '321, 457 and 471) and from the statement of
Counsel for Chile at the 6ra1.Hbaring on 31st December,
1965 (page 65 of the Transcript) that the Chilean

Government attaches definite importance and relevance

to the insignificant volume of Stream Z in comparison

IIz,
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Introduction

with other streams in the area. Chile, as the Court
kndws, has underlined in her pleadings the much greater
volume of the stream which rises in the Cordon de los
Morros which absorbs Stream Z at thelr confluence in the
valley and*which'appears to be the true course of the
Arroyo Mallines.
6. ~“The sénsitiveness of the Government of Chile in
face'of“a\broposailcalling for a dlistorted representation.
on'a map in the present proceedings of a watercourse
which 1s alleged by Argentina to form part of the River
Encuentro can scarcely have been a matter of surprise;
In'1902'a_map‘prepared'by‘Argentiha (the "Second Argentine
Map"), depicting erroneously the River Engano and part
of the basin of the River Azul as attached to the River
Encuentro, was 1ﬁtroduced into the proceedings at a |
late stage. The consequence was that the intentlon of
the Tribunal to divide the river basin of the Palena and
1ts tributaries between the two countries at the polnt
of the Encuéntro-Palena confluence was translated 1Into
an erroneous description of the boundary which afterwards
furnished Argentina with a pretext for contesting that
division,

In 1913/14 Argentina had recourse to that pretext
and sought to re-open that question but desisted,

~_apparently recognising the true nature of the div1sion

resulting from the Award, Then Chile establlshed and

1V,




for some years enjoyed qulet possession of the areas Introductlion
allotted to her by the AWard. Some years after the
creation of the Mixed Boundary Commlssion, however,
Argentlina resurrected the erroneous description of the
boundary line and through her delegates in the Commission
claimed those areas, A&nd in 1954 there was again
introduced into the proceedings a Map prepared in
Argentina and deplcting erroneously the river system of
the Encuentro, This Map misrepresented the relatlve
magnitudes of the major and minor channels as well as

the structure of the minor channel and its relation to
the lower section of the River Encuentro. (See Part
Three, Chapter VII, Paragraphs 80 to 82 of this
Counter-Memorial). In consequence, the Mixed Boundary
Commission was léd in Minute No, 55 %o mlis-state the
course of the River Encuentro and to mis-apply the 1902
Award,

Chile having rejected the conclusions and proposals
of the Commission, thcre followed a decade of dlplomatic
controversy and of encroachments by Argentina on the
areas zllotted to Chile under Article IIT of the Award,
Then, the dispute having been submitted to arbltration,
Chile found herself confronted by a suggestion from
Argentina that the Court of Arbitration should itself
particlpate in a disto:tion of the cartographical

representation of a segment of the minor channel 1n order

V.
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Introduction

that Argentina might more plausibly illustrate to the
Court her thesis that a watercourse which 1s not the

River Encuentro ought to be conq;dered the River
Encuentro mentioned in the Award.

7. If the Chilean Government reacted with some firmness
%o the Argentine Government's suggestion 1t was past

experience and no lack of confidence iIn the Court which

‘provoked the Chllean reaction. On the contrary, the

Government of Chile expresses 1ts confldence that on

this occasion the determination of the respective rights
of Chile and Argentina regarding the boundary in the ‘
sector wi;lﬁbe based on the evidence and on the actual ‘
facts as verified on the ground by the Court of

Arbitration, and will not be affected by any cartograph-

ical errors or distortlons.

VI,
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PART I

THE LINE OF THE BOUNDARY
CHAPTER I. REFUTATION OF THE ARGENTINIAN CONTENTION

1. The positive submissions of the Government
of Chile as regards ¥the line of the‘boundaryvupon a
proper inberprebation of the 1902 Award are set out in
the Chilean Memorial, pp. 95-120. The approach of the
Government of Argentine in the Argentine Memorial is,
understandably, quite different. The Government of
Chile believes that it may best assist the Court in
this part of the Counter-Memorial by directing its
observations first at the Argentine contentions rather
than by reasserbing the validity.of the original
Chilean submissions. |

2. The Argentine Memorial has placed before
the Court a number of different submissions regarding
the correct line of the boundary. These vary from one
another according %o the particular alternative
position which the Court may adopt in relation to the
diverse Argentinian contentions as to the extent to
which the line of the boundary had or had not been
settled al the date of the Compromiso. The Government

of Chile will not, at this stage in the present Counter-

Memorial attempt to follow the Government of Argentina

Part One




into these complex alternatives, but will defer to

Part Three below a consideration of these Argentine
arguments. In this chépter the Chilecan Government will
~do no more than examine the essential elements in the
Argentine interpretatipn of the relevant parts of the
1902 Award. It will be bthe submission of the Govern-
ment of Chile in the present Chapter that the

Argentine contenficns are unsound and ought not bto be
accepted.  In so far as they rest on assertions of
fact, 1t will be shown that in certain critical
respects, turning upon expert observations and analysis,
these asseftions are wrong; and in so far as they turm
upoan an interpretation of the very terms of the 1902
AWard, they will be shown to be inconsisbent with the
language of the Award and the principles on which it

was based,

A. The Argentinian contention

3. When all the various alternabive Argentiﬁe
submissions are stripped of their complexities, the
Argentine contention as to the boundary line boils down
to the following propositions:

(i) The GCerro Virgen was mentioned in the Report
and the Award and is identifiable. Therefore it must
form a point of the boundary.

(ii) It is possible also to identify a local




water-parting from the Cerro Virgen to Post 17. There- Part One
fore this must form the part of the boundary from the
Cerro Virgen southwards.

(iii) The Cerro Virgen has western slopes, on
which a stream (a tributary of the Arroyo Matreras)
has its source. The Arroyo Matreras runs into a river
(the Rio Azul) which can be followed downstream in an
approximately northeriy direction, to a point where it
neets another river (the Engaﬁo) flowing from the
north east.

(iv) The course of the Engano can be traced in a
north—-easterly direction towards what the Argentine
argument contends is the source of the Encuentro.

(v) It does not matter that the Report and the
Award make no reference to the Arroyo Matreras, the Rio
Azul or the Rig Engaﬁo.

(vi) At the point where the Engaiic bends round the
north-ecastern bluff of the Cerro Virgen, it passes
within 1300 metres of the sources of the so-called
"Encuentro"; Therefore, a line may be drawn between

the Engano and the Encuentro at this point. It does

not matter that this line is not a hydrographic line

nor the line of a water-parting and was not contem-

plated or provided for in the 1902 Report and Award.
(vii) This so-called River Encuentro is the western

branch of a river which flows into the Palena at

5.




Part One

Post 16, and”may therefore be followed from ibs

source to its terminus and thus provide the final link
in the line from Post 16 to Post 17.

4, Of course, when‘in its conclusions and
submissions the Argentine Memorial proposes a specific
line, it weids these individual elements together into
a line deScribed in continuous terms from Post 46 to
Post 17. But thé fact that the Argentine Government
does this should not be allowed to obscure the dominant
characteristic of ‘the line so composed - namely, ﬁhat
it éahnot be'justified as a continuous whole from

north to south by reference to the terms of the 1902

r, :
Award and Report; and that, at best, it is possible to

do no more thén show a literal relation between only
some disconnected elements in the line and the terms
of the 1902 Award aﬁd Report, and even that can be
done only on the basis that the matter is approached
in the order set out above. This order is not an
arbitrafy one put forward by the Government of Chile
for purpoées of argument. It echoes closecly the order
in which the Argentine Government itself identifies
the features referred to in the 1902 Award and Report
(See p. 7% of the Argentine Memorial) - an order which,
it may be assumed, was not haphazardly adopted by the

Argentine Government




B. Two basic criticisms of the Argentine line Part One

(1) FEnmphasis on the Cerro Virgen is wrong

5e he Government of Chile contends that this
mode of approach of the Argentine Government is wrong.
In the first place - as will be more fully argued in
Part Five below -~ it is wrong as a matbter of law.
Clearly, when one is faced by a problem of error in a
description of a boundary line, it is impoésible to
attribute equal stotus to every element in the
description. It is necessary to identify the
erroneous elements, assess the role which they were
intended to play and dispose of them accordingly.
In determining which are the elements affected by
error it is not sufficient to say that named
featurcs which can be identified must, ipso facto, be
retained as part of the line. This would be to
disregard the fact (true in the present case) that it
is the attempt to join two named and identifiable butb
unconnected geographical features which constitutes
the error. Accordingly, the task of interprétation
(az copposed tQ reconstruction) unavoidably involves
weighing which of the named feabures is an essenbtial
element in the desexiption.

6. In the present case, for the reasons set out

in the Chilecan Memorial, the governing features of the




Part One

line between Posts 16 and 17 are that it involves
dividing the.upper and lower basins of the Palena at a
fixed point by a river line which leads directly to a
high nountain and thgnce by the local watcrparting to
the next fixed point. Moreover, as both Parties are
agreed, that river line must embrace the whole course of
the River Encuentro from its mouth to its source.

The reference in the description of the boundary to

a nened point such as the Cerro Virgen must be read
against this general conception; and if a line drawm
according to the general principle and following the
course of the named river does not run through the -
Cerro Virgen, the reference to that mountain nmust be

treated as subordinate and must, accordingly, be

- disregarded.

(2) ‘e Arpentine line does not proceed from Nerth
to South

7. A second general comment upon the Argentine
line is that the Argentiné Government has been obliged,
in order to Justify its poSition, to adopt an approach
to the definition.of the boundary in this scctor which
is striking by reason of its manifest lack of logical
order and absence of inherent cohesion. The Argentinian
description of the boundary in the sector between |
Posts 16 and 17 is in marked contrast with the

description of the bcundary employed in the 1902 Award




not only in relation to every other sector of the Part One
boundary but even in relation to the sectér

presently in dispute. The Report and the Award
approach the definition of the boundary line in terms
of describing a conbtinuous unbroken line moving from
north to south, one named section leading to the next
named section and so on; without interruption. Yot
in the scetion between Posts 16 and 17 the Argentine
casc rests on tracing not a continuous line, bub one
that begins, so to speak, in the middle of the sector,
at the Cerrc Virgen, goes south to Post 17, and is
left there; while the northern part of the line is
traced partly by tracking the line northwards from
the Cerro Virgen along @ stream which has its source
ocn the wesbtern siopes of the mountain; partly by
projecting the line of the Encuentro southwards up a
minor confluent to a point where in its turn it is

Joined by an even smaller stream, tracing this strean

back to its source, moving from the source over the
hill behind it to a river, the Engaﬁo, never mentioned |
in the 1902 Award, and then following that river

downstream to its junétion with a river of which the !
stream flowing from the Cerro Virgen is a tributary.

The whole process is patently artificial and out of

keeping with the tenor of the 1902 Award.




Part One

C. Particular criticisms of the Argentine line

8. In the submission of the Governnent of Chile;

- thesz general reasons would alone suffice to justify

rejection of the Argehtinian contention. But there arve,
in fact, a number of particular reasons which individ-
ually serve to deprive the Argentine propositions of
any force. These reascns may be considered under
thres heads:

(1) Misidentification of the upper course of the
Encuentro;

(2) Inabi1ity to justify the Argentine line in
torms of the Award; and

(3) Additional geographical difficulties.

(1) Misidentification of the upper course of the
Encuentro '

9. While, as will presently be seen, the
Argentine Govermnment is in certain important respects
prepared to depart from the literal interpretation of
the relevent words of the Aﬁard, it does not go sc far
as to-deny the imporﬁanée of the refercnce in the Award
to the course of the River Encuentro. Indeed, at p.66
of the Argentine Memorial the obsefvation is made that
"...above éll because of the outstanding role assigned
to it in the deiimitation of the international-fronﬁier,
the River Eﬁcuentrb is of great interest and calls for

a detailed study of all its characteristics." As is




e

the case with the contentions of the Chilean Government, Part One
the contentionsvof ﬁho Argentine Government depend upon
establishing the validibty of its view of the true

course of the River Encuentro.

10. Both Partics are agreed that the river which
flows into the Palera opposite Post 16 is the river
discovered by Dr. Steffen in 1894 and that it is
called the Encuentro. They are agreed also that the
lcwer stretch of this river, below the junctibn of the
majér and the minor channels (to use the terminolégy
of the Chilzan Memcrial) is, and has at all material

times since 1902 beecn, part of the boundary running

s

between Poste 16 amd 17. They are divided upon the
identification of the upper course of this rivér.

11. The Argentine Memorial contends that the
upper course of the Encuentro consists of what in the
Chilean Mcmorial is called "the nminor channel" and is
named in a nunmber of maps in part as a section of the
Arroyo Lopez and in part, higher up, as a section of
vhe Arroyo Mallines.

The relevant factors

12. The Parties do not appear to be ssriocusly
at 1ssue as to the factors to be taken into consider-
ation in debernining which of the two channels is to

“be treatved as being the proper parent of the lower

sector of the Encuentro. They differ prinarily in

9.
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“their stbatement of the factors and in their cvidence

of the material facts.

132. The factors upon which the Argentine
Government relies as establishing that the minor
channel is the Encuentro appear to be the fC;lowing:

() The valley of the minor channel is "broad
and openh and "the river bed is well defined"
(Arg,Mem;,p;GG)"V‘ |

| (ii)~ "As can be seen from the Geomorphological
Map of Palena (Map No,’A28) the River Encuentro forms
a.clear--cut ﬁorphological feature from its headwaters
to the north of the Portezuelo de las Raices to its
final‘reach which starts some % km. from its nmouth wvhere
1t has cut into bedrock in a narrow gorge with rapids.”
.(Arg.Mém., pPp. 66-67)

(iii) The major channel is not the Encuentro,
for'itliS‘principally féd by melting ice and snow,
its volune varies from season to season and no valid
deductions nay be made from its volume at any given
time in the yecar. (Arg.Mem., P.69)

14, The Argentine Memorial also contains a
number of statcoments abéut the origin and structure
of the minor channel which though not in torms
deployed‘as arguments'in favour of its being the
Encuentro nevertheless appear to have been treated as

having some relevance.

10.




15. The factors to which the Chilean Government
referred in its own Memorial were four in number: (i)
the length and size of the channel; (ii) the volume of
water therein; (iii) the comparison of alluvial
deposits; and (iv) the physical characteristics of the
vallcey in which the channcl flowed. In addition, of
course, the Govermment of Chile drew attention to the
inportance of the conduct of the local authoritiecs
and residents in treating the one channel or the other
as constituting the international boundary.

16. Since the filing of the Memorials, the
Government éf Chile has obtincd the expert advice of
Dr. R,P.Beckinsale, a Senior Lecturer in Geography in
the University of Oxford. Dr. Beckinsale is a
specilalist in the study of rivers and river systens.
He has visited the California Valley and has carried
out scientific observations and measurernents on both
ne major and minor channels. De. Backiﬁsale's account
of his investigations and condlusions is sét cut in
full in the form of a report ammexed to +this Counter-
Menmorial (Annex Nb.#O),' From this, it will be seen that
Dr. Beckinsale's investigations have confirmed the

views advanced in the Chilean Memorial.

17. 1In the pages at which he deals with the
relative significance of the major channel (the

Encuentro) and the minor channel (the Arroyo Mallines

1.
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Lopez) Dr. Beckinsale mekes the following pointe:

— The Encuentro rises high up in the snow fields
at an altitude of 2100 m, in contrast with the

nincr channel; which originates in certain "seepages"

on the surmit of the upper bterrace on the western slopes
cf the Cordon de los Morros at an altitude of about 730
to 750 n. ' ‘

-~ scilentifically the Encuentro is by far the
oldest najor river course in this drainage basin, and
is certainly oldcr than the nminor channel.

- the'Encuentro carries about twice as nuch water
as does the minor‘channél. |

- the gradientv at which the Encuentro doscen@s
is lcss than that of the minor charneli. The nincr
cranncl thus falls into the Encucntro and on this
basls can préperly be régarded as a btributary of it.

-- analysis cstablishes that the bed-load (i.e.
the bed of the river resting on the sclid bed rock) is
predominaﬁtly and in parts almost entirely derived
from the drainage of the Encuentro.

- the major channel}is the only river in this
drainage basin that rises at a main.waterahed,

- the basin of the major channel is_the longest
and thé largest in the drainage system of California

Norte.

18. In addition, Dr. Beckinsale' s investigations

indicate that that explanation given in the Argentine

12.




Memorial as to the "source" of the minor channel is
WLONE. The Argentine Memorial (in this respect
following the map of the Mixed Boundary Comnissin states
that the minor chonnel originates in certain springs
which give risc %0 a small stream on the northern slopes
of the Portezuclo de las Raices. Dr. ﬁeckinsale
explains that the source of the minor channel is in
fact not a spring but numerous seepages occasioned by
surface water which soaks through the coarse debris
that has tumbled down thc mountain side and rests at
The botton of the western slopes of the Cordon de los
Morros above the Portezuelo de las Raices. The

water secps downhill underground until it is held up

by more impermeable clayey deposits and accumulates as
& leag band of scepages. Dr. Beckinsale's evidence upon
this point -~ and his statement that there are scveral
such seepages in the Portezuelo de las Raices and on
the valley side to the west of the line of the Arroyo
Lopez/Arroyo Mallines - accords fully with the

details given in the report of 4 February 1966 given

by Major Rushworth to the Head of the Field Mission

and in which he guestioned the correctness of insert-
ing on the outline nap (the stresm indicated by the
Argentine Government as the source of the nminor channel.

19. It ought also to be observed that the

implication throughout the Argentine Memorial that the
L
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Poxrt One

lower section of the Encuentro, below the junction of

 the major and minor channels, is a direct continuation
of the minor dhahnel‘Qannot be justified by reference
to a large-scale mép. Two maps of the confluencc of
the major and minéf channels exist. Sce Map CH(C-M)6
and nap roferred to in Dr. Beckinsalc's Report
(CH(C-M)7). These show clearly that the anglc at which
the minor channel joins the lower section of the
Encuentro is gfeater than the anglc between the major
channel and’the lower seétion; In other words, the
goographical continuity betweern the major channcl and
the léwer séction, and the tributary rclationéhip
betwcen the minor channel and the lower scction, to J
which Dr. Bcckinsalo refors, can be visually confirmed.

20. In short, the scicentific evidence now
available to support the contentions in the Chilean
Memorial shows

(a) negatively, that the minor channel is indeed
the lesser chanﬁel and is no more than a tributary of
the major channcl, and

(b) positively, that the major channel is not
mcrely more significant as a river than the minor channel,
but that it can properly be regarded as conbtinuous with
‘the lower stretch of the Encuentro and as showing its

characteristics and nane.
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(2) Inabilityto justify the Argentine line in terms
of the Award

24. It is, secondly, impossible to justify the

proposed Argentine line by reference to the terms or
the principles of the 1902 Award.

(a) Unjustifiable introduction of (i) alternate

land and river elements and (ii) four

additional river elements

22, The proposal that the line in its progress
southwards should, after reaching the source of an
insignificant feeder-stream of the minor channel then
cross land (i.c. over the Portezuelo de las Raices)
to the Engano River, follow the Engaﬁb River to the
point at which it is joined by %he River Azul, follow
the course of the Azul upstream to the point at which
it is Jjoined by the Arroyo Matreras and then follow
first the Matreras and then cne of its tributaries to
a source on the western slope of the Cerro Virgen
involves significant departures from the literal text
of the Award.

25. The Report speaks of the boundary following
the coursc of the River Encuentro along its western
branch, to its source on the wesbtern slopes of the
Cerro Virgen. TLiterally interpreted this means that
there must be a direct river connection between

Post 16 and the Cerro Virgen and that that river nust
b

2
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be the River Encuentro and none other.

24. Yetg the Argentine proposal involves (i)
intérrupting the continuity of the river line with a
liﬁe acrose land and (ii) pursuing the course not of
one river only, the Encuentro, but of four additional
vatercourses, the Engéﬂo, the Azul, the Matreras and a
‘tributary atpean of tho Matreras. The literal
inconsistenéy of this proposal with the terns of the
Report and the Awafd is so obvious as to requife no
further elaboration.

| 25. vNohétheless, it is perhaps worth putting
what is'basically the Same point in a slightly
different way. The Report and the Award clearly
contemplate that‘the River Encuentro will lead
directly to and end on a high watershed - the same
watershed, moreover, as leads to the next fixed point.
This surely must exclude the adoption of any intor-
pretation which involves placing the source of the
Encuentro on anything other than a high watershed cr
one not directly connected to the next fixed point.
Yet thevinterpretation proposed by the Argentine
Memorial is defeétive in both respects. The source of
the river which the Argentine calls The Encuentre is
on the Porteiuelo de las Raices - which can scarcely
be called a watershed, and is certainly not 2 high oue.

Nor is it in any case directly connected to Post 7.

16.



Again, the requirement of continuity beﬁween the named Part One
hydrogrephic line (the Encuentro), the watershed and
Post 17 is completely disregarded in the arbitrary
alternation of river and land sectors adopbed in the
Argentine Memorial.

26. Again, it ﬁay be observed that even in the
use which the Argentine Government makes of the various
hydrogrephic lines which it invokes -.the ninor channel
the Salto/Tigre and the Azul and its tributaries,
there is no consistoncy. The Report and the Award
spoke of folldwing the Encuentro to its source. This
neans rfollowing the hydrographic line upstrcan. The
Argentine lince does this only in part. It goes up
the nincr channel, but down the Salto/Tigre until
it starts going up again, this time along the Azul
and its tributaries.

(b)  Abandonment of literal reliance upon "the western
branch!

27. Turthermore, the Argentine propcsal abandons
any meaningful reliance upon the reference in the Award
to "the western branch" of the Encuenbtro. At Pp.93
and 211 the Argentine Memorial refers to the
western branch of the River Encuentro in terms which
suggest that the minocr channel represents "the western
branch" rceferred to in the Report. Yet at pp. 243-245

the Argentine Memorial identifies the stream which

17,
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rises on the wectern slopes of the Cerrs Virgen as

being the "western branch™ of the Encucntro. This is,
in effect, an attempt to use the refcrence to "the
western branch" twice over - once bo identify the
ninor channel as the Encuenbro and once to mainbain
the possibility of the literal application of the
rcference to the river which has_its'source cn the
wcstern slope of the Cerro Virgen. This liberality
in the application of the concept of "the western
branch" does nothing but destroy any meaningful
relevance which it may have had.

28. In fact, the Government of Chile docs not
disagree with the Argentine rejection of the
reference to "the western branch" -- though the reasons
for which each Party reaches this conclusion are quite
dissimilar. As suggested in the_Chilean Memorial, the
reference in the 1902 Report to "the western branch”
of the River Encuentro is a reflection of the error
into which the Court fell when secking to describe, in
terns of the maps:before it, the line upon which it
had decided.' Therc is; therefore, no need to regard
it as an essential elencent in the description, The
Chilcéan Government merely takes the present occasion
of pointing out that if the Government of A:gentina
insists on the literal importance of the reference to

the Cerro Virgen, it ought no less to insist on the

18.




literal inportancc of the reference to the "western
branch". But by disposing of this latter refefence
in the way it does, the Government of Argentina
contributes yet further to the destruction of the
integrity of its literal approach to the intefpretat-
ion of the Award, and, in so doing, eliminates the
slender renaining Jjustification for insistence on the
Corro Virgen.

29, Mhere is, indeed, a further difficulty
about adherence to the concept of "the western branch"
at least as applied by the Argentine Mcmorial for the
purposce of justifying the selection of the Rid Azul
and the Arroyo Matrcras as an element in the line of
the boundary. The exact phrase as used in the 1902
Report, 1t will be recalled, is, "the Encuentro along
the course of ils western branch to its source on the
vestern slopes of the Cerro Virgen". In fact, however,
the Rin Azul (which is the npiver along whose line,
ag the "western branch" of what night have been
thought to be the Encuentro, the boundary is alleged
te run) does not have its source on the western slopes
of the Cerro Virgen, but in a valley further to the
south and west. The wabercoursc upon which the
Argentine Memorinl relies to link the Rio Azul to the
western slopes is a tributary of a tributary of the

Asul,

19.

Part One




(¢) Arbitrary division of subordinate watcrbasins

20. The Argentine line nay further be criticised
on the ground that it divides in an cntirely arbitrary
narner the bacius of both the Encuentro and the Engaﬁo

" Rivers. The Chilean Mcnmocrial suggested that the 1902
Aviard followed the prinmiplo that the line of the
boundary did not cub river basins save in those casces
‘where it wes actually nccessary vo divide the upper
fron the lewer basin of a river flowing transverscly
across the nain north-south line of the cordillera;
and that paing were taken not to cut subordinate river
basins.  Yet the Argentine proposal involves a clear
and uncallced for departure from this principle.

(3) Additional gecographical difficultics

%21. Therc arc in addition four other factors
which nilitate against the acdoptance of the Argentine
contention. These nay be described as '"geographicol',
in the sense that their force derives not from the
words of the Report and the Aword but from the very
facts of the situation.

(a) Divieion of individual landholdings

32. First, the proposed Argentine line involves
the division.of no less thén four out of the tﬁenty«
one plots in the'disputed area: Plot 6, occuplal by
Simon Lopez; Plot 7, occupied by Nolfa Carrasco;

Plot 8,occupiecd by Dionisic Videla; and Plot 18




belonging to Felix gg;;lggi] The first two plots lie on
"poth sides of the ninor channcl and the last lies on
both sidos of the scction of the Engafio used in the
Argentine proposal as part of the line. As to the
third, notwithstanding the argument advanced in the
Argentine Memorandwn on Land Use, to the cffecet that
the rights of Videls depend upon an Argentine grant
which stipulates that the international frontier is

the western boundary of the plot, the fact renains

thot Dicnisio Videla as successor to his father Tonas
Vidzla, is in cccupation of a plot, under the authority
of the Chilean Government and accepted by his
neighbours, whogse bounds exceed theose indicated by

the Avpentine Government and which would therefore be

bisccted if the Argentine proposal were inplemented.

1. These Plet numbers refer to the numbers in circles
which have heen added to cach of the 21 plots in
the disputed arca which fall on the Argentinian
side of the line drawn according to the Argentinian
contention. These serial numbers run in an
approxinmately north to south dircecction along the
ninor channel, up the Engano valley and, as
regards the last thrcece, along the Tigre: and are
intended sclely for easc of reference. They have
been superimposed on each of the Plots as they
appear on a revised and expanded version of
Doc.20 filed with the Chilean Menmorial and now
filed with the present Counter-Menmorial as
Map CH (C-M) 1.

21.
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3%, Mcreover, the adoption of the Argentine
1ine will mecan that at least two Chilean scttlers who
cach have two plots in the areca will pind that one plob
ig in Chilean territery and cnother is in Arpentinian
territofy. Thus Alfredo Foitzick, who occupies Plut
14 (104-5%), on the Argentine aide of the proposcd line,
also owns a plot'(405«28) on the weet bank of the
lowcr section of the'Encuentro, in undoubtedly Chilcan
territory. Sinilerly, German Monsalve who occupies

Plot 21, which would fall on the Argentine gide of the

" proposcd Aregentine line holds 2 plot cn the Chilcan
T & ) I

side of that line on both sides of the higher reaches
of the Azul (104-50).

(b) The minor channel. has not heen treatecd as the
international boundary.

34, Secondly, although fiuller congsideration
will be given in pPert II below; which ig concerned with

the fulfilment of the Award, to the manner in whicl the

. parties and the residents of the disputed arca have

interpreted the Award; it is perbtinent to point out herc
that the evidence in this connecfion shews clearly thatb
(1) the Chilean Government has not treated the
minor channel as the boundary, but has 80 treated the
najor chamncl;
(ii) the local residents have done the same thing.

In particular they have developed those twenby one




r

landholdings, out of the twenbty six landholdings in Part One

the California Valley, which lie on the Argentine
side of the line of the Argentine contention; and yet
have for all praciical purposes regarded themselves as
being in Chilce;

(iii) bthe Argentine Governnent has also treated

the nmajor channcl, and not the ninor channel, as the

boundary.

\n

- There is one episode which can suitably be

N

nentioned herc because it brings out with such striking
clarity the woay in which the major channel was treated
even by the Argentinian authorities as constituting
the international boundary. In 1926/1927 the
Argentine anthoritics closed the fronbier in this
region and prohibited Chilcan transit across it. If,
as the Argentine Government now conbtends, the proper
line of the boundary was the nminer channel, then the
residents cast of the minor channcl would have becn

in Arpentine terwitory and should therefore have been
free to pass and repass to and from the rest of
Argentina. Bub in fact this was not the case. The
Argentine authorities drew no distinction between
those who lived cast of the minor channel and those

who lived west of it. All were treated as being in

36, Evidence of this situation is to be found in

23.




Part One the following extracts from affidavits sworn by

pecple who lived in the area. Simon Lopez Delgado
states (C-IM 22%):

" ..T clearly remember thab the prohibition fron
crossing into Argentine territory affected both
the settlers in the valley of Rio Palena and the
settlers in California, because my father and
alsc Portunato Saez and Pablo Carrillo Vega

lived there and were prohibited from crossing
into Argentince territory because, according to
the police, that area was Chilean territory..."

Tucas Lopez (the father of the deponent), Fortunato
Saez and Pablo Carrille all lived east of the minor
channel in what Argentina now claims as Argentine
territory.

| 27 vao oﬁher rosidents of the area living there
at the time have both stabed that the Argentinien
authorities at that time treated the ﬁajor channel as
the Encuentro:
Transito Diaz Carrasco has sald:

"On that occasion the police told us that the
boundary between the two countries was the River
Encuentro, which descends from the nountains east
of the houses belonging to settler Vicente
Contreras (Plot 1) and empties in the Palena"
(i.e. the najor chaunnel) (C-M 225)

- L : e
- José Casanova Vilches has said:

"Tn those days the police expressed that the
boundary between Chile and Argentina was the
River Encuentro, indicating as such the river of
that name at the present day, that is to say,

the river flowing from the high range of

mountains west (sic) of the houses of the present
settlers Robert Cid (Plot 1) and Vicente Contreras
(Plot 2), and which after joining the Rivulet
Lopez empties into the River Palena.




"o alsc renembers that the police respected
this boundary and did not patrol Chilean territory,
and if at any time they crossed to the west of the
River Encuentro they did so as visitors, and always
adnmitted so. He docs not remember having ever scen
policenen or gendarmes in the arca from River
Tigre's bend to its confluence with the River

Azul and the Rivulet Matreras". (C-M 226).

locking of natural transit routes in the
alifornia Valley

———

78. Again, Dr. Beckinsale's affidavit provides

o

B
C

in clear terns evidence that adopticn of the -
Argentine line would invelve cubting the natural
transit routes which connec’t western California (the

retch of the Engaﬁo employed as part

6]

valley of the s

t

of +he Argentine iine) to Palena, the nearest significant
pepulated centre. Equally, the Argentine line would

cut communications between Southern California and
Palena. Dr. Beckinsaie points out that the River

Salto has cut a deep and impassable gorge into the exit
from the valley through which it runs before being |
Joined by the Rio Azul and that in consequence the
inhabitants of western California use tracks leading

north-castwards to and over the Portezuelo de las

’]

wices ag their route to North Califernia and Palena.

o]

(&) Interfercnce with the nabtural physical unity of
California

39, Pinally, it should be pointed out (on the

bagsis of Dr. Beckinsale's report) that the adoption

25.
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df the line of;the‘Argentine propesal would invblve
interfering with the natural physical unity of the
California area. This unity stems from the fact that

in the post-glacilal periéd the whole »f Californiza
formed a single vast leke which at one tine reached

& naxinun height of 750 m; It was fed from the Lago
General Paz,’mainly through the Hondeo Valley. This

lakc was thé’origin 5f thick placio-lacustrine deposits
over the whole of Californin. When the lake disappeared
a new iraiﬁage.systém began to form upon. thesce

deposits and the terraces which can still be seen upon

the valley sides are the remains of those deposits.

The terraces do not have their origin in glacial
action (as is contended in the Argentine Memorial at
D. 68).

40.  Apart from this inherent physical unibty -

‘which is reflected in similarity of relief, land-

forms, soil and climete - California stands as an
identifiable unit by contrast with the open 2areas
of Argentine territory to the west of,the Cordon de
las Virgencs. There is a distinct Qlement of
artificiality in dividing this area in the manner

proposcd in the Argentine Memorial.




CHAPTER IT. THE LINE ACCORDING TO THE CHILEAN Port One
SUBMISSION | )

41. In the previous Chapter, the vaernment of
Chile has given reasons why, in its suﬁmission, the
interpretation of the definition of the boundary
"~ advanced by the Govermment of Argentina is incorrect.
The Government of Chile believes that it nay now be
helpful to assess the impact of the Argentine
Memorial upoen the precise submissions nade by the:
Government of Chile in Chapters II and III of Part
Two of the Chilcan Memorial., In so doing, the
Governnent of Chile will follow broadly the outline
of its case as set out in the Memorial.

A. THE PRINCTPAT, PART OF THE DEFINITION - "THE
ENCUENTRO" (Ch.Mem. p.100)

(1) Identifying the Encuenbro at its Junction with

the Palena (Ch.Mem. p.100)

42. It is now clear that both Partiss are in
agreement that the Encuentro is the river which joins
the southcern bank of the Palecna opposite Post 16. (see
Argentine Memorial, paragreph 56, at p.53)

4%. The peint is of overriding importance. It
means, first, that the boundary must follow the true
course of the river which flows into the Palena
opposite Post 16. It mecns also that the boundary

nust nov follow the waters of any. other river. - The
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only river to which thec Report and the Award rcfer

as being involved in the boundary between Posts 16
and 17 is the Encuentro. Acéordingly, the inclusion
in the boundary of the waters of any river can only be
justified if they can be shown to be part of the
Encuentro. | ' ,

44, Tt follows from this that the waters of
other rivers cannot form part of the relevant sector
of the boundafy; In particular, it is not pecrmissible
to inbtroduce the waters of the River Salto/Engaﬁo in
the section from the bend of that river round the north
eastern bluff of the Cerro Virgen to the point at which
it is joined from the south by the Rio Azul. Nor is it
pernissible tb introduce.a rcfecrence to any other
watercourse by reason of the fact that it can be
traced to the Westcrn slopes of the Cerro Virgen.
Neither the Salto/Engaﬁo nor the Azul and its tribut-
aries have any connection with the river which Jjoins
the Palena opposite Post 16 - and for that reason
these other rivers and'streams nust be excluded as

forming any part of the relevant sector.,I

1. In any event, as already indicated, the Ric Azul
does not have its source on the western slopes
of: the Ccrro Virgen. The river which satisfied
this description is a tributary of the Arroyo
Matreras itself, a tributary of the Azuil.

28.




(2) Thc lower section of the Encuentro (Ch.Men. p.101) Part One

45. There is now clear greement between the
Parties that the lower section of thé Encucntro as
described in paragraph 14 on page 101‘éf the Chilean
Memorial is part of the Encuentro. This is not so,
it may be added, because any decision of the Mixed
3oundary Commission made it so, but because |
geographically it must be so.

(3) Ihe difference between the Parties (Ch.Mem.p.101)

46. The Argentine Memorial confirm51 the
statement made in paragraph 16 of the Chilean
Mcmorial - that the differcnces between the Parties
as to the identification of the Encuentro begin at
the confluence of what, in the Chilean Memorial, are
called "the major channel" and "the minof channel”.
The Chilean Mcmorial contends that the River Encuentro
flows from the éast, and thét the channel from the
south 1is properly called the Arroyo Lopecz. The
Argentine Memorial contends that the southern channel
is the River Encuentro and that the proper name for

the eastern or major channel is the Falso Engano.

(4) The grounds of the Chilean contention (Ch.Mam.p.7103)

47. The Chilean Memorial set out three positive

See Arg.lMem., p.66, paragraph 69 and following,
where a description is given of the so-called "River
System of the River Encuentro®.
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grounds on which the Chilecan Government contended that

the major channel rcpresented the Encuentro.

(2) The inbentions of Sir Thomas Holdich(Ch.Mem.p.103)

48, The Chilean Memorial contended (see pp.T103-
108, 88 19-27) that Sir Thomas Holdich was sceking
in the sector betwcen Posts 16 and 17 to find a river
which could provide a clearly identifiable line lead-
ing to a high mountain whose peak would be on a local
waterparting which could be immediately followed to
the next fixed point.‘

49, The Argentine Memorial , by contrast,

emphasises the importance of the literal spplication

~of the words of the l\.wax'd/l and shows a general

unconcern with the preparatory work of the Roporf and
the Award.z Nevertheless, the Argentine Mémorial does
not go so far as to deny the relevance of the
intentions of the draftsmen of the Report and the

Award. Indeed, on a number of occasions the

Argentine Memorial itself acknowledged that it is, in

effect, impossible to disregerd the, intention under-

lying the words used in describiﬁg the boundary.

See Arg. Mem., p.204 paragraph 225 - p.211,
paragraph 232. .

Apart from one reference(at p.25) to the report of
Sir Thomas Holdich, which is called in the Ch.Mem.
"Holdich's "“Conditions other than geographical

(Annex No.21 to Ch. Mem.), the Arg.Mem. mekes no refer-

ence to the preparatory work undertaken in connection with

the Report and Award, which is essential to an under-
standing of the intention underlying them.

50.




Thus, at p.25 paragraph 27, the Argentine Memorial
actually rectfors to the passage in Sir Thomas HoIldich's
Rcport in which he statecs that the boundary of
compromisc "should combince as far as possible the
conditions of an elevated watershed with geographical
continuity". Further, at p.54, the Argentine Memorial,
in contending that the Court must base its enquiry
fairly and squarcly upon the 1902 Award, said:

"... it will be able to find within that Award and

the documents which form part of it, taken

together with the surrounding circumstances at

the time and the subsequent behavious of Tthe .
Partics, a complete solution for the question which

is put to this Court." (Underlining added.)

This statement, and especially the underlined phrase,
must mean, if it means anything, that the Court,éhould
consider what was the intention of the 1902 Tribunal.
Again, at p. 246, the Argentine Memorial, while
secking to limit to three (the Report, the Award and
the Map) the number of documents to be éxamined, was
forced, almost by the logic of the situation, to use
words (those underlined in the quotation which follows)
that reflect the inevitability of recourse to the
intention underlying the decision:

"It is cleér from those documents that in this

part of the boundary the Arbitrator was seeki%g
to create a boundary Tine whic olTowed & water-

coursc continuously from Boundary Post 16 to
Cerro de la Virgen.

50.. Moreover, in connection with the substance

31,

Part One




Part Onc of Sir-ﬁhomas' intentions, it is thesec same passages
in the Argentine Memorial (particularly those at
pp. 25 and 246)~whicﬁ confirm what the Chilean
Government has throughout its Memorial contended -
that his intention was to follow from the confluence
of the Rivers Encuentro and Palena a continuous

waterline to a point at which a local waterparting

to the next fixed point (Post 17) could be identified.
The rost of the Argentine Memorisl in effecct denies
this; gnd}in-thus contradicting itself merely weakens
its strﬁcturé‘yet further.

51. Nor doeéﬁtheré appear to be anything in the

Argentine Memorial to'suggest that the statements at
pp. 104~106 parographs 22-24, of the Chilean Memorial
do not dorrectly set out the considerations from which

deductions may be made about the intentions of Sir

Thomas. The only ncew fact of interest in this
connection revealed in the Argentine Memorial is the

existence of the Lange Map (Map A10); and this does

- nothing except establish with certainty, as cmanating

from an Argentinian source, the origin of the crror
which has given rise to the present arbitration.

(b) The physical characteristics of the Encuentro
(Ch.Mem., p.108).

52. The Chilean Memorial contended, in the

second place, that an objective assessment of the

geographical characteristics of the two channels which
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run into the lower scction of the Encuentro must lead Part Onc
to the conclusion that the degree of continuity end
identity betwcen the major channel and the lower
section is such that they must together be regarded as
constituting the Encucntro, as against a combination of
the lower scetion and the minor channel (Ch.Mem., p.
108, paragraph 28). |

53. In this conncction the Chilean Memorial o
referred to four relevant factors: (i) the greater
length and sizc of the major channel; (ii) the fact
that at the point of junction the major channel
discharges almost twice as much water as the minor
channcl; (iii) the similarity of alluvial deposit
betweon the major channel and the lower section; and
(iv) the similarity of the canyon characteristic of
the major channel and the lower section. Such
details as the Argentine Memorial contains of the
major channcl and the minor channel arc to be found
at pp. 69 and 66 respectively. As already indicated,
in the submission  the Chilean Government nothing iﬁ
the Argentine statements of fact about the two channels
in any way diminishces the force of the four factors
advanced by the Govermment of Chile as showing that
the major channel is the Encuentro.

(i) Comparative length and size

54. The Argentine Memorial mekes no reference to

22.




Part One

the lengthvof thé majbr channel. Indeed, as in the
case of fhe_description Qf the minor channel, the
principal‘eﬁphasis is not upbn the river itself, but
upon the river valley. The Argentine Mcemorial statcs
that the major channel has "a ‘V‘ shaped cross-profile
nmarkcdly different from the 'U' shape" of the minor
channgl,v Ec-this so; it is of 1little relevance to

_the rolativé magnitudes of the two channois. Indced,
if anything, ﬁho V! chdractoristic of the cross¥pfofile
of the maj§f.¢hann¢1‘res§mbling as it docs the
cross-profilc of the lbwer section of the Encuentro
suggesfs a greater éegr¢e of continuity and cloécncss
of identity betwéén fhé major éhannel and the lower
section than betweenfhé miﬁor channel and the lower
section. Indced the COntinuity of the major channcl
and the lower scction of the Encuentro is strikingly
brought out in the rclevant aorial photograph.
Morcover, a V-shaped vallcy nokes for a mudh bettcr
bouhdary than docs a U-shaped onc.

55. The Argentine Mcmorial (at p.66, paragraph 69)
refers ﬁo the lengbh of “the maein south to north valley
of the River Encuentro" as being 17.5 km. This figure,
it should be notéd, refers to the length of the valley,
and not the leﬁgth of the minor channcl itself. The
latber, as indicated in the Chilean Memorial, p.109,

is 9 km. (from the source of the Arroyo Mallines to
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its junction with +the Encucntro), in contrast with the Part One
20 km. of the major channcl from its source to the
confluence of the ninor channcl.

56. The Govermment of Chile notes that ibs

sscessment of the insignificance of part of the minor
&

3

strecam is largély in accord with the fiﬁdings of the
Field Mission in Fcbruary 1966.

57. Mcntion should also be made of the reference
in the Argentine Memorial to the morphological features
of the minor chamnel (Arg.Mem., p.66, paragraph 69):
"As con be scen from the Geomorphological Map
of Palena (Map No. A28) the River Encuentro
(minor channel) forms a clear-cub morphological
feature from its headwaters to the north of the
Portezuclo de las Raices to its final reach
which starts some 3 km. from its mouth where it

has cut into bodrock in a narrow gorge with
rapids."

58. The only comment which the Chilean -
Govermment would cffer upon the introductiam of e
reference to the morphology of the region’is'that it

can scarcely have much bearing upon the identification

as "the River Encuentro" of one channel or the other.
But if it is relevant, then the pdint to note is the
similarity of featuﬁes between the final 3 km. of the
lower section just cbove the junction of the river with
the Palena and the upper part of the major channel.
This also appears very clearly on the aerial

photograph to which reference has already becn made.
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i Part One | 59. It is also pertinent in this connecction to

il | refer to the following statement made in the speech
i I of counsel for the Government of Argentine (Mr.
il , " Bathurst) on 30 December 1965:

W ~ ", ..the representation of the River Falso Engano
i (the major channel) immediately above the

I confluence with the River Encuentro (minor

i channel) on the Mixed Commission's map (entitled
i _ Rio Encuentro and being Shcet No. VII-3, annexed
I | as Map No. A.31) now requires modification, for
i v ‘above the confluence the River Falso Engano is

i ' ‘subject to short-term changes of course, width of
I bed and volume. A recent landslide has diverted
\ the course of the river so that the Mixed

} Commission's map sheet no longer accurately _

| represents its course. The River Falso Engano at
! its conflucnce with the River Encuentro is more

{ ‘than 5 metres wide and, like the Encuentro,
\
\
\
\
|
|
|
\

should be represented on the map by a double
blue line..." :

The Government of Chile cannot accept the suggestion

that the 1andslidc has had any cffect upon the width

W | _ or volumc of the major channel. The acknowledg@ent

I : by the Government of Argentina that the major channel
| should at its point of confluence with the minor channel
il - | ' have been marked by a double blue line on the Mixed
HW ,Eoundary Commission map is an admission that in = |

\ R . . .
‘WW major, indeed a crucial, respect this map was

|

| |
i - inaccurate. Once the Govermment of Argentina

| | recognises (as it has now done) that at the point of
] confluence the major channel is a river of no less
significance than the minor dhannel, its task of
|

|

|
y

establishing that the minor channel is the Encuentro,

| s6.

‘Hu
- .

1




i.e. the upper continuation of that river rather than Part One
a tributary of it, becomes even more difficult.

(ii) Comparative discharges of water

60. The only point which the Argentine Memorial
makes in conncction with the flow of the two channels
is to contrast the regularity of the‘minor channel,
which (so it alleges) originates in springs (see Arg.
Mem., p. 68), with the seasonal variations in the
major channel, which is fed by melting ice and snow.
(See Arg. Mem., p. 69) But this contrast doeslnot meet
the Chilean point that the major channel discherges at
the point of junction almost twice as much water as the
minor channel. (See Ch. Mem., p. ’l’lo)1 It is no
refutation of this poiﬁt to say, as does the Argeniine
Mcmorial at p. 69, of the major channel: "...its
volume varies from scason to season, and no wvalid
deductions may be made from its volume at any given time
of the year“. Dr. Beckinsale, in his report, makes the

following important comment on this passage in the

Argentine Mcmorial:

Further volumetric measurcments of the major and
minor channels were made in April 1966. The
results are set out in Annex 41. The major
channel is called the "River Encuentro" upstream
of confluence, and the minor channel is called the
"Arroyo Lopez". It can readily be seen that even
at that late stage in the Chilean autumn the
volume of the major channel is on an average twice
that of the minor channel

37.
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"But, in fact, this type of river regine is known
internationally as nivo-pluvial and is common in all
mountains that rise above the snow-line. The
hydrometric measurements made fall within the realm
of probability of a nivo-pluvial regime but such
measurenents are incapable of measuring floods beyond
bank-full stage and these must occur often on the
lower Ri® Encuentro at the measuring station selected.
I visited the junction during a dry autumn when snow-
melt was negligible and simple measurements of depth
and width gave a volumetric ratio of 65 : 35 in
fayour of the major channel."

®

Byicontrast, the Argentinian Memorial does not
say that the Argentine authorites have carried out
any measurements of the flow of the two streams.

(ii3i) Similarity of alluvial deposits

- 61. There is_ﬁothing'in the Argentine Memorial

- - save the reference to the morphology of the
area - which has any bearing on this point; and

beyond referring back to the comment made in
paragraph 17 above on thesinilarity of morphology of
the lowest section of the Encuentro and upper parts
of the major channel, nothing more need be said on
this point. |

(iv) Similarity of the canyon charateristic of the

‘lower section of the FEncuentro and the major

channel

62. Again, there is nothing but confirmation in
the Argentine Memorial for the statement in the
Chilean Memorial of the similarity of character

between the lower section of the Encuentro and the
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major channel. So no more need be said about that Part One
here -~ except to observe once more how clearly this
feature is brought out in the aerial photographs.

(¢) Treatment of the major channel as the boundary
(CH. Mem., p. 111)

6%. This aspecf of the case is so closely bound
up with the question of the "fulfilment" of the
Award that it will be best to reserve consideration
of it to the next Part. Suffice it to say at this
point that the Argentine Government did not seek in
its Memorial to Justify the boundary for which it
contends by specific consideration of the treatment
accorded by either the local inhabitants or the
Parties to the minor or the major channel as
representing the international boundary. Moreover,
as has been seen, acceptance of the Argentine
"Encuentro" involves drawing a line which places
twenty-one Chilean landholdings (out of a total of
twenty-six in the California Valley) in Argentine

territory, and, moreover, in so doing makes the

boundary divide the area of four of them, The few
isolated examples of Chilean settlers registering in
Argentina births of children born in the disputed

area and of Argentinian acts of administration in the

disputed area are examined in more detail below. -




Part..One

B The Government of Chile submits that nothing
said in the.Argentine Menorial or Memorandum on Land
Use canisﬁand agaihsﬁ the trend of the evidence
adduced in the Chilean Memorial, or supplemented in
the present Counter-Memorial, and pointing so clearly
towards the major. channel being treated as the true

Encuentro.

(5) The "western branch" ~ a_reference without a
neaning (CH. Mem., p. 113)

64, Reasons have been given in the Chilean

" Memorial, pp. 113-115, why the reference in the

Report and Award to "the western branch" of the
River Encuentro is of no significance. The
Argentine Memorial contains nothing which contradicts
fhese reasons. On the contrary, as shown above,
there is material in the Argentine llemorial which
indicates that the Argentine Government itself con-
siders the reference to "fhe western branch" to be
either quite unimportant or so flexible in meaning
as td be worthless as a governing criterion.
(b) The Dependent Part of the Definition

~ (CH. Men., p. 116).

65. The Chilean Memorial contends (at pp. 116~
120) that once the River Encuentro has been

identified and traced to its source on the western




slope of the Pico de la Virgen, the tracing of the
southwards continuation of the boundary is almost
automatic.

66. It is perhaps pertinent to observe in thisr
connection that the Argentine Memorial does not
question the existence of a local watershed in the
terms set out in the Chilean Memorial. Indeed,
quite independently the Argentine Memoriai,.as a
gtatenent of geographical fact, traces the watershed
along the range of which the Pico de la Virgen forms
part and onwards to Post 17 in terms which warrant
quotation at this point:

"...This lithology and glacial erosion of the
high mountains, have produced a striking
norphology of steep~sided, sharp-pointed crests
and a succession of knife-edged ridges; an aspect
that is repeated countless times in the
Patagonian Andes. Cerro Herrero, 1,867 m., is
prominent in the north, Cerro Central, 2,070 n. ,
in the niddle and Cerro Condor, 2,010 ., in

the South.

The range forms a watershcd between the
River Falso Engano (G4) to the west and minor
tributaries of the River Carrenleufu to the
cast. South of Cerro Condor, the nountain range
appcars to have its continuation in a pcak at
1930 m. (H10) and in Cerro Llano, 1776 m. (H11),
but the continuity of the crests is interrupted
by the wide deep valley of the River Engano
(H10), the floor of which is over 1,000 n.
below the crest of Cerro Condor. The watershed
thus changes direction and is displaced to the
south~east, along the spur between Lake Guacho
(J9) and the Lakes of the Engalio (H11). It
descends to an elevation of less than 1150mn.

In order to reach Boundary Post 17 from

41,
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Part One

this elevation along a watershed, it is necessary
to follow a circuitous route: at first east to
west, over the crest of Cerro Llano, then des-
cribing a semi-circle to the west in order to
reach a final north-south section descending to
Boundary Post 17 on the north shore of Lake

General Paz." |

67. Tt is in this comnection particularly helpful
to exanmine map AMlQ appended to the Argentine
Memorandum on Land Use and entitled "Terrain Types".
This shows with striking clarity how the boundary may
be followel from‘ﬁhé source of the major chahnel in
an alﬁost due north-to-south direction along the
nigh ground identified by the hatched pattern, then
round the cast side of the Engaﬁo Takes and finally

in a westerly direction until just north of Post 17.

\
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THE FULFILMENT OF THE AWARD




CHAPTER I

THE _RELEVANCE OF DEVELOPMENTS SUBSEQUENT

TO THE 1902 AWARD

1. The Chilean Memorlal devotes some 75 pages to a
consideration of the elements relevant to the "fulfill
ment" of the 1902 Award. It describes the Chilean
settlement In Californla, provides evidence of the
Chilean l1dentiflcation of the resldents of Californla,
sets out the local activities of the Chilean Government
and indicates how, on an 1ntergovernmentai level as well,
the position adopted in 1913=1914 by both Parties
reflected an acceptance of the correctness of the Chllean
position, The Chilean Memorial concludes its summary of
its contentions regarding the fulfilment of the Award as
follows:

"Consequently, the fulfilment of the Award by
the Parties and the possession exercised by Chile
in the period prior to the arising of the present
dispute accords with and confirms the interpreta=-

tion of the 1902 award set out in paragraph (13)
of these Contentions." (See Chil.Mem., p.U46lL),-

2, The Argentine Memorlal, by contrast, contains.very
1ittle which bears on the question of fulfilment. At

pp. 200:201 it suggests two possible meanings of the
words. One suggestion 1s that it refers "simply to the
faithful carrying out of an Award by the partles to whom
1t 1s addressed"; +the other 1s that 1%t refers to "making

complete or supplying what 1s lacking'". The Argentine
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Memorial does not speclfy which of these meanings 1%

adopts.
3, Apart from this reference %o "pulfilment " the

Argentine Memorial deals with the matter at pp.194=195.

It states, first, ".... any evidence that may pbe addressed

by a Party concerning purportéd acts of administration on

the ground must be, %o say the least, of doubiful

pelevance, For there can be no question of any new

adquisition of sovereignty by either Pariy, whether by

occupatibn, prescription or otherwise", Secondly, the

Argentine Memorlal states:

"Mopeover, there is a further 1imitation upon
%he cogency of such evidencc of acts on the ground.
T+ is the fact that the activity of Chile in the
territory east of the River Encuentro-ls subsequent
to the establishment of the Argentine~0h11evM1xed
‘Boundaries Commission, and mostly indeed subsequent

to 1955."

The Argentline Memorial then concludes that, therefore,

Chilean activity has taken place after the critical date.

L, The Government of Chile does not accept these

contentions of the Argentine Memorial. The Government
of Chile submits that the reference O tfplfilment! in

the Compromiso must pe taken tO establish the relevance

and importance of the conduct of the Parties subsequent

to the Award as a factor affectlng the proper lnterpre-
tation of the Award. |

5. The Government of Chille believes that the government

of the Argentine Republic comes much closer To an
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acceptable assessment of the relevance of the activities Part_Two
of the Parties in the period after 1902 in the following

passage from the spcech of Mr, M.E, Bathurst, Q.C.,

leading counsel for the Argentine Republic,.on the second

day of the preliminary hearings held 29 %o 31 Deéémber,

1965. Mr. Bathurst saild:

"My Lord, I make no apology for reminding the :
Court, yet again that what 1s in issue in this case |
1s not the drawing of a new boundary line, but the |
proper interpretation and fulfilment of the Award
made in 1902, For this purpose, any evidence of
land use before 1902 » supposing any use were then
made of the land = could conceivably be helpful.
Likewise, any evidence of governmental administra-
tion, rather than land use in the strlict sense, in
defined portions of territory in the period

dimmediately following the promulgation of the Award
could suggest what the Partles, or possibly a Party,
then understood the Award to mean., The law is
perfectly clear that In this kind of Interpretation
issue, a particular government cannot better 1ts
case by unllateral actlivity after a certain
'eritical date!, and this rule of law cannot be
xorcised by accumulating, under the general
chapter heading of '"fulfilment', that which the law
says 1is irrelevant. Here the law, after all, does
no more than put into formal terms what is also

the rule of common sense, It would be contrary to
all reason, if one Party to a boundary settlement
could by a conscious policy of encroachment, bend
the course of an Award boundary line. For when

the issue is the course of a boundary line, there
can be no question, as there might well be if the
issue were, for instance, the meaning of the
constltution of a State, of a dynamic of changing
interpretation. In a boundary Award, the whole
purpose, the whole ethos, and the manifest
princlipal canon of interpretation are all governed
by the domlnating need for stabllity and permancnce.

"Conversely, of course, it is no doubt true that
in some respects observation of local activity may
be of some assistance to the Court in placing some
of the arguments of a Party In thelr proper perspec-
tive. Thus, evidence on the ground of a very recent
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Policy of expanding settlement into new areas,

always tending in the same direction, may suggest

~to the mind of the Court conscious encroachment
rather than routine administration of terriltory
accepted as belonging to the administering authority.
The outward appearance of such a recent policy might,
for example, take the term of fencing apparently
recently erected, possibly fencing of a kind unusual
in the locality; or agaln, new farm houses, ’
possibly of a style or structure unusual in the area."
(Transcript of Hearinﬁs, Second Day (30 December),
.revised version, pp. 43-44, .

6. It is nbteworthylthét'the Afgentine Government here
recognised that "govérnmental administration ... in the
period immediately‘f9110wing the promulgation of the N
Award could suggest,what.the Parties, or possibly a Party,
theq‘underStooq the Award to mean". From this it 1s clear
that for SCme period following the promulgation of the
Award, the conduct of the parties can properly be regardéd
as a factor relevant to the interpretation of the Award,
But what 1s that period? Mr. Bathurst'!s statement

speaks of the periqd "immediately" following promulgation

of‘the Award, How long 1s this period of 1mmediacy? In
the submisslon of the Governmenf of Chile, it must mean
the period prior to "the critical date". For when the
relevant SQntence of Mr, Bathurstfs speech 1s read ﬁith
the senﬁeﬁces ﬁhich.follow, it can be seen that a dis-
tinetion is belng drawn between events before énd'events
after the critidal date - the date at which (as he put 1t)

"a particular government cannot betfer its case by

unilateral éctivity". It wouid appear that Mr,Bathurst




was equating the pceriod immediately after the Award wilth
the period prior to the critical date. If he was not,

1t 1s difficult, 1f not impossible, to see what date he
would select as the terminatlion of the perlod
"trmediately" after the Award,

T The Govermment of Chile doubts whether at this

point it would be helpful to pursue further the questibn
of "the eritical date"” in thils case. But one thing is
certaln, that the conduct upon which the Government of
Chile velies as evidence of the fulfilment of the Award
is conduct which developed gradually and continually from
1902 onwards without In any way belng spurred or prompted
by a consclousncess of a difference of opinion exlisting
between the FParties. There is no question in this case
of the Chilean Government having pursued "a conscious
policy of encroachment"., There 1s, 1n particular,
absolutely no warrant for the statement, made in the
Argentin: Memorandum on Land Use (at p.52), "that after
the Chilean rejection in 1956 of the deciéions of the
XVth Plenary Meceting in 1955 of the Argentina;Chile

Mixed Boundaries Commlssion, the interventlion of the
Chllean authorities in respect of the disputed arca was
particularly increased,"

6. In addition, 1t should be observed that Mr. Bathurst
acknowledged that "observation of local activity may be

of some assistance to the Court ...". He pointed
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out that such evidence'could be of assistance In
distinguishing between "conscious encroachment" and
"routine administration of territory accepted as
belonging to,the administering authority"
9. In viow‘of these ﬂdmissions, he Government of
Chile doubts whether it is necessary to go further In
justifying in law the relevance and admissibility of the
evidence which 1% hes produced, and will now oupplemwnt
on the questiun of 'fulfilment" But to the cxtent that
additional legal argument is thought desirvble, it will
be found in the statement of the contentions and submiss-~

jons of the Government of Chile, in Part Five below.

CHAPTER IT

THE CONNECTION BETWEEN ARGENTIN;A AND THE DISPULED
AREA VIEWED IN PERSPECTIVE

10. The Chilean Government 1s in some difficulty in the
present Counter-Memorial invattempting to reply to an
Argentinian argument about TPulfilment” which has not yet
been fully deployed. Nonetheless, the material which i1s
presented in the Argentine Memorandum on Land Use (here;
inafter called "thelﬁrgentine Memorandum") suggests,
mainly by implication, that the Argentine-argument will
principally be that the disputed area 1s and has been 1n
a varlety of material respects closer to Argentina than
it has to Chile, The elements to which the Jrgentine

Memorandum refers at various p01nts,vpresumably for the
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purpose of ecstablishing this connection, appear to be

four in number:
(A) the origin of the inhabitants of the disputed

(B) the nationality of the inhabitants;
(CS the physical connection, in térms_primarily of
- comparative ease of communicatlon, between the
disputed area and nelghbouring Argentine
territory; and
(D) the extent of Argentine administrative activity
" in the disputed area. .
The Govermment of Chlle will devote this Chapter to
congidering the relevance and significance of each of

these factors.

A. The origin of the inhabltants of the disputed area.

11, The Argentine Memorandum twice statces that the
settlers who came to the disputed area after 1920
"were mostly Chilean men previously living in other

places in Argentina who, when they married, whether
before thelr arrival in the area or after, in many

caseschose Argentine women as their wives," (See
Arg, Mem., pp. 45 and 70.)

12, Now 1% 1s no part of the éhilean case to deny that a
number of the settlers in the California Valley came
there after sojourn in Argentina, Equally, it is part of
the Chilean case that all the adult settlers In the
Californla Valley after 1920 were Chllean nationals, The

detalls of the origin of the settlers can be seen in
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Chapter IV below. But the Chilean Government atteoches

importance to the movement from Argentina being seen in
1%s proper perspective and, in particular, in the light
of two major factors:

(1)' the physical difficulty of reaching the disputed

 area without first trans;ting Argentina; and

(2) the Argentine‘préssure upon Chileans in

- Argentina to repatriate themselves to Chile, This began

in the 1920s and appears tq‘have continued intermitvently.
13, There is also a third factor which must be borme in
mind, namely, that it had for‘;ong been Chilean polilcy

to encourage the re;settlementyin Chile of expatriate

Chileans residing in Argentina.

(1) Ph%sical difficulty of access %o the Californig
- Yalley | | |

14, The dominant conslderatlon affecting the question
of physical access %o the disputed area 1is that the line
of the boundary dividing Argentina from Chile is such as
to exclude, for all practical purposes, the pdssibility
of direct north-south road communication on the western
side of South America, south of Puerto Montt. Yetb
puerto Montt is itself still a good thousand miles north
of the southernmost point of the Chilean mainland. This
means that ﬁoﬂ;aerial access from the rest of Chile %o

the interior of Chilean territory in the whole of this

southern area must be either by water, to a coastal port




at the mouth of a river ahd then up the river valleys (by
no means an easy feat in early days, as the accounts of
the nineteenth century cxplorations show), or by land,
across the mountalns into the relafively-traversable
areas of Argentina, and then back on to Chllean territory.
15. So far as settlement in the California Valley is
concerncd, the consequence of this situatlon was that
unless the settlers came by boat (which, so far as 1s
known, was never the case in this area) they were bound
to come via Argentinian territory. This explains why
experts such as Butland (referred to in the Argentine
Memorandum at p.4) say that "the movement of peoples into
these regions was.primarily from the east". They could
approach the province of [Jysen (the colonization of
which Butland was discussing) 1n no other way. JIn fact,
Butland makes the essentiall& "$ransit" dharacter of
Argentina in relation to the colonisation of Aysen quite
clear in the map on p. 76. Although this map shows
arrovs coming from the east to indicate the direction
from which Palena and Lago Verde were settled, it 1s
actually demonstrating settlement by Chlleans, as the
heading on that map, "Migration Routes from Central

Chile to Ayscn™, clearly shows. TFar to the north of
Neuquen and Chubut (in Argentina) from which the arrows

indicate the flow of migration, there are other arrows

pointing from the west, between Bio Bio and Llanquihue,
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to show the ftrue origin of the mlgration.

The same factor also explains why the Argentine
Memorandum can quite truthfully identify the immediate
provenance of a number of the seftlers in:the disputed
areas as belng Argentina. For in some cases, Chileans
resided a while in Argentina before moving on. But 1%
does not follow‘from this that the people who came were
genuinely Argentinian in origin, though technically (by
reaéon of accident of birth) they might occasionally be,
by Argentinlan law, of Argeﬁtinian natibnality. Nor does
it follow that such persons, who_settled in Chile after a
period of residence in Argentina, were Argentinian or
Argentine:oriented. Many Chiieans lived in Argentine
Patagonia. At one time 1t was estimated that the popula=-
tion of Chubut was 80% Chllean, Temporary residence there,
for longer or.shorter‘periods and for diverse causes, was
a common feature;

16. It is in this conncetion instructive to read of the
circumstances in which one family, the Ramirez family,
came to live for a whille ;n the Argentine. Ag can be seen
in greater detall 1n C.M.efl, the Ramirez famlly sct

out from the Simpson Valley (Chile) in 1918 to return to
Villarrica (Chile). They took 400 cows with them and had
to pass through Afgentigé in transit. In Esquel
(Argentina) the father suffered an accldent and could

proceed no further, The cows were sold; cheep were
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bought; pasture was hired for a year; and finally the

family moved into the area of Palena,

17. Another 1llustration may be found in the affidavit

of Florentina Bahamondes Azocar (C-M, 228) who stated
that in 1917 "with my husband we came from.Argentina and
brought with us our anlmals, as after reslding for several
years in that country we decided %o settle in Chile,"

(2) Argentine pressure fop Chilean repatriation

18. The second factor which accounts for Chilean move:
ment from Argentina is of a different character to the
first. The years of more intensive Chilean settlement
in the California Valley coincide with a period in which
therc was marked Argentine bressure upon Chileans to
return to Chile, Uhderstandably, nothing is said about
this in the Argentine Memorial or Memorandum. But that
the pressure was there and had a generally unscttling
influence on all Chilean settlement in the border lands
of Argentina there can be no doubt, Furthermore, the
conditlons under which Chileans 1lived in Argentine border
areas were generally unfavoﬁrable and were of a kind to

encourage resettlement in their own country,

19. In referring to the events of This period the

Y'Goverﬁhent of Chile i1s anxious to make 1% clear that it

does so exclusively for the pburpose of establishing the
background to the movement of Chilleans from Argentina to

Chile. There is no desire on the part of the Government
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of Chile to rake over these matters for fheir own sake;
and 1% is not without reluctance that the Government of
Chile prints some of the 1llustrative documents, It 1s
the assumption of the Government of Chile that thé
measures there referred to were faken by the local
authorities without the knowledge or approval of the
Argentinian central government authorities. On occaslon
a measure of relief was obtained when representations
were made by the Chllean representatives in Buenos 4ires
to the central government authorities there., Moreover,
to some extent even Argentinians were victims of the
oppressive conduct in guestion,
20, Perhaps the most public and cogent reflection of
this pressure is %o be found in the message sent by the
President of Chile %o the Congress on 7 January 1930
(tnnex Wo. 3). This sets ouf the position so fully and
élearly that‘fairly full quotatioh is warranfed:
"Amongst the great national problems which

the Government must face urgently, there is the

condition of Chilean citlzens settled in the

Argentinian Patagonia.

Perhaps because of the adventurous spirit of

" our race and other reasons which need not be dealt
with, during many years a considerable number of
our fellow citizens have emigrated to the south of
Argentina, in search of better prospects for their
future. Recent statistics put the Chilean popula=
tion of that territory at more than one hundred
and fifty thousand people, representing almos?t
eighty per cent of the total number of its

inhabltants,
Due to the facilities granted at the beginning
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by the Govermnment of that country, when those
reglons had not the importance for Argentina they
acquired in the course of time, our emigrant
compatriots settled on the lands nearest the
Chilean border, particularly on the territories

of Chubut 2nd Rio Negro. Most of the occupiers are
in possession of these lands for the last ten,
fifteen and twenty years. -

The gereral indifference regarding these
ferritories; +$he lack of means of communication;
the huge distance separating them from the ‘
federal Capltal and other centres of population,
has been undoubtedly, the determining cause of
the difflculties which the Government of Argentina
has encountered in the administration of these
regions, so that the task of our consuls has been
very heavy and thankless and because of the
innunmerable conflicts which often took place
befween the authorities and the Chilean settlers,
the Government has always tried to act with great
restraint, in order to avoid harming the good
relations with our neighbours. :

But 1t is becoming necessary %o face the
problem affecting our fellow countrymen, and the
Government, in the same friendly manner adopted
untlil today, must contribute with all the means
at 1ts disposal to save this situation.

In April of the year 1928, the authorities of
Patagonla served notices to leave on more than
Pifty familigs in Rio Percy, Iago Futulafgeh,
Lago Situacion, Rlo Negro, Rio Limay, etc.

It must be stated that these notices were
served not to Indigent persons but to good
families owning valuable property, money, cattle,
sheep, ete., and a great deal of workilng implements
and means of transport.

In view of thls situation the Ministry of
Foreign Affalrs, through our Embassy in Buenos
Alres, succeeded in stopplng the Government of
argentina from putting this measure into effect,
at least during the year 1929; but recently our
consul 1n Bariloche has reported that again the
Chilean familles have been served with notires %o
leave,

For the second time our LGmbassy has managed to
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stop these evictions, whlle the Government of
Chile finds the means of repatriation of the
affected families.
The Ministry of Foreign Affalrs aware of the
gravity of %the situation, had taken the initiative
to provide the means of repatriation of the sald
settlers and, to this effect, ordered our consuls,
a% the beginning of 1928, %o start inscribing the
familles wishing to return to Chile to colonize
lands in the area of Aysen., ..."
21. The above exiract serves to show that pressure had
already developed by 1920, It 1s also reflected in a
petitlon sent in December 1923 to the Intendants of Aysen
by a number of resldents of Palena and the California
Valley (C-M, 15). The pressure clearly continued through
19%0. The Report of the Minlstry for Forelign Affairs
for that year states that:

"several notes were sent to the Argentinian

Government requesting the delay of the evietions

- of numerous Chilean settlers agalnst whom eviction

was decreed," (Annex No. 4
22, The generally harsh standard of treatment of
Chilean natlonals by the Argentine authorities in the
frontier fegions adjacent to the sector now in dispute
is clearly brought out in three further documents of
19%0: a despatch dated 7 August 1930 from the Subdele-
gates of Yelcho (Chile) to the Chilean Consul in Esquel
(argentina) (Annex No., 44A); a report dated 17 September
1930 from the Intendant of Aysen %o the Chilean Minlstry

of thé Interlor (Annex No. 4B); and a report dated 1

December 1930 from the Deputy Intendant of Aysen to the
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Chilean Minister of Foreign Affairs (4nnex No. 4C), It Part Two

would appear that one of the causeslof this Argenéinian

pressure was_heavy unemployment in that country ; as

rcported at the time by the Chilean Cbnsul In Esquel

(Annex No. 6).

23. There ié some evidence that matters may have

1mproved for a while. A consular report of 3 June 1931

Esquel (innex No, 5) speaks of various local disputes

with the Argentine éuthorities having been satlisfactorily

settled, though the some report gives a long 1list of

Chileans who had been repatriated under the facilitles

provided by the Chilean ILaw of 1930 (Annex No. 4). |

Likewlse, a report of 18 March 1931 from the Chiiean

Consul at Esquel to the Minister for Extérnal Affalrs

(C-M. 53) mentions the satisfactory outcome of

discussiéns between the Consul and the Governor of the

relevant Argentinian_provincef

2t, In the meantime, however, Chilean legislative and

administrative procedures were being developed to cope |
with the flow of repatriates. In 1928 there 1s a letter ;

from the Chlilean Consul General in Buenos Alres to the

1. Reference may also be made to C-M, 2 and 3, which
date from 1919, as illustrating even earlier cases
of harsh treatment in places not far removed from
the disputed sector, See also the telegram dated

27 November 1931, C:M, 57,
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recelpt of money to be used in the opening of paths for

the repatriation of groups of Chileans presently
resident in the Valley of the 16th October. (Sce C:M.B).
4 Clrcular Letter of 17 February 1§32 from’the Intendaﬁt
of the Province of Aysen to his Subdelegates deals with
their responsibilities to provide provisional housing
for repatriates and their power within restricted limits
to graht rights to repatriates settling on State lands
(C;M.68). But difficulties avose again. Even as late
as 1939; the Intendant of Chiloe, in hls Annual Report to
the Chilean Home Secretary (Doc,.1l1l4) stated:

" ... on the Argentinc side there are a large

number of our compatriots who find themselves
in a distressful situation due to their having
been notified of their repatriation."

25, The significance of these events in the context of

the present case is evident., There was a constant flow

of movement across the frontier from Argentina to Chile

after the 1902 Award and in'particular from 1928 onwards.

It was not a case of Chileans resident in Argentina moving

from one part of the territory of that State to another,

It was a casc of Chileans being required or seeking to
leave Argentine territory. In those clrcumstances it
seems improbable in the extreme that the new settlers in
the Californié Valley, endeavouring as they were fo remove

themselves from Argentinian to Chilean territory, should

58.




have chosen to settle in the California Valley, on the Part Two
eastern side of the major channel, if there could have

been 2t that time any real local opinion that the.area

was part of Argentina, This proposition, which seems

inherently rcasonable as a matter of simple 1nferencev

from fthe general ecircumstances prevalling at the time, is
established beyond a shadow of a doubt in 1ts particular
application to the settlers in the disputcd areas by the
terms of their own statements of their reasons for removal,
These are rescrved for further consideration later,

(3) Chilean encouragement of the return of Chilean
expavriates

26. Apart from this clear evidence of Argentine
pressure upon the alien pettlers in her frontier areas,
1t 1s right to bear in mind that 1t had long been
official Chilean policy to encourage Chilean settlers in
the Argentine border areas to return to Chile, Reference
to some of the relevant Chilean legislation laying down
the incentive, for example, of grants of free land may
be found in the Chilean Mcmorial, P. 135, n.l, In
addition, there was a certaln amount of activity by
Chilean settlers in Argentina directed towards maintain;
ing their national identity with a view to their return
home. Carlos dJara Carrasco, in a declaration made on

23 April 1966 (C-M.237) Tells how in the period from
1924 to 1931 he participated in the activities of a
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Chilean Society at Esquel (Arg.) - the Chilean Mutual
Assistance Soclety Jose San Maréin, established with
authorisation from the Argentine authorlties. He was
active, with officlal Chilean support, in encouraging
Chlileans in Argentina to settle in Futaleufu and Palena?
and in 1931 he himsclf went to live in Futalcufh.

(4) Other Matters affecting re~settlement by Chileans

27: Two other matters remain to be mentioned which have
a bearing on the nature of Argentiné pressurc upon the
Chilcan settlers. The first is that therc can be no
gquestion of Chilean movement westwards from the Chubut
area of 4rgentina having been due to any shortage of
land. Even in 1960 Chubut was noted by an iArgentinian
author as having one of the lowest population densitles
in the country, 0.6 inhabitants per square kilometre.l
28. .Secondly, from 1924 onwards it was the deliberate
policy of the Argentine Government to 1limit to the point
of exclusion the acquisition of land by forecigners in
border areaé. The relevant decrees of 1924 form part of
Annex 2. This same .Annex, which consists of an extract
from the Report of the General Direction for ILands for
the 1922;1928 Administrative Period of.the Argentine

Ministry of Agricuiture,_may be read as indicative of

1. See Aquiles D, Ygobone, Renacimliento de la
Patagonia (Buenos Alres, 196H4), p.#20.
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the general attitude of the Argentine authorities to
forecign border settlefs. At one point the Report
describes the "new comers" as "transitory in most cases"
and as belonging to"an inferior race", Again, in 1936
there 1s a report that the dargentine Republic had enacted
that a belt of land 50 kilometres wide along the
fronticr with Chile should be occupled only by Argentlne
nationals. (C;M.112). Flnally, in 1944, Argentina
enacted legislation éstablishing "securlty éones" within
a strip 100 kilometres wide contiguous to the land
frontier with Chile. Within these zones 1t was declared
to be a matter of public policy that property should
belong cnly to native;born Argentinian subjects. (See
Decrecs of 13 June, 1944; 22 May, 1946; and 21 October,
1948 ; innex No.31), The effect of these decrees was %o
exclude the possibility of Chilean settlers cver
acquiring a definitive title to land in the irgentine
border areas,

(5)‘ actual reasons for which the scttlors of the
disputed areas lelt Argentina

29. Even 1f all the general considerations in the
previous paragraphs of this Chapter could be entirely
swept agilde, there remalns a body € evidence of such
direct, clear and compelling force that it must entirely
put an end to any suggestion that the settlers in the

disputed area = though Chilean ~ had merely moved from
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one part of Argentina to another. This evidence consists
of their own statements of what they had in mind at the
time of their rcmoval. And though these statements

will be referred to again when, in Chapter IV below, the
ownership and occupation of each of the plots in the
disputed area is examined in detail . there may be
convenicnce even at this point in drawing attention to this
significant group of documents. The striking fcature of
this material is that it will enable the Court to

identify the motives which led the original occupants of

virtually every plot in the disputed area to settle
where they did. And tho important thing is that in
every case in which the reasons arc given they are
substantially to the effect (a) that ih moving to the

disputed area the settler was intending to leave

- Argentina and re-scttle in Chile and (b) that he was

doing so because of the uncertainties. difficultics

and pre¢ssures in Argentina.

20. .It will be convenient perhaps to examine the state-
ments in the numerical order of thc plots in which the

various individuals scttled.

Plot 1. The wife of Roberto Cid states (C-M.254) that

when her husband came to live in California he was firmly

convinced that he had left Argentina. Her statement

continues:

"her husband left Argentina because being near
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Corcovado, he was evicted from the land he

occupled which was transferred to an Argentlne

natlonal who had more economic resources. He

also reallsed that in Argentina he would never

be able to become a landowner, and this 1s the

reason why he returned to his native country."
Plot 2. The occupant, Vicente Contreras Quintana states
(C=M.2845) that when he came to settle in California he
was absolutely certaln that he was leaving Argentina.
His statement continues:

"This was one of the main reasons why I left
Argentina and I came to settle in California,
because in Argentina one encountered difficulties
everywhere; wilthout permlsslon we could not sow
the land, clear the ground, not even cut fire
wood. There were obstacles for everything, we
were constantly served with summons; 1life for
Chilleans was almost impossible, until they had
enough and were forced to vacate their land,
losing the 'improvements! they had effected and
all the work they had done without any reward.

Plot 3. The widow of Dionisio Qvalle states (C-M.256)
that when her husband came from Argentina to live in
California, he was convinced he was in Chilean

- terrlitory. He left Argentina because he was offered
the chance of buylng thils land at a reasonable price.
Plot 4. This plot belongs to the heirs of Pablo
Carrillo Lavoz, who settled in California in 1911, long
before the wave of returns from Argentina.

Plot 5. This plot was settled by Carlos Lillo, who
states (C-=M.255) that he came stralght from Chile "in
the absolute certalnty that he would work on Chllean

land."
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Part TWO Plot 6. Simon Lopez Delgado states (C-M.241) that his
father came %o Callfornia from Argentina in the bellef
that Czlifornia was in Chile. His statement continues:

"His father abandoned Argentina because being
Chilean he could not hope to have security of
tenure of land and make a position for himself.

He offten recounted that when he was in Argentina,
Chilean nationals used to be served with notices
to qult when they least expect them, because the
lJand they occupied had been sold or rented to
somebody else, Thls was a very sad experlence,
for all the efforts and sacriflces made to lmprove
the land suddenly came to nothing ..."

Plotkz. Nolfa parrasco, the widow of Evaristo Jaramillo

Mera, states (C~M.251) that when she and her late

husband left Argentina, they were quite sure they had
come to settleyin Chlle. Her statement contiﬂue:

"We left Argentina because a Chilean cannot
ever own land there, Besldes belng Chilean we
always wanted to settle permanently in our own
country.

After many privations, we had managed with
my husband to bulld a 1little house, clear some
patches of land for sowing and erect some fences
on the land we occupled in Argentina; then we
recelved an order to vacate it within three months.
When the time was up we had to abandon all the
fruit of our work for which he had no payment or
reward ..."

Plot 8, The’origiﬁal settler was Tomas Videla. His

son and sudcessor, Eulogio Videla states (C;M.244) that
when he came with hls father to settle in Califorﬁia he
was convinced that he had left Argentine territory. His
statement continues:

"My father left Argentina because there were
many difficultlies and problems there, and he
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wanted to settle quietly in Chilean territory." Part Two

A similar statement has been made by Euloglo's

brother Dionisio (see C~M.247). And see also under Plot
10 later.

Plot 9. Amelia Morazles Catrilaf, the wildow of Leandro
Videla Penaipll, states (C-M.260) that when her late
husband came to Callfornia he was certain that he had
left Argentina. Her statement continues:

"Her late husband left Argentina because he
always wished to live in Chilean land. In Argentlna
they had managed to have a few head of cattle, but
it was always very difficult to find land where %o
keep them permanently and to have a fleld presented
many obstacles. When they heard that in California,
Chile, there were lands available, they left the
Argentine and came to settle In the land she owns
at the present time."

Plot_10. Agustin Videla Penalpill, another son of Tomas
Videla, referrsd to above, gives a statement of his
father's reasons for leaving Argentina, similar to those
given by his brother (see above, Plot 8). Presumably
similar consideratlons governed Agustin's own conduct,
Plot_11. Julian Soto Cardenas states (C-M.242) that in
coming to Cglifornla he believed he was leaving Argentina;
and that his reason for dolng so was that he had always
wanted to settle permanently in Chille.

Plot 12, Jose Anabalon Vega states that in coming to
this plot he had always believed that he had left

Argentina. He refers to the risk of eviction facing

occuplers of land in Argentina and to the difficultiles
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arising from Argentinian controls (see C;Mﬂ249)

Plot i§. Adeodato Mera Gomez states that his father
always thought he was settling In Chilean territory.
(See C:M.258).'

Plot 14, This plot is occupied by Alfredo Foitzick who
also has a plot on the west bank of the lower section

of the River Encuentro. He did not come from Argentina.

He states that he has always regarded his plot in the

‘California Valley as being in Chile. (See C-M,248).

Plot 15. Juan Hernandez Barriga states that‘he caﬁe to
California thinking that he was leaving Argentina and
that he was motivated by the lack of facilities for
permanent settlement in Argentina (CQM.240).

Plots 16 & 17. Anastasio Rivera, the heir of Pedro

Rivera states (C-M.262) that his brother had élways
thought that his plots-were in Chilean territory.

Plot 18. This was formerly owned by Juan de Dios Bravo
Maraboll. His widow states (C;M.246) that when he left .
Argentina he thought he was settling"in Chile,

Plot 19. Sigifredo Rosales states (C:M.BQB) that his
father, Juan Rosales, was convinced that he.had left
Argéntina for Chile. He did so because he could not
acquire title to land there and was too much controlled

there.

Plot _20. ILeonidas Monje Delgado states (C~M.263):

"His father left Argentina because a settler
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without capital could never have or hope to have Part Two
land there, and he wished %o live on hls own land. T
It often happened that small farmers, after having

managed to create a modest position for themselves

in Argentina, were evicted by the police because

the land had been sold to someone with capital.

One could see that nothing was secure, and for

this reason my father had always wished to find

land in Chile, which he happily did."

Plot 21, The original owner of this plot, Vénaﬁcio
Rosales Garces, states (C:M.257) that he left Argentina
because the authorities of that.country prohibited him
from carrying out his work on his land there. At first
he moved to a plot north of the Palena river, but later
he moved to this plot.

B. The nationality of the inhabitants of the area -

31. Although the Argenting Memorandum refers to the

Argentine nationality of the wilves of some of the

settlers and at pp. 52«57 mentions the names of thirty-

..

two residents in the disputed zone who were in 1965
"Reglstered" Argentine nationals, it seems improbable
that much will turn upon this aspect of the matter.

Even on the basis that all who are claimed %o be
Argentinian are in fact so, they still represent only

a small minority of the residents of the area. Moreover,
eleven of them were at the mat?rial date children not
more than fifteen years of age,

32. The dmportant thing is that the principal residents
of the area, those whose names constantly recur in the

documents as being active settlers, applylng for plots,
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paying taxes, registering transactions, etc., are all
undoubtedly Chilean - in the sense that they werc born
in Chile and were invested with Chilean nationality both

by the jus soli and the jus sanguinis. In some casecs,

thelr children, born during the perlod of the parents'

resldence iIn Argentina, acquired Argentine nationality

by the jus soli. Nonetheless, these chlldren by reason

of thelr parentagé automatically acquired Chilean

vnationality upon their return to Chile,

a)

C. Physlcel communication between the disputed area
and Argentina

33. The Argentine Memorandum appears to attach import;
ance to the ease of communication between the California
Valley and the Argentine territory and to the fact that
the Valley's trade was malnly with the neighbouring
Argentine towns. (See, for examplc, p. 11 of the
Memorandum. )

34. As to ﬁhe physical facts, there can be no doubt.
Reference has already been made to the difficulty of
mdving along a north;south line in southern Chile.

Until the advent of easier and cheaper access by alr,
which has now had an important effect upon the direction

of trade 1In the area,l trade was necessarily malinly along

1. It is now possible to transport agricultural :
commodltles and even cattle by alr at:.cconomic
rates. For example, large quantities of wool
are regularly transported by air from Palena to
Puerto Montt.
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an east;west l1lne and involved constant crossing of the
frontier -~ not only in the Palena area but also in many
other places in southern Chile, |

35. This is clearly shown by the fact that the inhabltants
of the Palena region, including a number of residents of
the disputed area, had frequently %o obtain transit
certificates from the local Chillean authorities which
were then presented to the Argentinian authoritieslas

a necessary condition for the grant by the latter of
permlission for the persons concerned to take thelr goods
or cattle across Argentine territory to other parts of
Chile. Examples of such certificates will be found for

the following years:.

1928 C;M.ll.

1928 C;M.7, C:M.B, C;M.lo, C;M.12.
1929 C-11.16, C-M.18, C-M.22, C-M.39.
1941 C-M.126.

1946 C=-M.154,

36. There are, however, two lmportant comments to be
made on the general proposition relating to ease of
communicatlon between Argentina and the disputed ares.
27. First, the dependence of a town, on the Chilean side
of the frontier upon its links with a nelghbouring
Arpentinlan town does not convert that Chllean town into

an Argentinian town. Tosuch extent as the California
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Valley was at a time tied to Argentina 1ln terms of

access and transit, so too was Falena. Bu% Palena was
not thereby rendered any the less Chilean. There are
many other Chllean settlements in Patagonia in a éimilar
position. It is questionable therefore whether this
factor can really operate in any significant way %o
determine the natlional character of the California Valley.

38, Second, it should be borne in mind that agalinst any

slgnificance which Argentina may ceck to attach to the

trade connection between the California Valley and
Arzentina must be set the fact that Argentina has in the
past closed the frontier between Argentina and Chile in
the Palena~California Valley region. This happened in
1624 and its consequenceé, prolonged for several years,
were exceedlngly painful no less to the inhobitants of
the California Valley, which was treated in its entiret&
by Argentina as forelign territory, than it was %o those
of Palena 1tself,
59. The situation has been strikingly described, in a
number of statements made by resldents of the California
Valley at that time. Thus Lindana Saegz Flgueroa, who has
lived in the area since 1915, after felling of the
closure says:
"This situation was prolonged for a space of
five years and once our proviglons finished, that
of all the settlers, the situatlon bescame painful,

In consideration of the fact that there was no
-food iIn any of the houses and the confinement we
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were In, the setf{lers met and deecided %o open a Part Two
road toward the west as the only way %o obtailn -
food was by reaching the sea. I% was possible to

reach Yelcho ILake two years after the frontier was

closed and from there, after making a small launch,

it was possible %o reach Chaiten. (See C=M.227).

40, Similarly, Florentina Bohamondes Azocar, who settled

in the California Valley in 1917, when speaking of the

closure of the frontler:

"Those were very difficult years for us as 1t
was 1mpossible to get sugar, herbs, flour and other
essentials., Our nourishment was exclusively based
on potatoeg, toasted oats and toasted flour. In -
order to smolke we used "maqui" leaves, wild straw-
berry leaves and other grass., In view of this
difficult situation the settlers began %o look
for a road to the West, trying to reach the sea.
It was posgible to open a track after many
sacriflces and it was then possible to reach
Chalten." (See C~M.228),

41, ZLikewlse, Florindo Ramirez_Soto, in the affidavit
already cited, says:

"The same Commissary Ruiz informed these persons
that the frontier would be closed and that they
weuld no longer be able to make purchases in any
Argentinlan locality. With this measure the
population was left completely isolated as the
only road or path led Lowards the frontier. In
view that/T.e. because/ the situation, when
provislons were exhausted, was becoming desperate,
some settlers held a meeting and decided %o tr
to open 3 way to the Pacific ..." (See C-M.231).

b2, Similar statements can be found in the affidavits
of Sandalio Retamal Fernandez (C;M.229) and Ana Sanchez
Vasquez (C—M.EBO). Another important étatement of the
effect of the cl&sure of the frontier upon the inhabi;
tants of Futaleufy and Palena can be fouhd in the note

of 18 Docember 1931 from the Chilean Consul 1n EFsquel to
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the Consul General of Chile in Bucnos Aires (C-M.G4).

4%, Even in 1942 the pass from Palena to Agentina was

closed by the Argentine authoritics. This was rcported
by the Governor of Quinchzo in a message to the Chilecan
Minister of the Interior of 2% October 1942 (C-M.128).
Tho Argentine aubthorities had told the Yelcho Subdclegate
that the pass’was closcd by ordcir of the Mindistry of War.
In his notc tho.Govornor quotced the Subdclegatoe:
"I must inform you that the situation of the popul-
ation is very pressing, as acthing can bc boughtv in

Argentine and no articles can be brought from Chilc
because of the lack of means of communication."

44, It need hardly be added at this point (for refercnco
willlbe madc to it again later) that there can scarcely .
be morce cogent cvidence of acceptance of the Chilcan
character of the California Valley (partidulﬂrly on what
the Afgentino Ropublic now claims to be the Argentine side
of the boundary) than the fact that the scttlers of that
arca desiring bto take their cattle through Argentina
should have had to obtain transit passcs from the Argen-
tine authorities and, for that purpose present cortifi-

cates of titlc issued by the Chilean authorities.

D. rgentine administrative activity in thce disputcd
area '

45. The Argentine Mcmorandum also mentions a number of
acts in the disputed area performed by or in relation o
the Argentine Govermment which may perhaps be rcgarded as
evidence of Argentinc administrative activity in the area.
The Argentine Mcmorandum docs not in fact scek to develop

upon these contentions any argument based upon a consistent
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and open display of state activity by Argentina in the area.
Nonetheless, the Government of Chlle conslders that 1t

is as well to identify and list the 1nstances of Argen;
tine State activity appearing in the Memorandum 1f only
go that thedr slight snd intermlttent quality may the
more clearly be brought into contrast with the range of
regular Chilean administrative conduct in the area.

45, In setting out the six categories of act or instances
of action to which the Argentine Memorandum refers, the
Government of Chile will comment brlefly upon each, But
the real strength of the Chilean reply to these allega;
tiong of the Argentine Government will not lle in these
particular comments. The main burden of the Chilean case
in reply will be found in Chapters III, IV and V below,
where the Chilcan Government sets out in detall, first,
the identity of the Chilean settlers in the disputed

area and the extent of their dealings with the Chilean
Government and, second, the same materials, but looked

ot as a reflection of Chilean government activity.

The Government of Chile submits that even if the Court
were to accept as established every statement of fact
conneeted with the Argentine contentions about to be
examlined, 1% should nevertheless conclude that the welght
of the evlidence 1s overwhelmingly in favour of the
Chilean ldentity of the area,

(1) Grants of mining concessions

L7, The Argentine Memorandum refers (at pp. 8-9) to the

75.
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grant by the Argentine Government in 1894 of fiftye-one
gold mining concessions in the Mining District of Corco-~
vado, and states that three maps of 1900, 1908 and 1909
show the bounds of fthis Mining District.

48. Comment. It may be noted that none of these maps
shows the Encuentro in its true p&sition; and acqordingly ,
in themsclves the maps do not congititute evidence of
Lrgentine administfatiom of the srea, It need hardly be
added that 1n any event the concensiong were granted prior
to the 1902 Award. As to the concessions themselves,

which might perhaps have been of assiétance, the Memorandun
itself states (at p.9) that "up to the present time none

of the individual mines has been identified.”

that the

(2) Survey by Argentine Ministry of fgriculture, 102
L9, The Argentine Memorandum claims (at p.12)

survey shows that at that date Argentina

"elearly understood that the torritory of Argentin
Included all territory ecast of the boundary line =
shovm on those /the Survex7'maps, part of which
boundary was marked in as the River Encuentro, in
the same location as thot described in the Argentine
Memorial in these procaedings.” .

2
S

cent comment which the

(3

50. Comment. Perhaps the most co

Government of Chile can offer upon this map and the

assertion based upon it is to invite the Court to examine
two maps which appear as CH(C=M)% and CH(C-M)4 in the
folder of Maps accompanying this'Counter Memofial. The
flrst map 1s a consolidated'sketch of Maps 4M 3, 4, 5, 5,

7, 8 and 9 annexed to the Argentine Memorandum on ILand-Use,

ol




The second reproduces part of an Argentine map of 19460
prepared by the National Agrarian Council of the Argentine
Department of Agriculture and Iivestock. Both maps have
been reproduced separately and combined: a transparent
of the sccond map has been prepared as an overlay for
purposes of comparizon with the first one. ZﬁH(C-M)57

51. VWhen c¢ach map is sxamined individually the foilowing
fecatures of each may be noted. As regards the first map
{used in 1920) tho boundary purports to follow the line
drawn on the Award map; the boundary lay to the west of
Lots 18, 23 and 3; and the two plots of F. Saez and

. Carrillo are placed in the part of Square 23 which
lieg south of a river called the Engano. As regards the
second map (prepared in 1960) the boundary has been
adjusted to conform to %the béundary line as drawn in the
so~called Joint Proposal of the Chile Argentine Mixed
Boundary Commlssion in 1955 and the boundary lies to the
west of Lots 17, 24, 4 and 7.

52. When the later map is laid over the earlier map 1t
can be seen that the lines and the numbers of the Lots
coluncide exactly, wlth one major set of exceptlons. There
are no Lots on the later map corresponding to Lotsl8 and
<3 on the earlier map, They have simply disappeared;

and only a small fraction of.Lot 5 south of the Cerro Virgen
remeins.  In other words the Argentine mapmakers of

1950, when adjusting the frontier to the line of the
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lower section of the Encuentro and the minor channel
simply cu% off Lots 18, 23 and 3. Of to put it in
another way, they recognised that a map repregenting the
geographlcal reallty could not dinclude Lots 18, 23 and 3,
It 1s clear, moreover, that the river mariked in the
earlicr map as the Rio Encuentro ig not (the supgestion
in the Argentine Memorandum on Land Use %o the contrary
notwithstanding) "in the same location as that deseribed
in the Argentiné‘Memorial in these proceedlngs.” In
short, the Argentine map of 1920 (4.M.9) 1s worthless.
53. The map apart, it is @Videnb that %he Survey, and

the cluim to jurisdiction implied in it, was an isolated

ful

eyent. It does not appear %o have been repeated; nor

is there any_cvidencc that the puyment of pasturage dues
was ever agaln demanded by the argentine authorities.
Indeed, it 1s even possible that the pasturage dues, said
to have been paid by Fortunato sSagz and Pablo Carlllo in
1918 were in respect of cattle grazed by tham in "Lo: 18"
north of what appears 1in those maps as the "Rio Engafio"
or of what may be supposed in fact to correspond with the
true Rio Encuentro., (See Argentine Memorandum, para. 54,

page 32).

(3) The registration of a numbsr of births in Argentine
- civil reolsters

54, The few reglstrations inveolved are each referred to
In the next chapter, in connection with the individuals
h 2

to whom they relate, It will be seon that in most cascs
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the registrations were of bilrths occurring 1ln Argentina Part Two

and am:, therefore, of no relevance. In so far as they
rela%e to births in the disputed area, they are occasional
and reflect no consistent pattern of registration, amount=
ing to any acknowledgment of Argentine authority by the
parents concerned. Such as they are, their signilflcance
should be asssssed 1n the light of a petltion dated 15
October 1949 sent by the settlers of the district of
Palena, through thelr Local Progress Committee, to the
Chilean Minilster of Justice (C;M.16l+). This petition,
which was signed by 177 settlers, 1né1uding Simén Lopez,
Roberto Cid, Eulogio Videla, Agustin Videla, Evaristo
Jaramlillo, Juan de D, Bravo, Juan I'. Rosales, Elvira
' losales, R., Faustino 20 Lavoz, Venanclo Rogales, L.
Rosales R., Rosario Rlgquelme, Adeodato llers, Aristeo Mera,
E. Jaramillo, Elecira Jaramillo, Carlos Lillo, Vicente
Contrerag, Jose Onofre Linabalon, Juan Bravo, Leonildas
Mcje, Rujo Florcs, Rosario Carrillo, Bartolome Balboa,
Eleira Jaramlllo, Gumercinda C. d2 Bravo and Gulllermina
Jaramillo (all of whom lived in the disputed area) asked
the Minister %o set up a local civil rcgistration.office
In Pualenan, The petition explalned that as a result ol
~the difflculties of golng to Futaleufu, then the nearest
registration office, some thirty per cent of the local
people were living in concublnage with a consequent high

illcegitimacy rate., Mention was made in the petition of
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the foét that because of the dlfficultiecs in golng %o

futaleufu,'a number of residents of the Palenn distreict

were reglgtering thelr acts in Avgentina.

) The frant of grazing rights in the zrea lmmediately
north oi lake General Paz

55. (a). The Argentine Memorandum refers Tirst (at p.40)
to a grant of rights to the heirs of Cesgar Casarosa. “
56. Comment, The girant itselfl hdu not been produced,

but only the applicatlon. Nor has the Argentine MemoranF

dum mentioned the date of the Grant. But if the date 1957

- which appears on the map attached to Annex K of ths

Memorandum reflects the date of the grant, then 1t will
be seen to have been made after the critical date. In
any event, the arca to which 1% relates is partly in

Indisputably Argentinian territory, i.e. the part which

o

lles on the Argentine side of the local watershed north

of Lake General Paz. The area affected is, as can readily
be sezn, one which is well reroved from the more populated
parts of the disputed area and of the Californis Valley

In particular, Regardless, thercefore, of the significance,
if any, which can be attached to %his grans as Justifying
an Argentine clalm to the portion of the disputed area
affected by the grant, the episode ic withous importance
in the wider context of detu“mlning the extent of Argen-
tine administrative control over the area as a whole.

57. (b) The Argentine Memoranduin also refers (at p.40)

- to "a further example of seasonal pasturing of cattle"
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But nothing in the illustration as set out in the
Argentine Memorandum suggests that the reference in the
Mixed Cormission Monograph (see Annex M cof the Memorandum)
to the "Veranada de Hosales™ is to be taken as a démonstré-
tion of Argentine administratlive activity at that spot.
And if significance is to be attached to the mere use of
names\in this way, it should be recalled that the area %o
the south of the Callfornia and Hondo Valleys, whichv

would be cut by the propoéed Argentinlan line, 1s known

as the "Veranada de Balboa". As will be seen, there can
be no doubt about the existence of Chilean alleglance of

Balboa.

(5) The arrest and trial in 1946 of Juan Vicente
- Contreras

58. The Argentine Memorandum (at p.45) states that
"from vime to time the behaviour of the inhabitants of
this newly settled area came under the eye of the
Argentine authorities"”. The only illustration which the
Memorandum provides is that of %the arrest, trial and
conviction of Juan Vicente Contreras in 1946 for the

alleged theft of cattle from Juan Hernandez. Contreras,

58 will be scen, lived on Plot 2 (see Chapter IIT below)
and Iernandez at that time lived on Plok 3 (seé Chapter‘
ITIT bhelow).

59. Commént. In the absence of evidence to support the
Argentine statements sbout the trial and conviction of

Contreras and the assistance rendered by the Chilean
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Carahineros, the Chilean Governmcent makes no admlssion

elther as to the facﬁs or as to the propriety of what %the
Argentine authorities may have done. The Chllecan Govern=
ment would draw attention, however, to a gtatemant made in
196€ by the Chilean Surveyor Carvajal (C-M.234). Carvujal
says that when he was carrying out nis survey in 19&6/7
the wife of Contreras complainad to him that her husband
had been arrested by»the Argentine police. Carvajal statks
that he wrote to the Chllean consul a% Eesquel and that

Contrerass returned to his land some weeks later.

(5) Grant of occupation permits in 1956

fie

£0. The Argentine Memorandum states (2% p.49) that "in
the éarly part of 1956, the General Directorate of Iands

of the Argentine Ministry of Agriculturc issued z number

of permits of occupation to settlers in Lot 23 ,..",

which Included part at any rate of the dispubed area. Two
specific examples of the permits then 1ssued were givon,
namely, those issued to Euloglo Videla and Dionisio Videla.
61, Comment, First, it should be observed that the
permits of occupatlon are =aid to have been granted {o
settlers In Lot 27, Yet this 1z omne bf the three Lots
which disappeared from Arpgentine territory in the 1960

map %to which reference has been made in paragraph 52 above,
Yhatever may have been the slgnificance of the grants
(assuming they were ever made) In 1956, it would appear

that by 1960 so 1ittle significance was attached %o them
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that 1t was possible to drop the Lot in which they were Part Two

granted from Argentine maps of the area.

62. Second, it may be noted that the Argentine Memorane

dum does not claim that the persons named in the grants
had actually applied for them. In fact, both Eulogio
Videla and Dionislo Videla deny that they have at any
time applied to the Avrgentinian authoritles for grants
of land. THuloglo's statement that he has never signed
any applicction o the Argentine authorities 4s in
C~M.2§5; Dionisio's statement is in C;M.236. The
latt2r says that on a nusber of occasions Argentine
officinls have asked him %o request occupation permits
end he has always refused. If any application should
bear his signature, he states that 1% must have been
obtained by fraud, for he has occaslionally signed for

a)

the Argentine gendarmerie certificates for the sale of

S

]

animn

C3. Two other rosidents of the area have also made

ey e o
3tate

=

ents denylng any application to the Argentine
authorities, Juen Hernandez Barriga (C-M 240) and Nolfa
Carragsco Raceza (C-M 2)¢)

Conclusion,

04, The Chilean Government concludes this sectlon
by reiternting 1ts submission that nothing in the
Argentine claims discussed above can really alter the

(\

Ssentlally Chilcan colour given to the disputed area
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by the acts of the Chilean colonists and of the Chilean
administration., It is to a more detalled analysis of

this conduct that the Chilean Government now tuims,

'CHAPTER IIT

THE EARLY SETTLIRS

65. The Chilesn Memorial contains at pp. 1304140 a
section on the first Chilea settlers in California, 1902;
1917. 1In this connectilon the names of the following
settlers were mentioned and evidence was fendeped of their
Chilaan character:

Juan Antonio Balboa Arteaga (Ch.Mem. p. 134)

Juan Fortunato Saez Figueron (Ch.Mem. p. 137)

Pablo Carrillo Lavoz (Ch.Mem. p. 137)
Transito Dizz Carvasco (ch.Mem. p. 1385
Eleodoro Diaz Carrasco (Ch.Mem, p. 1385
Lucas Lopez Saez (ch.lMem. p. 1395
Tomas Videla Catalan (Ch.Mem. p. 1395

£5. The Argentine Momoraadum touches upon the exéent of

settlement in the California Valley at pp. 10;11 and deals'
with it more fully at pp. 31-35., A% p. 35 the Memorandum
contradicts the Chilean Memorial by saying that there were
only ﬁwo inhabitants 1n the California Valley south of +he
M2 jor channel, Pablo Carrillo and Hortunato Saez and by

concluding thét "there 1s no evidence of any settlenment in

the valley or the River Engaiio at this time",
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A, Tnadeguacy of Argentine Reports of 1920

67. The only evidence which the Argentine Memorandum
adducesg in éupport of this posltion 1s a series of six
Reports, dated 1920, prepared in 1919 for the Director
General of Lands, Argentine Ministry of Agriculture. (See
Memorandum, p. 12 and following). Of the 23 pages of
description (constituting one third of the text of the
Argentine Memorandum) only about three have any bearing
~on the arca in dispuée. The rest are concerned with
"lots" or areas in the same general region but in no way
in issue in the present arbitratlion. |

68. The Government of Chile will not pause to elaborate
any comment on the apparent pauclty of relevant material
which has led the Argentine Government so heavily to load
the Memorandum wilth material having no evident bearing on
the case, The Government of Chile sees no point in
dffering any comment upon those parts of the Repqrﬁs
which deal with Lots 94, 96, 14, 1, 10 and 17 (following
the order of treatment in the Memorandum), for they are
geographically remote from the disputed ﬁoundary line,
and as regards Lots 3, 5, 6, 7 and 18 there is really
nothiné to be sald.

69. Lot 2% (notwithstanding_its dlsappearance from the
1960 map) remains, therefore, as the only relevant lot

by reasoﬁ of the inclusion in 1% of the names of two

settlers whom the Qovernment of Chile say then inhablted

o
Y N
»
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Chilean %erritory. A&s to this, the Roport statzs that
there are only two settlers, Fortunato §§ggiand Pablo
Carrillo, Thefe are two ways of testing the validity of
this stabtement. One 1s To compare it with the evidence of
other persons sbout the extent of habitatlon in the arec
at that time; Sthe other is to conslder whether intrinsi-

cally the Report constltutes reolly crodible avidence. .

(1) Contrary Chilean evidence

70:' Pirst, peference may be made to the evidence of
others as regards the extent of sebhlement in the
California Valley prior ﬁo 1920. Some evidence has
2lrezdy been presented on this aspect of the matter in

. 1 . .-
the Chilean Memorilal. It is now possible to supplement

it with threce further affidavivs.

(1) TFlorcntina Bahamondes Azocor (c~M.228) states

~that she, her husband and two of thelr children settled

)

in the Valley of California in 1917. She locates thelr
first house exactly on the ford of the Tigre, on the
island (a gpot which would appear’ to be ot the point
where the Tigre changes it direction from north west ©o
south west). She confirms that Pablo Carrillo and
Fortunato éggg_lived in the valley at that %tTime, but also

mentilons Luca Lopez (who is veferred to in the Chilean

1, See Chilean Memorlal, p. 134, paragraph 64. See also
Doc. No.5, where the wldow of Bravo states that Baolboa
1t ———————_ “ S —————T O}
had come to llve in Chile about 1913 and wag cngaged
in beef raising; his cattle grazed in Chilean places
called Las Horquetas, Las Pampltas znd other o%aoes

which later on I knew as 'Veranadas de 3=lboa'.
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Memorial but 1s not mentioned in the Argentine Memorandum). EFart Two
Thaet she is reasonably precise in her recollection nay .
be seen from the fact that she states (as does the
Argentine Memorandum) that Galo Z was a nelghbour of
of Fortunato Saez. .

(i1) Sandalio Rebamal Fernandesz (C;M.229) states
that she settled in 1912 with her parents in the Rincon
del Acelte, which is just north of the Palena River and
west of the boundary. She lists the nelghbouring
settlers and says: '"Higher up, 1n_thé area_knowh now
by the name of California, lived Lueas Lopez, Pablo
Carrillo, Fortunato Saez, Juan Antonio Balboa, and
Bartolome Balboa., "

(111) Speaking of a slightly later date, 1925, ana
Sanchez, Vésquez (C;M.230) states that she and her
husband came to Palena iﬁ 1925, when theybought the
mejoras of Fernando Figueroa "who was the occupier for
several years past'. She spoke of the last settler to
the west being "Don German Vasgquez who lived in the
land occupied at the present time by dona Eufemis
Delgado, the widow of Monje." (This was west of Polena,
néar the Junction of the Rivers Salto and Palena.) She
also gaid: -

"In the area known to~day by the name of
California 1ived Fortunato Szez 1in the land
occupled to~day by Vicente Contreras, Lucas
Lopez where his son Simon Lopez and Pablo
Carrillo, live at the present time. All these
scttlers were of Chillean nationality."
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71. From these varilous statements, taken together with
the evidance zttached to the Chilean Memorilzl, it seems

clear that Portunato Saez»and Pablo Carrilloc were not the

{

only settlers in the disputed area prior to 1920,

(2) Intrinsic defocts of the Arecntine reports

72. Now, secondly, consideratlion may be glven To the

question of how likely the Report of 1920 is Yo have

| &0

been correct. One obvious comment that nust be re ter~

ated at thisApoint is that the map aooompanying the Report
is manifestly inaccurate. As the overlay of the 1960 map
50 cleérly shows, the places at which the Survey located
the settlerskSaez and Carrilloc were nowherc near the
iower sccetion of the Encuentro or the major or the minor
channels. ‘he soettlers were in facet marled on the map
at spots which to=day would fall in Plots 13 and 19,
occupicd by Felix Golitlca and Juan Rosaleg rospectlvely,
south of the River.Salto/Engaﬁo. The submission of

the Government of Chile is that it 1s highly improbable
that the Argentine Inspector could have carried out a
thorough inspection of the area. Indeed, in the Report
to which Map A.M,T7. is attached the Argentine Inspector
refers to the River Ingano as "emptying its waters' into
the Engaﬁo Lake, whereas, of course, the river in fact

flows in the opposite direction. Furthermore, he would

appear not to have gone south of the places where

Fortunato Saez and Pablo Carrillo lived. It may be




observed from the opening lincs of Annex C of ‘the
Argentine Memorandum that the Inspector claims to have
inspected Lots 12, 13, 16, 23, 24 and 25 "from January
23rd to 25th, 1919". A% p.3 of the same Annex C the
Inspcetor states that there are no roads, only tracks

and paths. Map AM 9 shows the area covered by these
lots. How the Inspector could physically have even
visited, let alone inspected, these six lots in,fhree
days remains a matter of wonder. Moreover, by 26
January 1919, the Inspector was back at Lot 94,

73. In short, the weight of evidence of the 1220 Reports
in relation to the occupation of the disputed area is not
such as to displace the statements of more extensive

settlement relied upon by the Government of Chile.

B. The early settlers: Those agreed upon - their
Chilcan identification '

V. Nonetheless, it remains necessary to describe further
the earliest settlers, if only to establish the essenti-
ally Chilean character of their allegianoe° It will be
convenient to begin with the two settlers upon whose
presence in the disputed area prior to 1920 both Parties
arc agreed, namely, Fortunato Saez and Pablo Carrillo.

75.  Juan Fortunato Saez Figueros. The Argentine

Memorandum gives certain limited information about him
which may be intended to be read as suggesting that Saez
had some Argentinian connection and continuecd to accept

the authority orf Argentina in the disputed zone. Thus
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the Memorandum states (at p.10) that Fortunato Sacz
married Matilde Steinkamp, an Argentinian, in Chubut
in 1914; that in 1918 he paid pasturage dues (though
1t is not saild to whom or in respect of what land) (at
p.33)§ and that in 1922, 1924 and 1926 he registéred
at Técka, Esquel and Tecka respectively the births of
hls children Clorindo, Josefina and Alejandra. The
Memorandum-also states thatportunato Sgez "arrived in
the zone from Tecka, Argentine” (p,IBE).

76. The Chilean Memorial points out, ét p. 137,
paragraph 69, that Fortunato Saez was a Chilean born in
Valdivia in 1885. There 1s ample evidence that Saez
gettled In the California Valley in the sccond decade
of the prescnt century., His son states that it was in
1910 (Doé. No.11). Others say %that Saez was living in
the Valley in 19i2 and 1917 (see C-M.228 and C-M.229).
It 1s true that he came to California from Argenﬁina:
Hls son, Juan Bautlsta Saez, In a recent statement
(C-11.238) says that his father wanted to farm in
Corcovado (Arg.) but that he was not allowed to do so
because he was éhilean. Juan Bautista also declares
that in 1914 his father rode to Puerto Aysen (Chile)
to register the birth of Juan's brother Floriano, aﬁd
again in 1916 to register the birth of another brother,
Delniro,

77. Fortunato Sagz occupied the land now occupied by
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Vicente Contreras (Plot 2)(th 104-6) (see c-m.zjo). His Part_Two
children were all born thére (C-M.23é). -

In 1925 he requested a certificaée from the Palena
District Inspector for branded cattle (C-M.11).

In 1927 he registered a profit sharing aéreement for
the raising of cattle with the District Inspector in
Palena (C-M.4). |

In 1929 ﬁe donated money for the National School at
Palena (C-M.20). | .

When his Qife died in 1929, her death was reported
to and certifiecd by the District Judge In Palena, and she
was burled in the Palena cemetery (C-M.25),

In 1929 also Saez obtained from the District Judge
in Palena a transit pass to enable him to take 76 sheep
sking to Torres Brothers in Esquel (Arg.) (C-M.22).

In 1930 he acknowledged before the falena Diétrict
Judge a debt of 1123 pesos, Argentine currency, due %o
Messrs. Lousen & Co. in Esquel (Argentine) (C-M.L5).

In 1930 he appears on the ILand Tax roll (C-M.A? and
C-M.48).

Iﬁ 1920 he is reported to have sold cattle to one
Dionisio Fuente (C-M.54). The episode is significant
because it 1s clear froﬁkthe report that for cuétoms
purposes the sale was regarded as one made in Chile, not
firgentina

In February 1932 he 1s recorded by the Palena
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Part Two ' Carabineros Post as a settlorowyning 2 carts and 2 yoke
 of oxen (C-M.?O).
I March 1532 the Subdélegate off Yelcho ordcrcd
that as‘a'settler‘of Palena Sacz should be called %o a
meeting (C-M.72).
In fpril 1932 he is nobed as having applied to the
Chilean fAuthorities for some title to land (C-M.75).
IN spril 1932 he was nomingted a member of thé
examination commlssion of the Palena school (C-M.77).
In May 1932 his debts to Argentine traders are.the
sub ject of-official Chilean correspondence which makes
it clear that Saez 1s officially regarded as a Chilean
1iving 1n Chile and as entitled to some official Chilean
help. (C-M.79). His creditors almost caught up with him
laﬁer (see beléw).
Land taxes‘én his land for the period 1929-1932
were paid to the Chilecan authorities, though not until
after his death (Doc. No.99).
In 1933 he registered ét Futaleufu (Chile) the birth
of his son Dionildo (Doc. No.57). -
In 1934, when he sold his iand to Manuel Morales,
he signed and registered the document of sale in Palena
(C-M.87), but there were some difficultics about this
(C—M.915. Nevértheless, fhe plot in question was clearly
regardeé as belng in Chile,

In 1934 the most striking proof of the Chilean
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character of Saez and the Chilean location of his domicil Part Twc
is provided by the fact that one of his Argentinian

creditors, Sr. Corball, a trader in Esquel, began proceed-

ings against him in the Chilean courts, but Saez died

before the judgment was enforced (C-M.98 and C-M.104) .,

Finally, when he died in 1935 he was buried in the
cemetery of Alto Palena and his death was registered at
Futaleufu (Chile) (Doc. No.11).

At some period he had purchased "mejoras" on both
sides of the Rio Tigre from Francisco Calderon (C-M.238
and C-M.264); and when he sold his interests in Plot 2
to Morales he did in fact move to Plot 9. He left Plot 9

to his widow, Iuciada Velasquez Jaramillo, but she soon
abandoned it,

/8. Pablo Carrillo. As in the case of Fortunato Saez,

the Argentine Memorandum refers +o the immediate provenance
of Pablo Carrillo as being in Argentine territory (p.34)
and mentions that the births of his three children were
registered in Argentina in 1913, 1916 and 1919 respect-
ively. It is also said (at pP.33) that he had paid

pasturage dues.

79. The material available to the Government of Chile
and now presented to the Court gives a much clearer
impression of the strong connection between Carrillio

and Chile. -
It is agreced that he settled in the California Valley
in 1971 (Doc. No.14) after coming from Argentina. His

reasons for leaving that country are given in C-M.253.
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Certainiy he 1s recorded as having been therc in 1912
(c-M.229, C-M.185, C-M.193), in 1917 (C-M.228) and 1928
(c-M.232). He occupied what is now plot 4 (Land Tax
roll 1oulu), as well as part of plot 5 (see C-M,185,
186, 189 and 193).

In 1925 he fequested from the District Inspector
in Palena two transit certificates for cattle (C-M.11).

In 1929 he made a donation to the National Schooi
at Palena (C-M.20).

In 1929 he 15 noted as having had a house bullt in
Pzlena (C-M.éB). Since in the Land Tax roll there is
no reference té his having owned a house in the village
of Palena the note must have referred to his house in
Cz2lifornia. This was, 1t may be added, specifically
gspoken of as belng in Chile. |

When the wife of Fortunato Sacz died in 1929, it
was Carrlllo who reported the death to the District
Judge in Palena (C-M.25).

In the same year, i929, Carrillo recorded before
the District Judge in Palena the fact that he had sold
a stallion to Bartolome Balboa (C-M.32).

Irn 1930 he sold cattle in Palena kc-M.54) and
appeared on the Land Tax Roll (C-M.47 and C—M;48).

In 1932 Carrillo registered at Futaleufu (Cﬁile)
the births of two children born in 1929 and 1§32 -

(Docs. Nos. 28 and 29).
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In 1932 his wife died and her death was.noted by the
Chilean authorities (C-M.81).

In 1932 he registered éhe glft of a horse at
Futaleufu (C-M,67).

In 1932 he cémplained to the Chilean authorities
about the non-payment of a debt (C-M.T74).

In 1934 he contributed 25 pesos, Afgentine currency,
for the road from Palena to Chayten (C;M.BS).

In 1936 he filed with the Chilean authérities a
declaration (C-M.113) for tax purposes in respect of
Plot 4, He describeé the boundarles as follows: '"North,
fiscal ranges; South, fiscal ranges; East, Manuel
Morales; West, Lucas Lopez". He appears, like'a number
of other settlers not to have been very precise in his
conception of the cardinal points of the compass, for
he seems to have rotated them ninety degrees in an anti-
clockwise direction. This is shown‘by his placing
Morales (who occupled Plot 2 to the north) on his east
side and Lopez (who occupied Plot 6 to thé south) on his
west side. A% that time there was no occupant of Plot 3
between Plot U4 and Plot 2.

In 1936, the Head of the Post of Carabineros
certified that Carrillo had been a settler of good repute
1n the district for 20 years (C-M.108).

In 1837 he was summoned to meetiﬁgs by the Chilean

authorities (C-M.115, C-M.116) and again in 1938
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(c-M,117, 118).

When he éied in 1940 his death was registered at
Futaleufy (Doc. No.12).

It is significané that cven after his death, his
connection with Chilu was acknowlcdged by his helrs and
successors, In 1951 one of his {rgentine helrs, when
allenating her share of the inheritance, did so by
appearance before the District Judge in Palena (Doc.

No. 110). Again, in 1957, another daughter, residing
in nrgentinh, gave to her brother, residing in Palena,
a special power of attorney, so that he might represent
her in the rclevant procecdings in Chile (Doc,No.’24).

In 1952 the successors to the estate, pald to tﬁe
Chilean suthoritics taxes on the plot "Los Carrillos"
for the years 1943—1951 (Doc. No,101).

Finaliy in 1953 his heirs oompléined to the Chilean
authoritles of encroachment upbn hils plot by Carlos
Lillo (C-M.185, 186, 189, 193) - o

C. Tha other early settlers

80. There remains for consideration the other five
settlers named in paragraph 65 above and who are either
not acknowledged at all, or are attributed to a later
period by the Argentine Memorandum, In addition, therc
is one further name to be mentioned, to which no refer-
ence was made in the Chilean Meﬁorial. |

Juan 4antonia Balboa. Balboa's existence is
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not acknowledged at all in the Argentine Memorandum,

‘ct, there 1s evidence that Balboa lived in the California
Valley before 1912 (C-M.229). Certainly, in 1934 he was
complaining that he had in i931 been evicted from land
"after more than 13 years of possession", i.e. since
earlier than 1918 (C-M.83). He occupied what is now
imown as Lot 104-9 (Plot i3, Ias Pampas, together with
other land In and around the bend of the Tigre (Plot 18)
(Doc. Nog, 4 and 5). His cattle grazed over the ‘
neighbouring area £nd up the Valle Hondo into the
Verarada de Balboa. His presence in the area in 1928

is confirmed (C-M.232). 1In 1929 he made a donation for
the Palena school (C—M.ZO). In 1950 he appeared on the
ILand Tax Roll (C-M.47 and.48). In 1931 he was a-
defendant in the Chilean couéts, at the instance of

an Argentinian trader, in an action upon a debt (C-M.51),
In 1934 he contributed %o the proposed road from Palena-
to Chayten (C-M.85). In 1934 and 1939 he was the
defendant in oivilhproceedings brought in the Chilean
courts, when Judgment was given and enforced against him

(C-M.89, C-M.105, C-M,106, Doc. No.121 and Cc-M.122),

Lucas Logez Saez. One affidad tstates that Idcas
Lopez lived in the California Valley by 1912 (C-M.229),
another, that he arrived in August, 1916 (C-M.132); and
another confirms that he was there by 1917 (C-M.2é8).

His presence there is confirmed in 1925 (C-M.230) and
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1928 (C-M.éBZ). He appears in the 1930 Land Tax Roll
(C-11.47 and 48). He appcars to have occupled the Plot
known as "Lés.ﬁaices", Land Tax No. 104-16, on the easf
side of the minor channel, In 1929 he was registered at
Aysen for an ldentity card. He 1s then stated to have
been resident at Palena. {(c-M.24), 1In 1936 he f£1led o
Descriptive Statement of the proéerty‘for tax purposes
(Doc. No, 90). He died in 1938, was buried in the
cemctery of Alto Palena, and his death was registercd at
Futaleufu (Chile) (Doc. No. lf) Noncthelaess, in 1941 a
notlfic tion of 1ute payment of land tax was issued in
his name by the Chilean authorities (C-M.125). In 1951
Land Tax was paid to the Chllean Treasury,‘iﬁ respect cof
"Ias Ralces", covering the period 1§3é—1946 inclusive
(Doc. No.loo}.1

Tomas Vigela Catalan., There 1s nothing to add to

the evidence set out In the Chilecan Memorlal, p. 139, as
establishing his presence in the Callfornla Valley before
1920. The Argentine Memorandum 1s wrong in including him
in the Chapter éntitled "Migration in the Area after 1920%,
at p.39. His sons HEuloglo, Dionisio and Agustin have

each made statements explaining the circumstances in

1. The Argentine Memorandum only denled the presence of
Lucas Logez indirectly, by excluding him from the
ﬁarly settlcecrs and including him In the chapter on
"Migration into the Area after 1920", The words
actually used to describe his presence are: "Lucas
Lopez ... was settled in the zone by 1936 ....
(v. 37, paragraph 62)
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which their father left Argentina (C-M.244, 247 and 250).
In 1947 he was.regarded as sufficiently closely linked .
with Chile to be Included 1n the 1list of persons whom
Carlos Lillo Fuentes was to summon %o a meetlng with the
Chilean Carabineros in 1947 (C-M.160). Part of his plot
was recorded in the Carvajal survey of 1947 (Doc. Nos.
126 and 127, p.‘371). Tn 1949 he requested "radicacidn"
by the Chilean Govefnment of the plot of land which he
occupled (Doc. No.17) and in 1950 he filed with the
Chilean authorities é formal description of the plot
(Doc. No.92). The close connection between his son,
Agustin, who lived with him, and the Chilean authorities,
may be observed by oxamination of the entry relatling to
him in the analysis of settlers, paragraph 148 below.

Trangito Diaz Carrasco. AQAlthough there 1s evidence
- 2

that ceven by 1912 he was living near Palena, there seems
to be no evidence to establish that he actually lived

in the disputed area.

Eleodoro Diaz Carrasco. The position as regards
B — — — ey
Kleodoro is the same 2s that of hils brother, Transito.
81, The name to be added to the list is that of Demetrio
Cardenas. His presence is mentioned in an affidavit sworn

by his widow Florentina Bahamondes Azocar in February

1966 (C~M.228). She stated that in 1917 she, her husband
and two children settled in the California Valley., Their

irst house "was located exactly on the ford of the Tigre
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on the islands".,  They left that in 1920 because they
wanted to find a lower and better plot. Elizardo
Casanova Delgado also speaks of them as "Chllean settlers

of California" (Doc. No.6).

D. The position of Galo Diaz.
ia——

82, The case of Galo Diaz would not call for speclal
mention were it not for the statement, at p. 32 of the
Argentine Memorandum on Land Use, that Galo Diaz "knew
that by moving to Lot 18 and then o Lot 23, he was
moving into Argentine territory". The Memorandum also
states that "Prior to 1918 Diaz had had dwellings on
other lots of this Survey Sector I-IIT but had abandoned
or sold them because he had believed himself to be 1in
Chilean territory".

83. Like the Government of Argentlna, the Government of
Chile is unable %o identify on what Lots of Sector I-III
Dlaz may have been settled before 1918. But, regardless
of this, the important thing to observe is that when
Diaz finally located himself in Lot é}, he chose a spot
north of the river which appears in the 1920 maps as  %
bisecting the Lot. On the assumption that the river
depicted on the 1920 map as dividing Lot 23 is intended
to represent the majJor channel and that the map seeks %o
relate the plots of the local residents to the supposed
course of that river, then the strliking feature about

the move of Diaz 1s that he deliberately, in his personal
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desire to live in Argentina, placed himself north and
not south of that river. Thls fact surely tends to
confirm that the river north of the plots occupled by
Pablo Carrillo and Fortunato Saez and called "River
Engano" on the 1920 mépﬂwas regarded by such local
residents as Diaz, who attached importance to the matter,
as belng the boundary, north of which fhey must reslde
1f they were to be in Argentina.

Conclusion

84, Whatever may be the position as regards fhe names of
Videla and Transito and Eleodoro Diaz, the following
facts are qulte clear:

(1) That the Argentine Memorandum is incorrect in
saying ﬁhat the only early settlers in the Callfornla
V+lley were Juan Fortunato Saez and Pablo Carrillo Lavoz.
It is necessary to add to them the names of Juan Antonio
Balboa, Lucas Lopegz Sacz, Tomas Videla Catalan and
Demetrio Cardenas.

(11) That the lands occupled by each of these settlers
were on fhe eastern slde of the minor channel of of the
proposed Argentine extension of the EncUentro.‘

(i11) That Pablo Carrillo was not "the southernmost
settler in the Encuentro Valley" in 1920, as is s%*ated in
the Argentine Memorandum (pp. 32 and 33)., The plots of
Tomas Videla and Juan Antonia Balboa 1a§ south of

Carrillo!'s,
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(1v) That each settler throughout the relevant

period, énd in many very important respccts before 1952,
maintalned contact with Palena and acknowledged the
administrative authority of Chilean officials.

(v) That these were not settlers of "different
nationaiity", as 1s suggested by the Argentine Memorandum

(p. 11). The settlers were all of Chilean nationality.

CHAFTER 1V,
THE CHILEAN IDENTITY OF THOSE PARTS OF
CALIFORNIA NOW CLAIMED BY THE ARGENTINE
‘ REPUBLIC

85. The Argentine Memorilal had made 1t clear that, at
its farthest extent, the Argentine claim, in so far as
1t affects the settlers of the California Valley, 1s
limited to the area lying east or south-east of a line
running from north to south formed by: *the course of
the minor channel; a land connectlon between the minor
channel and the sharp bend of the River Tigre north-~ecast
of the Cerro Virgen; the course of the Tigré running
south-west from that bend to the point where it is joined%
by the River Azul; then a line up the stream of the
latter, to the point where it is Joined by the Arroyo
Matreras; %then up that stream not to its source, but
only to the point at which 1t is jJoined by a tributary

from the north east, and then up that tributary stream

to 1ts source on the western slopes of the Cerro Virgen;




anl, thereafter by the line of the local waterparting to
Post 17.

86. This definition of the Argentine claim means that
1% is no longer necessary to devote special attention to
those settlers whose plots lie west and north of that
line =~ though some incidental reference to them will be
unavoldable - since there is no dispute fhat this 1s
Chilean territory,

87. Therc appear to the Chllean Government to be at
least three steps which may be taken %o establish the
Chilean character of the remaining settlements, 1.e.
those on what would be the Argentinlan side of the line
were 1t drawn In the manner now contended for by
argentine.

(1) The first 1s to identify cach of the plots and
attempt‘éome account of its occupation or ownership,

(i1) This lecads to the second step - a consideration
of the extent to which the varlous occupiers or owners
of the materlal plots have associated themselves with
Chilean, as opposed to Argentinian, administration.

(i1i) The third step is to look at the same events
from a differenﬁ point of view and describe, by reference
to different types of administrative cénduct,~the
activities, of the Chilean Government in the area now 1n
dispute.

88. I% will be convenilent to deal with the first two
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steps together; and to take the third point separately.

Loe Identificatlon of the Plots: thelr occuplcers and
OWNners.

(1) Introduction. The purpose of this Section.

89; In this section the Chilean Government will examine
each of the twenty one plots that are part of the Valley
of California and 1%s environs which would lie on the
Argentine side of the boundary line if the latter were
drawn in the manner for which the Argentine Government
contends. The Government of Chile will set out, so far
as 1t is able, on the material at present avallable to 1%,
the history of each plot by reference to the persons who
have occupied or owned it from time to time., It will, in
addition, in relation to each plot, state the factors
indicating that each such occupier or owner, and virtually
every resident of the plots as well, has at all material
times regarded the plots as being in Chilean territory,

himself as Chilean,and the Chilean Government as the

appropriate administrative authority of the area.

90, The Government of Chlle will also take the opportuni
of referring, in the context of the appropriate plots wit
which the particular individuals are assoclated, to the

various statements made in the Argentine Memorandum about
the Argentine origin or nationality of such individuals.
It 1s the belief of the Govefnment of Chile that when the
information tendered by the Argentine Government (to the

extent that such Information is proved accurate) is seen
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in its proper perspective relative to the other avallable Part Two
information about settlement in the disputed area , 1%
will be appreciated that such information cannot diminilsh
in any measurable respect the essentlally Chllean character
of the whole of the disputed area.

91. The Government of Chile will suggest that when all
the available information about the dlsputed area is
looked at as a whole it is open to only one satisfactory
interpretation: that the area bounded by the line of

the Chilean submission constltutes, as reflected in the
practice of the two Governments and the general conduct

of the people, an integrated and indivisible territorial
unit. The natural boundary of this unit on 1ts eastern
side is the line of the major channel and the watershed
running southwards from the mountaln at the source of

that channel (as claimed 1n the Chilean Memorial)}
Intercourse and Interconnection between the inhaéitants
and scttlements in the immediate vicinlty of the two sides
of the line of the Argentinian proposal 1s the constant
and dominating feature of the evidence., This shews
c¢lcarly that in terms of living reality the line of the
Argentinian contention 1s no boundary at all. ©On the
other hand, in tcrms of settlement, identity of settlers
and cxtent of governmental control therc is a marked line
of clcavage between the position on the Argentline and

Chilcan sides of the boundary drawn according to the
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Chilean contention. This shows equally clearly that the
Chilean line fully reflects the locally accepted and
acceptable division between the two countries.

92, As wlll be seen 1In the pages which follow, Chilean
scttlers have moved freely over the whole of the
Californlia Valley on the assumption that they were always
in Chilean territory. Equally, their relations with the
Argentine Government have reflected the assumption that
the Valley was %erritory alien to Argentina - territory
which wzs the refuge of Chileans obliged %to soek
repatriation to Chile by reason of Argentine measures of
exclusion; ﬁerritory which was, in terms of imports,
exports and transilt treated by Argentina as foreign
territory; territory which for ten hard years was almost
isolated from the amenities of civillisation by lying on
the Chilean side of the closed Argentine frontier.

93. This 1s the case which the Chilean Government willnew
make good. In so doing, it has found 1t both necessary
and convenient to repeat (though in a differont form) a
certaln amount of the detail to be found in those pafts
of the Chilean Memorial which deal with settlement in the
area (pp. 130-152), But the Chilean Government believes
thét this mode of-appfoach willl be of general advantage
to the Court and to the Parties as enabling all to sec,
at a}glance 80 to speak, the full range and effect of the

avallable evidence,
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(2) The Sketch Map , Part Two
94: The Court has before it, as Doe. No.20, a sketch
showing the present landholders and the number of their
plots in the 1965 Chilean Land Tax Roll. This sketch 1s
incomplete In that 1t does not follow the course of the
River Tigre sufficiently far to the west to bring in the
whole arca, encompassed by the line of the Argéntine
claim as now formulated in the Argentine Memorial.
Consequently, the Government of Chile has prepared a
fresh version of this sketch map which cxtends westwérds
to dnclude the holdings on either side of the River Tigre,
the River Azul and the Arroyo Matreras and which 1s
included in the folder of Maps as CH(C=M)1. The oppor-
tunity has also been taken to correct ceftain arrors
which appeared on Doc.No.20. For example, Lot No.lO4=4 1is
no longer shown as lying on the western as well as the

eastern side of the minor channel;1 while Lots No,104-16

1. The Argentine Memorandum, pp.59=60, paragraphs 92 and
93, 1s correct in stating that the holding of Pablo
Carrillo's successors is at present exclusively on the
eastern side of the minor channel. The suggestion to
the contrary by Counsel for Chile during the oral
hearings in December, 1965, reflected an error on the
sketch map (Doe. No.20),

On the other hand, Counsel for Chlle did not then
polnt out, as he would now be justified in doing on
the basis of the corrected map, that the proposed
Argentine line would divide Lots Nos. 104-16, 104-5,

104-18 and 103-13 (Plots 6, 7, 8 and 18
respectively).




Port Two

and 104-5 are now shown as lying on the western as well

‘refercnce to this number, an additional scrial number

as the eastern silde of that channel.v Again, the western
boundary of Lot 104;3 which 1s shown in Doc, No., 20 as
touching only Lot. No.104;6 is now represented as
touching Lots 104-17 and 103;7 as well,

95, In addition, because the numbers gilven to the plots
in the Land Tax Roll do not follow any logical order and

it 1s, therefore, not easy to find any given plot by

has been added for cach lot in the disputed arca simply
for purposes of ldentification in the present case,
These numbers move approximately from north to south,

The list of landholdings 1s as follows:

New
serial Land
identi-~- Tax

fication Roll Name of holder as
number number Name of plot printed on sketch map
1 104;3 Piedras Blancas  Roberto Cid
2 104=-6 El Engaﬁo Vicente Contreras
3 104;17 E1l Maiten Dionislo QOvalle
4L 104-4  Los Cerrillos Suc. Pablo Carrillo
5 103;7 San iAntonilo Carlos Lillo
6 104;16 Las Ralces Simon Lopecz
7 104~5  San Jose Nolfa Carfasgoiagémillo
8 104-18 Quemando Grande Tomas Videla
9 104;40 Porvenir Leandro Videla
10 10h;55 Lomas Bajas Agustin Videla
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New Serial Land

identi- Tax

fication Roll Name of holder as

number Number Nome of plot printed on sketch map
11 104-41 Tos Tirios Julian Soto and Baubista

Saez

12 104-29 Tas Pampitas Onofre Anabalon
13 104-9 Tas Pampas Adebdato Mera
14 104-5% California Alfredo Foitzick
15 104~7 TLas Horquetas Juan Hernandez
16 104-56 Rio Tigre Pedro Rivera
17 10419 Tas Horquetas Pedro Rivera
3 103-1%3 Estrella Felix Galilea
19 10%3~-2% California Juan Rosales
20 104~1% E1 Rosal Leonidas Monje
27 104~26 Colorado Roberto Monsalve o
German Monsalve
Conversion table from Land Tax Roll in numerical order to

new serial number:

10%=-7 ... 5

103-1

103=~23 ... 19
/‘qu‘-z - o8 /,

1047
3 ve. 18

ees 15
104-9 ...
104-13 ... 20
104-16 ...

104-26 ... 21
13 104-29 ... 12
104-56 ... 16
6 104~40 ... 9

1044 ... & 104=17 wee 3 104-41 ... 11
1045 ... 7 104~18 ... 8 104-5% ... 14
1046 ... 2 104-19 ... 17 104-55 ... 10
06, The Government of Chile believes it to be essential

to utilise some sketch map of this kind if it is to be at
all possible to examine in detail the national character
and allcgiance of the various sebttlers as well as the ways
in which the Government of Chile has exercised

Jurisdiction over then.
(3) Notes on the ownership and occupation of each plot.

©7. The notes which follow do not give a comprehensive

picturc of the ownership or occupation of every lot since
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its first settlement. They arce, however, an attempt to
record what is at prescnt known in this conncction by
the Chilean Government.
PIOT NO.

1 (104-3) "PTEDRAS BIANCAS"

The Plot

08. On the Sketch Map (CH(C-M)1) this plot bears the
namne of Roberto Cid. In 1949 Cid began his occupation

of the plot (Doc. No.47). The circumstances in which Cid
returned from Argentina are seb out in his wife's-state~
ment (C-M.254). In 1956 the plot was stated to be in the
possession of Cid (Doc. No.44); and in 1957 Cid requested
an occupation permit from the Chilean Govermment (Doc. No.
17y,

Personal Notes

99. Roberto Cid Matus, Chilean, was born at Temuco,
Chile, on 13 April 1891 (Doc. No.46); primary cducation
in Temuco; lived for some years in Argentina; was
enrolled for Chilean military service in 1945 (Doc. No.
107); returned to Chile in 1948 (?); arrived in
California Valley and began occupation of Plot T in 1949
(Doc. No.47); received a Chilean identity card in 1955
(Doc. No.104); and rcequested a Chilean occupation permit
for the lot in 1957 (Doc. No.47); Married to Maria del
Carmen Ainol Barria ( Chilean). Children: Eduviges del

Carmen, Isolina del Carmen, Juana Pabla, Lucrecia Amaliz,
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and Miguel (Doc. No., 21, p. 77). Part Two
100, The Argentine Memoranduﬁ refers at p.38, paragraph

63, to the fact that Roberto £id came to the disputed

area 1in 1939, and states that he had three children,

Leonilda, Aurelio and Matilde. Since nelther the date

of Cld's arrival in the California Valley nor the names

of hils children tally with the information avaiisble to

the Government of Chile, no admission 1s made 1in this

connection,

Other Residents of Plot 1,

101, Pablo Eggg_ﬂranoibia, Chilean, born in 1910 at
San Jose de la Mardquina (Province of Valdivia, Chile),
¢btalned a Chilean ldentity card, 1952 (Doc, No.104)..
Arrived in California, 1960 (Doc. No,62), 'Married 8
Chilean., Five children, all born in Chile between 1939
énd 1953 (Doec. No,21, p.82). On the Palens clectoral
register (Doc. No.109), ~

102 Matlas Scgura Valeria, Chilean, born at Ia Union
(Chile) in 1934, Chilean identity card issueq in 1950,

On the Palena electoral register (Doc. No,108). Settled
on this plot in 1951, Married to a Chilean, One child,
(Doc. No. 21, p.84),

PLOT NO, .
2 (104-6) "EL ENgANO" (sometimes also calleqd |
- "Bl Tusano™) |
- %
The Plot ;

103, This was one of the earliest settled plots in the
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Valley, having first becn occupied by Fortunato Sacz.

in or soon after 1910, Details of the life of Fortunato
§§gg_and of his acceptance of Chilean authority in
relation to this plot from 1910;193H are glven in
paragraph 77 of Chapter III above.

105. In 1934 the plot was purchased by Manuel Morales
and the document of sale was signed and registered in
Palena (C;M.BT; see also C;M.91 and C=M.94).

104, Manuel Morales was a Chilcan, born aé San Javicr
de ILoncomilla in or about 1863. He dicd at Palena on

8 April 1939 and his death was registered at Futaleufu
(C;M.123). On 9 December 1§36 Morales filed at Palena

a deolarétion for land fHax purposcs (d;M.llM). He
deseribed the boundaries of his plot 28 folléws: "North,
Statce land; South, State Cordillerng; Last, fronticr
line; West, Pablo Carrillo". In giving this descrip-
tion he has turned the cardinal points of the compass
ninety degrees in an anti~clockwise direction, as 1s
shown by the fact that he puts on the wes?t Pablo Carrillo
whose plot was undoubtedly to the south. His name appears
on two Chilean tax reccipts 1ssued in 1952, some ten
vears after he left the property (Doc. Nos.102 and 103).

Both reccipts refer to the same property (C-11.148).

106. The Argentine Memorandum refers at p. 36,

paragraph 61 to the settlement by Merales in the

Encuentro Valley, states that he arrived from Argentina




with his wife and four sons, all of them Argentinian and
mentlons that the births of various children of three of
the sons were registéred in Argentina. These facts are
not admitted, But even 1f true they ére of questionable
significance,

107, In 1942 Morales sold the plot %o Juén Vicente
Contreras Quintana (Doc. No.~35, C-M.2‘30). In 1943-1945
Contreras corresponded with the Chileaﬁ authoritles about
tax payments on this plot (C-M.148 and 149). In 1944 %ax
appears to have been pald in respect of this plot to the
Achao Treasury, although the recelpt refers to Fortunato
£aez and is In respect of a period when the plot was
occupled by him (See Doc. No.99. The identifying number
is in the top right hand corner of the original. See
also Ch.Mem., p.165). In 1952 he pald to the Chilean
authorities accumuléted taxes for the perlod 1932 to

1951 (Doc, Nos. 102 and 163). He st1l1l occuples the

plot and pays taxes to the éhilean authoritiles,

Personal notes

108.  Contreras is a Chilean, born at Temuco (Chile) in
1911. He lived in Argentina for a period of seven yéars
(Doc., No.34), but came to the Valley in 1942, He has
stated that‘when he came to Callfornia he did so in the
belief that he was leaving Argentina (C;M.245). He lived
for a while with Guillermina Jaramillo Carraséo, a

daughter of Evaristo Jaramlllo and Nolfa Carrasco (see

111.
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Plot 7 below). At that time (as now) this plot lay on
both sides of the Arroyo Mallines - see the Carvajal
map of 1947, Doc. No.125 - and thus sbtraddled whet
the Argentine Menmorial contends is the boundary. He
also appears bto have had some rolationship with
Leonilda Cid Diaz (mentiocned in the Argentinc

Menorandun on Land Usc as one of the children of

¢

Roberto Cid - see Plot 1 above), for in July 1044
d
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Contreras was namo

'y

issucd ot Fubalcufu, as the Tather of Teonildo's oor
Marcelino bern on 50 May 1944 (C.M.145). In 1043 or
thereabouts he moved to his present plot (vhich is
sonetines cnlld "E1 Tusano™).

109, Mrreover, he continued to acknovledge his
Chilean connection and the authorityd the Chilecan
government in the following ways: he was placed on the
toral regisboer (Doc. No.1082): in 944 ho

;

dlecan ¢lec

j-de

Q

h
chtained @ Chilean identibty card (Doc. No.104):; in
1044 he registered a brand mark in Palena (Doc.No.106);
in 1245 he corrospbn&ed with The Chilean authorities
about tox matters (C-M.148.119); in 1947 hiu wife
protested to the Chilean surveyor Carvagjal that her
husband had Deen arrested by the Argentine sondarmes
(C-M.234); in 1949 he began procecdings ia S0 Chileon

courts against a resident in the California Valley

arising out of an alleged family insult (Doc.No.1'w)).




...

It may be commented thiat 1f the California Valley Part Two
were Argentinion, it would have been remarkable for
Sontreras to have begun proccedings in the Chilecan
courts,
In 1950 he filed a declaration with the District
Tuspector of Palenc in respect of Plot 2 (C-M.168).
In 1952 he paid Lond Tox in respect of the plot
for the period 1932-1951 (Doc. Nos. 102 and 103).
In 1957 he obtained a certificnte of good charac-~
ter from the Captain of Carabineros in Palena (Doc.No.34).
In 1957 he applied to the Chilean authorities for
an occupation pemmit for and provisional title to the
plot (Doc. No.35).

10, The moritsl status of Contreras is not clear.
He has had two children by Lconilda Gid: Marcelino,
born in 1944 (C-11.145) and Antolin, born in 1946.
He has alse had two children by Guillermina
Jaramillo.

PLOT NO.

% (104-17) "EL MAITEN"

Ihe Plot

1. This plot appears on the Sketch Map
(CH(C~M)1) under +the name of Adclina Toledo (Dionisio
Ovallc). This plot is first mentioned as having been

occupied in 1944 by Dionisio Ovalle Silva \Docho.lLS)°

In that year Adelina Toledo Jofre came to live with




Zort Two

Ovallc, but Qvalle died without formally marrying her

1947 and 1949, The plot is mentioned as being
in the cccupetion of Ovalle (Doc.Nos.37 and 71). He
alsc appears in the Oarvajgi survey (Dec. No.12G),

947, Ovelle epplicd to the Chilecan authorities

for"radicacion" in res spect of the plot (Doc. Nos.79 and

80). In the same vecar, Ovalle died. Nonctheless in
T et o ta

.

1951 the Chilean authorities granted'radicacion”

-
1
¢

1952, Juan Her nardez Barriga complaing to the
Chilcan authoritics that his rights in the plod have
not been recogniscd (Doc. No.83).
1956,  Adelina Toledo rcquests "radicacion®” from
the Chilean authoritics for the pilot (Doc. No.44),
1957. Hernandez renounced his claim (Doc. Na.83%),
-- An undated doscription of the plot for the
Chilean tax authoritics signed by Toledo aftcn Ovalle's

death appears as Doc. N0.91.

Personal Notes.

| 112. Dionisio Qvalle Silva. In 1950, Ovalle
was described as being a Chilean, a bachelor, then 60
vears of age, and with two children living (Doc. No,30).
Ldelina Toledo describes hersclf as having bc ' marriced
to hin and states that when Ovalle come from Argentina

to live in California, he was convinced that he was in

Chilean territory (C-M.256). He was the brother of Joso

11,

S
L




Migvuel OQualic Silva, who came from Valdivia, Chile.

115, Adeline Toledo Jofre.

Born at Fubtaleufu (Chile) in 1950 (Doc. No.43).

198421947 1ived with Dionisio QOvalle.

1952. Reported to be living with Julian Soto

(Doc. No.83).

1954,  She reglsters before the Civil Officer in
Palena a three yecar leasc which she had granted to
Heriberto Krause Schell (C-M.192).

1956, Applies to the Chilean auvthorities for
"radicacion" (Doc. No.44),

She hos two living children: Enrique and Ines

Mar

Cio

i,-l-

In a further alfidavit she describes herself as
having beon marricd first to Dionisio Ovalle and thon
to Julian Soto (C-11.256).

114, Juan Hernandez Barriga. Sce below under
Plot 15,

Other residents of Plot 2

115, (1) Adelins Toledo! s daughter Ines Maria,

born in the Valley.

(11) The deughter's husband, Josd David
Herrora Jora, born at uacannlal, Chile, in 1941,
holder of a Chiloan identity cord issucd at La Union,

Chile  (1957), who came to the 2alley in 1961 (Doc.No.
21

115,

Part Two




(iii} The two children of Ines Maria and
Jmse David Herrcra, namely, Santicgo Scgundo and Marcos.
(iv) The husband's father, Santicgo Herrora
Pedreros, born at Contulmo, Chile, in 1909, and his
wife Edelnira del Carmen Jara Fierro, and thelr six
children (Doc. Ho.21 p.79).

v Adelina Toledo's sister, Herninia Teoledo
i o o — 9

s 2t e

Jofre (born in Argentin

o

, see Argentine Memorandunm,
p. 57); her husband, Delmiro Sacz Steinkamp, the son of
Juen Fertunato Sacz Figueroa, born in the California
Valley in 1220, cducatced at the Palona Statc School and
holder of zo Chilecan identity card issued in 1955, and
their eight children (Doc. No.2%. p.83).

(vi) Dionildo Saez Velasquez, a brother of
Delmiro Sacz and son of Fortunatoe Saez, birth register-

a at Futcleufu Chile in 193% (Doc.No.57), educabed

W

at the Polena State School, cnrolled for militar
cervice in 1953 (Doc.No.107), and a registered clector
in Chile; his wifc, Rosa Scte Meza, the da ughter of
Julien Scto Cardenas (scc below, Plot 1), was born in
Argentina (sce Argentince Memorandunm, p.56) and their
three children.

PLOT 1O,
4 (104~-4) "ILOS CERRILLOS"

The plot
116, This plot appears on the Skctch IMap (CH(C-M)1)

116.




under the nane of "Suc.Pablo Carrillo", This is another
of the oldest established scttlements in the Valley,
belonging as it does to the heirs of Pablo Carrillo
Lavoz. The details of Pablo Carrillo's Chilean
connections and acceptance of Chilean authority are set
out in po.ogvaphs 78 and 79 of Chapter IIT above.

1930 The plob sppears in the 1930 Land Tax Roll
under the name of Pablo Carrillo (C-M 47'and 48)

19728 The plot again appears in the 1938 Land
Tax Rell wnder the name of Pablo Carrillo (Doc.No.95).

1947 The estate of Pablo Carrillo rcquested
"radicacion” from the Chilean authorities, the
application being thumb-signed by Rosario, Pablo
Crrrillo's daughter (sce below) (Doc. No.73).

1947, Te vlot was

1950, "Redicacion" applied for (C-M 175).

19517, "Radicacicn" was granted (Doc. No.75).

1952. Tex was poid to the Chilean authorities
for the period 1943 to 1951. (Doc. No.101).

1953. The heirs of Pablo Carrillo lodged 2
complaint with the Chilean aubthorities to the effect
that the 1947 survey hed reduced the size of their
plot in favour of an extended plot for their neigh-
bour Carles ILillo (C-M 185,186,139 and 193%).

et e it

Personal nokog.

117. The plet is now occupicd by the following

117,

surveyed by Carvajal (Doc.No.74).

Fart Two




Port Two

persons:

118. (i) Pablo Carrillo's daughter, Rosario,
born in Corcovado, Argentina in 1916 (Argentine
Memorandun, pp. 39 and 53); her husband, Eulogio
Videla Peﬁaipil, born in the Palena areca in 1918, the
son of Tonas Videla Catalan (sce above, paragraph 80
of Chapter III), = registcred clector in Chile (Doc.
No.108), registered an animal brand nark in 1940
(Doc.No.106), obtained a Chilcan identity card in 1943
(Doc. No.104) and had his birth rcgistered in Palena
in 1959 (Doc. No.59); and their nine children.

119. The Argentine Memorandum, at p.49, paragraph '
8%, states that on 6 May 1956 an Argentine occupation
pernit was granted to Eulogio Videla for an area of
approxinately 100 hcctarcs. The bounds werc stated to be
"to the North Carlos Iillo Fuentes and Julian Soto;
to the South Florindo Carrillo Sacz; to the East
Cordillera and to the Wegt River Encuontro (inter-
national boundary)". The area thus described would
appear partially to overlic Plot 4. The gront of this
pernit in 1956 (being after the critical date) could
not, by the very tests which the Argentine Government
advances, have nuch relevance to the determination of
the allegiance of the inhabitants or the extent of .
governnental control in the period prior to that date.

In any event, however, on 7 April 1966 Eulogio Videla

118.




...

gave a certificate (C-M.235) in his own hand writing Part Two
in which he said: ‘

"..o On mo occasion have I signed any docunient

applying to thc Ministry or land authorities of

the Argentine Republic for the land T own in the

Valle of California, because I recognise to be at

the present time living in Chilean territory".

120.  (ii) Two sons of Pablo Carrillo:

- Florindo Carrillo Saez, born in

California in 1929. His birth was regisbered in
Futaleufu in 1922 at the request of his father (Doc.
No.29). Florindo holds a Chilean identity card issued
in 1946. In 1962 he married, as his second wife,
Edita Videla Jaromillo (Chilean, born in California,
a daughter of Agustin Videla (see below, Plot 10). They
have onec child (Doc. No.21,p.77).

- Aladino Carrillo Saez, born in California

in 1932. His birth was registered at Futalecufu. He

. went to the Palena State School.
PLOT NO.

5 (103-7) "SAN ANTONTIO"
The Plot

127. This plot appears on the Sketch Map

(CH(C-M)1) under thc name of Carlos ILillo. There is

no history of this plot as such earlier than 1947, when

1t was surveycd by Carvajal (Doc. No.126). But it

would seem from the documents supporting the complaint |

of encroachment lodged by the heirs of Pablo Carrillo




Pert Two

Carrillo.

(sce above and C-M 185,186,189 and 193) that part

2t least of this plot had previously been claimed by

Tn 1947 Carlos Lillo Fuenbes applicd bto the
Chilean authorities for "padicacion” of this plot
(Doc. No.57);

In 1962 the Ministry of Land and Colonization
decrecd that Carlos Lillo be granted a frec title of
sumership of this Plot (Doc. No.87).

The plot is still occupied by Carlos Lillo.

Pcrsonal notes

122. Garlos Lillo was bornin Conquchus, Chilc,
in 1906, and his birth was rcgistercd in Victoria
(Chile) in that ycar (Doc. No.36). In 1931 he
obtained a Chilean identity card (Doc. No.104) in
Pitrufquen. In 1937 he was still living in
Victoria,'for in that year he sought and obtained
information fron the Aysen Office of the Ministry of
Lands about lands suiteble for colonization (C-M 84).

In 1942, ILillo cane to California directly from
another part of Chile and settled to the cast of
Piot 4 (Doc. No.21, p.80). He states that he
believed he wés settling in Chile (C-11.255).

In the sane year, described as "resident at
Palena™ Lillo was given a transit authorization by

the Chilean carabincros in charge of the Palcena post

120.




(6-11.126).

In 1946 another transit authorization was given
to Lillo by the Chilcan authorities. It is of partic-
ular significance becouse the docunent bears an
Argentine cndorsement, dated "Corcovado, 10 July 1946",
stating that the authorization had been entered in the
corresponding book (C-M.154).

By 1947 Iillc appears to have achieved some

representative position in the Palena districth. In
Pecember 1947 he was asked by the Chilean carabineros
"to summon the undernentioned settlers of that sector®
to a nceting. The scttlers were all inhabitants of
California - Tonmas Videln Catalan, José Onofre Anabalon
and Agustin Videla Pefaipil (C-1M.160). His wife died
in that year and was buricd in the Palena Ccnetery
(Doc. No.27,p.80).

In February 1950 he was rcquested by the Presi-
dent of the Committee for Local Progress of Palena to
surmon "the settlers of your Lﬁi§7sector" to a meeting
(C-M.165). TIn April 1950 he was surmoned to a
Recting to discuss the construction of an airficld at
Palena (C-M.166). In June 1950 he was again requested
"to inform the settlers of your /his7area” of a neeting
Of the Ioecal Progress Comnmittec (C-M.167).

In 1951, in a letter addrcssed to L;lég at

1t . . .
Callfornla", the Palena Committeo for Local Progress

/]2/’.
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Fart Two refer to Lillo's promise to provide some wood for the

Committee (Doc. No,57).

In 1962, the Chilean Ministry of Lands and
Colonization decrced that he should rcceive o froe tille
of ownership to Plot 5 (Dcec. No.87).°

Lillo has four children, all born in Chile
(Doc.H0.21,p.80). The two boys have been cnrelled for
Chilean military service (Doc. No.107).
PLOT NO.

6 (104-16) "IAS RAICES"

The Plot

123, This plot appears on the Sketch Map
(CH(C=M)1) undcr the name of Simon Lopcz. It is one of
the carlicst settled plots in the Valley. It appears
to have been occupied by Iucas Liopez Sacz as carly as
1916 (sece C-M.132, and for personal details of Tucas
Lecpez sce above, paragraph 80 of Chapter ITI)

In 1930 Lopez appears in the Land Tax Roll in
respeet of this plot (C-M.47 and 48).

In 1936 Lucas Lopez filed with the Chilcan
authorities a Descriptive Statement of the property
(Doc. No.90). |

In 1938 Lucas Lopez died and the property
passed to his son, Simon, who occupies it now (C-M.230).

In 1943 land tax is paid in respect of the plot
(C-M.130 and 131).

122.




In 1943 Sinon Lopcz applied for “"radicacion" in
respect of the plot (C-M.129) and free title thereto
(C-M.132).

In 1947 Sinon Lepez again applies for "radicacion®,
apparently in rcspcct of the sane, or part of the sane
plot, but described slightly differently (C-M.157).

In 1947 the plet is mentioned in Doc. No.37 as
being in the occupation of Simon Lopez.

- In 1948 Sinon Lopez pald tax in respect of an
application for provisional title (C-M.161).

In 1949 Simon Lopez is mentioned in Doc. No.71 as
being the castcecrn and southern neighbour of Onofre
Anabalon.

In 1950 the plot was surveyed (C-M.159).

In 1950 Simon Lopecz was "radicated" in respect
of the plet for which he applied in 1947 (C-M.174 and
C-M.158).

In 1951 Land Tax is paid on the plot to the
Chilean authorities (Doc. No.100).

In 1957 Sinon Lopez requested a free title of
possession (C-M.200).

In 1957 he paid Land Tax on the plot (C-M.203).

In 1958 Simon Lopez complained to the Chilecan
authorities about an increased payment in taxes which he

was called upon to make (C-=M.207).

123.
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Personal notes

124, Simon Lopez, Chilean, was bvorn at Palcna
in 1904 (C—-I’I.,’IS’I).,/l Both his parents were Chilean.

He arrived in California with them in about 1915,
(C-1.799). Hé received a Chileon identity card in
1945 (Doc. No.104) and is a Chilean registered
clector (Doc. No.108).

In 1952 he declined to conply with an Argentinian
surrons to a necting at the house of Bautista Saez (sce
Plot 11) (C-1.227).

In 1957 the Captain af Carabincros at Palena
czrtified that Simon Qgggg was a citizen above reproach
who had lived in the Valley of California for forty-
five veors (Doc. No.22).

In 1960 he norried a Chilean, Aurora Sanchez
Velasquez (Doce No.21, p.81). They have twe children.

125, The Argentine Menorandun states as follows
at p.37, paragraph 62:

"Tucas Lopez, who had comc fron Trevelin via
Corcovadoe, Ergontina, was scttled in the zone by
19%6 having bought sonme ncjoras from Fortunato
Saez; his son Simon Lopez, an Argentine, had been
born in the province of Neuquen, Argentina.”

The statenentat p.140 of the Ch.lMcn. to Lopez
having been born in Chaiten was an error.
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126. The Government of Chile finds this Part Two
assertion by the Argentiﬁe Government, made without
any citation of supporting evidence, to be in clear
contradiction with the facts set out above, and
invites the Court to reject it.
PLOT NO.
7 (104~5) "gAN JOSﬁ" or "LOS MALLINES"

The Plot

127. This plot appears on the Sketch Map
(Ch(C-M)1) under the names of Nolfa Carrascq and
Evaristo Jaramillo. The plot is said originally to
have been part of Plot 6 occupied by Simon Lopez
(Doc. No.21, p.81).

Nolfa Carrasco, now the widow of Evaristo
Jaramillo, claims that she first occupied the plot

in 1927 (Doc. No.41).

In 1947 Jaramillo applied to the Chilean
authorities for "radicacion" (Doc. No.3%8).

In 1950 Jaramillo was radicated in respect of
this plot (C-M.174).

In 1950 Evaristo Jaramillo died and his death was

registered at Fubaleufd (Doc. No.60).

On an unknown date, but after 1950, Nolfa Carrasco
requested the Chilean authorities to grant her a free
title to this plot (Doc. No.41).

In 19571 a shooting incident took place in this plot

which was reported to the Chilean carabineros and to the
Judge at Palena (Doc. No.120).

125.




Plct Two

In 1953 Nolfa Carrasco paid tax to the Chilean
authoritices in respeet of this plot (Doc. No.42).

In 1962 Nolfa Carrasco and her children were
granted free title to the plot by Chilean decrée (Doc.

70.88).

Pcrsonal notes

| 128, Evaristo Jaramillo Mera, Chilean, was born ab
Villarrica (Chile) in 1882 (Doc. No.21, p.76) and held a
Chilean identity card issued at Puerto Montt. At one
time, he, his wife and their children lived in .

Corcovado, Argentina. But they left because they were

1ot allowed to own land there (C-M.251). In 1947 he applicd

to the Chilean authoritics for "radicacion" in respect
of Plot 7 (Doc. Nc.38), which was gronted and is
evidenccd by an order for radicacidn of 13 November
1950 (C-M.174) and an undated nminute signed by the
surveyor Carvajal (Doc. No.%9). In 1948 he clained
and obtained recovery of a lost revolver from the
District Judge of Palena (Doc. No.118).

129, The Argentine Menorandun states (at p.37)
that Evaristo Joramillo lived until 1978 in Lot 94/95
of Colony of the 16th of October énd‘then noved to the
California Valley with his wife, Nolfa Carrasco, and
their children, of whonm Guillernina, Alfredo,
Rosalia, Guillermo, Sudelia Ana and Ernesto were

registered in Argentina as having been born there.

126,




130. The births of Guillermina, Alfredo and
Alberto werc all registered at Palena in 1952
(C-11.267, Doc. Nos. 55 and 56 respectively.).

Present residents

137. Nolfa Carrasco Bacza, Chilean, born at
Lunaco (Chile) in 1901, holds Chilean identity card
issued in 1943 (Doc. Ne.104). In 1962 she and hep
children obtained free title to the plot by a
Chilean government decrce (Doc. No.88).

1322, The Argentine lMenorandum, p.58, paragraph
91, states that a pernit granted to Nolfa Carrasco in
1956 for approximately the saome landholding as is |
comprised in Plot No.7 is still in force. But Nolfa
Carrasco has sworn an affidavit (C-M.252) in which she
denics that she has ever taken any step or éigned any
document, hersclf or by proxy, in order to apply to
the Argentine authoritics for the lands she legally
owns in California.

123. In the list of persons of Argentine
nationality stated in the Argentine Memorandun to be
living in the disputed areca appear (at pp.54-55) the
names of certain children and grandchildren of Nolfa
Carrasco. 8ave to the oxbent that referencevis nade
below to such children and grandchildren, the
Govermient of Chile makos no adnission in this

connection.

127,
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134, The following children and grandchildren of
Nolfa Carrascc live with her:

- Ana, narried tc Julian Eggyg Castillo, the son of
Juan dc Dios ﬁggxg Maraboli (sce Plot 18 below). They
have five children. |

- AMlfredo Joranillo Carrasco, Chilcan, born 1970
in Palena (Doc. Wo.55), cducated at the Palene Stato
School (Doc._Noo21; p.80, paragraph 16), obtained a
Chilean identity card in 1946 (Doc. No°404), enrolled
in Chilcan nilitary scrvice in 1949 (Doc. No.107),
registered as a Chilcan elector (Doc. No.109). In
1962 he marricd Elvird ngé Videla. They have had six
children, of whon five are living.

The Argentinc Mcmorandun, at p.58, paragraph 90,
states that an Argentine occupation permit was grantcd
to Alfredo Jaranillo in 4956.‘ The Chilcan Governnentd -
has no knowledge of an application by Jaranillo for
any such pernit, and nakes no admission thercof. In
ény event, it is after the critical date.

— Alberto Jaranillo Carrasco, Chilean, born in 1937,
cducated at the Palena State School, obtaiﬁed a Chilean
jdentity card in 1946 (Doc. No.104), cnrolled for
Chilean military‘sorvice (Doc. No.107), o Chilcan
registered clector (Doc. No.108). In 1955 formally
reports to the Chilean carabinercs in Palena a shooting

accident which occurred in his housc, and wae ordcred
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to appcar before the District Court of Palena Part Two
(Doc. No.116). He narried a Chilean in 1952,

PLOT NO.
8 (104-~18) "QUEMADO GRANDE"

e Plob

125. This plot now appears in the Sketch Map
(CH(C-M)1) undcr the name of Dionisio Videla. He
succeceded his father Tonas Videla, one of the carlicst
scttlers in the Veolley. (Sec paragraph 80 of Chaopter
III above.) Until 1938, Agustin Videla Pcnaipil, another
son of Tomas, lived with his father but he then noved
to Plot No.10 (sco below).

In 1949, Tcenas Videla requos?ed radicacion from the
Chilcan authoritics (Doc. No.17).

In 1950 Tomas Videla filed a formal description
of the land with the Chilean authorities (Doc. No.92).

Personal notes on prescnt rosidents

136. Dionigio Videla, Chilcan, was born in 1921 in
Argentina (Doc. No.52). In 1955 he marricd Dionilda
Jaranillo, s granddaughter of Nolfa Carrasco (Doc. No.
52). Thcy have three children.

137. The Argentine lenorandun, at pp.60-62,
paragraphs 94-95, states that Dionisio Videla obtained
an occupation permit from the Argentine Government in
1056 for a holding approxinately similar to Plot I1o.8.

Dionisic expressly denices ever having applied for such
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a pernit (C-M.2%6). He also declarcs that he regards
his plot as being in Chilean territory.

138, Tho Argentine Menorandun alsc refers to
the application for a free title to a plot known as
"E1l Azul" made by Vidcla to the Chilecan Governnent
in 1964, The Arpentine Memorandun points oubt, quitc
correctly, that the description of this plot does not
tally with that of Plot 8. The Government of Chile
did not suggest that the plots were the same. The
relevance of the application for "E1 Azul" (Doc.No.53)
is that it shows Vidola claining to be Chilecan and
epplying for titlc to land which is undoubtedly Chilcan;
and this fact renders it morc unlikely that he would
have considered Plot & to be in Argentine territory or
would have sought to straddle the fronticr.

139. The Argentine Meonmorandum concludces that
thercfore the oﬁly grant under which Videla holds
Plot 8 is'Argcn‘cinian° FIn‘formal terms this nay or
may not be correct (according to the truth of the facts);
but as heir to Tomas Videle, Dionisio has all thc rights
latent in the fact of Tomas's occupation of Plet No.8
and in the request made by Tomas in 1949 to the.Chiloan
authoritiecs fof "radicacion".

140. The fact remains that Videla's plot would be
divided by the proposed Argentine line - at lcast as

declineated in Chilean temns.
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141. Aladino Cancino Jaramillo, a Chilecn, born Part Two
at Palens in 1942, works for Dionisio Videla (Doc.No.21,p.
85, paragrapli 70).
PLOT 1O.
9 (104--40) "PORVENIR"

The Plot

142. This plet oppears on the Sketch Map
(CH(C-M)1) undecr the nane of Amelia Morales as successor
of Leandro Videla Penaipil who died in 1958.

The plot appears under the nane of Floreano Sacz
Estenconr in the 1938 Land Tax Roll (Doc. No.95), but
is therce called 'California'.

Videla stvated in 1950 that the former cccupant had
been Floreano Sacs, a son of Fortunato SBacz (Doc. No.93),
but that Videla had <ccupicd the plot since 193%7.

In 1945 Videla appears on Land Tax Roll in rceepect
of "Porvenir" (Doc. No.96, p. 285),

In 1948 a Chilcan notice to pay land tax in respect
of this ycar is served on Videln (C-M.162).

In Moy 1950 Videla requested "radicacion" fronm the
Chilcan authorities in respcct of this Plot (Doc. Ho.82).

In October 1950 Videla filed a descriptive state-
ment of the plet with the Chilecan tax authoritics
(Doc. No.93).

On 4 Nevember 1950, Land tax was paid in respect

of this plot (identifiable by the index number 842) for
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the period 1938-1946 (C-M.17%).

Personal notes

147, Florcono Sacz Bstancan, - the son of Juan
Fortunato Sacz and Mathilde Stoincuap. Little is
kxnown of him. In 1936 he was recorded as the neigh-
bour of Juan Balboa Artenga (scc paragraph 80 of
Chapter III above) (Doc. No.7). In 1937 he filed a
deScriptivé statoment‘with the Chilcan authoritics
of a plot called Californio, which may have included
or be the seme as Plot No.9 (Doc. No.50).

'444.> TLeandro Videla was a Chilean, born at
Pitrufquen, Chile, in 1899. He lived for a while in
Aigentind and then cane to Califcrnia. His widow
gives the reasons why he left Argentina and states
that he regarded California as Chilean territory
(C-M.260).

Present residentg

145, Anclia Morales Cntrilaf. he was brought to
California in 195% by Leandro Videla. ©She
succecded to Videla's rights upon his dcath in 1958
(Doc. No.21, p.82, paragraph 20). She states that in
residing in California she regards hersclf as being in
Chilean territory (C-1M.260). |

- The daughter of Amelia lMorales, Benita, born in
Argentina. Her husband, Elisco Cid Leiva, 2 Chilcan
born at Lonquinay (Chile) in 1929, lives with her.

They came to California in 196% with their six children
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and scttled on the plot of B¢nita's nother (Doc.No.21, Part Two
p.77, paragraph 7).

146, The Argentine Memorandun refers at p.53 o
four children of Elisco Cid. Three of them arc stated
to have been born in Argentina and bo have had their
births registered there in 1952, 1955 and 1960
respectively. Since these dates fall before the
arrival of Eligsco Cid in the California Valley, they
wovld appear to have little relevance. The fourth child
is stated o have becn born "at Rio Encuentro" in 1964
and Yo have been reglstered there in that year. The
Chilean Governnent nake no adnission in this |
connection. The event is, in any case, one occurring
after the critical date. ‘

PLOT NO.
10 (104-55)  "LOMAS BAJAS"

The plot
14%7. This plot appears in the Sketch Map

(CH(C-M)1) under the nane of Apgustin Videla by whon and
by whose wife and fanily it has been occupied since
1938.

authoritics for an occupation pernit and provisional
title, claining that he had occupiced the land since

1938 (Doc. No.31).
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Part Two Personal notes

118, Agustin Videla Penaipil, Chelean, was born
at Palcna in 1917 (Doc. No.19). He is a son of Tonas
Videle (see Plot MMeo.8 and paragraph 80 of Chapter
ITT above). He is o registered Chilean clector
(Doc. Nc.108). Until 1938 he 1ived with his father
cn Plot No.8.
Tn 1940 he rcgistered an aninal brand nark with
the Chilean authorities at Achac (Doc. Neg.105 and 106).
He obtaoined a Chilean identity card in 194% (Doc,No,404),
In 1944 he was one of the signatorices of a pebition
nddresscd to the Chilean Ministoer of Public Works
(C-M.145). The signatories claimed to be Chilean
nntionals end said they wanted thelr children to feel
" one hundred por cent Chilean, They wantcd to step their
childrcn enigrating to Argentina. Accordingly, they
asked for funds for Widoning and corpleting the road
fron Palena to Puerto Ranmirez. This, it mnay be
commented in passing, is not a .docunent which would
have been signed by a person who had anyvreason to
believe that he was residing in Argentine.
In 1947 he was one of the settlers named in the
request sent to Carlos Lillo (sce above, Plot NofB) to
be surmoncd to a meeting in Palena (C-1M.160) .

Tn 1951 he undertook to work the wood which Carlos

Lille offered to the Palena Committee for Local




O

Progress (C-11.177),

n 1957 he epplicd to the Chilean authorities fop
2 provisional btitle to Plot No.10 (Doc. NO,Bﬂ).

In 1964 Vidoln narried Elcira Jaranillo Carrasco
in Palena and the narriage was registercd thore_
(Doc. No.%0). By then, however, they had already had
nine children, including onc, Dicgo, born in 1942 and
registered for Chilean nilitary service in 1961 (Doc.
No.27 p.85, paragraph 29 ang Doc. No.107).
PLOT NO.,

11 (104-41) "1,05 TLIRTOS"

The Plot

149,  This nlot appears on the Sketeh Map
(CH(C-M)1) undor +the nanes of Julian Soto and Juan
Bautis 2 gacz Stoincamp. No docunentary evidence
relating to tho ececupancy of this plot has yet been
found, unless the nlot be that described in the
Doscriptive Statement filed by Flarianolﬁggg in 1937
(Doc. No.50). The boundaries there described wereé
North - Juan Zﬁbavgyﬁﬂraboli: Scuth - Antonian éalboa;
East - Pablo Carrillo; West - Cordillera. Thig

desceription could be nade o fit, in vicw of +the

interosts at that tine of Bravo to the north and

————————

Balboa to the south, btut the reference to Carrillo on

the east dcos not fit., It Nay possibly have been an

Srror, Floriano was the brother of Bautista,
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Port Twue

It appears, however, that in 1952 at any ratc, the
plot was alrcady in the occupancy of Bautista Sacz.
According to an affidavit sworn by him in 1965 (C-M.
222), a nceting took place at his housc in the spring
0of.1952. It had becn summoncd, without the consent of
Sacz, by an Argentine Licutcnant of Gendarnes. The
latter announced that the arca fcll within Argentince
territory and "indicatcd with his hand that the 1init
betwecn Chilc and Argentina ran along the hills west
of ny house on which Cerro Mcra is situated”.

The affidavit continucs:

"Being the first tine we were given a notifica-
tion of this nature, and surprised that we might
be in Argentine territory, we immecdiately
informed the Carabineros and the Palena
authoritics of the situation, who told us not to
worry in these localities becausc the gendarnes
werc nistaken."

Personal notes

150. Beutista Sacz, Chilcan, was born in 1918 in
the California Vallcy. His father was Juan Fortunato
Sacz, onc of the carlicst scettlcers in the Valley.
Eautista holdes a Chilcan identity card.

151. Julian Soto Cardenas, Chilean, born at
Potrono de Malo (Chile) in44954. At one time he lived
in Argentina and cone to California wishing to scttle
permnanently in Chile and in the belief that he was
léaving Argentina (C-M.242). In 1952 he is alleged to
have becn cohabiting with Adelina Toledo (Plot No.?
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above). He was registered for Chilean military
scrvice in 1954 (Doc. No.107) and reccived a Chiloan
identity card in 1955 (Doc. No.104). He is married to
Moargareta Meza Govabito. They have cne daughter, Rosa,
narrted to Dionildo Sacz (sce Plot No.3 above).
BLOY NO.

12 (104-29) "LAS PAMPITAS™

The Plot

152. This plot appcars on the Sketeh Map
(CH(C-M)1) under the nome of Onofre Anabalbn°

The use of the plot at an early date is referred to

in a affidavit by Gunercinda Castillo Marin, the widow

of Juan dc¢ Dios Bravo Maraboli, sworn in 1965 (Doc.No.B),

She states that Juan Antonio Balbeoa (scc above,

paragraph 80 of Chapter III) grazed his cattle Yin
Chilean places colled... Tas Panmpitas...". She says thet

"in 1932 ny husband and T caric to live in Chile,
at the place called "TLas Pompitas", a plet
occupied at present by Onofre Anabalon Vega, on
the banks of the River Tigre. In thatb place we
were authorized +to stay by Juan Antonio Balboa,
because heo occupied all that area. The winter of
that year was very snowy and we thought of lecaving
that place. It was then that Juan Antonio Balboa
2uthorized ny husband to mnove to the place called
Califernia..." ,

At some tine thercafter the plot was occupied by
Carlos Domingo Iafuento Inostroza. In 1954 Lafuente
St UeNLe o aLtuente
exchanged "mejoras" and rights of possession with

José¢ Onofre Anabalon who had rights in Lot No.104-8 on

Y
W
~J
.
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Part Two

the Land Tax Roll, on the west side of the ninor
channel inmediately opposite the Carrillo plot, No.4.
This exchqnge was rcgistered before the Civil |
Registrar of Palena in 1954 (Doc. No.24). %Anabalon
still occupies the plot.

Personal notes

15%. Juon de Dios ngzg Maraboli was a Chilean
who lived for a while iﬁ.Argentin&. The Chilcan
Governnent accepts the general proposition in
paragraph 671 of the Argentine Menorandum, p.36, that
Eggzg noved to the valley of the River Engano fron
Argentina, but belicves, in the light of the
affidavit of éggxg's widow, that the correcct date was
1932 (Doc. Wo.5). It is adnitbted that the widow,
Guncrsinda, considers hersclf to be Argentinian.

éggzg‘s widow has also stated (C—M,246)‘ﬁhat when

her husband left the Afgentine and came to

California, he did so in the conviction that he was

settling in Chile.

Eggyg clearly considered hinself Chilecan. He
was one of the Signatoriés of the 1944 petition to
the Chilean authorities in which the petitioncrs
declared thenselves and their children to be Chilean

(C-M.145)., In 1942 he had contributed 6 days work to

the construction of the road from Palena to Puerto

Ranirez (C-M.127).




In 1950 Bravo applied to the Chilean authorities
for an occupation permit in respect of a plot which it
is not easy to identify, the description being:

"North, State Cordillera and Leandro Videla; Bast,

State Cordillera; South, State Cordillera and Juon
Rosales Vasquez; West, State Cordillera®™ (Doc. No.60).
It is clearly not Plot 12, because his widow states that
they left that plot in 1932 to nmove to a property of
Balboz's called "California". The reference to

Leandro Videla and Juan Rosales as neighbours suggests
that the plot was inside the bend of the Tigre, possibly
forming part of TLand fax Lot No.103-13 (Plot No.18,
below). Brave was referrcd to as the Eastern neigh-
bour of Juan Rosalcs in the latter's request for
"radicacion™ made to the Chilean authorifies in 19432
(C-M.135).

In 1951 Eggzg was wounded in a shooting affair at
the housc of Nolfa Carrasco (Plot No.7), and accepted
the jurisdiction of the Palcna Court in respect of
it (Doc. No.120).

In 1955 he scld his rights to Pelix Galilea
Martinez - rights to land which appcars to have lain
on both sides of the Tigre. The formal contract of
sale was made in Pucrto Montt (Chile) (Doc. No.S4)
and approval for the transfer was sought by Galileca

fron the Chilean Minister of Land and Colonization

139.
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Part Two (Doc. No.85). In the same year tax was collccted
by the Chileen authorities under the nane of Bravo
in respect of the transfer (Doc. No.86).

154, arlos Doningo Lofucnte Inostroza, Chilcan,
born 19071 (Doc. No.24) and died, a bachelor, in 1959
(Doc. No.25).

155, Onofrc Anabalon Voga, Chilean, waﬁlborn in
Quitratué (Chile) in 1909. He is 2 reglstered g
Chilean clector (Doc. No.108) and holds a Chilcan |
identity card issucd in 1943 (Dce. No.104).

Fron 1920 to 1931 he lived in Argentina and then
cane to the California‘Valley (Doc. No.2%). Once nwore,
it scenms inmprobable that a nman who had returncd to
Chile (for he first scttled west of the ninor channel)
in the circunstances in which he did should then
knowingly exchange his plot for one on the Argentine
side of the boundary - a suggestion which is implicit
in thé general Argentine contention. Indced,Anabalon
has stated cxpressly that in coning to live in
California he believed that he had left Argontina
(C-M.249).

In 1933 he nade a declaration beforc the
District Judge at Pelena explaining the circunmstances
in which he cchabited with and later left Berta Barriga
Proncoso (C-M. 30).

In 1939 he registered at Futaleufu, Chile, the
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birth of his son Claudio, born in 1929 - presumably in ggzz_zﬂg
Argentina. |

In 1942 Anabalon nade 2 conbtribution of provisions
in conncction with +the construction of the road to
Puerto Ranirez (C-M.127).

In 1947 Anobolon's Lot No. 104-8 was sur?eyed by
the surveyor Corvajal (Doc. No.69) and in 1949 he was
"radicated" (Duc. Nos. 70 and 71).

In 1957 the Coptain of Carsbineros at Palena gave
Anabalon a certificate of gsod character (Doc. No.23).

Anobalon is married to Viviana Carrillo Saez
who was born in Argontlna, but is the daughter cf Pablo
Carrillo Lavoz and Dorila Sacz Figueroa (sce Plot 4
above), and has cleven children, all of then Chilean.
Two of his children were cnrolled for Chilean nilitary
service in 1958 and 1965 respectively (Doc. No.107).

There is nothing in the reference to Anabalon and
his family at p. 38 of the Argentine Menorandun which
is inconsistent with the above nor which fixes
Anabalon with Argentinian character or allegiance.

PLOT NO.
13 {104-9) "LAS PAMPAS™
The plot

156. This plot appears on the Sketch Map
(CH(C-M)1) under the nanme of Adecdato Mera, who

succeeded his father Carlos Moera.
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Part Two

In 1950 Carlos Mera filed with the Chilcan
authoritics a descriptive statencnt of the plet
(Doc. Wo.27). He declared that the property was
acquired by occupation following abandomment, having ,
previously belonged to Juan Antonia Balboa.

Personal notes

157. Carlos Mera arrived in California in 1940
(Doe. Wo.21, p. 84, paragraph 19). He belicved that he
was in Chilean territory (C-M.258). In 1942 he contributed
© days work to the consbruction of the road fronm Palena
to Puerte Ramirez (C-M.127). His name appears in the
rcgister of aninmal brand marks kept at Achac (Chile) as
having had a brand registered in 1949 (Doc. No.106).

158. Adeodato Mera Gonez, Chilean, born in Chile
arrived in the Valley in or about 1940 (Doc. No.26).

He recoived a Chilean idenbtity card in 1943 (Doc. No.
104) and was rcgistered for Chilean nilitary scrvice
in 1945 (Doc. No.107). In 1952 he obbained a
certificate ~f fair character fron the Captain of
Carabineros at Palena (Doc. No.26). This stated that
Hlera had an Argentinian wife and one Chilcan son.
(8ee also the Argentine Memorandun, p.38).

The Argeﬁtin@ Menorandum (at p.58, paragraph 91)
clains that an occupation permit given to Mera in 1956
is still in force. DMcra denies that he has cver put

his signature on any docunent applying to the Argentine
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authoritics for the lands he owns in California and
which he regards as being in Chilecan territory
(Doc. No.225).

159. Also resident on Plot 13 is Adiodato's uncle,
Aristeo Mera Velasquez, a Chilean, born at San Josc de
la Mariquina, Chile, in 1893 (Doc. No.21, p.8ﬂ,
paragraph 19).

PLOT NO.
14 (104~57) "CATLIFORNIA"

The nlot
160. This plet appears in the Sketch Map

(CH(C-I)1) under the name of Alfrcdo Foitzick.

The Governrent of Chile has so far been unsble to
find any documents which relate specifically to the
history of this plot, but it falls in the part of the
Valley previously in the general occupation of Juan
Antonio Balboa Arteaga.

Personal notes

167, Alfredo Foitzick Moncada, Chilean, was born
in 1917 at Trumac (Chile) (Doc. No.48). He helds o
Chilean identity card, issued in 1936 (Doc. No.104).
He came to the California Valley in 1951 (Doc.No.49).
He cbtained a certificate of good charecter from the
Ceptain of Carabincros at Palena in 1957 (Doc.No.49).
He owms another plot of land "Costa Rio Eﬁcuentro”,

on the western bank of the lower section of the River

143,
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Port Two

Ehcuentro,‘in territory which Argentina acknowledges
to be Chilcan. He states that he occupied the land
he now owns in the California - Valle Hondo becausce
it was Chilcan bterritory. He has refused Argentinian
requcsts to sign applications for the occupation of the
Valle Hondo plot (C-M.248).

Foitzick narried a Chilean in 1942 and has eight
childrcen. The two eldest sons are registered for
Chilcan nilitary service (Doc. No.97).

PLOT NO. .
15 (104-7) _"TAS HORQUETAS"

The plot
162. This plot appears on the Sketch Map

(OH(C~M)1) under the name of Juan Hernandez.
Hernandez appears to have moved to this plot in
or shortly before 1957. In that year he applied to
the Chilean authorities for an occupation pernmit |
(Doc. No.33) and desisted from any further claim to
Plot No.3 (see above, Plot NO,B.and Doc. No.83%).

The plot was previously known as "Los Altarcs"
and appeared so enrolled in 1945 under the name of
Rujo Flores Rosales. ILater it was mentioned as
fiscal land (Doc. No.21, p.79, parvagraph 12).

Personal notes

163, Hernandez is a Chilecan, born at Curacautin
(Chile) in 1908. He married in Argentina, in aboubt

1938, Maria Jofré'ZEOfr§7 Vega and returned to Chile
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in 1940, scttling first on Plot No.3. They have eleven Part Twc
children (Doc. No.21,p.79, paragraph 12). He stétes |
that he scettled in Califernia in the firn belief that
it is Chilean territory (C-M.240) and he clearly
regards hinsclf as a Chilean. He is one of the resi-
dents of the Calif-rnia Valley who in 1947 provided the
Surveyor Carvajal with information about attenpts by
the Argentine government o toke a census (C-M.156).

The Argentine Menorandun refers, at pp. 38 and 54,

\to the Argentine nationality of the wife and four of

the children of Ilernandez. The Governnent of Chile
observes that of the eleven children of Hernandez,
the births of only four appear to have been registered
in Argentina and the Argentine Memorandum contains
cvidence oflonly one registration.

The Argentine Menorandun also refers (at p.58)to
an occupation pernit said o have been granted to Juan
Hernandez 1in1956 and still to be in force. Hernandez
has declared that he has nover signed ony application
to the Argentince authorities for the occupation of land

in California or Las Horquetas (C-M.239).

PILOT NO,
16 (104~56)  "RTO TIGRE"

The plot
164. This plet appears in the Sketch Map
(CH(C-M)1) under the name of Pedro Rivera. TIn 1943
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Part Two

Rivera applied for an occupation pernit for a plot

of which the boundarics were described as follows:
"orth, fiscal ranges; East, fiscal lands; South,
fiscal rangces; ‘WOSt, Loake El Tigrc". The plot was

said to be "in the place 'Lago Palena'.™ This
description would appear to rclate To Plot 16. (C-M.139).

Pcrsonal notes

165. ©Pedro Rivera Segundo Iribarra was a Chilean,
born at La Union (Chile) in 1901 (Doc. No,65)1. He held
a Chilean identity card issued in 1943 (Doe. o .104).
His nome appcars in the 1938 Land Tax Roll for the first
time under Index No.157 in respect of a plot called
"E1 Tigro" (Doc. No.95 , p. 275). He appcars to have
settled in California in Valle Nerte in about 1942 (sce
C-M.201 and 202). At any rate, in that year he
contributed 6 days work to the construction of the road
from Palena to Pﬁerto Ranmirez (CG-M.127). In the 1945
Roll thc‘samo index number appcars against a plot called
"TI,os Coiques" in the nane of Herminio Rivera Ibarra
(Doc. No.96, p.285).

In 1957 he was granted by the Chilean authorities

an occupation permit in respect of Plot No.17 (sce below

and Doc. No.67). He dicd in 1959. His death was

The reference at p.83% of Vol.3 of the Chilean
Menorial to Rivera's birth at Cherquenco is an
error.
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registered in Palena. (Doc. No.65). His rights were
inherited by his brother Anastasic Rivera Iribarra
(C-11.262).
PLOT NO. )

17 (104-19) "LAS HORQUETAS"

166. This plot appears on the Sketch Map
(CH(C-M)1) undcr the name of Pedre Rivera.

In 1957 he applicd to the Chilean authorities for
an occupation pemit and provisional title for this plot.
Ic stated that he had cccupied the plot since 1944,
(C-M.201).

In 1957 the Chilean Ministry of Lands granted hin
a profisicnal occupation permit in respect of this plot
(Doc. No.67),

Pedre Rivera's brother states that Pedro never
doubted that Plots 16 and 17 were in Chilean territory
(C-M.262).

PLOT NO.
18 (103-13) "ESTRELIA"

The plot
167. This plot appears in the Skotch Map

(CH(C-M)1) under the nane of Felix Galilea,
The plot wasoriginally occupied by Juan Antonio
Belbeca. With his consent, Juan Bravo and his wife noved

to it in 1933 (Doc. No.5. and sce abovo under Plot No.12).

147,
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in 1939 Juan.ﬁravo filed a declaration for
lond tax purposes which indicates that he was in
occupation at least from 1937 (C-M.121).

Juanygggzg hinsclf gave this date to his
criginel occupation (Doc. No.54).

In 1950 Juanvggggg requested an occupation pernit
for the plot (Doc. No.60).

In or about 1954 Juan Eggyg filcd a further
declaration which covered the additional arca he had
in the neantime acquired north of the Rio Tigre
(C-M.194).

In 1955 Juan ﬁravo sold the plot to Felix Galilea
(Doc. No.54); Galilca sought official Chilean approval
for the sale (Doc. No.85); and Bravo paid tax thercon
(Doc. No.86).

Perscnal notes

168. For personal details of Juan éggzg, see
Plot Nc.12 above. |

169. TFelix Galilca Martinez is a Chilean who was
born in Spain but was naturalized as Chilean by decree
in 1957. His name appears in the Palena Land Roll
for 1965 against this plot (Doc. No.9%4, D.267) .
PLOT_NO.

19 (102-23%) "CATIFORNIA"

170. This plot is marked on the extended Sketch
Map (CH(C-M)1) under the name of Juan RosalcsS.
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In 1928 the land was still occupied by Juan Antonio
ﬁalboa. The widow of a cousin of Juan Antonio's,
Bartolome Scgundo Balboa, tells how in 1928 her husband
went to live with Juan Anbonio "on the plot which is
to~day occupied by Juan Rosales" (Doc. No.4).
respect of his occupation of the plot (C-M.135). He
named gggzg as his castern neighbour. (Bravo, it will
be recalled, later sold the neighbouring plot to Felix
Galilca - see above, Plot Wo.18). The request of
Rosales for "radicacion" was granted in the same
year (C-1.14%).

In 1960-61, Rosales requested from the Chilean
authoritics a provisional title for this plot, stating
that he had been radicated on it for more than 20 years
(C-11.211). A frce title was -granted to him by a
Dccyoe of the Chilean Ministry of Lands iﬁ 1965
(C-M.220), '

Pcrsonal notes

171.  Juan Felix Rosales Vasquez, born in 1897 is a
Chilean. He was so recognized by his neighbours.
Juan Bautista Sac Steinkamps (see above, Plot No.11)
spoke, in his affidavit made in 1965 (C-M.222) of
"the settlers resident on the south bank of the
River Tigre towards River Azul, that is to say ,
where the Chilean nationals Juan Bravo Maraboli,

Juan Felix Rogalcs Vasquez, Leonidas Monje Del-
gado and Venancia Rosales lived..."
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cert Two

Rosales lived in Argenbina for %4 ycars, but in
1952‘he returncd to Chile as a rcpabtriate to take up
permanent residence there. He brought with him 1%0
cows, 19 horscs and 40 sheep (C-M.G69).

In 1936, Juan Felix Rosélos, referring to
himself as "Chilean, stock farmer, repatriated from
the Republic of Argentina" applicd to the Chilean
authorities for a provisional title to some land in
the Province of Aysen (C-11.111).

In 1938 he rcgistered the birth of his youngest
son at Futaleufu (C-M.119). ALl his other children
had been born before he returned o Chile (C-M.137).

In 1958 he occupicd and clearcd a plot just
outside the disputed areca, by name "La Porfia",
bearing Land Tax Roll No.104-14, and in 1941 applied
for a provisional title to the plot (C-IM.124).Hec described
the boundaries: "North - the plot occupicd by Josc
Casanova and State cordilleras; South - State
cordillera; East - Arroyo Las Matreras; and West -
Flot occupied by José Vietor Sandoval". In 1943 he
applied for "radicacion" in respect of this plot as
well as another (C-M.1%7) and this was granted in 1943
(C-M.142). In the 1945 Chilecan Land Tax Roll he was
entered as paying tax on this plot (Doc. No.96, p.285).
In 1954 he applied for "radicacidn" of what appears to
be the same plot (C-M.136). The "mejoras" of this
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plot were sold by Rosales to Francisco Cardenas gggglgyg
Velasquez in 195G (C-M.195). Each party %o the

transaction applicd to the relevant Chilean authorit-

ice for comsent, which was granted, and the neccssary

taxes were paid C—M.195,496,197,205,208,209,213,216

and 218) |

In 194% he applied for "radicaciéﬁ" of Plot 19
(C-M.135 and 137); which was gfanted the same year,
(C-M.7142 and 143). In the 1945 Chilean Land Tax Roll
he was cntered as paying tax on a plot called "Las
Maravillds", which may be Plot No.19 (Doc. No.96,

p-285 and C-M.i84. Bce also C-M.182,182 and 191).

In 1954 he applied for and obtained a provisional title
of ownership. in rcspect of this plot, saying that he
had been in posscssion of it since 1939. (C-11.187,188,
19C and 198).

172, The Argentine Memorandum, p.39, paragraph ©6,
states that Rogsales scttled in the Valley of the Engaﬁo
in194%,that he had formerly lived in Argentina and had
cight Argentine children.

The Government of Chile admits that Rosales had
lived in Argentina but points out that while Rosales
may not have come to the Valley of the Tigre/Engaﬁo
until 1942, hc had left Argentina ten years before
that. As to the registration of the children, the

Government of Chile accepts that such registration was
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to the Chilcan authorities made in 1943, names six

character of Rosales or of his intention to recgide in

quite likely. Rogalcs himself, in an application

children and gives their ages. From this it appears
that all save thc youngest, whosc birth was
registered at Futaloufd/(see above), must have bcen
born while Rosales still lived in Argentina (C-M.137).

There can be no real doubt as to the Chilean

Chile. He was a repatriate who loft Argentina because
of unsatisfactory conditions there. He scttled first

in another part of Chile and then came to California.

It is improbable in the extreme that he thought he
was thereby rcturning to Argentina. In any ovenf, in
1949 he wos mado Inspectbr of the Palena District in
succession to Eleodoro Diaz (C-M.210). As such, he
informed the Sub-delegate of Yelcho, his supcrior, of
the Argentine incursion into California in 1952.
(See Chilean Memorial p.338; C-IM 180, and Annex No.30).
In 1942 he had contributed money and four sacké of
potatoes in coﬁnoction with the construction of the road
from Palena to Puerto Ramirez (C-11.127).
PLOT 10, g

20 (104-1%3) “EL ROSAL"

The Plot

17%3. This plot is marked in the extended Sketch IMap

(CH(C-M)1) under the name of Leonidas Monje. He
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moved there in 1939 from his father's plot further down Page Two

the Tigre. Plot No.20 had previously been the property
of Juan Antonio Balboa (C-11.263), (See also C-M.170).
In 1943 Monje applied %o the Chilean aubhoritics
Tor "radicacisn" on this plot, described as bounded as
follows: "North - Rivor Tigre; East - Juan Rosales;
South - State Cordillera; West - River Azul" (C-M.133
and 134)., The plot can thus be soen‘to lie in the
angle made by the conflucnce of the Tigre~and the Azul.

s
"Radicacion" was granted by the Chilean Minister -of

Lands in the same year (C-M.138), and was implewented

(O—M,140). Thore arc rccords of tax payments made in
1962 for the ycar 1954 (C-M.214 and 215). Monje was
granted a free title of ownership in 1965 (C-M.224).

Personal notes

17%.  Leonidas Monje Delgado is a Chilean, born in
1909, His birth was registered in La Union (Chile) in
1909 (C-M.1). His parents, who were Chilean, had
lived in Argonhina, but because of conditions there
returncd to Chile in 1924. They then settled on the
east bank of the Rio Tigre on a plot, Land Tax No.
104-20, bearing the name "Suc. Jose Monje" in the
extended sketeh map. Leonidas moved to Plot 20 in 1939.
He never had any doubts that this plot was in Chilean
territory (C-M.265). Higs acknowledgement of Chilcan

authority in the area of this plot is evidenced by the
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steps, mentioned above, which hce took in rclation

to the plot. In 1942 he contributed 6 days work to

the construction ofvthc road from Palcna to Pucrto

Ramircz (C-M.127). In addition, in 1958, he lodged
2 (mplaint with the Chilean carabineros against
éQUtiSflgggg_and Agustin Videla Penaipil in respect
f demage u“rhich he allcged they causcd his cattle
vlen passing through a field of his in the Azul

" Seckor (C-M.20v),

21 (104-26) _ *anTORADO"

The plot |

175. This plot is cnterce in the extended Sketch
Map (CH(C-M)1) under the name of Roberto Monsalve.
It previously belonged to Venoncio Rogsaleg Garces.
Rosalcs, a Chilean, states that he lived for a while
in Argentina and then returned to Chile. He first
lived north of Post 16, but then moved to a plot of
land called "E1 Azul", which hc states has always
been recognised by all the scttlers as Chilecan. In
picturesque language he says that "its limits stretch
very far towards the rising sun on the mountain ranges".
He concludes by stating that "some years ago he sold

the land to sénor Monsalve" (C-1M.257).(See also C-M.171).
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B, Chilecan administrative activity in the disputed

area.

176, The presentation, in the section A of this
Chapter, of the material relating to the ownership or
occupation of the plots in theAdisputed area and the

Chilean identification of the settlers there resident

has involved reference to a variety of activities which

represent an exercise by the Chilean authorities of
administrative competence throughout the disputed area.
In contrast with the five categories of Argentine
administrative activity set out in Scction D of
Chapter II above, the Chilean activity is on a quite
different scale - wider in range of action, more
frequent and greater in the period of years which

it covers. It does not consist, as the Argentine
conduct does, of intermittent and isolatcd happenings -
in 1894, 1920, 1946, 1954 and 1956. It has all‘the
narks of normalcy and continuity. This must be

apparent both from the content of Section A above and

from the Chilecan Mcmorial Part Two, Chapter IV, Sections

B and C.

177. DNonetheless, it may be of assistance to the
Court if the Government of Chile now sets out in
classificd form the various types of Chilean adminis-
trative activity which arc mentioned in the previous

scction. In so doing, the Government of Chile will not
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repcat theanalysis of activity contained in the
Chilcan Mcmorial. It will merecly supplement that
material with additional evidence which has since

come to hand. In gencral, it should be borne in

mind that the Government of Chile has not thought it

necessary to producc cvidence relating to the period

from 1955 onwards.

(1) Lond titles (Ch.Mem., p.154)"

178, in 1943 Simon Lopez Dolgado applied for
"radicacidn" of plot 6 (C-M.129), which was granted
in 1950 (C-M.174 and 158).

179. In 1943 Juan Felix Rosales applied for
"radicacion" of Plot 19 (C-M.13%5,137 and 142), which was
granted in thc same years (C-M.143). (See also C-M.187,
188,190 and 198).

180. Iﬁ 194% Leonidas Monje Delgado applied for
"radicacidn" of Plot 20 (C-M.133), which was granted in
the same year (C-M.1%8 and 140).

181. In 1950 Simon Lopcez Delgado and Evaristo

Jaramillo Mera were "radioatod" in their plots (C-M.174).

182. In 1943 andA4957 Pedro Rivera appliced for
occupation permits in respect of Plots 17 and 18

(C-M.1%29 and 201).

1 . R .
This, and similar references in brackets attached to

each heading, refer to thec pages in the Chilcan
Memorial in which similar activities have already
‘been described.
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183. In 1960-1961 Juan Felix Rosales applied

for a provisional title in respect of Plot 19 (C-M.211),

which was granted in 1965 (C-M.220).

(2) Land Tax (Ch.Mem., p.162)

184. A provisional land tax roll prepared‘by the
sub-delegate of Yelcho is reproduced as C-M 48. It is
undated but would appear to be breparatory to the Land
Tax Roll for 1930,

185. The Land Tax Roll for 1920 is reproduced
at C-M.4%7. It includes the names of Juan A. Balboa
Francisco CaldeLon Pablo Carrlllo, Lucas Lopez, and
Fortunato Saez all of whom cupied plots in California.

186. In 1941 the Chilean Treasury requested
payment of a tardy debt from Iucas Lopez (Plot 6)
(C-11.125)., In 1943 a certain amount was paid on this
account (C-M.130).

187.  In 1944-45 Juan Vicente Contreras (Plot 2)
corresponded with the Chilean tax authorities about
the assessment of tax on his land (C-11.148 and 149).

188. In 1948 tax was lev1ed on Leandro Videla
Peniaipil in respect of Plot 9 (C~M 162).

189. In 1950 Juan Vicente Contreras (Plot 2) was
given a receipt for an informative declaration filed
in respect of his land (G-M.168).

190.  In 1950 tax was paid in respect of Plot 9

(entereqd under the name of Floriano Saez Estencam) for

f
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Part Two the years 1938-1046 (C-M.173).

191. In 1952 Carlos Lillo wos required to pay
taxes on Plot 5 before being allowed to proceed with
his application for a free title of ownership (C-M.181).

192. There appcars below a Schedule shewing
the tax history of Plots 19, 20 and 21, prepared on
similar lines to the Schedule on pages 164-167 of
the Chilcan Memorial. It is thought necessary to%
includc.this, because these three plots, occupied by
Chilean settlers for many years, would fall into
Argentina under the boundary for which she contends

in these proceedings.
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Part Two (3) Registration of births, marriages and deaths

(Ch. Mem . p.173).
19%. Death certificates were lssued as follows:
1929 Matllde Stelncamp Robinson, the wife of Fortunato

Saez (C.M.25).
1932 Dorila Saez figueroa, the wife of Pablo Carrillo

Lavoz (C.M.81).
194, Since the preéartion of the Memorial in this case, ;
a3 document has come to light which is of quite special
interest and importance. Tt is a petition, drawn up
on 15 October 1949 by the local citlzens Progress
Committee of Palen# and forwarded by them to the Chilean
Minisfry of Justicé (C.M.164). Tt contains a request
that the Chllean Government éhould set up in Palena a
local office for the registration of births, marriages
and deaths, because of the difficulty of goling to
Futaleufy to effect such registrations. The petition
referred to the fact that450% of the people were living ?
in concubinage, that many children were 1ln consequence
illegltimate and that Chilean parents even occaslionally
registered in Argentina the birth of chlldren born in
Chile.

The special significance of thls petition, in
relation to the present case, 1s that it 1s signed by
a large number of local residents including the follow-

ing residents of the disputed area: Simon Lopez,
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Roberto Cid, Eulogio Videla, Agustin Videla, Evaristo
Jaramillo, Juan de D. Bravo, Juan F. Rosales, Elvira
Rosales R., Faustino 22 Lavoz, Venancio Rosales, L.

Rosales R., Rosario Riguel

lme, Adeodato Mera, Aristeo

- s gurp

T vt e

Leonidas Monge, Rujo Flores, Rosario Carrillo,
Bartolome Balboa, Elcira Jaramillo, Gumercinda C. de
Bravo and Guillermina Jaramillo.

It would seem highly unlikely that the people
living in California would have particlpated in the
communal activities of a Chllean town and added their
name to a request for the development of Chilean
adminlstrative facilitics there 1f they did not regard
themselves as Chilean, the place they lived in as
Chilean territory, Palena as their nearest town centre
and Argentina as a forelgn country,

(4)  inimal brand register (Ch.Mem. p.l174)

195. In 1927, so Florindo Ramirez Soto states (C.M.231),

the Argentine authorities required the settlers in the

California Valley to cancel thelr Argentine brand marks;

o

residence in the California Valley, see Doc. No.5),
went to Tecka (Argentine) to cancel thelr reglstrations.

196. This was followed in 1928 by re-registration of
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brand marks with the District Inspector in Palena by
Francisco Calderon, Juan Bautlista Soto and Demetrio
Cardenas (C.M.8).

197. References'are made in a document dated i}
November 1928 to brand marks of the following settlers
in the disputed area: Pablo Carrillo, Juan Antonlo
Balboa, Francisco Calderon and Fortunato Saez (C.M.11).
198. In 1944 Juan Vicente Contreras (Plot 2) registeréd
a brand mark at ichao (Chile) (C.M, 147). .

(5) Legal Transactions (Ch.Mem., p.176)

19é. In 1929(?) Bartolome Segundo Eg;gggfrecorded in
Palena the salé of a horse to Juan Antonio gglpgg
(C.M.37).

200, In.1927 an agreement for cattle ralsing On a profit
sharing basis between Fortunato Saez and Romon Nogoya
(sic) was drawn up in Palena and countersigned by
E11odoro Diaz_ (C.M. 4 and 6).

201, In 1929 Pablo ggggglggwéertified the sale of a
horse to Bartolome Segundo Balboa before the District
Judge in Palena (C.M;BZ).

202. In 1930 Fortunato éggg_formally acknowledged a
debt to Messrs. Lausen & Co, (C.M.45). Although the
document does not on 1ts face state it was reglstered
with the Chilean Autheorities, it was found among the
papers of Ellodoro Diaz and was therefore, presumably,

lodged with him in his officlal capacity.
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the gift of a horse to his cousin (C.M.67).

204, In 1934 Juan Fortunato Saez certified in Palena a
sale of his property %o Manuel Morales (C.M,87) and the
Chilean authorities asserted the right %o insiét on
prior authorization hefore such sales (C.M.Ql and 94),
205, In 1951 the District Judge of Palena recdrded a‘
receipt glven by E. Salvo S. to Julian Soto (Plots 3
and 11) in respect of payment by the latter for work
done bﬁ the former (C.M.176).

206, In 1954 the Civil Offiéer of Palena recorded a
lease granted by Adelina Toledo (Plot 3) to Heriberto
Krause S. (C.M.192). .

(6) Administrative, police and judicial activity

Ch.Mcm., p.180)
207, Illustrations of administrative, police and Judlcial
actlivity may be classed under the following heads:

Ixercise of clvil jurisdiction

208. An undated document, but after 1931, records that
Fernando Figueroa Urra complalned that Juan Balboa
Artcaga was working the complalnant's land without per-
mission (C.M,82).

209. In 1931 préceedings were brought before the Palena
District Judge by Diego Torres agalnst Juan Antoniod
Balboa for the recovery of a debt (C.M.51).

210, In 1934 the civil court of Aysen was-seized of an
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Juan fAntonio Balboa (C.M.89 and 105).
211. In 193M the ¢ivll court of Aysén was sclzed of an
actlon in debt brought by Emillo Corball agalnst Juan
Fortunato Saez (C.M. 98).

212, In 1958 The Sub-Officer of Carabineros at Palena
recorded a complaint made by Leonidas MQQJQADélgado
(Plot 20) against Bautlsta Saez (Plot 11) and LAgustin
yigglgxPéﬁaipil (Plot 10) in respect of éamage done to
cattle (C.M.206), .

Exercise of criminal Jurisdictlon

213. In 1934 German Vasguez Delgado ("resident on the
bank of Rio Tigre") complalned to the Carabineros of a
theft of cattle ané stated that he suspected Florindo
Ramirez Soto (C.M.99, 100 and 101),

Issuance of certificates for transist purposes,

214, In 1928 certificates (presumably for transilst
purposes) were 1lssued to Pablo Carrillo, Juan Antonlo
Balboa, Franclsco Calderon and Fortunato Saez (C.M.11).
215, In 1928 transit certificates werce lssued to ‘
Franclsco Calderon (C.M.7, 8 and 12) and to Juan
Bautista Sasz, Demetrio gggggggg‘(c:M.B) and Victoriano
Retamal (C.M.10). '

216; In 1929 trénsit certificates were issued to
Transito Diaz and Fortunato Saez (C.M.22).

217. In 1942 a transit certificate was issued to Carlos
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Lillo (Plot 5) (C.M.120G).
218, In 1946 another translt certificate was 1ssued to

Carlos Lillo (Plot 5). This was accepted and counter-
sealed by the Argentine authorities (C.IM,154),

Assertion of gencral administrative authority over

dispgted area

219. In 1933 Juan Antonio Balboa complained to the
Intendant of the Province of Aysen agalnst his eviction
from his land in 1§31 (C.M.8§).

220. In 1947 Carlos Lillo (Plét 5) was askéd by the
Head of the Carabineros Post at Palena to summon Tomas
Videla Catalan, Jose Onofre Anabalon (Plot 12) and
Agustin Videla Peflaipil (Plot 10) to a meeting (c.M, 160)
221. In 1950 Carlos Lillo (Plot 5) was thrice summoned
to meetings of the Palcna Committee for Local Progress
(C.M,165, 166 and 167).

222, In 1953 the heiré of Pablo Carrillo Iavoz complain-
ed to the Chilean authorities about the encroachment

of Carlos Lillo upon their land and the alleged error
©of the surveyor Caprvajal (C.M.185, 186, 189 and 193).

Grant_of character references

22%. In 1936 the Head of the Carabineros Post at Palena
gave Pablo Carrillo Lavoz a certificate of good
character (C.M.108),

224, In 1957 the Céptain of Carablneros at Palena

certifled that Pedro Rivera had resided in the
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2art _Two Callfornia Valley for at least 15 years (C.M,202),

(7) Education (Ch.Mem., p. 189)
225. There are now avallable a number of documents

(c.M.38, 46, 52, 56, 59, 61 and 62) which evidence the
establishment in 1930 of a Chileannstate school at
Palena wlth éighty pupils. In themselves those docu-
ments do not prove any direct connectlon between that
school and the residents of California. However, the
fact that there was a link 1s evidenced by two ltems:
Flrst, 1n 1932, Fortunato Saez, a resident of California
(Plot 2) was appointed a member of the examination
commission of the school (C.M.77). Second, in 1942
there was a meeting of settlors in Palena to discuss
the constructlion of a school for boys. The same
meeting also discussed the construction of the road
from Palena to Puerto Ramirez. It would appear from
the 1list of those who agreed to help wilth the latter
ltem that the following settlers in California partici-
pated In the meeting: Onofre Anabalon, Juan Rosales,
Juan Bravo, Leonidas Mongje and Pedro Rivera (C.M.127).
226, The.continuing concern of the Chilean authoritiés
wilth education in the California Valley 1s also evlden-
ced by a letter in 1946 from the Provincial Inspector
of Educatlon to the Subdelegate of Yelcho (C.M.155) in

which he includes in a 1list of four schools that ought

to be opened in the valleys of Futaleufd and Palena "a
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fourth between Palena and the Argentine frontier"., It

would seem that thils must have been intended to refer
to a school in the California Valley, for there is
nowhere else that a school between Palena and the
Argentine frontler could really be Justified,

227. The statements (and documents referred to) in the
last two paragraphs, as well as those in paragéaphs 136
to 140 on pages 189 to 191 of the Chilean Memorial,
would seem to dispose of the unsupported assertion on
page 179 of the Argentine Memorial that "before 1955
the only school in the Sector had been the nelghbouring
Argentine National S5chool No, 61 which the loeal
children had attended”.

Conclusion |

228. VWhile the Government of Chile contends that the
indications of Chilean adminlstrative activity cited
Vabove and in the Chilean Memorial are qulite sufficlent
to establish firmly the main outlines of the pattern of
Chilean government conduct in the disputed area, 1t
nonetheless admits that the pattern has 1ts blank
spaces. But 1ts incompleteness does not, in the sub-
mission of the Government of Chile, diminish 1ts wvalue
in the present proceedings. The function of the
reference to the Chilean loyalty of the inhabitants

and the extent of Chi lean government actlvity in théV

area 1s to demonstrate how the 1902 Award has been
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fulﬁilled in the practice of the Partles. For this
purpose 1t 1is not necessary for a Party to reach some
absolute standard of governmental activity. It has
merely to show that 1ts behaviour was consistent with,
or was a reflectlion of, the view that the area in
question fell to 1t under the Award. In the submission
Qf the Government of Chile the evidence which 1t has
tendered, though not fully comprehensive, nonetheless
shows that the disputed area has been consistently
treated as Chilean.

229. It is”pertinent to observe in this connection

that the disputed area is a natural appendage of Palena
and has administratively so been treated, As Palena
is Chllean, so the disputed area 1s likewlse.

230, But if the suggestion 1s made, for the purpose of
countering the Chilean contention, that what matters

i1s not the simple fact of the natural closeness of thc
area to Palena and 1ts identification therewith, but
rather 1lts dependence upon communications through and
trade with Argentina, then it is right that the follow-
ing should be borne in mind: Once 1t is apprcclated
how relatively easy it was for the Argentine Government
to maintalin contact and even %o assert administrative
control over the disputed area, i% can be seen how much
more significant is the demonstration of Chilean

administrative activity in the area. When conduct is
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easy, the welght to be attached %o Such conduct 1s much
less than the welght to be given to similar acts per-
formed 1in adverse conditions. Every natural advantage
favoured a dilsplay of Argentine control in the disputed
area and the focussing of the inhabiltants! relationship
with "government" upon the neighbouring Argentine towns.
Yet, notwithstanding this fact, the record shows that
the centre of "administrative" gravity of the lives of
the settlers in the disputed area was not in Argentina,
in Zsquel or Tecka, but in Chile, in Palena and, to

7’
some extent, Futaleufu,
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PART THREE

THE QUESTION WHETHER THERE HAS BEEN ANY SETTLEMENT
OF THE BOUNDARY BETWEEN POSTS 16 AND 17
Chapter I }

REAFFIRMATION OF THE CHILEAN CONTENTIONS AND THE QUESTION
OF THE "SEMTEMENT ™ m,SULTmﬁ‘FRUM‘THEmAm&—'—“
A.  Reaffirmation of the Chilean Contentions

1. In Part Three of its Memorial the Chilean Government
has stated 1ts views on the question of "the extent, 1f
any, that the course of the boundary between terrltories
of the Parties in the Sector between boundary posts 16
and 17 has remained unsettled since the 1902 Award"
within the meaning of Article 1 of the Compromiso. In
Chapter 1 it summarised its contentions 1n regard to this
question, and in the following Chapters of the Part 1t
developed the grounds for these contentions by examining
the constltution, rules and competence of the Mlxed
Boundary Commission, the non-definitive character of a
partlal tracing of the boundary in the Sector bhetween
Posts 16 and 17, the consideration of the boundary in
that Sector first by the Commisslion and then by the two
Governments and, finally, the developments subsequent to
Chile's rejection of the line proposed by the Commisslon,
In general, the Chilean Government finds nothing 1in the
Argentine Memorial to cause 1% to modify its contentlons
in any material respect.

2, Accordingly, the Chllean Government asks the Court

to note that it reafflirms all the contentions of fact and
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of law in Part Three of its Memoricl and maintains then
to the fullest extent except in so Tar as they may be
qualified or amended by anything which apbears in the
preasent” Counter-Memorlial. In the remainder of the prosont
Chapter it proposes first to discuss the contentions of

the Argoentine Qovermment regarding the "settlement”

resulting from the 1902 Award and To explain Chile's
posltion in regard to those contentions; and, secondly,
to discuss the "settlement" of the boundary resulting

from the Parties! fulfilment of the Award prior to 1041.

B, The Settlement resulting from the 1902 Award.

3. Chile!s understanding of Article 1 of the Compromiso,

The Chilean Government explained in Chapter 1 of its

[femorldal that it understood the question of a possible

i il

cettlement” of parts of the boundary to arise in
connection with the Argentine claim that Minute No. 55

of the Mixed Boundary Commission effected a '"definilte
settlement between the Parties" of two segments of the
boundary between Posts 16 and 17 within the meaning of
Article 2 bf Tthe General Treaty of Arbitration of 1902
and that the "settlement" of these segments cannot now
be reopened. A% the same time, the Chilean Government
pointed out that the terms of Article 2 of the 1902
Treaty are by no means so absolute as Argentina's
diplomatlic Notes appeared £o imply; for the second

sentence of the Article recognises that even in the case
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of a "definite arrangement between the partles" there may
be arbltration concerning questions which "arise repre;
senting the valldity, the interpretation and the fulfil-
ment of such avrangemwents'” In polnting thls out, 1t dia
not mean to indlcate any doubts as to the'validity of the
1902 Award. On the Contrary, in paragraph 126 of Part
One 1t stated that the question posed in Article 1 of the
Compomiso implles the recognition by the two Partles of
the validity of the 1902 Award and Report; and in
Chapter 1 of Part Three it underlined the particular
relevance of the second sentence of Article 2 of the 1902
Treaty in regard %o the valldity of Minute 55. In other
words, the Chllean Government assumed that the question
in the Compromiso regarding the settlement of the bound-
ary relates to the extent to which the course of the
boundary between Posts 16 and 17, which was rendered
uncertain by the deflciencles of the 1902 Award and de-
marcation in this Sector, has been "settled" by the acts
of the Parties or of thosec of the Mixed Boundary
Commission set up by them. The Argentine Government's
presentation of this question is more elaborste and it
will be convenlent to examine it in the present Chapter
before taking up that Government's contentlons regarding

The Mixed Boundary Commission.

L, Argentine thesils as to "settlement" of the boundary.

Part Three

In Chapter 1 (paragraphs 9-10) of its Memorial the
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Argenﬁine Government, ro less than the Chilean Government,
underlines the velidity of the 1902 Award. It further
says that the Award constituted a "definite settlement "
of the boundary between Posts 16 and 17 within the mean=
ing of the 1902 Treaty. WNext it contends that ceritain
parts of the boundary between those Poste were finally
"settled” by the 1902 Award and 1965 Demarcation and

therefore no longer remain "unsettled" for the purposes

of the Compromiso. It adds that even the other middle

%o ™interpret and fulfil" the Award and not to draw a

part, although "unsettled" for the purposes of the
Compromiso, was neverthelsss settled in principle by the
1902 Award; and from this draws the conclusion that

wilith respect to this part the task of the Court is only

new line without regard to the Award. FPinally, 1%
contends that in 1955 the Mixed Boundary Commission, by
what 1t calls a "decision’, applied the terms of the
Award to those partg of the boundary which it‘alléges
to have been "settled” by the 1902 Award and, in so
doing, confirmed beyond doubt thaty they nb longer remzired
"unsettled" at the date of the Compromisc.

In Chapter VIII of its Memorial (paragraphs 196 -
2Q3) the Argentine Government repeats and elaborates
the.foregoing contentions. In regard to the 1905
demarcation 1% stresses the legal link between the

Demarcation Commission and the 1902 Arbitral Tribunal
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Pointing out that 1t had been stipulated that the British Part Three

officer in charge was to be the "final referee" in cases
of dispute, it further states that the 1903 Demarcation
Commission had the arbitral function bullt Into it. Ab
the same time, 1t insists that the task undertaken by the
Commission was a "demarcatlon simply and strictly so
called", From these premises the Argentine Government
draws the conclusion that "at least those parts of their
demarcatlion as resulted in an unambiguous identlfication
on the ground - e.g. the mouth of the River Encuentro -
of points of delimitation laid down In the 1902 Award
resulted in a final settlement of that part of the course
of the boundary." It adds that the only conceivable
ground on which a particular ldentification might be
attacked would be if it were "manifestly mistaken"; and
fhat the burden of proof would be against such a2 proposl-
tion. Then it observes that an "authoritative demarcation
on the ground of even an amblguous delimitation resolves

in law the ambigulty and fixes the line beyond question';

and it concludes that "the questlon which parts of the
Sector were ‘'settled! by the events of 1902-3 invqlves

not only an examination of the Arbitratorts Award, the

Report and the Map of 1902, but also which parts of it

the 1903 Commisslon successfully identified and fixed on

the ground."

The Argentine Government returns to the question in




Fart Three

it maintaines:

paragraphs 216-7 of the same Chapter where, Inter alia,

(i) The 1902 Award must be assumed to have
settled the whole line of fthe boundary in the

Sector in orinciple, "and settled finally thosc

parts of the boundary to which it refers in terms

which are accurate." (Underlining added)

(ii) The fact that "the whele line nust be
acceptéd as settled in principle by the 1902 Award
deoes not exclude the possibllity of parts éf that
Avard being, as a result of mistake or otherwlse,
unclear; and until the meaning of thosc parts cof
the Award is by some authoritative process
clarified, the boundary may to that extent be said
to be unscttled."

(1i1) But even then the doubt as to those paris
may havé been resolved subsequently by some valid
decision or agreement and the matter have thus
become 'settleﬁ" in which case the settlement is

equivalent to res judlcata and the matter is teyond

the reach of the legal effects of misbake.
It then asserts that "it is alsou evident, both from the
logic of the legal situation and from the way in which

the question 1s asked of the Court, that the examination

of this question of settlement is prior to the question

of mistaké; and that 1t Is onlv when the parts of the
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boundary that have been settled have been identifled, that Part Three

the Court cuan usefully turn to consider the effect of

mistake upon the other parts." (Underlining added)

5. Chile'!s position regafdigg the extent to which the
1902 Award and 1903 Demarcation settled the.boundary

between Postg 16 and 17. In so far as Argentina's thesils

rests her case regarding an alleged settlement of the
northern and gouthern parts of the boundary on an agreeQ
ment or decislion of the Mixed Boundary Commission,
Chile's reply to the Argentine arguments wlll be
devcloped in the following Chapters of thls Part., Here
it 1is proposed to examline that thesls, and the conclus-
lons which Argentina seeks to draw from it, in its
relation to the 1902 Award and 1963 Demarcatlon. As the
Ceourt will appreciate, the question of the extent to
which the Award and Demarcation "settled" the course of
the boundary in the Sector between Posts 16 and 17 is
one which confronted the Mixed Boundary Cormission 1tselfl
at the outset of 1ts task of demarcation long before the
"Compromiso" was even thought of. Both the competence

of the Commission to demarcate the boundary and the course

of the line which 1% was authorised by the 1941 Protocol
to demarcate hinged upon the extent to which the 1902-3
Award and Demarcation hed been effective to settle the

boundary in the Sector. Argentina's thesis by which she

seeks to minimlse the Implications of the geographical
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Part Three error and maximlse the extent of the boundary ‘settled" by
the 1902;3 Award and Demarcation is, in the submission of
the Chilean Government, inadmissible both in fact and in
law., »

6. The Court will have noted that there 1s a cbnsider-
able amount of common gfound between the partiles in
thelr approach %o the questlon of "settlement " for the
purpeses of‘Article 1 bf the Compromisco, They are
agreed that, notwithstanding the geographical error, the
award is to be treated as valid with respect to the
Sector between Posts 16 and 17. They are agresd that
for this purpose the Award in principle conslsts of the
Award, the Report and the Map; and they are agreed that
the Award has to be interpreted and applied in conjunct-
ion Withvthe 1963 Demarcation. They are alsc agreed
that, although "settled" in principle for the purposes
of Article 2 of the 1902 Treaty, the course of the
boundéry in the Scctor may be unclear as a result of
mistake or ovherwise and to that extent "msettled" for
the purposes of Article 1 of the Compromiso. Finally,
they are agreed that a part of the boundary delimited by
the 1902 Award, which was at one time ”unclear” and
"ynsettled! in the sense of the Compromiso, might sub-
sequently have become clarified and "settled" as a result

of a valid decision or agreement binding upon the two

countrles,




T Chilg on the other hand, parts company absolutely
from the Argentine Government when the latter contends
that "both from the loglc of the legal situation and
from the way in which the Question is asked of the Court
the examination of this question of settlement is prior
to the question of mistake". The loglc of the legal
situation leads to no such conclusion. The geographlcal
error which "unsettled" the boundary between Posts 16 and
17 was contemporancous with, if not antecedent to, the
Award, and is indeed embedded In the Award ltself. The
initial -~ and basic - question of how far the boundary
in that Sector was settled, not merely "in principle"
hut "finally", depends entirely on the extent of the
impact made by the geographlcal error on the Award
handed down by the Tribunal for this Sector. The
Chilean Government claims no special priority for an
examination of the geographical error, but it feels
bound to insist that the questions of "error" and
"settlement" are inextricably connected in examining

the 2ffect of the 1902 Award., They are two sides of the
same coin; the area of "unsettlement" 1s necessarily
coextensive with thevarea of the impact made on the
Award by the error. The Argentine contentlon is
evidently inspirced by a desire at all costs to lsolate
from the Impact of the geographical error the Cerro

Virgen, whose status as an element in the boundary
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awarded by the Tribunal is so inevitably thrown in doubt
by that error.

8. In the view of the Chilean Government, the geograph-
ical error was cf such a characﬁer that 1t necesserily
"ansettled" the whole course of the boundary between
Posts 16 and 17. The Tribunal had selected as two

"fixed points"” on the boundary {(a) the mouth of the River
Pncuentro for cutting the River Palena and (b) what nay
convenlently be called Post 17 for cutting Lake General
Paz. A misconception on the part of an Arpgentine export
(Lange) - however parcdonable in the circumstances - had
led thé Tpibunal to understand that streams which in

fact are tributarles of the River Salto belonged to the
River Fncuentro; and that cne of these suppose
tributaries of the River Encuentro had its source on

the slopes of a_mountain referred to by the same expert
as Cerro Virgen, but never secen by any member of the
Tribunal. Seeking to delimi% a water-line along ﬁhe

Encuentro to a high watershed but misled in the manner

‘just mentioned, the Tribunal described in its Award a

boundary which was %o follow the course of the Incuentro
to 1%s source on the western slopes of the Cerro Virgen

and thence %o the peak of that mduntain aﬂd along = high
Waﬁershed to Post 175 butb neither the Ifncuentro nor any
of its tributdfies has i%s source on any slope of the

Cerro Virgen The result, in the submission of the
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Chilean Government, was a total rupture of the course of Part Three

the boundary descrived in the Award. Thls total rupture
of the structure and unity of the Tribunal's formulation
of 1te decislon wlth respect to the Sector necéssarily .
threw the whole line between Posts 16 and 17 into doubt,

ince it at once railsed the question\as to what, in the

o]

light of the actual geographical facts, was the Trlbunalls

decision with respect to the Sector. Owlng %o the geo-

- ——

graphlcal error, the two principal elements described in
the language of the Awerd were wholly incompatible with
each other and, in consequence, a fundamental legal

question was posed as to the manner 1in which the Award

ought, as a matter of law, to be interpreted and appliled.
In short, if the boundary had been settled "in principle
by the 1902 Award, the geographical error as to the
location of the source of the Encuentro on the western
glopes of the Cerrov Virgen, folsted upon the Tribunal by the
Argentine Expert, had left the whole line between Posts
16 andé 17 "unsettled" within the meaning of Article 1

of the Compromlso,

9. The Chilean Government does not think that 1t need
labour the point further., The facts regarding the
geographlical error and the resulting incompatlbility of

the several elements in the Tribunal's description of

the boundary have becen fully discussed in Parts One and

Two of the Chilean Memorial and reviewed in Parts One and




Part Three

Two of this CQunterQMemorial. As to the lepal aspecis
and the correct method of interpreﬁing the 1902 Award,
these will be gone into later in Part Tive. For the
present purpose - for indicating the fundamental chara-
cter of the legal question of interpretation, posed by
the error - it suffices to remind the Court of the
extensive discussion'of the various legal aspects of the
problem of_applying the 1902 Award which is to be found
in paragraphs 194~239_Qf Argentina’s Memorial and the

radically aifferent approach to that problem adopted by

~Chile in Parts One and Two ofvher Memorial. The Chilean

Government, indeed, feels sure that the Court itself 1s
fully sensible of the legal conundrum of interpretation
posed by the gEOgrapﬁical errof and tThe reproduction of
that‘error in the terms of the Award,

10. What has been said in the preceding paragraphs is
reglly in itself sufficlent to dispose of the Argentine
Government 's contention shat, in addition %o Bouhdary‘
Posts 16 and 17, a segment of the boundary iﬁ the north
and another in the south were finally settled by the

1902 Award. That‘contention apparently rests upon the
proposition that_any‘part of the boundary is to be
considered as having been finally settled the deseripﬁidn
of which in the fward 1s "accurate” in the sense that the
descripfion does correspond to actual geographical facts.

The boundary in any such part is sald by Argentina to

182.




have been "identified" by the Tribunal in its Award and
thereby "finally settleal. But the alleged "identi-
fication“ begs the whole question of the effect of the
geographical error on the meaning of the Award.  What-
ever may be the position in regard to the lower reach of
the Encuentro from "watersmeet™ to Post 16, the geo-
graphical error immediately and in the most direct
Fashion threw the gravest doubt upon the "identification"
of the Cerro Virgeﬁ aé a point upon the boundary and,
in consequence, also upon the whole of the description
of the linc from the Cerro Virgen to Post 17. Only the
Argentine expert's attribution of the tributarics of
the River 3alto to the River IEncuentro had brought the
Cerro Virgen on to the line of the boundary at all, and
" that atiribution had turned out to be a complete mis-
conception. In other words, the geographical error
took away the whole root of the supposed "identifi-
cation" in the Award of the segment of the line bebween
the Cerro Virgen and Post 17.

11. 1In speaking of the supposed identification in the
Award of the segment of the linc between the Cerro
Virgen and Post 17 the Chilean CGovernment, like the
Argentine Government, is treating the "Report'" and the
"Map" as part of the Award. The supposed "identifi-

cation' of the Cerro Virgen in the Report was undermined
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by the geographical error in precisely the same way and

P

Jus

as completely as in the Award. .Both the Report
and the Award described this part of the boundary line
by reference £o the details of a map which reproduced
the geographical error of the Argentine Fxperts Lange
and Moreno. v Therefore, sinée the Award Mab itsel?
incorporated the misconception regafding thé»tributar~
iez of the River Salto, any supposed:"identification"
on the map of the Cerrc Virgen - Post‘lT segment was
equally open to question and "unsettled" in consequence
of the geographical error, - It is to be added that no
member of the Tribunal nor any of its staff "identified"
on the ground the Cerro Virgen or the line from the
Cerro Virgen to PoSt 17. The supposed western branch
of the River Encuentro and the Cerro Virgen were
emanations from the Argentine experts which were not
checked in any manner whatever by the Tribunal.

12. The Argentine Government, in contending that parts
of the line in the nofth and in the south were finally
settled by the Arbitration of 1902, refers not only to
1902 Award but also to the 1903 Demarcation. The
Chilean Govérnment, as already indicated, fully agrees
with the Argentine Governm@ht concerning the legal

link which exists between the 1902 Award and 1903

Demarcation; and that the erection of Posts 16 and 17
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in their respective places by the Demarcation Commission Part Three
was important os "settling" beyond questién the positions,
on the onc hand, of the mouth of the River Encuentro and
theAimtersection of’ the boundary with the River Palena
and, on the othor, of the intersection of the boundary
with Lake General Paz. The Chilean Government is not,
however, clear from the Argentine Memorial whether the
Argentine Government is seeking to derive any larger
"identification" effects from the 1903 Demarcation; in
other words, whether it seeks to confend that the
Demarcation as such constituted an "identification" and

"

"settlement of the scgments of the line between Post

16 and ”watérsme £" and between Cerro Virgen and Post
17 sepments of the boundary. If so, the Chilean
covernment can see no basis whatever for Such a con-
tention. CaptainvDickson, the officer concerned with
the present Sector, demarcated the "fixed points"
indicated by the Tribunal as governing points in the
delimitation of the boundary - the intersection of the
Palena at the mouth of the Encuentro and the inter-
section of Iake General Paz. But he made no attempt
to trace on the ground the line of the boundary between
the two Posts and never went anywhere near the Cerro
Virgen. The 1903 Demarcation thus contributed nothing

to the identification of the course of the boundary

between the two fixed points.
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1%, The Chilean Covernment cannot forbear from pointing
out how ill it becomes Argentina to spealk of the 1902
fviard as constituting not merely a settlement in
principle but a final settlement of the Post 16 -
Mratersmeet" and Cerro Virgen - Ppat 17 segments of the

1line described in the Award. e Award itself had

-

specifically designated the point of intersection of the
River Palena - the mouth of the River Encuentro - as one

of the obligatory points in the boundarys; and the

Demarcation Commission had identified thaé point on the
ground and fixed it by the epecetion of Boundary Post 16.
vet, on discovering that the River opposite.Poét 16 -
the river indisputably the Biver Encuentro - does not
have its source anywhere near the Cerro Virgen but near
the Cerro Herrero in the Cordon de las Virgenes, the
Afgentine government sought to move the position of
Post 16 further to the westwards and in the process
transmute the River Encuentro into the River Salto.
Furthermore, although as 2 result of the 191%~14
diplomatic correspondence chile was led to believe that
the Argentine claim had ﬁeen abandoned and the course
of the boundary in the north settled along the line of
the River which has its source ﬂear the Cerro Herrero,
it appears that the Argentine Boundary commisssion did
not hesitate even as late as 1954 to try to undermine

the demarcation of Post 15 and the 190D identification
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and settlement of the River Encuentro (see Colonel
Urra's Memorandum of 21st September 1954 at page 294 of
the Chilean Memorial).  Indeced, as the Court will re-
call, cchoes of this linec of argument were even heard
at the hearing on 30th December 1965 (Transcript, p.42),
whenlcounsel for Argentina sought to persuvade the Court
thet, for the purpose of interpreting the 1902 Award,
it ought to envisage Boundary Post 16 as having been
wrongly sited opposite the RivervEncuentro instead of
oppogsite the River Salto, No one to-day - not even
Argentina =~ questions that the river opposite whose
mouth Post 16 is sited is the River Encuentro; and the
Junccion of this river with the Palena was designated

by the Award an obligatory point on the boundary and

was demarcated as it now stands by the 1903 Demarcation

Commission for that verv reason. When the Argentine

Government has been so free in questioning a point on
the boundary both designated as obligatory and demar-
cated, it scarcely seems to be in a position to contend
that a sepgment of the boundary not designated as
obligatory, not demarcated andlhever caught sight of
by any member of the Tribunal or Demarcation
Commission was "settled" beyond questioning by the

1902-3 Award and Demarcation.
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C. The Scttlement of fthe Boundary along the Iine of
the. River Fncuentro toe its Source by the Fulfil-
ment of the Award Prior to 1941

14, 1In Chapter IV of Part Two of its Memorial the
Chile&n Government presented to the Court & consider-
able volume of cvidence relating to the fulfilment of
the 1202 Award by the Partics and more especially to
certain diplomatic exchanges betwecn them in 1913-14
and to Chiiean State activity in the Célifornia area,
That evidence has been cqnfirmed and supplemented by
the further material which has just been discussed in
Part Two of this Counter-Memorial. The contentions
which the Chilean Covernment bases on the Parties! ful-
filment of the Award are set out in its Memorial in
Chapter II of Part Five and its submissions in Sub-
missions (B) to (G) of Chapter V of that Part. In her

Submissions, Chile has asked the Court, infer alia, to

conelude that the diplomatic correspondence of 19135-1h4,
together with the bpen, effective and continuous dis-
play of State activity by Chile in California, without

any obJjection from Argentina, establish the existence

‘of an understanding and implied agreement between the

Parties that, in the light of the actual geographical
facts, the 1902 Award is properly to be interprated as
prescribing as the boundary between their tervitories

a line along the River Encuentro - the "major channel" -

to its source on the slones of the Pilco de la Virgen.




Here the Chilean Government merely wishes to point
out the relevance of this evidence in connection also
with the Argentine thesis regarding the "settlement"
of the boundary. The understanding and agreement
resulting frpm the 1913-14 correspondence and the
Chilean State activity had certainly been established
prior to the conclusion of the 1941 Protocol and the
conctitution of thé Mixed Boundary Commission. In
other words, the meaning of the Award, rendered
unclear and unsettled by the geographical error, had
in large measure been made clear and "settled"
through the acts of the Parties before the

Conmission even began its task of demarcation.

Chapters IIL, ITIT and IV
THE 1944 PROTOCOL, TIHE E@_@BLIS}H@NT OF THE MIXED
BOUNDARY COMILTEOTON, Tk PLAN OF WORK AND GENERAL
DIRECTIVES AND THh MEGUIATIONS OF TiE COINTESToN

i5. In Chapters II-IV of Part Three of its Memorial

the Chilean Government sought to digest for the
information of the Court the pertinent elements of

the 1941 Protocol and of the other acts and instruments
which govern the functioning of the Mixed Boundary
Commission. The Argentine Government has done

likewise in Chapter V of its Memorial and, having
regard to the expository and summary character of

that Chapter, the Chilean Government does not think

that it would serve any useful purpose for it to
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comment iﬁ‘detail and seriatim on the Argentine account
of these same matters. Such differences as appear
between the two accounts are primarily differcnces of
emphasis and,‘if necessary, it will be for the Court

to appreciate the significance of these differences.

In the present Counter—Memorial; therefore, the

Chilean Government will limit itself to reserving its
position in regard to any such differences and to
underlining one or two particular points.

16. The essentially technical character of the funchions

of the Mixed Boundary Commission. The Argentine lMemorial

does little to bring out the essentially technical
character of the functions enbrusted to the Mixced

Boundary Commission by the two Governments, which so

clearly appears in the preamble and terms of the 19441

Protocol, in the btravaux preparalboires of that instrument

and elsewhere. ‘The Chilean Govermment thercforc thinks
it desirable to draw the special attention of the Court
to the evidence on this point. The boundary had alrcady
been determined by the 1902 Award and been made the
subject of a first demarcation in 1903%; and, as
Argentina herself recognises in paragraph 102 of her
Memorial, the Mixed Boundary Commission was to be a
body charged only with the final demarcation of the
boundary. This limited concept of the function of the

Commission found direct and unambiguous. expression in
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both the Preamble and Article 1 of the Protocol. In Part Threc
= irec
thie former the object of the Protocol is stabted to be:

"agrecing the measures for replacing the
boundary posts which have disappeared, setting
up new boundary posts in those sections of the
Argentine-Chilean Frontier where they are
necegsary and determining the exact geographical
co-ordinates of all such boundary postsh,

And Article 1, having specified that the Commission

was to be "formed by technicians', defined its

functions in similar terms:

"o replace the boundary posts which have
disappearcd or which are in a bad state, to
set up new intermediate boundary posts :
wherever it shall consider it necessary to
de so in order to indicate the boundary line
with greater clarity and precision, and to
determine the exact geographical co-ordinates
of all the ecxisting boundary posts and of
thoge which it will set up."

Murthermore, the travaux preparatoircs, which reccive

scarcely any attention in the Argentine Memorial, show
that the draft of the Precamble and of Article 1 emanated
from the Argentine side and that the technical character
of the Commicsion's functions was insisted upon by the

Argentine reprcsentatives (Chilean Memorial, pages

219-26). Nor does the Argentine Memorial recall that

Article 3 of the Regulations icsued by the Argentine

Government on 31st March 1947 regarding the functioning
of Argentine Boundary Commissions stated that:

"It will be a fundamcntal mission of the
Boundary Demarcation Commicsions +to materialicc

on the ground the frontier line, a8 provided in
tie respective protocols, they being exclusively

191.




cnbrusted with the erection of boundary posts
and the trigonomet chcl op ons Tor linkinm

Those bound.ary posts to the tirigonomotrica

oinbs dotorminced by the MlllbtrvaFUérapgl“n1
nstitute ywhich shall have been accepted by both
countrics OT GO SUCH POLULS ag may in tuture be
established by mu+ual agrecnent between the Two

‘natlons CONCEeTrned. (Tnderlinings added).

These general Regulations, issued‘by Argentina some
five and a half years after the coustitution of the
Chilean-Argentine Mixed Boundary Commission, appear
entirely to confirm that the functions entrusted to the
Commission bty the 1941 Protocol were intendéd to be
essentially technical and limited to "demawcation"

stricto sensu.

17. In Chapters II and IV of Part.Three of its Memorial
the Chilcan Government has drawn attention to numerous
other indications of the essentially technical character
of the Mixed Boundary Commission; and there is no neced

to mention them again here.

18. Article 20 of the Plan of Work and the stabus of

survey maps preparcd by the Commission. In paragraph

110 of its Memorial the Argentine Goverument draws
particular attention to Article 20 of the Plan of Worlk
‘as setting out the "official documents" which the
Commission is to use in its‘work, as indeed does the
Chilean Govermment on pages 233-4 of its Memorial.

The listed documents include the relevant Treaties and
Awards, Minutes of the Erection of boundary posts and

survey maps mede by the Commission. In paragraph 121
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of its Memorial the Argentine Government explains that Part Three

at first the Commission's practice had been to place
intermediate boundary posts at points believed to be on
the boundary line and oniy thereafter to DPrepare a map,
based on a Survey, on which it plotted the line; but
that in 1950 +the Commission decided that in all cases
the demarcation should be preceded by a survey map with
the boundary line Plotted on it. The Chilean
Governmment does not question the correctness of this
explanation but feels bound to observe that the |
Commission's decision to commence with the preparation
of a survey map and to include these Survey maps among
the documents listed in Article 20 of the Plan ovaork
must be viewed in its right perspective. The
Commissicn's tagk under the 194 Protocol was to pres-

crve existing boundary posts and %o demercate further

the boundary laid down in the applicable Treatics and
Awvards. It had no power to alter that task and at the
same time enlarge its cwn competence by listing survey
naps in Article 20 of the Plan of Work - an internal
document of +the Commission ~ and +hen broducing

survey maps depicting its own version of the boundary.
The Commission's decision that demarcation should
always be preceded by the preparation of a map was

a perfectly proper one - indeed one authorised by

Article 3 of the Protocol; and the tracing on the map
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of the Commission's understanding of the pvoundary -
though not mentioned in the Pootocol - wng oloo
perfectly proper as a technical operation to assist the
demnarcator delegates. But nothing in the Protocol or in
any other instrument authorised the Commission to
substitute its owa delimitation of the boundary on the
map for that laid down in the applicable Treaty or Award
or its own Cartographioal‘version of the gceographical
features of the frontier terrvitory for those actually
existing oﬁ ﬁhe ground. Article 20 of the Plan of Work
was'a directive gifen by the Commission to itself; it
could not by its own directives confer on its own maps
and tracings a stabus and effect not conferred on them by
the instrument from which the Commission derived itgs
competence.

19. That the Commission was incapable, in the absunce

of an express power to that effect, to extend its own
competence by its own act the Chilean Government belicves
to be a self-evident propesition which necds no authoritj.
But it is not without interest that the exclusively

"subsidiary" value of working directives was stressed

in the Jaworgzina Poundavy case (P.C.I.J., Scries B, Mo.8,
at pages 40-1), to ﬁhich the Argentine Government has
madce reference in other connections. In that case,

a "decision" of the Conference of Ambassadors had

established a Delimitation Commission, whose powers
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ware set out in Article 2 of the "decision". Subse-
quently, the Conference drew up cerbtain General

Instruetions for the functicning of the Commission

and vhe questlon arcse whether these instructions head,

Wil

as they appearcd to do, onlarged the compe®tence of the

Commission. By its decision, the Conference had in

rrincinle become functus officio with regard to the

=3

boundary, thougl it had reserved to iteelf a

competence to take further decisions regarding the

boundary in the cvent of the Delimitation Commission's

proposing a modification of the line laid down by the
Conference This being the situation, the Pcermanent

Jonrn held:

"The Commission formed by the decision of
28 JdJuly ““?Og bz LQ“ a Delimitation Commission
mesponsible to the Conference of Ambassadors,
would no doubt Lo bournd by the General Insﬁ“uc~
LLQAQQ BVb.bJO abber coan only have subsidiery
value and can neibher cxtend ng reduce the
DOWETS deL¢n0& by LArticle Ll oi uhML decisiono
This Articlc formy an intemral part of The
declsion itGsallf.” (Uhd\rlLQLng added) .

In that case the Ambassadors' "decision" was the
constituent instrument of the Commission and the
Jommicaion's competence was defined in Article II of
that decision. In thoe present casc the consvltuent

ingtrument is the 1947 Protocol and the Commission's

compoteonce 1o defived in Article 1. Originally, atb

2

Leaat he Ambassadors had had the competence to fix

the powers of the Delimitation Commission; yet they
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2.

could not by their General Directiong extend or reduce

its powers. A fortiorl is it certain that the Mixed

o

Boundary Commission, which derived 1ts whole existence
from the Protocol that defined its powers, could not by
its Plan of Work extend or reduce those powers, in the
absence of 'an express provision enabling it to do so.

1

-
fe)

20. Article 21 of the Plan of Work and the Commission

Competence to_inﬁornret the official documents on the

pround. In paragraph 111 of its Memorial the Argentine
Government nobtes that under Article 21 of the Plan of
Work the Delegates of the Commission were to have the
sole responsibility of interpreting, on the ground, the
official documents listed in Article 20; and that the

4

Delegates were required to take no account of suggestions
made from outside the Commissién. Again, fthe Chilean
Government, which made a similar observation on page 234
of its Memorial, has no wish to dissent, It wiéhes,
however, to recall the comment which it there made that
the Delegates could not by this provision arrogate to
themselves any larger function of interpretatiqn than had
been.entrusted to them by the Protocol, namely, the
function of interpreting the official documents on_the

ground for the purpose of materialising on fthe Zround

e Lo

the boundaries delimited in the applicable Treaties and
Awards., What has just been said in the two previous

paragraphs about the inability of the Mixed Boundary
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Commission to enlarge its competence by issuing directives
Lo itself clearly applies to Artiele 21 of the Plan of

Work with as much force as to Article 20.

Chapters V and VI

THEE_COMPETENCE OF THE_MIYED BOU OMMISSIO AR
TO_TUE mugmAB TR DOSTS uos,lé AND 17 AND THE no'ﬁ 2

DEFINITIVE CHARACTER OF A PARTIAL TRACING OF THE BOUNDARY

A,  INTRODUCTILON
21. 1In Chapter V of Part Three of its Memorial the
Chilean Government has summarised the conclusions regard-
ing the competence of the Mixed Boundary Commission which
it invites the Court to draw from the 1941 Protocol and

from the Commission's

Plan of Work and Regulations; and
in Chapter VI of that Part it has explained the reasons
why, in any event, it regards the attribution of defini-
tive effects to a partial tracing of the boundary between
Posts 16 and 17 as incompatible with the 1941 Protocol.
The observations contained in those two Chapters of.its
Memorial are, in the view of the Chilean Governnent, of
critical importance in appreciating the legal implications
of Minute 55. It therefore asks the Court to give‘them
special attention when considering the arguments by which
the Argentine Government seeks to establish that by Minute
55 the Commission was competent to, and dig finally settle
two segments of the line: (a) Post 16 to the "Watersmeet'

on the Encuentro and (b) Post 17 to the Cerro Virgen.
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22, The arguments concerning this questlon in the

Argentine Memorial are to be found partly in paragraphs

134-143 of Chapter VI and partly in paragraphs 240-265 of
Chapter VIII. The main, essentially legnl, argument is

developed in Chapter VIII and is conveniently summarised

iq:the'féliowiﬁg passrge ih parasraph 245:

"The competence of the Mixed Commission to sctble
those parts of the boundary / the two segmentsg/, by
i%s unanimous decision, is considered, as a matter of
law, to have been acquired either from the express
powers glven %o the Commission by the 1941 Protocol,
and confirmed by the subsequent practice of the
Commission 1tself and by the subsequent behaviour of
the two Governments which created it; or from

~Implied powers which were necessary for It, if it was
to carry out the task which 1% had been given by the
Protocol, Yet agaln, although the deeisions relating
to the Sector were, after a significant interval
questloned by Chile, neither Government has ever
questioned the competence of the Mixed Commnlssion to
reach other decisions, of tihe same character and
effect, referred to below."

s

The other doeclsions alleged to be "of the same character
and effect" concern certain other cases of discrepancy
between the description of the boundary 1in the Award and
the geographical features seen on the ground, and it is
Argentinals exposition of the facts of these other cases
which is to be found in paragraphs 134—143 of Chapter VI.
These other caées, which play a large role in her argument
regarding the interpretation of the 1941 Protocol by
reference to the subsequent practice of the Commlssion
and the two Governments, will be examined in due course.

Before doing so, however, it is necessary to consider

Argentlnel!s general arguments regarding the express and
123 g 23 &
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implied powers of the Commission under the terms of the Part Three

Protocol,

B. The Arcentine Thesis recarding the Commission's
Powers under the Terms of the Protocol

2%, Argentine view as to the general practice regarding

boundary commissions. The Argentine thesis begins with

certain observations concerning the general practice of
States with regard to boundary commissions, "Therenis
certainly no doubt", the Argentine Government says, "that
commissions appointed by two or more Governments for the
purpose of deciding boundaries have frequently been given
power to make binding decisions which require no ratifica-

tion or endorsement by the Governments which created them'.

In this connection it cites (a) the Colombia=Venezuela
boundary arbitration, in which the Swiss Federal Council

was the Arbitrator, (b) a "statement" of J.B. Scott in

Judicial Zettlement of Controversy between States in the

American Union, (c¢) the Temple case and (4) the Award of

King 0 Spain case.

2, chilels obsecrvations on the general practice regard-

ing boundary commissions. However true it may be that

States have not infrecuently conferred on boundary
commissions power ©o make binding decisions which require
no subsequent ratification or endorsement, it 1s no less
truc that, when States intend to empower a commission to

determine the legal construction of a treaty or award or
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to depart meterially from its terms, this power is normally
stated or clearly indicated in the fterms of the instrument
which sets up the commission,

25. Colombia-Venezuela Boundary Arbibtrafion (1922). The

passage cited in the Argentine Memorial is taken from the

shortened report of fthis case in the International Taw

Reports (1919-22, p.371). The full report of the Award -
in French - will be found in Volume 1 of the United Nations

Reports of International Arbitral Awards (pp.223%-298),

vhere it will be seen that the case had a long and

’oomplex history, but for present purposes it suffices to

dm b 1

draw the Court's attention to three points. First, in
considering the effects of decisions of the Demarcation
Commission set up by the Convention of 1898, the Tribunal di1d
not attribute definitive effects to them by reference to
any general theqry as(to the powers of bbundary‘commissionsb
On the contrary, as even the abbreviated passage cited in
the Argentine Memorial shows, the Tribunal did.so by reasdn

of the special and long-established practice of the two

countries to confer "arbitral' powers on their Commissions

in the relevant treaties (pp.é8l~3). Secondly, the'l898
Convention expressly required the Commission to refer back
to the‘Governments in any case of doubt or disagreement.
Thirdly, in considering its own competence under the
Compromis, the Tribunal found it necessary tO pronounce

upon the powers of a future commission of demarcation

~00. F




provided for in the Compromis itself. Again, it made no Part Three

reference to any general concept of the powers of a
boundary commission, but said (p.270):

"Ta solution consistant & renvoyer aux experts
ies questions de délimitation ne serait toutefois
bas practicable si le Compromis avait refuse
aux experts le caractére arbitral. Pour statuer
definitivement, il convient donec de rechercher la
volonte des Partics sur le caraciorc de la mission
des _experts ....." (Underlining added)

26. The Statement of Professor J,.B. Scott. The Chilean

Government is in a slight difficulty in commenting upon
the passage in the Argentine Memorial attributed to this
cuthority, because it has not been able to find the
citation on the page - page 1196 - of Volume 2 of Judicial

Settlement of Conbtroversvy between States in the American

Union given in the Memorial., The passage quoted by
Argentina reads:

"Where States enter into an agreement giving
Commissions the power to exercise Judgment as to
the exact location of the boundary between them,
They must suppose that such Judgment will be
exercised as to dispubted locations and that, when
exercised, 1t shall be binding upon them."

The page reference is in the middle of a long judgment of

the Supreme Court in a boundarvy sult between the United

sStates v, Texas but the Court does not appear to have
made any such statement in that case. Where Professor
Scott may’have used the words attributed to him the
Chilean Government has not been able to trace. But the

passage cited by Argentina bears a certain resemblance to
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Part Threes a sentence in the judgment of the Supreme Court in another

poundary case, State of North Carolina v, State of
Tennessee (235 U.S.1), a report of which appears in the
same volume of Profeésor Scott's boolr at rage l§06. The
words found in the Court's judgment are somewhat different

from those attributed to Professor Scott. It may be that

somewhere Professor Scott generalised this statement in

the manner represented by Argentina, As to that, the

Chilean Government knows nothing. But 1f he did, he

went some way beyond the meaning of the Court in that

case. FEach State (Worth Carolina in 1319 and Tennessee
‘in 1820) had passed Acts appointing Commissioners to

form a joint boundary commission, and each had provided
in its Act that whatever the Commissioners did should be
pinding on it; and afterwards each State had "ratified,
confirmed and established" the line located by the
Commissioners. These facts were duly underlined by the
SupremevCourt, which also pointed out that in the area in
guestion the Commissioners héd had room for choice and

judgment as to the location of certain ridges. Called on

to decide whether one line of trees or another was the
line located by the Commissiorers and confronted with
certain evidence of marked trees, the Court said:

"Conjecture against this we cannot indulge.
Imagination is not proof and, we repeat, whatever
might be said of any particular pilece of cvidence
standing by itself, their union and concurrence
amount to demonstration. And, we repeat, it must




have been supposed by the states when they Part Three

constituted the Commission that judgment would

have to be exercised and, when exercised, should

be binding."
In short, in this case the Comnission had been given a
power of binding decision expressed in the widest terms,
while the "exercise of Judgment" in question relateq only
to the location on the ground of a particular ridge.

27. The Temple Case (I.C.J. Reports, 1962, p.6). After

noting that the map in this case was held by the Inter-

national Court not to have been published on the authority

of the Thai cambodian Mixed Commission, the Argentine

Government states: "¢ had been inherent in the arguments i
|

of both the parties belfore the Court, and in the findings

of the Court itsell, that a mixed comaission could itself

have had the competence to decide on a line without the

need to submit for approval by the respective Governments

the decision which the Commission had reached." Tt is

certainly clear that the court interprated the Franco-

Thai Treaty of 1904 as showing that the two Governments

concerned had intended to confer on the Mixed Commission

pover to delimit the boundary with binding effect for

the parties., But it seems equally clear that the Court

contemplated that decisions of the Commission would be

binding on the Governments only in the case of o valid

delimitation: "Tn consedquence, the line of the frontier

would, to all intents and purposes, be the line resulting
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from the work of delimitation, mnless the delimitation

were shown to be invalid." (p.l7). Moreover, although
it did not pronounce upon, it certainly did not discard,

the Thai contentions that the delimitation in the arca
of the Temple could not be considered valid unless the

departure there from the "watershed" line provided for in

the Treaty was cxplicable as a mere "adaptation” of the

line within the margin of discretion posscessed by the

Commission. On the contrary, haviag rceferred to these

contentions, the Court said (p.22): "Whatever substance

these contentions may have, taken by themselves, the

Court considers that they do not meet the recal issues

t

here involved." The "preal issues" were, of course, the
2 >

facts that Thailand had afterwards accepted and recognised

the 1ine traced on the map asg valid,

Three experienced members of the Court were rather
morespecific in expressihg thelr views on this point in
individval opinions. Judge Titzmaurice, who concurred
with the majority, indicated that but for the Subsequent
acceptance of the erroneous line by Thailand he would have
felt bound to find in her favour (p. 55):

"T personally consider that therc is little
reasonable doubt that, in this particular region,
the true line of the watershed runs, and ran in
190%, along the line of escarpment. (Morcover,

T could not myself regard the deviation from the
1ine of the watershed at Preah Vihear as belng
covered by any discretionary powers of adaptation
which the Mixed Commlssion might have possessed;
but this matter is not in any event material....).”
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Similarly, Judge Spender, who dissented from the Part Thre
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Court on the main issue of "acceptance", insisted

that the delimitation, to be valid, must conform

to the

treaty being applied, - Having referred to

the defdnition of the frontler in Artlcle 1 of the

1904 Treaty, and to the power of the Commission to

delimit

1t, he went on (p.103):

"Whatever the delimitation made, however, :
1t was not a delimitation at large, 1% 1
was controlled by Artlcle 1 of the Treaty

which 'determined! the frontier, Sub Ject

to whatever power of adaptatlon the Mlxed

Cormaission may inherently have possessed,

the delimitation had to be establlished on

the basis of the criterion lald down In

Article 1 whlch on the Dangrek was the line

of the watershed and only on the basls of

this criterion. IT 1% was not on tne basis

Oof this criterion, any purported Gelimlitation

would lack any legal force, (Underlining

added)

Thirdly, Judge Morenae Quintana, of Argentina, who

also di
as a re

was no

gsented, and who stressed hls responsibllities
presentative of the American legal system,

less inslstent that the delimitation

could not prevail over Artlcle 1 of the Treaty

(p.67}=

"It 48 this provislon of the treaty
whlch constitutes the legal title of
the Parties to soverelgnty over the
temple area. It 1s consequently the
inter-temperal law applicable to this
case, The frontiler delinitztlion
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work prascribued by Article 3 of

the Treaty and the line shown on

maps are no more then its physical
implementation and may in congequence
be vitiated by error.'  (Underlining
added). ‘

Accordingly, Argentina's citation of the
Tenple casc as authority for the prop@sitibn that
a mixed boundary ccommission could itself have

"the competence to decide on a line without the

2

e

ve

[¢

need to submit for apprcoval by the respect
Governments she decision which the Comndission had

reachad”

needs to be made subject to important
qualificatlons. In conclusion, i¢ may he pointoed
out that there is one fundamental differcnce

between that case and the present: Thailand was there

held by the Court to have accepted the erroneous

delimitation by the Mixed Commission; Chile in

o

[l

the present case rejected it and called for a
return o the position priocr to the decision of
the Commisgion.,

28. The Awsrd of the King of Spain Case (r.c.a,

Reports, 1960, p. 192). The reference in the
Argentine Memorial to the Mixed Commission sat up
by Honduras and Nicaragua under the Gomez Benilia

Treaty of 1894 needs little conmment. % is an
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instance where the States concerned deliberately
conferred on a Mixed Commission wide powers to
settle the boundary: "o Mixed Boundary Commission
whose -duty 1% shall be to settle in a friendly
manner all pending doubts and differences, and

to demarcate on the spot the dlviding line which

iz to constitute the boundary between the two
Republics,"” It shows that normally in such
instances the States concerned make their intention
plain by express words in the Treaty setting up the
Commission.

29, Many other examples could be cited to show
how the Parties normally make it plain in the
Treaty when they intend to confer on a boundary
cormission wider powers than what Judge Moreno
Quintana called the "physical impiementation” of

a line already laid down in the Treaty or in cther

instruments. If the constituent instrument in the

Jowerzing Boundary case (P.C.I.J., Series B, No.3,
at pages 38 -~ 9) was not a treaty but the
"decision” of éhe Conference of Ambassadors,

it algo illustrates this point, Thers, Article
2 of the "deelsion" provided for a Delimitation

Cormmission to "mark out locally the frontier line'

described in Article 1 and expressly stated that the
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decisions of this Commission should be binding on. ths
parties concernsd, The Article then went on to pro-

vide that the Commission should have powor "o propose

to the Conference of Ambassadors any modifications

which it may‘consider Justified by reason of the
intercsts of individuals or of communities in the
rieighbourhood of the frontier line and having regard to
special local circumstances.” The Permanent Court in
commenting upon these provisions contrasted "the more

important modifications" whieh the Commission was em-

powered to propose with "the certain degree of liberty"

which it would have in the selection of the line =~ in

the direction laid down - having regard to topographi-

cal features."

30. One other example may be mentioned: the Chamizal 11
Boundary cas< (U.N. R.I.A.A., Vol. XI, at pages
319-21). Mexico and the United States had concludaed
a Treaty in 185% doefining their boundary along the Rio
Gr?ndb and Rio Colorado and prov ing for the estab-
lishment of a Commission "to survey and mark out upon

the land the dividing line stipulated by this Article."

‘The Treaty then went on: "that line shall alone be

established upon which the Commissioners may fix, their
consent in this particular being con51ch~d decisive

and an integral part of this Teeaty, without the

necessity of ulterior ratification or approval, and




without room for interprctation of any kind by either of Part Three

the parties contracting.” Again, when conferring large
powers on the Commission to bind the two Governments,
the parties used the most explieit language. In pass-
ing, it may be not.d that, when invited to take into
ceecount certain observations in the records of the
Commissioners that "the line they were fixing would
thenceforth be invariable" the Tribunal said: "it
seems clear that in making any remarks of this nature,
the boundary Commissioners were exceeding their mandate,
and that their views as to the proper construction of
the treaties under which they were working could not in
any way bind their respeetive Governments."

31l. The treaty practice and jurisprudence of inter-
national tribunals thus tends to show that: (a) in
considering the competence of a boundary commission to

sions, regard must al-

e

bind the Governm=nts by its dec

ways be had to the provisions of the instrument setting

3

it up and to the circumstances of the case; (b) in
principle, the task of a boundary commission, whether
a delimitation or demarcation commission, is the

"physical implementation", by a study of the actual

ground, of a line alrcady laid down by the parties;
(¢) 2 boundary commission may - but only within narrow
limits - possess an inherent discretionary power to

malki: minor adaptations of the prescribed line on the
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ground to avoid local znomalies; but (d) unless the
contrary is cxpressly stated, a boundnrj commission has
no power tb substitute its own line, or its own eriteria
for dztermining the line, in place of the line or the
eriteria laid down by the Governments which set it up,

32. Conclusions drawn by Argentina from the 1041
Protocol.

The Argentine Government begins 1its exposition of the
1941 Protocol in paragraph 245 by stating that Article
1 evinced the will of the Parties to achicve cecrtainty

and finality and, therefores, stability along their

frontier and that both Parties regarded the Mixed

commission as having sufficient powcrs o cnable it to

acecomplish this task. It then sets outv the powers Qf
the Commission under the Protocol, beginning somewhat
curiously with Article 33 and, in referring to Article
8, it asks the Court to note that the Commission was not
required to report to the Governments iﬁ any case whoere,
in erceting boundary posts, the Commission was agreed
upon the location of the dividing line.

in paragraphs 247-8 it says thet, in setting out
tha tasks and powers of the Commission, the Protocol
assumed that a boundary line had been established and
that the linc had been partially marked upon the ground
in every Section of the boundary; but that in some

places further and morc proeise domarcation might be
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required. Then 1t deduces from Article 1 that the task
of the Commission is concerned with the "frontier 1ine"
and not merely the repair or replacement oflexisting
boundary posts, It considers this deduction to be
confirmed by the brovision in Article 6 whereby the
Governments undertake to withdraw within six months

from territorics which pass from the jurisdietion of one
nation to the other; for it is "impossible to withdraw
behind a post”, In the same connection, it cites a

bassage from the Judgment in the Jaworzina Boundary

casce holding that the Process- of marking out a boundary
docs not merely consist of the actual bPlacing of posts
and stones to indicate the line but "must be held to
include all operations on the ground" for the reason
that "marking out must always be preceded by the fixing
of the line",

Having paticntly built up this claborate foundation
the Argentine Government then asks the Court to find
that "Article § veaq a5 a whole must have the meaning
that the authority conferred by that Article inéluded

the full power to decide upon a boundary line Joining

the boundary bosts, for otherwise it is not possible for

the respective Governments to withdraw in accordance
with the second paragraph of the Article, Indeed, it
boldly concludes: "It must be accepted that the power

given to a Commission to demarcate would normally include

211 L]
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a power %o decide the woundary iudicated v the govern-

ing instrument and the effceect of the Protocol is to
give such a power to the Mixcd Commlssion in order to
2pply, among other delimiting documents, the 1902 Award,"

33. Chile's observations on arpgentinals interpretation

of the 1941 Protocol, Tiie Argentine argument regarding

the'1941 Protoodl is a more sophilstlcated version of the
argument put forward by the Argentine delegatlon in the
Commission after Chile's rejection of soume of the
decisions recorded in Minute 55, That argument has
already been examined and answered in Chapiter VI df
Part Thfee of thévChilean Merniorial (especially pages
255-267), and the Chilean Government will here confine
itself éo stressing the fundamental contradictions and
ambigulties inherent in the more gophisticated version
in the Argentine Menorial,

34, The Chilean Government can certainly agrée that
the alm of the Parties to the Protocol was to achieve
certainty ard finallty along their frontlier. vIt can
also agree that the Protocol assumes that a boundar:
had beenbestablished and partially marked on the ground
but that more precise demarcation might be required,
However, 1% does not at all Tfollow that the two
Governments Intended to confer, or that the Protocol
did confer, on the Commission "the full power to

decide upon 2 boundary line Joining the boundary posts",
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On the contrary, the very fact that the Parties assumed
the existence of an already established and partially
marked boundary excludes the l1dea that they had in mind

anything but the location on the ground of an already

settled boundary -~ settled, that 1s, 1n the sense of

Article 1 of the Compromiso, They did not have in
mind the posslbility that parts of the boundafy might -
to use frgentina's own words in the Memorial - "as a
result of mistake or otherwise be unclear" and to that
extent be "unsettled". In short the conclusion which
Argentind secks to draw from the Protocol 1s in direct
contradiction with the assumptlon upon which 1% sﬁates
the Protocol to have been based, It 1s also in direct
contradiction with the language used throughout the
Protocol, The latter nowhere speaks of a power "to
decide upon" the line, but consistently of the replace-
ment of existing posts, of the setting up of new
intermediate posts where necessary to indlcate a

boundary line with more clarity and precision, of the

location and descriptive detalls of posté} and of the

location of the boundary line,
35, There is, indeed, an inherent ~ and possibly
deliberate =~ ambiguity in the expression "full power to

decide upon a boundary'” used in the Argentine Memorial,

Is it intended to embrace a power to declde upon the

n

boundary line where - in Argentina's words -~ "as a

213.
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result of mistake or obtherwise! it 1s "unclear® and %o
that extent "unsettled"? Or is it intended to refer

only to a power to decide upon the exact location on

the ground of a "eclear" and "settled" boundary? At any
rate, every word of the Protocol points to the coﬁclu—
sion that it was the latter powef alone which the
Parties had in mind, and conferred upon the Commission,
when they concluded the 1941 Protocol,

What, it 1s permissible to ask, does Argentina
mean when she concedes>that, notwlthstanding the 1902
Award, parts of the boundary as a result of mistake or
otherwise may be unclear and %o that extent "unsettled"?
Evidentlj, she does}not mean that the physical features
of the ground may be "unclear"” and 'insettled"; the
'ground is as i% always,was, although in 1902 it may
have been misconceived, She cén only mean that the

meaning of the 1902 Award wlth respect to the Tribunalls

cgefinition of the 1iné'may by mistake or otherwlse be
rendered unclear and unsettled. _But then the course
of the boundary is a question of interpretation and of
law, not merely of locating on the ground a "settled"
line, "Deciding upon" the meaning of the Award i1s an
operation of a very different colour from "deciding
upon" the location of a clearly defined line on the
ground, and is wholly outside the terms of the Frotocol.

Certainly, no one insisted on this point more strongly
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than the Argentine Government in 1957, as will be seen
in its diplomatic Notes cited on pages 378-384 of the
Chllean Memorial,

36. The Argentine Government is, no doubt, correcct
when 1t says with reference to Article 8 that the

Commission was not required to report to Governments in

fart Thrqg

any case where, 1n erecting boundary posts, it was agreed

upon the locatlon of the dividing line. But Article 8
has to be read in the context of the Protocol gs a
whole: an instrument which, as Argentina herself
stresses, assumes that a boundary line had been estab-
lished and which speaks only of repalring bounaary
posts, erecting new intermediate posts where necessary
and determining the exact geographical coordinates of
2ll such boundary posts. In that context the only
difficulty that was foreseen was the Inabllity of the
Commissioners to agree upon the exact location of the

prescribed lilne of the boundary at particular places;

and it is therefore natural enough thatlﬂrticleiB should

refer only to cases of "disagreement as to the locatlon
of the boundary line", But this does not provide any
basis for concluding that, unless they dilsagreed, the
Commissioners were not required to refer to the
Governments questions as to the correct legal inter-

pretation of the instruments the "ohysical lmplemen~

tatlon" of which on the ground was the sole task
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entrusted to them by the Protocol,
37, There remains the Argentine argumentg that, having

regard to the Commission's task under Article 1 of

erecting new intermedlate boundary posts where necessary

and to the undertaking of the Governments in Article 6

to withdraw from territories which pass to the other,

the Commission must be consldered as concerned with the

frontier line as well as with boundary posts. This
argument 1t supports with a citation from the Jaworgzina
Bounda:x case, and seeks to drive home by saying that
1%t 1s impossible to withdraw behlind gz post, only behind
a ligg,. What has been said about Article 8 applies no
less %o Articie 6; 1t has to be read in the context of

the Protocol as a whole, The boundary beilng assumed

to be already cstablished and partially demarcated; the -

Protocol was not primarily concerned with its deliml-~
tation strictly so called, but with its furiher demgr;
cation i.e, its further materialisation on the ground,
The tracing of lines on m2ps was not for that reason
made one of the stated tasks of the Commission., The
Argentine Government %riles to elevate it into one by
placing the preparation of an official map, as contem-
plated in Article 3, in the forefront of the powers of
the Commission, But the map;making powers of the

Commission urider Article 3 are expressed to be both

permissive and anelllary to the performance of the
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specific tasks of demarcation entrusted to the Commigsion

in Article 1, The Chilean Government does not, of
course, deny that the Commission 1s "concerned with"
the boundary line as well as with boundary posts, in
the sense that 1t must first ldentify the boundary line
on the ground in order that it may be in a position to
place boundary marks where these are necéssary for
"materialising” 1t; and in this sense it accepts what

was sald in the Jaworzina Boundary case in this regard,

But 1% feels bound to emphasise that, when the Permanent
Court there spoke of "marking out" always being
"preceded by the fixing of the line", 1t was referring

to the fixing of the line on the ground and as a pre=

liminary to demarcation, The expression (marking out),

i1t had sald, "must be held to include all operations on

the ground”,  Accordingly, there 1s nothing in the

language used by the Court in that case to Justify the
conclusion that a demarcation commission is competent

to decide upon the legal construction of a treaty or

award 1n order to determine the legal definition of the

boundary to be demarcated,

38. As %o the point that under Article 6 1t is not

posslble for the parties to withdraw behind a post but

only behind a line, the Chilean Governmenst again does
not dissent, Indeed, as will be indicated in the next

paragraph, it considers that under Article 6 1t is
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equally impossible to withdraw behind a mere segment of
a line the directilon of whose continuance 1s still un;
settled. But althoughthe Argentine Government 's
statement on this point 1s certainly correct, 1t does

not justify the conclusion that the clear words of

frbicle 6 limlting its operation to Minutes recording

the location of boundary posts do not mean what they

5aY . The provisions of the Protocol and 1ts fravaux

preparatoires make 1t perfectly plain that the primary

objective of the Partles was To have the boundary more
sufficiently marked on the ground. This being their
objective, and there already being a partially demar-

cated boundary, it 1s not in the leas?t surprising‘that

1t was only with reference to new boundary posts that
they envisaged possible changes of sovereignty and dnly

£o Minutes of erection of new posts that they attri-~

buted definitive effects, Furthermore, the erecction ol

a boundary post on the ground was expected %o furnish

a certain guarantee ol the correct obscrvation of the

course of the boundary over the ground. At the same

time, a new intermediate boundary post would necessar-
ily be placed in a certain relation to two already
established posts which were in a certain dégree of’
proximity to it; and the two Governments without doubt
assumed that a new post would not be erected without

the Commission's having located with certdinty a
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continuous boundary between the other two posts.
Accordingly, 1t seems clear that the Commission could
not, by any act of the Commission other than by a
Demarcation Minute in the prescribed form, bring the
provisions of Article 6 into operation; and this seems
now to have been recognised by Argentina in paragraph
178 of her Memorial,

39. Argentina's argument that under Article 6 1t 1s not
possible for the FParties to withdraw behind a Post but
only behind a line does, however, lend force to what 1s
said in paragraphs 46:47 of Chapter VI of Part Three of
the Chilean Memorial regarding the impossibility of
attributing definitive effects to a decision relating

to only a part of a line between two boundary posts.
Chile there pointed out that any "approval" of only part
of the line must be treated by the Commission as proQ
visional pending the location of the whole course of the
boundary in the Sector; for it would be wrong for the
Comulssion to make any one part definitive beforc 1t has
located the line throughout its length and has thereby
established beyond all peradventure that the part 1n
quéstion does 1ndeed constiltute a segment of a contin-
uous boundary between the two boundary Posts. Argentina,
1f she no longer claims that Minute 55 falls within the
terms of Article 6, appears to assert that any decislon

unanimously reached by the Mized Commission upon the
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location of any segment. of the boundary line has pre;'
cisely the same immediate c¢ffects as those provided
for in frticle 6. But just as it is impossible for
elther country to withdraw behind a post, so 1t 1is not
much more posgible for elther country to withdraw \
behind a small scegment of a linec, How, for example,

could a withdrawl behind the alleged Post 17 - Cerro

Virgen segment be expected without 1ts first being

decided whether the boundary does indeed run down the

Arro§6 Matreras to the Azul and thence back to the River

Engano etec,? In %ruth, as pointed out in Chapter VI

~of Part Three of the Chilean Memorlal, the difficulty

is much more fundamental than that; for untll the
Commission has located a continuous boundary line
between two Posts conforming to ﬁhe Award, or at least
the general line of the whole continuous boundary, there
can be no complete finaiitj about any one segne :nt .

C. The 4lleged Interpretation of the 1941 Protocol

e b A i o —

by Subsegquent Practice

Lo. Tne Argentine Thegis regarding the Suvsequent

Practice of the Commission and of the Parties. The

regentine Government,"as already mentioned, contends

that in the practice of the Commission and in the practice
of the two Governments the 1941 Protocol has been inter-
preted as conferring full powers on the Cormission to
"decide upcn" the location of the boundary dcf1n1tive1y

with binding effect for the Governments without regard
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to the requirerments of Artilcle 6 of the Protocol, Part Three

It ciltes legal authority for the view that subsequent
practice in the application of a treaty 1s a relevant
consideration in interpreting the treaty; and it asks
the Court in effect to hold that, in the light of the
practice of the Commission and the Governments, the
1941 Protocol must be understood asvhaving conferred
those full powers on the Commission, It further
coentends that in the light of this practlice both
Governments must be considered to have "acquiesced in
the 1egal efflcacy of all the unanimous determinations
of the course of the boundary line by the Commission',
41. The Iaw. The Chilean Government does not

think that 1t would serve any purpose to comment in
detall on the legal authority cited by Argentina

in regard to "subsequent practice" as an element

in treaty interpretation. This authority i1s
familiar to international 1aWyers and the Chilean
Government does not, of courée, dispute that, under
certain conditions, "subsequent practice may throw
important light on the meaning of a treaty. But

i1t feels obliged to make three brief commentsAon the
conditions under which "subsequent practice" may
affect the Interpretation of a treaty. _ In-the

first place, as indicated in 4rticle €9, para-

graph 3 (a), of the International Law Commission!s
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Draft Articles on the Law of Treaties, the practice must

D]

be such as ”gleay;y‘cstablishes the understanding of all

the partles regarding its interpretation”. In the second
place, as pointed out in paragraph 13 of the comuentary to
that Artlecle, the practice must be concordant and its
value varies according as it shows‘the common understand-
ing of the partles as %o the meaning of the terms of the
treaty. In the third place, a practice cannot provide
convineing evidence of the neanlng attached by the parties

to the treaty unless their acts are unequivocal with

respect to that meaning.

42, The subseqbent practice of the Commlssion and the
Governments is fgr from providing consistent, clear and
unequivocal evidence that the Protocol was regarded as
empowering the Commission to bind the Governments by any
and every decision which it chose to take respecting the
location of the boundary. Such a conclusion, the Court
will appreciate, would render the carcfully drawn
provisions of Article 6 quite otiose and on that account
alone is not one which could lightly be accepted. Further-

more, as appears from the Jgworzina Boundary (szc parapraph

19 of this Part) and Chamizal (see paragraph 30 of this

part) cases, and as Argentlna herself seems to concede,

‘the practice of the Commission could not by itself cenlarge

the Commission's competence, The Commission, in the words

of the homely saying, could ot 1ift ditsell up by its own




bootstraps. Only the Governmenis which created that
competence could enlarge it, In short, there would have
to be both azn assumption by the Commission of a larger
compatence and an endorsement of that competence by the
. Qovernments,

L3, The Subgequent practice regarding the powers of the

Commission. On pages 225-6 of its Memorial, the Argentine

Government invokes the facts that: (a) the Commission
deelded in 1950 that demarcation shoulé in every case be
preceded by a regular survey and the making of a map and
that "until the Chilean representatives challenged it in
1956", this had been interpreted by the Commission as a
valld exercise of 1t%s powers under Article 3; (b) the
Cormission also decided that the boundary line shéuld be
plotted on the topographical sheets, which should be
annexed to the Act recording the decision upon the parti-
cular streteh of the frontier line shown on the map
(Regulation 18); and (¢) the interpretations placed by
the Commission‘on the exéent of 1ts own powers was
acquiescad in by both Governments.  Then on page 232 it
makes a sweeping assertion that "All %he proceedings of
the Commlssion with regard to the boundary line in the
Sector between Boundary Posts 16 and 17 were concluded
on the basis that, 1f unanimity could be achieved, the
Commission itself was the competent body finally to
determine the boundary line as established by the 1902-3

decision,”

223.
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L4, Chile's observations on the alleged practice., The

Argentine Governmentl!s reference to the Commission's
declsions in regard to survey maps and plotting on topo-
gravhical sheets does not, in the Chilean Government'ls
view, advance the Argentine argument at all., The Profto-
col, as pointed out on page 260 of the Chilean Meumorial,
may certalnly be interpreted as implying the powers |
necessary to the discharge of the Commission's tasks,
including the ftracing of lincs on maps. But these powers
are merely anclllary aids tb the discharge of the
Commission'!s tasks. The same 1s true also of the cxpress
power to prepare survey maps specifically provided for
in Article 3 as permitted to the Commission; for this
power is associated In Article 3 with the "plan of work"
of the Commission and is referrcd to as an "operation',
The Commission undoubtedly being competent to take the
technical dedisions which 1t did repgarding the prepara-
tion of‘survey maps and plotting of lines, the Chilean
delegation andbthc Chilean Government had cvery right to
assume that those declsilons dld not purport to arrogate
to thé Commisslon any competence not conferrcd on it by
the Protocol. If the Chilean Commission, challenged the
practice 1in fegard to survey maps in 1956, 1t was because
the events surroundling Minute 55 showed that the Argentine
delegatidn Was>seeking to inflate the status of survey maps

far beyond the ancillary function accorded to them in
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Article % and virtually to substitute them for the ground. Part Three

The decision in 1950 had been to precede demarcation with a

regular survey nap.
45, The records of the Commission do not support the idea
that it regardcd the 19441 Proﬁocol as conferring upon it
domplete power to bind the Govermments or that it régarded
its 1950 decision concerning survey maps as anything but a
procedural neasure to facilitate demarcation. Thus, if the
Court will refer to the "Informative Report of the Argentine
Chile Mixed Boundary Comnission for 1942-1947" reproduced-
as Annex 271 to the Argentine Memorial, it will see on page
22 the statement: »
"The duty of the pregent Mixed Commission is
linited to the erection of additional boundary
posts wherc British demarcators left it to the

parties because there could be no doubts regarding
demarcation. (Underlining added)

If this statement was somewhat optinistic, as to thore
being "no doubts regarding demarcation”. it was because it
had been working in Sections V and VI where it had not
encountered nuch difficulty in applying the Award.

However that may beivthe Commission in this "informative
report” subnitted to Governments to put them in the picture
as to the first five years work of the Commission. was
quite emphatic that the task of the Commission was
concerned ecsscenbtially with the erectioﬁ of additional
boundary posts to show on the ground the location of an

already clearly settled line.
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46, ILater in the Informative Report the Cdmmission
indicated that 1t looked 1like running into difficultias
in Section VII; and by 1950 these difficultiles wore
causing 1% conslderable preoccupation, precipitating the
decision always to prededo demarcation with a survey map.
The records of the Commission in that year, to which
Argentina does not refer, make it absolutely plaih that
the Commission had no thought of asscrting full powers to
bind the Governments by its declsions irrcspective of the
terms of the Protocol., Minute No. 41, recording the pro-
ceedings of the meeting of February 1950, includes a
roport of = Subcommission oonsisting of the Argentine
delegate, Senor Dvoskin, and the Chilean delegate, It.
Col. Urra, on the difficultles arising in conncction with

"determining, demarcating and plotting the tracing (traza)

of the boundary line on Cecrro Rojo, Cerro Principio, and
in the Rio Encucntro zone" (Amoex No, 10),. Having sct outb
the causes of the difficulties, thoe Subcommission made a
nurber of specific suggestions for ndoptlion by the
Commission:

(2) the geographical errors must be corrcoted,
survey maps being used to harmonise ths Arblter's
eriterion with the geographical facts of tho land;

(b) ‘each doubtful casc must be specially
studied, without allowing a solution in ona casw

to be a precedent for another;

(¢) boundary posts demarcated in 1903 mus? be
trcated as immovable; ‘

(d) maps must be available boforehand not only
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for demarcation but zlso for identification of
natural boundary posts;

Part Three

(e) where the boundary 1s a hydrographic feature,
the posts erected on the banks should be regarded as
only of a '"witness" character.

the Subcormission suggested that they should be brought
expressly to the notice of the respective Chancelleries,
The Chilean Delegation then placed it on record that, be-
cause of their impdrtance, it must defer its endorsement
of them in order that it might first obtain the approval
of i1ts Chancellery; and fhe Argentine Delegation sald

that 1t would do the same with 1ts Chancellery.

Subgscquently, at the meeting in November of that year,
the Chilean Delegation 1s recorded in Minute 43 as having
reported back to the Commission:

"According to the thesis of its Chancellery,
the Demarcator Delegates, 1n the cvent of any
discrepancy having ariscen in the work and powers
indicated in the first Article of the Protocol
vhich nleht affect the implementation thereof
would have to be the subject of study by the
Chancelleries and would have to be referred to
them in conformity with the clghth Article of
the same Protocol.,” (Underlining added)

The following year, the Chilean Delegation, consulted 1ts
Chancellery regarding the problems raised in the Ap-Iwan

and Principio areas and at a meeting held on 3lst July

1951 the Dircctor of the Dlplomatic Department insisted
that "note be taken of these cascs, i1n each Section of the
Frontier, so that when the total demarcation has been

completed, these be submitted to each Government so that
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a treaty be drawn up whercby, by mutual agreoment, both
countries scttle these problems." (Annex No. 11). And the
same position was taken by the Chancellery at o simillar

meeting of consultation held on 16th July.: 1953 (sce

Annex No.l13)., Moreover, as the Court is aware, the Legal

Department of the Chancellery at once expresscd a similar

opinion in its Report of 28th November 1955, when con-
fronted with the proposals of the Commission in Minute 553
and this opinlion was at once accepted by the Chancellery

and communicated to the Argentine Government. On the

Chilean side, therefore, as soon as the problem of geograpﬁ-
ical errors was raised, and consistently thereafter, the
Government took the standpoint that any markoed
"discrepancy” in the 1902 Award - any sensible rectifica-
tion or modification - of the 1902 Award must be referred
tc the Chancelleries; and that this was its standpoint
was made clear to the Chilean Delegation at the outsct and
duly reported by it fo the Commission.

47, Before concluding thesc observations on the Chiléan
practlcc, 1t is perhaps necessary to say a word about the
passages from a Chilean letter of 19th October 1943 which
Argentina somewhat optimistically cites in paragraph 252
of her Memorial as cvidence of Chile's recognition of the
full compctence of the Commission to bind the Governments,

That letter was occasioned by the fact that the Argentine

National Park Authority had been felling timber in a




fronticr area where "the final boundary linc has not yet Part Three

been definltely drawn'. The letter, it is %rue, refers to
the Cormission as "solely responsible" under the Protocol

" and also

for "dvtermining the Chilean-Argentine frontier
stotes that "i% has been cstablished that 1ts decilsions
shall be rcgarded as definifive and lrrevocable". Bub
these oxpressions, designed to call attention 1In general
terms to the existence of the Commission and to the powers
glven to 1t under Article 6, cannot legitimatcly be inter-

preted as carrying the meanlng apparently attrlbuted fo

them by Argentina. The object was simply to get the

timber-felling stopped pending the Commlsslon's demarcaticn
of the area in accordance with the Protocol; The very

last words of the passage citced by Argentlnza make thils
perfectly clear: 'exploitation of the forest land in the

frontier arcas shall be refralned from until such time as

the Mixed Cormmisslion has dofinitively demarcated the
boundary", |

48. That being the Chilean practice, no practice adopted
unilaterally on the Argentine side could be cffective o
influence the interpretation of thoe clear words of the
Protocol. But cven on the Argentine side, the cvidence
does nobt appear %o support the account of thé practice
given in the Argentine Memorlal., Mention has been made
in paragraph 24 zbove of the statement in the Informative

Report that the duty of the Commission was limited to the
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¢rection of additional boundary posts. In 1951, in
ccecrmentlng on Article 15 of the Plan of Work and Articlos
5 and & of the Regulations, the Argentine Delepgation

expressly deeclarcd: "The Mixed Commission 1s only

authorised to lncrease the density of boundary posts on

the fronticr, but never to  changs the boundary.'" This

hardly appearsvto clalm for the Commisslon those "full

powers to decide upon a boundary" asserted by Argentina,
But the matter is really put beyond all doubt by the un-
arblguous language uscd by Argentina in her diplomatic

Notes of 30th .pril and 8th August 1957 - after full time

“to reflect and to draw the appropriate lessons from the

incident of Minute 55, These Notes were avoked by
Chile's proposal to add a lawyer to the staff of the
Chilzan Beundary Commission, and the relevant passages

have already been set out at length on pdges 379~381 and

#83-4 of the Chilean Memorial. In those Notes, as the
Court will see, the Argentine Government again and again
insisted upon the purely technical, executive, role of
the Commission - its task of "physical implementation’ of
the Award, to use Judge Moreno Quintana's phrase. Here,
in order to emphaslse how far removed are the statements
in the Argentine Memorial from the actual practice of the

Argentine Government, it may be permissible to recall one

or two sentcences from the Notes., In the Note of 30th

CApril, having aslicd 1tsclf the rhetorical question: "Who
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arc then the technicians of Article 1 of the Protocol?"
The Argentine Government said.

"Ap your Excellency says very rightly in the note

I an answering, they ought to be 'competent in the
natters they are called on to deal with'. And what
are bhese matters? The Protocol gives a clear

answer: rcplacinge boundary pests, placing new ones,

Part Three

determining geographical ce-ordinates. They nust
study the boundary tracing, mark it out identify
and make actual on the ground the line described
in the Award." (Underlining added)

Ana it went on to speak off the “express and limitced terms

of the Protoccl”". In its later Note of 8th August, having

again insisted on fhe task of the Commission's being
limited to replacing missing boundary posts, placing new
posts where necessary and determining geographlical co-
ordinates, the Argentine Government explained its own
understanding of the Commissioners!' position when con=
fronted with a "difficulty in the technical work entrusted
to them which derives from the application in the field of
the frontier agreemcnts”

"It is not the Commission's job to interpret

treaties and legal roumunto, but rather the

facts ought to be taken to the respective

Chancelleries so that they, advised by thelr

lagal advisers, may rguolve them before having

recourse to arbitration”
The Argentine Govermment then underlined, in particular,
its understanding of what is meant by the "interpretation
of documents' in the Plan of Work, 1.c¢. in Articles 20
and Z1:

"The 'interprotation of documents! referred to
in the Plan of Work and which your Excellency

2351.




refers to must be a technical interpretotion

within the 1imits of tho Comiission’s poOwers,
and cannot give risc to logal wrvumbntuwahich
aP boeyond 168 competence. (Underlining added)

49. Thus the practice of both Delegations and of both
Governments, so far from justifyling the oxpaunsive inter-
prctations of the Protocol and Plan of Work contonded for
in the Argentinc Memorial, 1s in accord with the intcrprc;
tations placed upon those instruments by Chile -
interpretations which in turn correspond to the ordinary
meaning of their provisions.

50, The particular cases_invoked by Argentina. In

Chapter VI of her Memorial, Argentina draws the Court's
attention specially to five decisions of the Commissicon
regarding (a) Cerro Principio, (bj Cerro Rojo,’(c) Cerro
Ap=Twan, (d)‘the Customs House neér Rl Coyte and (e) the

Customs House at Alto Rio Mayo. It introduces these five

‘decistions with t . suggestive statement that: '"The Mixed

Cemmizsion settled tracts of uncertalin boundary,
accomplishing its task without any prior fenﬂrono to the
two Governments, neither of whom ever questioned the
finality of these settlements agrecd upon by the Mixed

Commission." And 1t secks to impress on the Court "the

‘particular significance' of some of these instances,
p

promising to throw further light on their significance in
Chapter VIII,

This furthcer enlightenment appcears in paragraphs 257

et _seqg, of Chapter VIII. The Chilean Government, Argentina
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there says, has never questioned the finality and binding
¢ffects of the decisions unanimously reached by the Mixed
Commlssion in other parts of the'boundafy recorded in
Minute 55, nanely Cerro Rejo and Cerro Ap~Iwan; and she
underlines that in thosce casis the Commisslion plotted the
lines on the maps but did not crect intermediate boundary
posts, notwithstanding the fact that the line had been
adjusted to take zccount of geographical realities,
Similarly, she soys that neither Government has challenged
the decision of the Mixed Commission regarding the Cerro
Principio, also recorded in Minute 55, where thc line was
again adjusted to take account of geographical realities,
1 new boundary post being in this case erceted to mark the
line nore clearly.

Argentina then says that it was only on 18th april
1956 that Chile questioned the decisions of the Ceommission

cgarding the line between Posts 16 and 17 on the ground

<

g

that th2 formalities required by Article 6 of the Protocol
had not becn fulfilled; and that the practice of the
Partics makes cleéar that the decisions unanimously reached
by the Commission upon the location of the boundary line
werce considercd by the Governments as final and binding,
quite apart from the requirements of Article 6 of the
Proetocol, In justification of %hat proposgition she

X .
3

stoto

r

"In the first placc the decisions were never
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submitted to the Governments for approval. They
were formally recorded in the 4cts of the Sessions
of the Mixed Commission, Secondly, the ercetion
of intermediate boundary posts and the drawing up
of the Spocial fcts provided for in Article 5 of
the Protocol were not considered as a necessary
requiremcnt which should be fulfilled in order o
make such decisions finally binding upon the Parties.
The erection of boundary posts and the drawing up
of Special Acts were considered as the normal way
of concluding the demarcation of a particular

sStretch of boundary if intcrmediate boundary posts

were neccessary, but the ercction of such posts and
the drawing up of Specilal Acts were not egsential
in order to make declsions reached unanimously by
the Mixed Commission upon the position of the
frontier line definitely binding upon the Parties."

Reverting to the same themein a later passage,

Argentina reiterates (paragraph 258):

51,

"what, thercfore, makes the practice of the
Mixed Commlssion of great legal significance is
the consistent attitude of the two Governments
towards that practice at all times and in all
cases up to the Chilean attempt to reject
selected portions of the Commission's decisions
In fct No, 55 concerning certain parts of the
boundary line in ths Sector.

For it is the fact that in parts of the
frontier, with the sole exception of porticns
of the present Sector, both Governments
acquinsced in decisions concerning the course
of the boundary line, including cases wherc
the Commission's decision clearly involved more

Loy o

than a purcely tcchnical and automatic process;

and in regard to these declsions of the Commission
nelther Govermment did anything that even suggested
t

by inferencz: that such declsions required any ac
of approval or acceptance by the Governments in
order to make them effective. Therc was, there-
fore, a concordant though tacit agrecment between
them, forming a common understanding of the legal
position."

Chile's observations on Arpgentina's interprcetation

of the prectice. As has already been shown in paragraphs

bl o 49 above, Argentina's interpretation of the practice
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1s simply not rcconcllable with her own declared under;
standing of the Commisslon's position or with the attitude
of the Chilean Delegation and Government recorded ln the
rroceedinegs of the Commissilon.,

Nor does it help Argentlina in the least t0o say that
"i% was only on 18th April 1956 that Chlle questioned the
decisions of the Commission regarding the line between

Pogss -6 and 17 on the ground that the formallties required

by Article 6 of the Protocol had not been complied with,"
As paragraphs 44 to 49 a2bove a2lso show, the Chilean
Govermment had from the beginning made 1t plain that she
did not regard the Commission as competent by 1tself to
determine the line in cascs of geographical error,
Furthermore, the President of Chile had already on 24th
February 1956 rejected the whole outcome of the
Commission's procecdlings respecting the Sector between
Peosts 16 and 17 at the meeting of October 1955, If the
Chilean Government took up the questlon of the
"formalitics!” required by Article 6 in 1ts N-te of 18%th

April, this was simply because the Argentine Government,

in its Note of 6%h March, had itself claimed binding

"in virtue of Article

cffoct for ghe so-called "decisions

. To=day, Argentina roaliscs thet the refercnce to

Article 6 in her Notc of 6%th March 1956 was a complete
mistake. So, in paragraph 178 of her Memorial, she seeks

"seizing

to make the most of it by attocking Chile for




upon a mistaken reference in the Argentine Note of &
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March 1956 to Article & of th
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1941 Protocol™ and for
secking to use the provisions of this Arbicle sbout the

Cattestation of the locatlon of boundary posts to deny
final legal efficney to these unanimous decisions of the
Mixed Commission ote.," This 1s reolly o mogst extroordain-
ary accusaticn, What ¢ls2 could sh:z expect thoe Chilean

Goverunent to do when she herscelf had sought to give a

completely inadmissible interpretotion to thot vory
Lrticle? Today, in truth, she reolises that her Note of
6th March 1956 was not just a mistake but o complete

blunder, It showed 2ll too clearly that Argentina herscelf

then assumed that, 1f the definitive ¢ffcects which she

desired were to atbach to the Conmission's "spprovals! of

the two sepgments of the line 1n Minute 55, thesc must be

brought within Article 6.

52. Onc¢ further point of a gencral character has to be

mnade by way of preface to Chile's observations on the five

.
-
4

particular cases invoked by fLrgentino. The Protocel, as

A P
Gl

both Porties recognise, was basaed on the fact tha

ot

a
‘boundary had alrcady been laid down in 1902 and had boen

partially demarcated in 190%; and the objcctives of the

Protocol were the conservation of that boundsry and 1ts

further demarcation where necessary. Thercfore under the
Protocol the Cormisslon was tto be composed of techniclans

and its functions were: (a) the roplacement of boundary
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pests which had disappeared or got into a bad state,

(b) setting up new intermcdiate posts where necessary %o

inéicate the boundary with greater clarity and precigion,
and (¢) to determine the exact geographleal coordinates

of all.suoh poste. Such being the technlcal character of
the Commission and such being the clearly defined scope

of 1ts functions, the Governments had every right, in
Chile's view, to assume that the Commission in the daily
performance of its functions would act in general conforme
ity with the FProtocol and Yo interpret its acts on that
assumption, Of course, the Chilean Govgrnment appreciated
that in many placcs the frontier runs over mountainous and
difficult ground; and that in consequence the Commission
would need to have a certain margin of appreclation and
jucgment 1f 1% was to carry out its technical task of
locating znd demarcating the beundary on the ground.
Having regard to all these considerations and to the
sccult mysteries of the Commission's technical operations,
it wae perfectly natural that the Chilean Chancellery
should not wish to call in question the work of the
Commission except when absolutely essential to protect
Chilean interesivs. . Accordingly, quite Independently
of what is said below about the five particular cases,

the Chilcan Government considers that in the general
circumstances of the work of the Commission it would be

wholly inndmissible to dinterpret the abstention of ceither

ne
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rery Three Government from questioning a particular decision of

the Commission as an acquiescence in an enlargenc

3

its compatence or a surrender of its righﬁ o c¢hiect when
i% considers essential interests of its country to be
threatened by an erronecus or irr@gular éct of the
Crmmdlsclion.

53%. Customs Houses at Alto Ric Mavo and B1 Coyte. These

O

ases are referred to in paragraphs 142 and 14% of the

. ' 3]
Argentine Memorial after the cases of the three "Cerros:

(Principio, Rojc and Ap~Iwan), but they are carlier in

date and will therefore be considered first. The
Argentine Government appears to present both these
transfers of frontier Customs Houses from Argantiﬁa to
Chile as cases in which decisions of the Commission were
regarded as definitive and binding by both Governments
indepehdentlj of the formalities prescribed in Article 6
of the Prcoctocol, The Chilean Government finds Argentina's
r<liance on these two‘caseé cxtremely puzzling, since
cases represent normal applicationg of Article & and
confirm the correctness of Chile's contention to the hilt.
In order that the Court may be able to get an accurate
impression of these cases, the Chilean Goverument has

reproduced in Annexes Nos, 1

2

"

to 27 %o thig Counter-
Memorial the relevant diplomatic and other official
documents relating tc the transfer of each Customs louse,

Alto Rio Mayo. This was the earlier case and, as
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stated by Argentine, 1s mentioned in the "Informative Part Three

Report” for 1941~7. Even the passage in that Report

(Annex 21 of the Argentine Memorlal, p. 45) is enough to

give warning that this case is not susceptible of the

Interpretation now placed on it by Argentina:

"After the Mixed Commission erceted iron
Boundary Post VI~9 and concrete Boundary Post,
VI-10A, in the Coihaique Alto -~ Alto Rio Mayo ‘
zone, a small strip of land was left between the
existing badly placed barbed wire fence and the
dividing line. This strip, on which the Lirgentine
Alto Ric Mayo Customs Post was sltuated, passed %o
Chilean soverignty.

In compliance with the provisions of part of
the final clause of Article 6 of the Protocol of
16 April 1941, the Customs Post which came under
Chilean jurisdiction had to be evacuated,"
The Court will thus observe that the transf er of this

Customs House arcse in connection with the ercction of

two new boundary posts in the vicinity, as a result of
which it was found tha% the Argentine Customs House was
on the wrong slde of the line there located by the
Cormmission in the course of its work of demarcation, I
the Court turns to the official documents it will see
that the Argentine authorities then very properly procecl-
¢d to vacate the bullding and offer it to Chile specifi=-
cally in compliance with Article € of the Protocol., The
Court will alsd sec from the Deed of Gift and Transfer
and the Argentine President's Decree Ratifying the Gift
the peridous dnportance attachod by the Argentine Govern-

ment to the observance of formalities in connection with
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Pzrt Throz the transfer and the emphasis plaead by it on compliznce
with Article ( ee Annoxes Nos, 2% and 24).,  In particular

the Court is asled to note, first, that thé Deed spooks
of the "Boundary Comnission entrusted with densiiying the
demarcation of the fronticr line” .... having "verified

\
that the above mentioconed Customs Post bullding 1ico within i

Chilean territory at only 600 Metrses from the international

dividing line, ncrth of the boundary Qost Camino Alto Rio

Mayo (Chubuﬁ)Cohaique (Section VI No.9)...." and, sccondly,

that the Pre31dcntxal Decree statce opbc1;¢cally:

"The President of the Argentine Commission on

the Boundaries with Chile relotes that when the
Mized Commission was dmllmltlnﬁ the frontier in
compliance with the terms of the Protoccol of 1b
April 1941, h= verified when Pillar VI-g wag cerocted
that the Lrgentine Customs rost on the intermnational
road from Alto Rio Mayo (National Terlborv of
Chubut) tu Coheique (Chilaan Provinee of Alsen)
was found to lie within the territory Jf bh11p~...
(Underlining added)

Could anything be clearer?

f1

21 Ceyts. This case pursued much the same course
and paragraph 142 of the Argentince Memorisl 1s far fronm

giving an adsquate picture of the practice of the Partics

regarding the transfer of the Customs House. As the
Argentine Memorial indicates, the Commisslon plotted the
line in this area in the courge of 1948, and the Argentins
Government became aware that again one of 1ts Customs
Houses had been erected in Chilean Territory. Naturally,

as in the previous case it preparced to hand over the
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Customs House to Chile and meanwhile In 1950 a new Part Three
boundary post No, VI-15A was erected by the Commission

and duly attested in accordance with Article 6 of the

Protocol, Only then - on 23rd September 1952 - did

the Argentine Ambassador write to the Chilean Forelgn

Minlster informing him that the Commission ¥has

verified, on the carrying out of the dengification of

the demarcation . of the boundary line, in compliance
with the provisions of the Protocol of 16th April 1941,
that the Building of the Argentine Customs House E1
Coyte (Chubut) happens to stand on Chilean territory.
The above-menﬁioned bullding is situated dome 400
metres approximately from the International dividing
line ...." (Annex No. 25)  Again, a solemn Deed of

Transfer was executed (Annex No. 27) which, Inter alia,

recited the instructions given to tﬁe Argentine
Ambassador in Santiago on 1lst September 1952 to raise
the matter with the Chilean Government. Those instruc-
Itions ran:

"T have the pleasure to inform Your Excellency
that the Argentine-Chile Boundary Commlssion
has verified, on carrying out the densification
of the demarcation”of The frontier Iine, in
compliance with the provisions of the Protocol
of 16 April 1941, that the building of the
Argentine Customs Post at "E1 Coyte" (Chubut)
happens to stand on Chilean territory, The .
above mentioned bullding is situated about four
hundred metres from the International dividing
line to the west of the pillar VI-15 A on the
road jolning the Argentine village "El Coyte"
to the Chilean village of "Coyhaique" about
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two thousand and six hundred metres from the
Carabineros Post "Puesto Viejo" which depends
from the Chilcan Customs at Puerto Aysen, In
accordance with Article 6 of the above montioned
Protocol, both countries undertake to vacate

the lands that ohOUld lie in the Jurisdlction of
one or another." (Underlining added)

And the statements regarding the verification of the
error in the course of the "densification" of the de-
marcatlion and regarding the position of the Customs
House close to the new boundary post VI-15A were later
repeated in the body of the Deed.

54, In short, both the Customs House cases were dealt
with strictly "according to the book" under the terms
of Article 6 of the Prbtocol.' In both the Commission
located the error on the ground in the course of de-
murcation, in both the Commisslon erected new boundary
posts 1n the Viciniﬁy of the area where the territory
changed hands; in both the full formalities of Article
6 were observed; in both the CGovernments attributed
the transfer of the Custon Hodse from Argentina to
Chile to Article 6 of the Protocol.

55. Cerro Principio, Cerro Rojo and Cerro Ap-Iwan
cases, ,

These are dealt wlth in paragraphs 137 to 141 of the

Argentine Memorial and 1llustrated on Argentine Maps
Nos. A,34 and 4.35. They are three cases in which
there was some discrepancy between the terms of the

1902 Award and the geographical rcalitles of the grounds
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and in each of them the conclusion reached by the
Commission was Incorporated in Minﬁte 55 which, of
course, also contained the Commission's conclusions
with reference to the Sector between Posts 16 and 17.
The Argentine Government examines the cases in some
detall, and 1t appears that 1% 1s to them that 1%
primarily refers when it speaks of the Commission set-~
tling "tracts of uncertaln boundary" and '%ccomplishing
1ts task without any prior reference to the two
Governments, neither of whom even questioned the final-
1ty of these settlements agreed upon by the Mixed S
Commission,

56. The Chilean Government, for reasons about to be
stated, doubts whether the Court willl find 1% necessary
to imake an exact appreclation of the facts of these
cases; and 1t does not propose 1tself to exanine them
in detall in the present Counter-Memorial, At the
same time, 1t has sought to collect in g group of
Anncxes (Annexes Nos, 9 to 17) a number of relevant
records relating to these oasés, 50 that the Court

may have the material rnecesgsary to enable 1t to obtain
a general pilcture of theirp handling in the Commission,
Reference has already been made to certain passages 1n
those records in paragraph 46 of this Part for the
purpose of 1ndicating the positio&Staken up by the

respective Delegatlons and by the two Governments when
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confronted with the posgibllity of difficulties arising
from geographical errors, s the Court will recall,
1t was primarily the three "Cerros" which had drawn
atﬁention to these difficulties and, this having
happened, feserVations were expressed by the Chilean
Commisqion‘and Government as %o Ghe possibllity of the
Mixed Commlsslon's being able to resolve the diffi-
cultles definitively without reference to the Chancell-
‘eries. | |

57. The Chilean Government asks the Coﬁrt Yo ncte the
following points which, in its view, clearly emerge
from‘the materlal placed before it relating to the
three Cerros:

(a) The three cases all concern the tracing of the
boundarﬁ in high mountainous and somewhat desolate
areasl.

(b) No human element - not even a single dwelling-
house f.WéS Involved in the solution of the boundary
In the areas concerned.

(c) The location of the boundary in the three
arcas eﬁgaged the attention of the Commissioh of £ and
on from about 1945, and involved a number of technlcal
studles and discussions within the Commlssion,

(d) So far from the Commission's makling no

1 Cf, the description of the Ap~iwan and cerro Rodo‘

areas in the "Informative Report for 1941-7" (Annex
21 to the Argentine Memorial, p.104).
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reference to Governments both Delegations informed
their Governments in 1950 of the difficulties which
they were encountering in these areas in getting the
geographlical facts to colncide exactly with the terms
of the Award (see extracts from Minute 43 on pages .
286-7 of the Chilean Memorial)., And the Chilean
Delegation mentioned the mattér to 1ts Chancellery
again 1n 1951 and 1953. On the first occasion it was
suggested that "for the moment, it will be ﬂecessary to
comply with the letter and spirit of the Award, placing
These points on the frontier line and Jolnling theﬁ, in
each case, by the respective imaginéry line," But the
Chilean Delegation was immediately advised, asvit was
again on the second ocecasion that 1t would eventually
be necessary to have the matter referred to the
Chancelleries and dealt with by agreement (Annexes

Nos. 11 ang 13).

(e) The Cémmission intensified 1ts technical
studies; carrying out further inspections and surveys
and exchanging memoranda. The relevant documents
reproduced as Annexes Nos, 15 and 16 show the diffi-
culty sometimes experienced by the Commission in these

arcas 1In arriving at an exact appreciation of the 1lie

of the pertinent geographical features and the
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hesltatlors of the twq Delegations in arriving at their
concluslons regarding the locatlon of the 1line.

(£) The documents also show that in the Cerro
Principio area the Commission had complicated 1ts task
by prematurely declaring’the Cerro Prinelplo a Natural
Boundary Post 1n 1946 before it had begun 1ts close

study of the line in that area, and doing so with the

full formalities prescribed in Article 6 for new

boundary posts. They further show that, when the
Chilean Delegation proposed that the Cerro Principio
should nevertheless be followed and the true point on
the watershed used inétead, the Argentine Delegation’

objected on the basis of the cbligatory force of

Article 6, (See Annex No, 16).

(g) On 21st September 1954, by which time the
Commission was approachling a decision in these cases,
the Head of the Chilean Delegation sent to the Chilean
Chancellery the memorandum a long extract from which
appears on pages‘291;5 of the Chilean Memorial, In
that memorandum there occurs the follbwing passage
(page 293 of the Memorial):

"In any case, the solutlon favourable to our
interests of the River Encucntro - Cerro de la
Virgen problem, which is sgtill outstanding and
which 1s of much greater importvance than thosc
presented on Sheets V-6 and V-14, requires of
the Chillean Commission the adoption of a uniform
and well-defined criterion, conforming strictly
tc the provislions of the Arbitral Award, without
claudications or concessions, even though to that

246,




end it may be necessary to give way on the apparent

Part Three

richts of much less significance than this as are
those of Cerro Rojo, Ap-Iwan and Principio which
mnoreover are based on contradictory appreciations
of thosc Chilecan Delegates who had intervened at
different times, which do not prove a definite
line and which have motivated the dilscrepancies

with the Argentine Commission." (Underlinings added).

This passage could not fall to glve the Chllean Govern-
ment the impression that (a) the three "Cerro' areas

were of very little importaﬁce to Chile and (b) the
"contradictory apprecilations’ of various Chileén

delegates had been partly responsible for the diffi;

culty in those areas,

58, If the Court will refer to Annex No, 17, it will ‘
find the passage from Minute 55 which states the
Commission'!s conclusions on the cases of the three

Cerros. It will there see that paragraph (a),

covering the Cerro Principlo area, merely records:

"(a) Having studled the line presented by the
Chilean Commission on Sheet V~6 'Lake Cochrane
Pueyrredon’ Boundary Post V-5 !'South Bank Lake
Ccehrane Pueyrredon’ and Boundary Post V=9 (56)
'Aduaha Robello!, 1t is approved,'

and that paragraph (c), covering the other two Cerros,
also merely records:

"(c) The Mixed Commission approves the line
drawn on Sheet (V-14) 'Ap=Iwan'! and !Peak Cerro
Ap-~Iwan! on a scale of 1:10,000 with the approved
line drawn thereon in order that 1t may be made

to appear on Sheet (V-14) tAp~Iwan! on the same
scale,"

Furthermore, the passage concludes with an emphatilc

reservatlon made by the Commlssion with reference to
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its conclusions in these cases:

"The Mixed Commission resolves to place on
record the fact that in the study of the lines
drawn on the sheets (V-1l4) 'Ap-Iwan! and V-6
'Take Cochrane=Pueyrreddnl special decisions
have had %o be adopted which must not be re-
garded as precedentSs (Underlinings added).

59. Thus, the position confronting the Chilean-Goverﬁ;
ment with respect to the areas of the three "Cerros”
was'entirely different from that with respect to fthe
Post 16 - Post 17 area. First, in the ca°as of the
three "Cerros", Minute 55 made no rofergnce toc the fact
that 1t had not "been possible %o make the proposed
lines and the grounds therefor £it in, in every respect,
with what is laid down in the Award", as 1t did in the
casc of the Post 16 ~ Post 17 Sector. Secondly, the
solutlon adopted by the Commission was complete for the
three "Cerro" areas, giving a continuous line between
the existing boundary posts of the 1903 demarcation,
whercas between Posts 16 and 17 the Commission had con=-
fessed its inability to produce a continuous line
otherwlse than by a compromise which required the
approval of the Chancelleriecs, Thirdly, the boundary
in the three "Cerro" areas ran over high mountalnous
ridges, unpopulated and of no known interest, whereas
between Posts 16 and 1” the small mountain valleys of
Californla held a well—established settlement of
Chllean families‘administered by Chilean authorities

Furthermore, although initially the Chilean Chancellery
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had had its attention drawn to an apparent difflculty in Part Thre
matching the geographical realities in these areas with

the terms of the 1902 Award, there had been further

technlcal studies and the Chancellery had been led by

General Urra to understand_that‘the Chl lean delegates

had confused the issues wilth "contradictory appreci;

ations". These facts by themselves would, in the

Chilean Government's submisslon, make 1t altogether

inadmissible to treat Chile!s omission to challenge the

Commissicn!s "approvals' of tracings of the boundary
in the three "Cerro" areas as evidence that she inter:
prets the Protocol as conferring on the Commisslon
"full powers to decide upon a boundary" in cases where

the legal meaning of the 1902 Award is "unsettled" by

reason of geographical crror or has "tacltly agreed" to

an enlargement of its competence in that regard or has
"acquiesced" in any such general competence being
assumed by the Comnilssion. And the same 1s true of any
attempt to treat that omisslon as evidence of a walver
of the requirements of Article 6 of the Protocol as
necessary for attributing definitive effects to

decisions of the Commissiqn. As polnted out 1In
paragraph 21 above, subsequent practice of the parties
to a treaty, to alffect Interpretation in that way, must
clearly establlsh the goummon understanding of the partiles

by acts wnich are unequivocal as %o the meaning which
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Part Three they give to the treaty.

60. TLeast of all 1s it admlssible s0 %O interpret
Chiie's omission %o challenge Minute 55 wilth respect to
the three "Cerro" areas when Chile at the very same time
asserted her right to object to the conclusions in
Minute 55 regarding the Post 16 -~ Post 17 Sector, In

the Chilean Government's,subﬁﬁssion, i1ts rejection of

Minute 55 with respect to the Post 16 ~ Post 17 Sector
1s completely fatal to any attempt to deduce a Chllean
accepbtance of or.acquiescence in an interpretation of
the Protocol which would invest the Ocmmission with
"£311 powers to declde upon a pboundary" in all cases,
or which would dispense with the requirements of
Article 6 of the Protocol. S0 far from Chilels reactQ
ion to Minute 55 indicating that she accepted or
acquiesced in such an interpretation of the Protocol,
itrshowed that she did not.  And, whén the Court re;

calls that Argentina in her first response to Chile's

rejection of the decisions in Minute 55 at once
invoked Article 6 and that in her diplomatic Notes of
30th April and 8th August 1957 she fiercely denled the
competence of the Commission to enter inﬁo legal
interpretations of the.treaties or Awards they were

applying, it will appreclate how completely 111-founded

1s the Argentine thesls regarding the "subsequent

practice” of the two Governments.
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61, Chile will examine the Argentine contentions as to
her alleged acqulescence in the Commission's particular
conclusions regarding the Post 16 - "Watersmeet" and
Post 17 ; Cerro Virgen segments of the boundary in the
next Chapter. ‘But she does not think 1t necessary in
the present Chapter to deal in detail with the additional
Argentine arguments regarding her alleged "acquiescence
in the "legal efficacy of all the unanimous determi-
nations of the course of the boundary line by the
Commnission” which are developed in paragraphs 259—265
of the Argentine Memorial, What has been sald above
in regard to the "subsequent practice" of the two
Governments as a basls for interpreting the 1941
Protocol or deducing a tacit agreement for the en-
largement of the Commission's powers applies with no
less force to that practice when invoked as a basis for
deducing an alleged "acquicscence" or "preclusion', _
The additional contentions in paragraphs 259;265 are,
indeed, only different legal moulds for presenting what
Is essentially the same argument, Accordingly, the
Chllean Government does not feel that 1t would serve
any useful purpose to embark on a discusslon of the
elements of legal authority adduced by Argentina in
support of this line of her argument, though it
reserves the right to comment upon it at the oral

hearings, should argentina seek to develop this line
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of argument any further,

62, The:Chilean Government proposes only to zdd a bricf
comment upon what appears to 1t to be a quite extra;
ordinary~statement in paragraph 25} of the Argentine
Memorial.  Referring to the effect of a "protest” as

a meahs of preventing an inference being drawn from acts,
the‘Argentine Government there states, or rather breaks
out :

"But in the present case the protest was too
late %o have this effect elther in law or In loglc;
for the Inference 1s zlready irresistibly drawn
from Chilel!s unambiguous attitude towards that
serlies of similar, but earlier, Mixed Commission
decislions, and also from her attitude towards
other parts of fct No. 55, It would be inequit-
able, not to say unconscionable, 1 a Government
were able taclitly to reap the benefit of a series
of such decisions favourable to 1tself, and then
later elfectively o protest at a subscequent
declsion that in part favoured the claims of the
cther Party," (Underlinings added), ’

Elther this statemeﬁt is an indictment.of the whole
work of the Commission or 1t is baseless; and, 1n the
view of the Chllean Government, 1t 1s the latter. The
task of the Commlssion is to mark out bn the ground
with as nuch precision as 1t can achieve the bouhdary
1aid down in the applicable Treatics and Awards. It
has no business to glve decisions "favourable" to one
side or the other, and 1t does not do so. It seeks
by technical means to locate on the ground the pre-

determined boundary, demarcate 1t on the ground where

necessary and to fix the demarcatlon definitively by
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geographlcal coordinates duly recorded. If prior to
1955 Chile had generally écquiesced in the Commission's
conclusions, 1t was not because she thought that she
had been "favoured", It was because she assumed that
the Commlssion was golng about 1ts technical work with
a fair measure of competence and no one had yet suggest:
ed the contrary. Althoughlherself somewhat shaken by
the events surrounding Minute 55 and the defioclencles
which they revealed in her own Delegation at that time,
she doubts whether Argentina means to imply that the
great bulk of the Commission'!s work had been inoom:,
petent and defective, Nor has she any reason %o
suppose that the Argentine Delegation spent the yeafs
1942:1955 glving decislons which 1t considered %o
"favour" Chile, ‘ _

What, indeed, 1s this "series of similar, but
earlier, declsions" favourable to Chile? Paragraph
263 of the lrgentine Memgrial leaves the Court totally
in the dark on the point. Is the Court to infer that
this 1s an oblique reference %o the two Customs Houses
at Alto Rio Mayo and El Coyte? These are the only
other cases mentioned in the Memorial, But, as has
been sharn in paragraph 32 above, the conclusion of the
Commlsslon, the reactlons of the parties and the
application of Article 6 all went strictly according

to the Protocol. How can this possibly be sald %o be
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a "similar decision" favourable to Chile? The Commission
did 1ts jbb, the Protogol operated according to its

terms and that was all. On the necessary assumption
tﬁét the'Argénﬁine Delegation did not 2o about 1its work
with the set purpose of glving "decisions favourable %o
Chile", what can Argentina mean by a “decision fqvourl

able to Chile" unless it be that the decision resulted

in territory passing from Argentina to Chile? The

Court may think that, if there_really had been a long
series of such decisions, the proper inference to draw
would be, not that Chile had acqulesced in an extension
of the Commission's competence, but that Argentina had
persistently encroached upon Chilean territory up and
dovm the boundary. This inference the Chilean
Government does not ask the Court to draw, only because
it believes the statement iﬁ the Memorial to be

totally lacking in substance.

6%, Finally, with regard to the cascs of the three
"Cerros" the Chllean chernment_feels bound to add that
1% has never sought and does not now seek any undue
"Pavour" from the conclusions of the Commission concern-
ing the tracing of the line along those mounteln rildges.
Thé Chilean President, in rejecting the solution adum=-
brated in Minute 55 for the Post 16 - Post 17 Sector,
gave Instructions that the position‘should be restored

to the "state existing prior to the said meeting of the
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Mized Boundary Commlssion". The Argentine Government
did not in its Note of 6th March 1956 or in later Notes
complain that this involved an unfair diserimination by
Chile between the conclusions in Minute 55 concerning
the Post 16 - Post 17 Sector and those concerning the .
three Cerro areas. On the contrary, thevArgentine
Government took the rejectlon for what 1t was : an
cbjection to conclusions which Chile consildered to be
in contradiction with the 1902 Award and with the welll
established Chllean settlement of the area; and in an
effort to bolster up those conclusions 1% called in ald,
alveit misguidedly, Article 6 of the Protocol, The
ideas that the Commission "favoured" Chile in its
conclusions regarding the three Cerros and that Chile
acted "unconscionably" in taking exception only to the
Post 16 ; Post 17 conclusions flrst appear as arguments
in the Memorial,

Argentlna not having let fall a single word of
dissatisfactlon with respect to the thrée Cerroc areas
for ten years, and these areas not belng before the
Court for decislon, the Chilean Govermment naturally
reserves 1lts whole position in regard to them. A%
the same time 1% recognises that demarcation has not
taken place in these areas and that, whatever other
legal or practical objections there may be to her

doing so, Argentina 1s not prevented by fLrticle 6 or
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any other provision of the Protocol from ralsing the
question of the validity of the Commission's

conclusions concerning those areas,

CHAFTER VIT

THE PEOCEEDINGS OF THE MIXED COMIISSION RELATTNG TO
TEE _BOUNDARY BETWEEN POSTS 16 AND 17

€4, The Chilean Covernment has examlned the Mixed
Commission's handling of the problem in the Post 16 -
Post 17 Sector in Chapter VII of Part Three of its

'Memorial, and Argentina has done likewise 1in paragraphs

144;171 (pages 135 ~ 153) of her Memorial., The
Chilean Memorial sets out the facts and Chilels
appreciation of them.somewhat more fully than Argentina
and, 1in consequence, Chile does not find it necessary
here to add much to what has already been sald in her
Memofial. In the'present Chapter Chile proposes to
limit herself to a brief discussion of a few matters
in the 1light of the way in which they are dealt with 1n
the Argentine Memorial. For her substantive account
of the facts and for her contentions relating to them
Chile asks the Court to refer to Chapter VII of Fart
Three of her lMemorial,

£5, The Cerro Virgen. Page 140 of the Argentine

Memorial sets out the passage from the "Informative

Remort" entitled "Study of the Frontier in Section VIL'

‘which is also reproduced on pages 282-3 of the Chilcan
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Memorial. On this passage Argentina comments that it
shows the Commission to have been fully aware in 1947

of the problems to which the 1902 Award gave rise north
of the Cerro Virgen bubt that it saw no problem as to the
course of the boundary south of that Cerro. "In
particular", itisays, "the Commission was very cléar that
the boundary ran through the Cerro de la Virgen, which
was to be regarded as a natural boundary post". Again
on page 154, when commenting upon the Commission's
conclusions recorded in Minute 55, the Argentine Govern-
ment emphasises that "the Chilean representatives on the
Mixed Commission were no longer asséiting that Cerro
Central was the mountain named 'Virgen' in the 1902
Award through which the boundary was to pass."q

66. The interest of this passage from the "Informative
Report", in the vicw of the Chilean Govermment, is
rather the way in which it shows how from the outset

the Mixed Commission tended to misdirect itself in
regard to the problem of interpretation which arose from
the quite radical geographical error resulting from the

Argentine expert's misconceived attachment of the

Indeed, the Chilean Delegation had at no time
asserted that the Cerro Ccntral was the mountain
named "Virgen" in the Award through which the
boundary was to pass, or that Cerro Central was
the samce mountain as Pico Virgen, as stated on
vage 148 of the Argentine Memorial.
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tributaries of the Salto to the Encuentro in 1902,
Instead of asking 1%self how this error might affcet the
interpretation of the intentions of the 1902 Tribunal
with respect to the whole course of the boundary between

Posts 16 and 17 and, in particular, how it might affect

-the identification of the Cerro Virgen as a point on that

boundary, the Commission altogether prematurely tended to

assume the correctness of the last sepment of the line the

northern terminal of which was at thé very centre of the
confusion arising from the geographical crror, In doing
this, 1% cbmplately reversed the cbncept of the 1902
Tribunal with regard to the boundary in thls Sector, which
was based on cuttingkthe Palena at the mouth of the
Encuentro and on joining this point to Pest 17 by a iine
following the Encuentro to its source and thence ascending
direetly to an elevated local watershed along which it
would continue until reaching Post 17. The "Informative
Report" thus approached the tracing of the 1ine In the
Sector from the opposite direction to that of the Tribqnal
and mistalkenly prejudged the identification and status of
the Cerro Virgen as an intended point on the boundary this
was the more inadmlssible in that the Report emphasised
that the "map used by the"English Demarcators, from which
the divlding line was traced, contains serilous defects. "

If the Commission in the "Informative Report " jumped to

premature conclusions regarding the Cerro Virgen as a




natural boundary post, no "Special Minute" was drawn up

to glve cffect to that conclusion elther then or at any
time later.

67. In connection wilth the Commission's too faclle
assumptlon regarding the location of the Cerro Virgen on
the boundary line lald down in the Award, the Court!s
attention i1s drawn to the document in Annex No, 28, which
has come to the notice of the Chlilean Government since 1%
trepared the Memorlal. This document}forms part of a
Report of the Argentine Ministry of Foreign Affalrs and
Public Worship for 1949-50 and 1is entitled "Matters
concerning Boundaries and Studies relating to the Demarca-
tion of Jurisdictions Frontler with Chile". In that
Annex the Court wlll find the following passage:

"A report was made on the problem considered by
the Argentinian-Chllean Joint Commission bearing on
the situation created by the impossibillty to
determine, demarcate and dellneate on the topograph-
ical charts the international boundary in strict
agreement with the outline of the frontier drawn on
the topographical charts forming part of His British
Majesty's Arbitration findings because some parts of
this outline do not agree exactly wlth the geograph-
ical reality of the terraln, a circumstance which
undoubtedly has induced the former to mention as
points on the line some hills which, by the new
surveys, nave been proved not to be on the fixed
line., In the cases where the Arbitration, when
describing the boundary line, actually mentions
hills that are not on it, it 1s recommended to
carry d"% the dcmarcafion dlsregarding the said
points {(Underlinings addéd)

Whatever assumption the Argentine Delegation may have made

about the Cerro Virgen,the above passage would seem to

confirm that, in the view of the Argentine Chancellery,
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whenever it is shown that a "Cerro" mentioned by name
in the Award is not in fact on the line intended by the

Arbitrator that Cerro should be disregarded in carrying

‘out the demarcation.

68. As to the statement on page 154 of the Argentine
Memorial that, by subscribing to Minute 55, the Chilean
fepresentatives on the Commission_"were no‘longer assert-
ing that Cerro Central was the mountain named Virgen in
the 1902 Award)' reference is made to the footnote to
paragraph 65 above., While the general thesls propounded
by the Chilean Delegation that the boundary lald down by
the Award follows the Encuentro to its source on the slopes
of =a high watershed is correct, it is true that it went
beyoﬁd the historical evidence when it sought to show that
the Pico Virgen was indeed the mounbain named Virgen in
the Award, The.Chilean Government, for its part, has made
1t c¢lear both in its Memorial and at the oral hearings in
December 1965 that it does not in any way dispute the
1dentification of the Cerro Virgen as the "Cerro” mentiond
in the Award. It considers that the Chilean Delegation
was correct in its first belief that the course of the
River Encuentro to its source on the slopes of a mountain
forming part of a high watershed =~ which can only be a
mountain of the Cordon de las Virgenes - 1s the basic
determining element for locating the boundary lald down

by the 1902 Award in this Sector. The Cerro Virgen, the
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Chilean Government thinks, must be discarded for two
reasons: first, if the Cerro Virgen is retained as a
boundary point 1t 1is impossible to trace a continuous
boundary along the Encuentro'to Post 17 of the character
Intended by the 1902 Award: and secondly, the naming of
the Cerro Virgen as a boundary point in the 1902 Award i1s
inextricably mixed up with the fundamental geographical
error regarding the tributaries of the Encuentro and
Salto,

69, Furthermore, the Chilean Delegation's abandonment of
the Pico Virgen when subscribing to Minute 55 has to be
seen in perspective, The Chilean Delegation had been
persuaded by the Argentine Delegation at the meeting of
November 1955 to give up its own thesis, "approve" the
segment between Post 17 and the Cerro Virgen and "propose"
a compromise line along the Arroyo Lopez - Arroyo Mallines
by reasoning based on an incorrect legal approach to the
interpretation of the Award and on a map prepared by
Argentine experts which gave a seriously incorrect repre-
sentation of the relation. between the "major" and "minor"
channels. The defects of the map sheet have been pointed
out on papges 299~301 of the Chilean Memorial and, in
particular, the fact that the Arroyo Lopez was marked with
a double line while thoe "major channel", twice 1ts size,
was given a single "hair" line. TIn other words, the

interpretation placed by Argentina on the Chilean
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Delegation's abandonment of the Pico Virgen and "approval"

of the Post 17 - Cerro Virgen segment ig, 1n the view of
the Chilean Government, invalidated by the defects in the
map and by the fundamental legal defects in the whole of
the Commission's conclusions in Minute 55 regarding the
Post 16'; Post 17 Sector. The Chilean Delegation's
chanée of position'was, in short, as much vitiated by
the errors of law and‘of cartogranhy perpetrated by the
Mixed Commission, as the conclusions of the Commission

itself.

70. River Encuehtro. lThe Argentine Memorial, in paragraph
147, refers té:the'above;menfioned passage from the
"Informative Report" for 1941~7 in connection also with

the River Encuentro. The final paragraph of this passage
reads: '

"There are serious defects In the Map used by
the British Demarcators on which the dividing
line -was plotted, especlially in the section covering
the hydrographlc basin of the River Incuentro iu its
upper and middle course, For thils reason the
jdentification and materialisation on the ground of
this Sector of the boundary line has caused
difficulties which the Mixed Commission 1s at
present trylng to resolve.”

On this the Argentine Government commonts that 1t shows
"that at the time the Mixed Commission consildered that a
problem existed concernling the River Encuentro'. This
observation 1s somewhat equivocal, since 1t may be taken
to imply that the Rlver Encuentro itself was even then

regarded by the Commission as a "oroblem".  But what the
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Report says is that the Map of the 1902 Award had serious

defeets, especlally in regard to the hydrographic basin

of the River Encuentro in its upper and middle course,

and that these defects made the location of the boundary

difficult In the Sector,

In polnt of fact the records of the Commission contaln
a“very clear statement as to the River Encuentro system
by Lt.Col. Cumplido, a Chllean delegate, which 1s of the
same date as the "Informative Report" (19&7). The
relevant extract from Minute No., 33 is set out on page
278 of the Chilean Memorial and, in view of the Argentine
conmment on the Informative Report, 1% merlts a little
further consideration, I%.Col. Cumplido, as the Mlnute
records, had been specially charged with the mission of
"reconnoltring the ground" in order to report on the types
of survey which would be posgsible in the area. &4s the
records of the Commission contain no other document
giving the results of an inspection of the River
Encuzntro system by the Commlission on the ground, fthe
report of 1t,Col, Cumplido has a speclal intercest. The
relevant passage reads:

"As a result of his inspection, it appears that
it would only be possible ¥o survey with plane

table in the normal manner the lower basin of the

River Incucntro, the basin of fthe Arroyo Mallines

{n tributary of the Encuentro which runs fromn south

fo north) and the zone more to the south called

California, as far as the Junction of the River

Engano with the River Tigre. The rest of the
Sector, especially the River Encuentro in 1is
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upper and middle course, through being very
enclosed, would only permit¥ of a dircet survey

by plane table provided the technical requiremcnts
were sultably lessened." (Underlining added).

There is no trace in this report or anywhere in Minute'BE
thét anyone 1in the Commission then saw any problem as to
which watercourse is the River Encuentro or as to tﬂe
relationship between the Arroyo Mallines and the "major
channel",

71. The Argentine Government reverts to the Rilver
Encuentro in paragraphs 165-171 of its Memorial in
commenting upon the proposal in Minute 55 for the middle
sectlon of thg line. First, it emphasises that "the
recommended solution was not intended to be an interpre;
tation and fulfilment of the 1902 Award" but a course
which the Commission took as "most suilted to a practical
solution', Then it observes that the recommended solutim
was that the boundary should proceed southwardé along the

River Encuentro to its source determined by the Commissicn

to be at Portezuelo de las Raices and then "continue,

28 a compromise solution, from that sourcec to the top of

Cerro de la Virgen". Finally, having again emphasised
the "compromise" character of the recommended solution
and noted 1ts rejection by Chile, the Argentine Govern-
ment concludes :
"This Court may well feel that, for the purpose
of 1ts task, the real value of paragraph (e? of

Item 4 of Act No, 55 /Fhe nroposal for the middle
sectiqﬁ? is in 1ts identification of the course of
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the Rlver Encuentro by fixil 1%8 gource at the
rraphical cocrdinates given /i. e. Portezuclo de 1a

72. The Commission's so~called "identification" of the

' of its source

course of the River Encuentro and "fixing'
at the Portezuelo de las Ralces are, in the submission of
the Chilecan Government, completely erroneous In fact and

“ wholly invalid in law. It has set out 1ts reasons for
this submission with some fullness on pages 319;337 of

the Memorial, to which it asks the Court to refer. Briefly,
what occurred in this connectlon at the meeting of

October 1955 was as follows. The Chilean Delegation, in
the proposals which it placed before the Commlission at

the first session on 20th October, expressed 1ts complete
disagreement with the Argentine Delegation as to the

course of the River Encuentro upstream of its junction
with the arroyo Lopez, and itself adopted the "major
channel" as the line of the boundary in the north. Again,
in its supplementary memorandum it recorded 1ts cxpress
reservations regarding the nomenclature of the map sheets
of the Commlssion, specifying that these reservations
related to the "places referred to as "River Encuentro”

!

and "Falgo Engano".' In short the Chilean Delegation took
up ¢ position with regard to the River Encuentro which
was precisely the same as that:

(2) of the Argentine experts Frey and Alvarez in

1903 and 1907 respectively;
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(b) of the irgentine Government itself in
1913;i4;

(¢} of the Chilean Government and local
authofities consistently after 1914 and apparently
also of the Argentine local authorities for somé
years;

(d)" of Lt.Col. Cumplido in his technical report
%0 the Commission in 1047 ;

(e) of General Helbling, Chairman of the
Argenfine Boundary Commission, and of General
Levene, former DiTectOr of’ the Argentine Military
Geographical Institute in 1952 (see page 341 of
the Chilean Memorial). _

Yet, almost at the end of'the meeting the Chilean
Delegation did a sudden volte~face, cndorsed the joint
proposal and at the same time subscribed to the statement
In Annexure 5 that ?he source of the River Encucentro is
at a point on the slope of the Portezuelo de las Raices.
In the Minute 1tself the Commission referred to this point
only as the source éf the western arm of the River
Encuentro, but in Annexure 5 the Commission gave the peint
as the source of the River Encucntro.

T3, The last-minute volte;faoe of the Chileaﬁ Delegation
is scarcely comprehensibvle, except on the basis either :
that the Delegation was misled by the misrepresentation

of the "major" and "minor" channcls on the map-sheets
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of the Commission and the speclous scientific arguments Part Three

of the Argentine Delegation, or else that 1t abandoned
its own appreciation of the geographlical facts and of

the meaning of the Award for the sake of reachlng a
compromise., The Chlilean Delegation had malntained its
initial position both in the Sub;Commission and 1In the
full Commlission until the penultimate session, and no

new c¢lement of faet had been introduced 1nto the debate
at that scssion. General Urra, Chalrman of the Delega:
tion, made no attempt in his report to the Chilean
Foredign Ministry to explain the reasons which now led

him to suppose that the Arroyos Mallines : Lopez
constitute the River Encuentro (see pages‘347;9 of the
Chilean Memorial). Nor did he glve any such explana;
tions 1n the supblementary report which he submitted

when called upon to amplify his first report. He simply
asserted, without giving any rcasons, that California

is "o the HEast of the River Encuentro and 1s not Chilean"
(sée pages 351-5 of the Chilean Memorlal, especially

page 354). Only when a storm of protest and criticism
had blowﬂ up In the Chilean Congress did General Urra

set down, in the memorandum reproduced as Annex 25 %o

the Argentine Memorial, the reasons by which he purported
to jJustlfy his acceptance of the "minor channel" as the
River Encuentro, Thls memorandum, although entitled

"Ministry of Foreign Affairs”, was produced by General
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Part Three Urra without authority, and has no official character,
It is Chapter III (pages 43;50 of the Annex) which con-
tains his explanations regardiﬁg the River éncuentro and
it is only.nécessary to glance at 1t to sece how erroneous
are those explanations and how completely he misdirected
himself as to the implications of the geographical error

in the 1902 Award regarding the source of the Encuentro,

T4, General Urra's explanations., First, General Urra

criticises the use of the ferm "branch", but says that
since the term is uéed in the Report he will accept 1%.
What never seems to have occurred to him elther in writing
the memorandum or in advancing the very‘complioaﬁed
argument of the Chilean Dclegation concerning the western
branch of the Encuentro at the meeting of October;November
1955 1s that the confusion of the "branches" of the Salto
‘with those of fhe Encuentro in 1902 deprived the reference
to the "western branch of fhe Rlver Encuentro" in the 1902
Report of any relevance whatever, His explanations show
that he was mistakenly breocecupled with ldentifying the
"western branch of the Encuentro", as indeed clearly
appears from his Little Chart of the Encuentro fiver
system designated "Figura 11 Esquema General de 1los
factores hidrograficos de 1a hoya del Rio Encucntro.”

Secondly, General Urra prefaces his "geographical
study of the basin of the River Encuentro with the

observation: "When the Arbitrator analyscd the frontier
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line without going over the actual terrain, he looked

towards the south of the valley which now forms the

Arroyvo Topez and took it to be the Riwver Encuentro".
There is not a vestige of foundation for this observation.
Certainly none will be found in the pleadings or evidence
of either side in ﬁhe present case. If one thing is
clear on the evidence it is that Sir Thomas Holdich never
saw the Valley of the Arroyo Lopez - the California
Valley; and wherever General Urra got ﬁhe idea from, it
was an error of the first magnitude. If this figment of
General Urra's imagination operated on his mind at the
prenultimate session of the Mixed Commission in 1955, this
might serve to explain how - and for what erroneous
reasons - he became disposed to allow the Arroyo Lopez

to be christened the River Encuentro.

Thirdlx, General Urra simply asserts, without giving
any scientific grounds for his assertion, that "the River
Engano was a watercourse constituting a hydrographic
source draining into the River Palena (forming the western
branch of the River Encuentro) and that subsequently this
Salto, its course being diverted so that it became a
tributary of the latter." He does not pause to ask him-
self the obvious question as to how, on the basis of his
theory, the Portezuelo de las Raices could have come to

be where and as it is. In fact, as Dr. R.P.Beckinsale
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explains in his Report (Annex No. 40), the physilcal
evidence of the formation of the whole Rio Encuentro =
California = Rio Engatrio area is opposed to the thesis

asserted by General Urra. The Portezuelo de las Railces

“was formed by lacustrine deposit, while the Engaﬁb, the

Mallines, the Lopez and the Encuentro all separately
incised thelr own beds in draining the area towards the

Palena. But in any event, General Urra's excursion into

_the possible geomorphologlcal counnection between the R{o

Engaho and Rio Encuentro was quite irrelevant, since fthe
only task entrusted to him was to locate on the ground
and to demarcate the boundary laid down by the 1902
Tribunal and by 1902 the Portezuelo de 1ds Raices had
been.in exigtence since time immemorial.

Fourthly, General Urra serves up as his own argpments
advanced by the aArgentine Delegation in the Commlssion
regarding the "prevalling south;north direction” of the
River Encuentro and regafding the role of the Mallines~
Lopez as the "principal collector' for the area. His
contention that the "prevailing direction” of the total
River Encuentro 18 south;north 1s highly disputable. As
pointed out by Chile at the oral hearings in December
1965, the major channel together with the lower~section
have a prevailing north;westerly flow to the River Palena,
which is at least comparable to the south~north flow of

the minor channel plus lower-~section; and at the same
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time 21l the physical evidence points to the "major
channel" - 1ower:seotion comblnation fepresenting the
unified stream of the Encuentro rather than the "minor
channel" - 1ower;soction combination. General Urra's
observations that the Mallines;Lopez is the ma jor river
because it 1s the "base;level" of the "major channel"
while the River Palena is the "base;level" of the
Encuentro lacks any sclentific Justificatlon. The same
is true of hils further observation that because the

"ma jor channel" falls by 450 metres whereas the "minor
channel” has a minimum gradient, the true direction of
the river must be that of the "minor channel". These
are pure assertions; and 1t 1s remarkable that General
Urra had nothing to say about the greater length of the
ma jor channel and the similarlty of the formation of
the major channel with that of the 1ower¥segtion.
Furthermore, as Dr, Beckinsale points out, the mlnor
channel in fact falls into the major channel at the
confluence, and is evidently the_tributary stream, (see
paragraph 4 (¢)(v) of his Report, Annex 40). As to

General Urra's arguments that the "river named as 'River

Zncucntro! by the Mixed Commission 1s the principal

collector of the imbriferous basin" and thatAits valley
1s the chief valley of the orohydrographical basin, these
arguments were borrowed from the Argentine Delegation and

are open to all the objections set out on pages 321-2 of
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the Chilean Memorial. In addition, the Chllean Government
submits, they arc simply blown to pieces by the scientific
explanations of the Historical origins of the Mallines,
Lopez and Incucntro given by Dr. Beckinsale and by his
careful account of thelr relation tc each other.

75. In passing, 1t may be remarked that it clearly
appears from General Urra's whole argumentation and from

his phrase "the River namcd as River Fncuentro by the

Mixed Commission" that he considered the naming of the
Lrroyo Mallines -~ Arroyo Lopez as the River Encuentro to
have been the act of the Mixed Commission ifself in 1955,
1% may further be remarked that General Urra on the final
page of hls memorandum concludes :

"Thus the true hydrographical basin of the
Encucntro, in accordance with the terrain as it
actually is and as falthfully reproduced in the
cartography of the Mixed Commission, consists of
the River Encuentro itsclf and 1ts castern
tributaries such 2s the River Falso Engaho and
others, and the most westerly coursc is the River
Encuentro (Mallines, which flows into the Estero
or rivulet Lopcz and the latter in_turn flows_1nto
the River Encuentro); +the view that the boundary
should be plotted along the River Encuentro along
its headwaters is thus fully borne oubt."
(Underlining added).

The Court wiil sce from”this passage that Genéral Urra
had failed altogether to observe.that the Mixed Com~
mission map, so far from faithfully reproducing "'the
true hydrographical basin of the River Encucntro",
totally misrepresented the relative sizes of the "major

and 'minor" channels. This aspect of the Conmisslon's
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alleged "ldentification" of the course and source of the Part Thre
River Encuentro will be further examlned in the follow-

ing poragraphs., Here, the Court is merely asked to

note that General Urra did not detect this fundamental

defect in the Commisslon's map. The Court 1s also ask-~

ed to note the passage in brackets where General Urra

states explicitly, as 1s Indeed the fact, that the

Mallines flows into the Lopez, not vice versa, and that

it is the Lopez whichlrhaving>collgpted the Mallines,

flows into the River Encuentro, Characteristically

he does not pause to say how this undoubtedly correct
presentation of the structure of the "minor channel"
can be reconclled with his sclentific Jargon about the
Mollines being the "principal collector" dr with his
dogmatic assertion that "It is never the case that more
than one river flows through a valley, ravine or floor
of an orographical basin such as the basin with which
we are concerned,”

76. In short, in the submlission of the Government of
Chile, General Urra's explanations of hils acceptance
of the "minor channel" as the River Encuentro are
riddled with errors and inconsistencies, while his
precoccupation with the "western branch" of the River
Encuentro shows that he fundamentally misdirected him-~
sell as to the legal implications of the geographical

error regarding the tributaries of the River Encuentro
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for the interpretation of the 1902 jward,

77. The Commlssion's defective survey-map, In para=-

graphs 166-7 of its Memorial the Argentine Government
makes two polnts regarding the survey map used by the
Commission in connection with its formulation of the
"joint proposal" and its "identification" of the course
of the River Incuentro, First, having stated that the
Commission "had drawn up a map strictly in accordance
with the procedure laid down by it", 1% emphasises thet
"the area included in the map comprises the zone within
which the Mixed Commission expected that the boundary
WOuld be situatea. And in thls connectlion, 1t makes

the point that no objection was ever raised from the

Chilean slde in respect of the area surveyed and mapped.

Secondly, 1t asks the Court to find slgnificance
in the titles given to Sheets VII-2 and VIIQB ~ Cerro
de la Virgen Qnd Rfo Tncuenbtro respectively, It
observes that the practice of the Commission was to
entitle & Sheet with both the Argentine and the Chilean
nomes of the most important geographical feature when-
ever there were different names adopted in cach country.
Then it asks why the Chilean rebresentatives did not
propose that Sheet VII-3 should be given a title which
included the names Estero Lopexz or Estero Los Malllnes,
which subsequently they propoved as alfternatlve names

for part of the River Encuentro.
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78. The Chilean Delegation did not draw attention at an
earlier stage to the whole sxtent of the area opened up
for debéte In consequence of the geographlcal error,

In the event, what happened was that thosé responsible
for carrying out the zerial survey and preparing the map
sheets worked on the basis of an area 5km, either side
of the erroneous line dréwn on the map accompanying the
1902 Jward, The work was done in 1953 and, as the
results came 1n, the Chilean Delegation began to address
1tself to the question of the actual line Which 1% should
proposea, In a memorandum of 21st September 1954 to

the Chilean Ministry of Forelgn Affairs, General Urra
sketched out his ideas regarding the boundary

(Chilean Memorial, pages 291-5),  On 25th Oectober of
the same year the firgentine Deiegation handed over
photographic coples of the relevant map sheets, VII-1,
VII-2 and VII—B. In April 1955 the Lrgentine
Delegation handed over further coples of the sheets
showing the boundary traced in éccordance with its
proposals; and only at the end of August did General
Urra give instructions to his staff to study and form-
ulate in detail the line to be proposed by Chile.
Inevitably, since this line followed the "major channel",
1t had %o be presented, not on the relevant "map sheets"
but on a map prepared in the Chilean Milltary Geographi -

cal Institute. ut, as pointed out on pages 315-16 of
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Part Three the Chilean Memorial, any omission on the part of

Chilean Delegates with regard to the aerlal survey could
not possibly Justify fthe Argenﬁine Delegation in claim-~
ing that the Chilean proposal was thereby invalidated.
The functlon of the Mixed Commission was to atitempt to
locate and,dema?cate the boundary in the Sector and to
do so in accordance with the 1902 iAward. If the
Chilean thesls as to the coursc of the boundary was

correct, it was the duty of the lilxed Commlssion to

apply it on the ground and on thc maps, notwithstanding

any failings of the Chilean Delegation in its methods of

work. The Court may well think that the very fact that

the survey maps were prepared on the basis of a five

Kllometres strip on elther side of the crroncous 1line

of the 1902 Map shows that the Commigsion's initial

approach to the problem of the FPost 16 - Post 17 Sector
misconceived fundamentolly the effect of the geographlenl
error on the interpretation of the 1902 Lward,

79. As to the titles to the Map-Sheets, the conclusions
which the Argentine Government seeks to draw from the
supposed failure of the Chilesan Delegation to asX for
the names Lopez or Mallines to be added to the Rfo
Encuentro sheet appear to the Chilean‘Government tc be
somewhat far-fetched, The names Lopez and Maliines
were not and never have been, 'alternative names " for

any part of thc River Encuentro, Indaed, 1t might




similarly be asked of Argentina why her delegation did
not ask for the name "Falso Engano" o be included in
the title. In any event, the most important feature
in the sheet is the River Encuentro, the lower section
of which was correctly portrayed, and thereforec the
sheet was adequately ti1tled. /Furthermore, the mapé
were produced in the fArgentine Miliﬁary Geogfaphical
Instiltute and handed over to the‘Chilean Delegation in
the form of‘photographic coples, The Chilean counter=
proposals and the Chilean map supporting those counter-
proposals deplcted the frroyos Mallines and Lopez and
the River Encﬁentro with thelr correet nomenclature and
not with that of the Argentine-produced maps. More=-
over, 1n its explanatory memorandum and agaln in its
supplementary memorandum the Chilean Delegation under-
lined 1ts disagreement with the Argentine concept of
the Rlver Encuentro and with the nomenclature used on
those maps. The Argentine Memorial omits to take any
account of these reactlons on the part of the Chilean
Delegation.

80, The Argentine Memorial omlts to draw the Court's
attention to 2 much more slgnificant feature of Map
Sheets VII-2 (Cerro de la Virgen) and VII-3 (Rio
Encuentro) - their extremely matéﬁ.al and quite inex-
chéable eérors In the presentation of the relative

sizes of the "major" and "minor" channels and of the

277.

Part Three




Part Three structure of the Arroyos Mallines - Lopez. Some of
these errors were pointced out on pages 299-300 of the
Chilean Memorial, where stress was lald on the fact
that on Shecet VII—BIﬁhe Lrroyo Lopez, which 1s half the
size of the major channel, is marked with a largs double
1ine in the same manner as the lower egction dovmstream
of the confluence, while the ma jor channel 1s marked
with the thinnest possible "hair" line.” A% the oral
hearing on 30th December 1955 the Argentine Government
appears to have suggested to the Court that the "hair
1ine™" shown on the Map Sheet for the "major channel"”
was correct in 1955 but nceds modification to-day as &
result of a land¥slide. Counsel then sald:

"HQwevcr, the represcntation of the River Falso
Engario immediately above the confluence with the
River Encuentro on the Mixed Commission'!s map....
now requires modification, for above the confluence
the River Falso Engano is subject o short~-term
changes of course, width of bed and velume. A
recent landslide has diverted the river, so that
the Mixed Commnission's Map sheet no longer
accurately represents its course,. The River
Palso Zngano at its confluence with the River
Fnecuentro is morce than 5 metres wide and, 1like

the Encuentro, should be represented on the map
by a double blue line ...."

The Chilean Government cannot accept this suggestion as
well-founded. The small fall of rock upstrean of the
confluence may have turned the flow of the "ma jor
channel" slightly but it certainly did not so change
i1ts bed as to JuStify the opparent suggestion of the

Argentine Government that, as a result, the major
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channel now, but only now, quallfies for the double | Part Threec

11ne which 1t was not accorded in the survey Map, (see
sketeh map CH. (CM)6). | If the Court will be good
cnought to look aéain at Argentine Map A 31, 1t will

ses a contrasting presentation of the "major" and
"minor" channels in the viecinlty of the confluence
which, in the Chilean Government's submlssion, bears no
relation at all to the actual facts elther as they are
now or as they were twelve years ago.b

81. But the matter does not rest there. At the foot
of Sheet VII-3 (Argentine Map A 31), where the fLrroyo
Mallines Jjolns the Arroyo Lopez, tﬁe Iittle Mallines

is marked by a substantial line notlceably thicker than
that which marks the much larger Arroyo Lopez, Indeed;
the 1ittle Mallines there appears %o be larger even than
the "major channel" at 1%s confluence with the Arroyo
Lopez. Then at the top of Sheet VII-2 (Argentiﬁe Map
4.30) - at a spot to which the Minutes of the Head of
the ﬁield Mission and of Major Rushworth and the letiers
of the Argentine Agent have drawn particular attention

- the 1ittle ditch, the stripling Encuentro as we.are
asked to believe, is marked with a firm line almost as
far as 1ts trickling source, while the longer, larger,
course of the Arroyo Mallinés, rising in the Cordon de
los Morros and having o flow ten times that of the

1ittle ditch, has to be content with a broken, scarcely
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82, In short, on the Commission's Map Sheets VII-2 and
VII-3, made in the Argentine Milltary Geographical
Tnstitute, the Argentine Delegation’s version of the

River Encuentro, from its Junction with the Palena

almost to its very end under the Portezuclo de las
Raices, 1s marked with a continuous thick "spine" not

justified by the facts on the ground and making 1t

appear to dominate the much larger watercourses of the

"ma jor channel", the irroyo Lopez, and the upper

Mr1llines.,

- 83, DNeither the compromise nor the Argentine line o

proper interpretation of %the 1902 Award., Before leave=

ing the proceedings in the Mixed Boundary Commission
relating to the boundary between Posts 16 and 17, the
Chilean Government invites the Court's attention to
two‘observations regarding the tracing of the line in
this Sector, one by the Argentine Government and the

other by General Urra.

On page 158 of its Memorial the 4rgentine Govern-
ment states that "the recommended solution / i.c. the
1ine from Portezuelo de'las Raices stralght across the

Engano to the Cerro Virgen complozz was not intended to

be an intergretation and fulfil~ceunt ¢f the 1902 Awnrd

and was accordingly put forward nerely os a proposal,.

" (Underlining added). This statement is
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certainly correct and, as the Argentine Government 1tself
has put forward a different line in the Memorial, 1t
seems £o be common ground that the "eompromisc linc
could not constitute a '"proper interpretation and ful-
filment" of the 1902 Award, |
The line put forward by the Argentine Government in

“the Memorial is exactly the same as that which 1ts
delegation submitted to the Mixed’ Boﬁndary Commission

In 1955, as the Court can see from thevdescriptiQn of
that 1line on pages 301-2 of the Chilean Memorial, It
1s fherefore of some interest to note that General Urra
in his second report explalning what had happened at the
meeting of October-November 1955 listed among "the cone
clusions come to on that occasicn" the following (see
page 352 of the Chilean Memorial):

"That the draft line proposed by Argentina
green line on the map) did not,f%% in with
t award nor with the. Report, de ¢
fact thot generally speaking it follows the
game _torm as deplcted on the Map used by the
arbitrator. The sald line passes along the
upper reaches of the River Engano and the
lower reaches of the River Salto or Tigre,
which 1s the one which rises In the Cerro
Virgen. The Chilean Cormisslion rejected
this proposal, seeing that none of these
rivers 1s mentloned in the description made

by the Arbitrator and the Arbiltration Tribunal,"
(Underlining Added).

@)

84, It 1s the Argentine Government which attaches so
nwch importance to the conclusions of the Commlssion.

The Chilean Government, as the Court is aware, ccnsiders
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that the Mixed Commission misdirected itself fundament-
ally as to the effect of the geographical error on the
neaning and application of the 1902 Award; and that its
conclusions werc further vitiated by fundamental geo-
graphical errors as to the course and source of the
River Encuentro. The Chilean Government, therefore,
contents itself with observing that the prooeedings of
the Mixed Boundary Cqmmission clearly provide no support
for the view.that the linc propounded by Argentina in
her Memorial could be arrived at on the basis of "a
proper interpretation and fulfilment" of the 1902
Award. |

CHAPTERS VIII and TX

CONSIDERATION OF THE BOUNDARY DETWEEN POSTS 16
TWO GOVERNMENTS AND DEVELOPMENLS
THE REJECTION OF THE LINE PROPOSED
BY THE TIXED COMMISSION

85. The Argentine Government in Chapter VII of its
Memorial has dealt comparatively briefly with the
events and the diplomatic correspondence subsequent
to the drawing up of Minute 55. Chile, on the other
hand. in Chapters VIII and IX of Part Three of her
Memorial has examined at some length the diplomatic
exchanges between the two Govermments before and after
Minute 55 and the incidents and events in the Sector

subsequent to that Minute. The Chilean Govermment,
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therefore, having already covered the matters raised in Part Three
Chapter VII of the Argent:lne‘Memorial, has little to ‘
2dd here to what it has sald to the Court in Part Three,

Chapters VIII and IX of its Memorial. It will 1limit

itseif to correcting one matter of‘fact iIn Chapter VIII

in the light of a new document which has come %o 1ts

notice since the delivery of the Memorlial and to

commenting briefly on a few points contained in the
Argentine Memorial.

86, Commencement of iLrgentine incursions into

California, . -

Oﬁ pagev338 of her Memorial, at the beginning of Chapter
VIII of Part Three, Chile has stated that on 25th

July 1952 the Commander of the loecal Argentine
Gendaraerie suddenly appcared in the Rio Encuentro ;
California areas, Interfering with the Chilean settlers
and asserting that the boundary ran along the "minor

channel"

and thence across the Ingano directly to the
Cerro Virgen complex; and that this incident brought
the ppoblem of the dgmarcation of the boundary between
Posts 16 and 17 sharply to the attention of the two
Governments, This statement is entirely éorrect, and
the diplomatic exchanges between the two Governments
began with the Chilean protest regarding this incident,
delivered by the Chilean .Ambassador on 21lst August 1952

(Chilean innex No, U457 at page 244), At the time of
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writing the Memorlal the Chilean Government was under
the impresslon that this had been the first incldent of
the kind, An internal document in the Fereign Minlctry
has now come to hand, however, which shows that simlilar
incidents had occurred at an earlier daté. This 1s a
letter of 26th May 1947 from the Chilean Consul 1n
Esquel to the Chilean Minister of Foreign Affalrs, the
full text of which will be found at Annex No. 8 o this
Counter;Memorial. The Consul there informs the
Minister that Argentine Gendarmes from Carrenleufu

have been penetrating into Chilean terrltory and trying
to hinder the work of the surveyorfpf the Chillean
Minlstry of Lands, Mr. Carvajal; and that thoy had becn

telling the Chilean settlers that they werc on LArgentine

térritory and threatening them, The Consul's letter

then goes on;

"The Chilecan~Argentine Mixed Boundary Com-
mission this surmer met in that zone and
established that the right bank of the River
Encuentro is Argentine and that the left bank
is Chilean, and informed Carabineros in Palena
and Gendarmerie in Carrenleufu accordingly,
wnieh means that both police forces werce pers-

. feetly aware of the ground they patrol and
have been instructed in that respect.
Czrobineros obey, but not so Gendarmerie,
who seem 0 lgnore the instructions recelved.”

That the Consul understood the boundary o be the
"major channel” is clearly evidenced by the fact that he
referrcd to the Chilean settlers affected, namely

Dionisioc Ovalle S, Juan Hernandez G. and Ieonilda Cid de
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Contreras, all of whom llved south of the "major channel
and east of the "mlnor channel". The year 1947 was of
course the yoér in which "Informative Report'" was com;~
pleted and in which Lt Col. Cumplido, on the iInstruce
t1ons of the Mixed Commission, "reconnoltred the ground"”
and reported on the forms cof survey which could be
undertalken along the River Encuentrc (the major channel)
and the Arroyo Mallines, . .

The Consul's letter then tells the Minister that
 these acts of the Argentine Gendarmerie "have been
taking‘plac@ for some time now toFdate"; and that he
has made several complaints to the heads of Gendarméfie
at Esquel requesting them to instruct the personnel at
Carrenleufu "to abstain from entering Chllean territory
to threaten the settlers and much less to tell theso—
people that the land they occupy 1s Argentine and that
the surveys being made are void", It points out that
Chilean settlers are obliged to go into Argentine
ﬁerritory for some of thelr supplles and that this gives
the Gendarmerie the opportunity to make things diffi-
cult for themnm, It further states that the Consul has
handled the matter with cautlon and tact and has made
his verbal complaints in as friendly a manner as
possible to avoid disagreeable friction between

Carabineros and Gendarmeric and greater evils,

87. The Chilean Consul's letter certainly indicates
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zrt Threo that the local Gondarmerie had made some dncursions
into California a few years before 1952 and had sought
to interfere with the Chllean settlers. As the letter
indicotes, these incursions had been dealt with at the
local level and had not been taken up between the two
Chancellcrles, Trespassing over the boundary occurred
not infrequcently along the extended and mountainous
frontler between the two countrles, and it was common

enough thot not every incident should be brought at

once %o the Chancelleries for action, In the present
instance 1% was the determined incursion of the
Co@mandcr of the Gendarmeric into California on 25th
July 1952, his aggressive attempt to subject the
Chilean settlers to Argentine Jurisdiction, his state-
ment that he was acting on the express orders of his
superiors and his claim to be basing himself on the

Provisional Map of the Argentine Military Georgraphical

Tnstitute that 1i1fted the matter on to the diplometic
planc, . But although the account on page 338 of the
Memorial of the beginning of the diplomatic exchanges
.1s for th&breason true enough, the Chilean Government
thinks 1t right, in the light of the new document, to
correct the impression which the Court may have gained
from the Memorial that th2 incidun® of 25th July 1952
was the very first occasion on which an Argentine

gendarme made an incursion across the Rlver Encuentro
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into California.

83, The lectter of the Chilean Consul at Esquel, the
Court will observe, provides further evidence of the
Chilean character of the scettlers In Célifornia and of
the clear undérstanding of the Chilean authorlties in
1947 that California lay on the left - Chilean - bank
of the River Incuentro. Tt also provides evidence
that the Chilean settlers in California felt themselves
to be in Chilean territory and regarded the {Argentine
Gendarmerie as "foreign police"., Equally, it pfovides
evidence of the Surveyor of the Chilean Ministry of
Lands‘in California at that date carrylng out his
normal task of surveying the Chilean landholdings in
the area..

89, A further letter from the subsequent Chilcan
Consul at Esquel dated 20th jugust 1952, has also

come %o light since the Chllean Memorial was prepared.
I% 15 1ncluded as Annex No,., 30, and the Court's
attention is directed to it for amplification of the
description of the incident of July 1952 given on

page 338 of %the ChileanFMemorial and for conteﬁ;
poraneous <evidence of the reasction of the settlers.

90. Chilean rejection of the Commission's Conclusions

for the whole Scetor between Posts 16 and 17.

Paragraphs 173-178 of the Argentine Memorilal-

set out Argentinals account of the reactions of the
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two Governments to Minute 55.

They lay considerable

stress on the facts that (a) the Chllean Forclgn

Minister's statement to the Senate of 14 December 1955,

(b) the Chilcan Note of 19 December 1955, (c) the

President‘s declarution of 25 February 1956 and (d) the

further Chilean Note of 27 February 1955 all rplatbd to

the "joint proposal"

and made no reference to the

commission's decisions regarding the northern and southern

segments. These facts lead the

make two observations. First,

Argentine Government to

it observes that frgentina

was led to belleve that thosc declsions were final and

accepted by both Parties. Sccondly, it obscerves that "1t

was not until a Note, dated 18

Chilean Foreign Ministry %o the

April 1956, from the

Argentine Ambassador in

Santiago, that the Chilecan Government qucstioned the

binding effect of the unanimous
Cdmmission relating to what may
to as the northern and southern
lire in the Sector”.

91, The Chilean Government has
the relevant Notcs and official

370 of 1ts Memorial. It is, of

that, the "joint proposal’ having

decisions of the Mixed
be conveniently referrcd
parts of the boundary
presented and analysed
statements on pages 5“0«
gourse, |

understandable

becn speelifically

preferred to the Chancelleries for decision, attention

should have been focussed on thet

which the proposal related. It
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that, the proposal having besn presented by the Mixed
Comaission on photogrammatric maps drawn on a scale of
only 1:50,000 and completely distorting the river system
of the Encuentro, the Foreign Minister and his officials
should not at once have reallsed allithe Implications of
Minute 55. But the short delay in finding out all the
meaning and consecguences of Mihqbe.SS éhd all the implica~
tions of the Commission's concluslons regarding the two
terminal segments cannot be interpreted as a taclt
recognition by Chile of the binding force of those
conclusions,

2. Nor doeg the statement in the Argentlne Memorial,
that Argentina was thereby led to belleve that Chile had
accepted the Commission's concluslons regarding the two
terminal segments, appear to carry any conviction, Having
regard to the Commission's outright rejeebion'of the
Argentine proposal for joining Post 16 to the Cerro de la
Virgen as incompatible with the 1902 Award, 1t was
evident that, 1f the "joint proposal" were to fail of
acceptance, the whole questlion of the boundary between
Posts 16 and 17 must be in the melfting pot. Furthermore,
when confronted with Chile's rejection of the "joint
proposal”, thebArgentine Government did not either in its
public statement of 26 February 1956 or in its diplomatic
Note of 6 March 1956 make the slightest suggestlon that

it believed Chile to have accepted the Commission's
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conclusions regarding the terminal segments. On the
contrary both in the public sﬁatement and in the Notc

the sole ground advanced by the Argentine Goveranment for
its considering the "decisiong" in Minute 55 %o be binding
was the effect of Article &6 of theAProtbcol. Nor did the
Argentine Covernment ever make any such suggestion in any
of ite subsequent diplomatic Netes. Turthermone, it 1s
eVident that, when the President of Chile gave instructionsg,
fof the position %o be restored to the state existing
prior to the meeting at whlch Minute 55 was drawn up, the
Argentine Government immediatoly interpreted this as an

attempted rejection of the whole of the Commission's

conclusions regarding the Sector, Otherwlse, 1% is

difficult to underétahd why , without even walting for
Chile's official notification through the diplomatic
channel, the Argentine Foreign Minister should have made
a public declaration on 26 Februéry 1956 raising the

question of the two termlinal segments and specifically

invoking Article 6 with respect to them.

g3, In short, the significance which fhe Argentine
Government tries to glve to its assertlon: "It was not
until a Note dated 18 April 1956 ..... that the Chilean
Government guestioned the binding effect of ths unanlmous
decisions of the Mixed Commission relating to what may be
conveniently referred to as the northern and southern

"

parts of the boundary 1ine in the Sector” finds no
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reflection in its own statements at the time. Indeed, as
already pointed in Chapters V and VI of this Part of the
Counter Memorial paragraph €0, the immedinte, almost
Instinctive, appeal of the Argentine Government to Article
'6 of the Protocol shows all too clearly that Argehtina
herself did nok then iImagine that the unanimity of the
Commission could be enough to make 1%s conclusions

regarding the two terminal segments definitive and binding
on the two Governments.,

94, Relevance of Article 6 of the Protocol, Attention

has already been drawn to the extraordinary accusation in
paragraph 173 of the_Argentine Memorlal that Chile | |
"seized upon a mistaken reference in the Argentine Note
of 6 March 1956, to Article 6 of the Protocol" (see
Chapters V and VI of this Part, paragraph 51). This
accusation 1s, indeed, curious. Article 6 é the Article
in which the two Governments had with great particularity
spelt out the conditions under which they would consider
an act of demarcation carrled out by the Mixed Commission

us. "producing full effect" and as "firm and valid" so as

to require them to treat the act as definitively_deter~
mining the limits of their respective territories., In
consequence, it was manifestly the legal provision which
above all must be expected to govern the question whether
any part of the boundary between Posts 16‘énd 17 had been

settled by the Mixed Boundary Commlssion in a manner to
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render it definitely binding upon Chile, And the Article
had 1in the most expllcit terms been invoked by the
Argentine Govermment as binding Chile to accept the two
terminal segments as having been finally settled by the
Commission. Seeing that Article 6 provided no warrant for
any such claim, Chiie had no other course than to point
this out. Otherwise, no doubt, Argentina would have come
to the Court and said that Chlle had “acqui@soed" in the
meaning which Argentina was seeking to give to Article G.
95. Furthermors, the suggestion that it was merely a
momentary aberraztion which led Argentina %o invoke
Article 6 and of which Chile tried to take advantage will
not bear examination. As has been péinted outbin Chapters
V and VI of this Part (paragraph 57) it was Article ©
which Argentina had specified in 1947 a3 the legal basis
of her obligation to transfer to Chile the Custons House
at Alto Ri Mayo and again in 1952 for the transfor of
the Customs House at El Coyte. As also pointed out in
Chapters V and VI (paragraph 56 (f)), 1t was Article 6
which the Argentine Boundary Commiééiqn had invoked in
1954 when objecting to a proposal to disregard a previous
declaration of the Cerro Princlpio as a natural boundary
post., Indeed,‘in a diplomatic Note of 31 October 195C
answering a Chilean protest regarding %he cutting of wood
in a frontler area, the Ministef of Foreign Affairs and

Public Worship went so far as to say (Annex No,29):

2902,




"Morecover, in the demarcation which has been
practised on the frontier between Chlile and
Argentina, from early days up to the present
the;general norm has been adopted that the
raspective territories change oi ownership at
the moment when thg special minutes_erectin
boundary posts are sisned,
ratified by the Protocol in forcc of 16 April

19017, {Underiining added)

If Artlcle 6 does not receive exéress mention in this
pagssage, there can be no doubt that it is to Article.G
that the final phrﬁse refers. |

96. Moreover, when the Court turns‘to Argentinals
reactions to Minute 55.it wlll find ample evlidence that
she fully appreciated the need to bring the "decisions"
on which she relied within the terms of Article 6, The
storm in the Chilean Congress over %the conclusions of
the Commission regarding the Post 16-Post‘17 Sector
broke out at the end of December 1955; and the
probability of Chile's rejection of those conclusions
had alrecady been apparent for some weeks when the
Argentiﬁe Foreign Minister‘made his first official
statement on the matter on 26 Pebruary 1956 (Chilean
Wemorial pages po,no) . That statement was not there=-
fore a hurried piece of extemporising but fully
considered and’in it Argentina explicitly and exclusively
hased her contention as to the definitive character of
the Commission's decisions regarding the two terminal
segments on Article G, Simllarly, in her first official

communication to Chile on the matter made eight days
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Part Three later - on 6 March - she again explicitly and exclusilvely

rested her contention on Article 6,

97. Chile having pointed out in her Note of 18 April 1056
that none of the conditions prescribed in Article € had
been complied with, Argentina made no reply for a period

of ten months. She afterwards explaincd that out of tact,

she had thought 1% proper to delay her reply to the
Chilean Note, ponding the complefion of the investigation
ordered by the Chilean Congress. This hardly seems a
sufficient reason for leaving tho puvely legal point
raised by Chile regarding the 1941 Protocol unanswcred but
it is the fact that only in a Note of 2i4 January 1957 did
Argentina revert to.the question of Article 6, Ten month's
cogltation in the Argentine Chancellery had produced a
radical change of front énd the Note of 24 January 1957
contained an elaborate exposition of the present

Argentine thesis that, notwithstanding Article 6,

unaninmous conclusions of the Commission are cdefinitive
and binding on the Governments without the formalities
required by that Article., Argentina did not complain

that the Chilean Government had "seized upon a mistaken
reference" in her Note of 6 March 1955; instead, she went
to considerable pains, in an argument rﬁnning over some
nine paragrephs, to try to Jjustify her new interpretation
of the 1941 Protocol,

08, Furthermore, Argentina does not seem to have
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entirely convinced herself by her own arguments. Thus,
in a Note of 30 October 1963 answering Chilean Protests
regarding the erection of a wiré fence at the northern
~end of the Hondo Valléy Arg >ntina again placed her claim
as to the definltive character of the‘"decisions" in
Minute 55 squarely on Article 6 of the Protocol, Nor
was this just a casuyal "mistaken reference". If tﬁe
Court turns to the text of this Note in Annex No, 109 of
the Chilean Memorial (Vol., 2 pages 585-7), 1t will see
in paragraph 3 a carefully stated argumeﬁt as to the
definitive effects of Minute 55 produced by Article 6
and the text of the Article set out 1n full.

99. It is scarcely necessary to labour the point any
further. Bub in view of the lateness of i1ts date ; only
‘a few weeks before Chile referred to the Arbitratqr -
the Court may find 1% of intervest to read the Argentine
Note of 27 July 1964 where the Argentine Government was
st11l invoking Article 6. The text of this Note is
printed as Annex 114 to the Chilean Memorial and the
relevant passage is on page 609 of Volume 2. Having
‘been'notified that the'Chilean Carablneros would be
patrolling again in the Valle Hondo area, the urwpntinu
Government recalled what it had sald in the Note of 30
October 1963 mentioned in the previous paragraph and
added: "The events deseribed in this Note occurred on

Argentine ferritory, by reason of its being included
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within the demarcatlon made in 1955 by the Mixed Boundary

Commission, in conformity with the powers which were

granted to it by Article 6 of the Protocol of 15 April

S re—vosy

1941", (Underlining added)

100, No more should thefefore now be heard of the
Chilean Government's having "seized upon a mistaken
reference in the Argentine Note of 6 March 1950 to
Article 6 of the Protocol”.  The record shows that,
notwithetanding the thesis which she odvances Iin regard
to the Commission's conclusions in Minute 55, Argentina
has frequently, from the earliest days of the Commigsion
until the eve of the present proceedings, indicated her
recognition that it is Article 6 and the fulfilment of
1ts requirements which determines the definitive elfects

of the Commission'!s works vis a vis the two Governments.
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Part Four

Further
events and

FURTHER EVENTS AND DIPLOMATIC EXCHANGES Diplomatic
Exchanges.

PART FOUR

The Chilean Goverument annexed to its Mémoriai
the relevant diplomatic correspondence up to the
submission of the dispute to arbitration. In order to
complete the picture and bring the correspondence ﬁp
to date, it nas annexed to this Counter Memorial the
further diplomatic notes relative to the dispute
which have been exchanged since the date of the
Compromiso. These notes will be found in Annexes

Nos. 31 A +to 38,
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PART FIVE

THE CONTENTIONS AND
SUBMISSIONS OF THE
GOVERNMENT OF CHILE,

Chapter 1.

INTRODUCTION

Te The Chilean Government has set out its detailed
contentions and submissions in five Chapters in Part
V of its Memorial. The Argentine deernment, on

its gide, has.summarized its subnissions in Chapter'x
of its Memorial, prefacing fhese subnissions with

two Chapters entitled "Statement of Law". The
sccond of the two Chapters entitled "Statemenf of
Law" - Chapter IX - appcars really to be concerned
with Argentina's contentions and subnissions as to
how its statement of law in Chapter VIIT should be
applicd to the Circumstances of the present case.
Moreover, Argentina's "summary of submissions" in
Chapter X is brief and cxpresscd to be "without
derogating from its detailed submissions".
Accordingly, the Chilean Government proposes in this
Part of its Counter-Memorial: (1) to examine the
Argentine propositions of law set out in Chapter
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Part Five VIII of its Memorial and to state Chile's views
as to the law to be applied by the Court;
(2) to examine the Argentine contentions and
submissions contained. in Chapters IX and X of the
Argentine Memorial; and (3) to consider whab,
if any, changes or additions should be made to
the Chilean contentions and submissions in the
light of anything in the Argentine Mcmorial or
of any fresh information that has come to its
notice since the delivery of the Memorials.
2. Chapter VIII of the Argentine Memorial
exanines what the Argentine Government considers
to be the principles of law applicable in the
present case primarily from the point of view
of its submissions regarding the alleged
"settlement" of the boundary between Posts 16 and
17 by (a) the 1902-3 Award and Demarcation and
(b) Minute 55 of the Mixed Boundary Comnission.
At the same time, in cxanining the law touching
the'problem of the 1902-3 "settlenment", it
gives its general views on the principles to be
~applied in interpreting the 1902 Award in the
light of the geographical error. The Chilcan

Governnent, in Part III (Chapters V and VI) of

this Counter—Mémorial, has already dealt at
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length with the Argentine argunents regarding the
competence of the Mixed Boundary Commission and the
legal effect of Minute 55. Accordingly, although
later it will briefly revert to the law applicable
to Minute 55, it has no neced here to re-exanine
paragraphs 240 - 265 of the Argentine Memorial which
relate to the alleged "settlement" of the two

terminal segments by'the Mixed Boundary Commission.

3. The general Argentine thesis as to the
settlement of the boﬁndary resulting from the

1902 - 3 Award and Dcmafcation has‘already been
analysed and fully discussed in Part Three (Chapter
1, paragraphs 4 - 13). It has there been pointed
out that the Parties are agreéd that (a) the
Award in prihciple conprises the Award, the Report
and the Map; (b) the Award has to be interpreted
and applicd in conjunction with the 1903
Demarcation; (c) the Award, notwithstanding the
geographical error, is valid and, in principle,
scttled the boundary fbr thé purposes of Article 2
of the 1902 Treaty; (d) the course of the boundary
in the Sector, although settled in principle, may
nevertheless be unclear as a result of a mistake or
otherwise and to that extent "unsebtled™ for the

purposes of Article 1 of the Compromiso; (e) a

201.

Part Five




Part Five .

part of the boundary at one time "unclear" and
"unsettled" because of mistake or otherwise
could legally become settled afterwards as a
result of a wvalid decision or agreement binding

the two countries.

4, The divergence between the views of the
Parties begins when Argentina contends:
(1) The 1902 Award must be assumecd to
have settled finally thosc parts of
the boundary between Posts 16 and 17

to which it refers in terms which

are accurate (paragraph 216(i) ).

(ii) The examnination of the question of
 the settlement arising from the

Award ig prior to the question of

nistake (paragraph 217).

(iii) Only when the parts of the boundary
that have been settled have been
identified can the Court usefully
turn to comnsider the effect of
mistake upon the other parts (ibid).

5. In Part Three (Chapter 1, paragraphs

5 = 13) the Chilean Government has pointed oﬁt
that logically the question how far the boundary
in the Sector was "finally" scttled in 1902
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depends cntirely on the extent of the impact made
by the geographical error on the Award handed
down by the Tribunal; that the consequence of the
error here under discussion was to cause a complete
rupture in the structure and unity of the boundary
provided for in the Award; and that thevquestions
of Merror" and "settlement" are therefore
inextricably conneccted in determining the effect
of the 1902 Award. It has also pointed out how
only the Argentine experf's érroneous attribution
of the tributaries of the River Salto to the

River Encuentro had broﬁght the name of the Cerro
Virgen on to the line of the boundary at all; how
in consequence the error took away the whole root
of the supposed identification in the Award of
the scgment of the‘linc between the Cerro Virgen
and Post 17; and how the Argéﬁtine Government
itself has'from time to time sought to treat as
unsettled even the identified and demarcated
"fixed point" on the boundary at Post 16. It
only remains therefore to discuss the principles of
law which are said by Argentina to Justify her
contentions regarding the "final settlement" of

the twoe terminal segments by the 1902 Award.
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Part Five Chapter II

THE TAW GOVERNING THE INTERPRETATION AND EFFECT
OF THF 1902 AWARD AND DEMARCATTON IN THE
SECTOR BETWEEN POSTS 16 AND 17

6. Argentine thesis as to the law governing the

‘consequences of the geographical error. Argentina's

thesis regarding the legal implications of the error

are devcloped in paragraphs 224-32 of her Menorial,

and begins with the statement that, once attention is

turned from "fundamental" mistalte that nullifics to
the kind that mercly creates a problem of interpreta-
tion, there is a parallel between the problem as 1t

relates to treaties and as it relates to an Award. In

both cases, according to Argentina, the task of the
Court is linmited to finding the legal meaning of the
actual terms of the instrument and is not concernud
with ulterior motivations. Referring to thc 1964
Report of the International Law Cormission in this con-
nection (p. 27), Argentina makes the inconsequential
observation: "The problen is usually, therefore, a

1inguistic crux and the method of its resoluticn is

one of interpretation". In purported justification

of this somewhat delphic statement, Argentina cites the
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St. Croix River case (Moore, International Adjudications, Part Five

Vols. 1 & 2) and the case of United States v. Texas

(162 U.S.1), both of which involved mistakes on maps.
In the former case, she says that the question was

"what River was truly inténded under the name of

River St. Croix in the Treat&" and that in the Texas
case "the problem was again approached by the Court as
being onc essentially of nisdescription". And she
concludes: "In all such cases, therefore, it is a
matter of pure interpretation of 1aﬁggage“.(underlinings
added). As to the preseht case, she contends that "the
need for interpretation cannot be other than very lim-
ited in respect of a valid Arbitral Award the plain
terms of which, for the greater part of the line in this
Scctor, can be traced immediately and with ease on any
accurate modern map".

The "plain terms rule itself", in Argentinafs view,
requires that "the legal results of any mistake should
be confined to the part of the boundary line the des-~
cription of which is directly affected and rendered
inaccurate by the mistake, and that they cannot in law
invalidate those parts of the line laid down in 1902
that are clear." In this connection she cites a well-

known passage from the Admission to the U.N., case

(I.C.J. Reports 1950, at p8) regarding the interpretabion

of treaty provisions according to their natural and ord-
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—-inary meaning in the context in which they occur.
Adding that there is a dearth of authority in-
international law on the question of the scverance of
invalid or otherwise vitiated parts of an instrument
from the remainder, she cites two passages from. the
individual opinion of Judge Lauterpacht ir the Norwegian

TLoans Case (I.C.J.Reports 1957, at page 56). And she

concludes: "Thus the question is: can the part affected
by the mistake be separated from the rest of the instru-
nent? If it can, it is the duty of the Court to do so."
Then, she tries to frighten the Court by raising
the spectre of the awful consequences and chain reactions
that may follow if it does not confine the effects of
the mistake absolutely to "parts of the Award which as
a result of mistake cannot, without somc further legal
process, be applied té the ground". "Once the Court
allows itself to depart from the actual Award and to
enter upon a course of speculation and hypothes%s
concerning possible repercussions of mistake upon this
or that otherwise amply clear part of the line", says
Argentina, "there is no rule or principle that would
enable a halt to be called to the chain reaction thus
engendered”. And, by way of illustration, she pulls
out once agaiﬁ her own pet speculation - inspired not by
enything said by the Tribunal but by the mistakes of her

own experts - that the 1902 Tribunal never meant to cut
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the River Palena at the mouth of the Encuentro but at - Part Five

that of the Salto.
Before addressing herself to the problem of the

' érror in the present case, Argentina sums up her
argunment regarding the general law relévant to its
solution as follows (paragraph 2%0): "The function of
the Court being basically one of interpretation of the
1902 docision,vits task can be said to be to make the
decislon clear whercver it is found to be unclear, and

to make it werkable by f£illing any actual lacuna

resulting from nistake."

7 Chile's Observations regardiﬁg the Law to be applied.
The Chilcan Government can readily agree that the problen
created by the error in the present case is one of inter-
pretation, On the other hand, whatever may be the
parallel between such a problem of interpretation as it
relates to a treaty and as it relates to an Award, it is
undeniable that the principles governing the solution of
the problen in the present case are those applicable to
the interpretation of judgments, not of treaties. What
the applicable principlcs are Chile will examine in due
course. But, even on the assumption that these prin-
ciples are analogous to those for the interpretation

of treaties, Chile feels bound to take isscue at once

with the Argentine Government's whole presentation of

the legal considerations which should guide the Court
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in solving the problem of interpretation which confronts
it in the present case.
8. The Argentine Memorial presents the basic rule of
treaty interpretation - that a treaty is to be inter-
preted in good faith in accordance with the natural
and ordinary meaning of its terms - as if it required
the literal interpretation of each term; and its
citation of a single sentence in the Internaticonal Law
Commission's commentary on Article 69 of its Draft
Articles on the Law of Trcatics is wholly misleading on
this point. Accurate though that sentcnce may be in
itself, it cannot be read in isolation or without regard
to the text of Article 69. The basic rule of inter-
pretation formulated by the Commission in that Article
reads -
"A treaty shall be interpreted in good faith
~in accordance with the ordinary meaning to be
given to each tern: ’

(a) In the conbtexlt of the treaty and in the
light of its objects and purposes; and

(b) In the light of the rules of general
international law in force at the time of its
conclusion." (Underlining added).

And, referring to the words underlinecd in subparagraph

(a), the Commission explained in its commentary (page 27):

"The third principle is one both of common sense and good

faith: the ordinary meaning of a term is not to be deter-

mined in the absticact but in the context of the treaty

and in the light of its objects and purposes.” (under-
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lining added), In short, even the "plain meaning" of Part Five
individual terms cannot be determined without refer-

ence to their context and to the objects and purposes

of the instrument as a whole. The Report of the Inter-
national Law Commission is therefore very far from |
giving suppoft to the literal interpretation of a legal
instrument phrase by phrase, for which Argentina seems

to coﬁtendo | | |

9. Thus, if the 1902 Award and Report were to be inter-
preted on the same basis as a treaty, the "plain meaning"
rule itself would not permit the interpretation'of the
words describing the boundary between the Palena and Take
General Paz in isolation from the statemén%s in both
those instruments indicating.ﬁhe intention of the‘
bTribunal to award all the basins entering the Palena
below Post 16 to Chile.

10. The sense of the Argentine proposition, that the
problem of interpretation created by error is usually

"a linguistic crux", is by no means clear to fhe‘Chil~
ean Government.. If it is intended to imply that the
problem is simply one of linguistics and of finding the
literal meaning of the words used in the instrument, it
appears to the Chilean Government to be inadmissible. In
the first place, it disregards the iﬁportance of the
context and of the objects and purposes of the instrument.

In the second place, it disregards the effect which an
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error may have in rendering ambiguous or obscure, or even
absurd, the meaning of terms which, linguistically, may
appear to have a clear mecaning. Cases of this kind are
indeed classic examples of cases where it is legitimate
to have recourse to sourceg of interpretation additional
to the text, as the International Law Commission has
recognised in Article 70 of its Drafit Articles on the
Law of Treaties. This Article expressly provides that
recourse may be had to further means of interpretation,
including its travaux preparabtoircs and the circumstances

s
of its conclusion, in order to determine wvhe meaning

when interpretation according to the ordinary mcaning

of the terms (a) leaves the meaning ambiguous or obscure
or (b) leads to a result which is manifestly absurd or
unreasonable in the light of the objccts and purposses of
the treaty.

11. DNor do the two Jjudicial decisions mentioned by
Argentina in paragraph 224 appear to support her argu-

nent. In the St. Croix River case, as she herself notes,

the question considcred by the Tribunal was "what River

was truly intended under the name of the River St. Croix

in the Treaty?"(underlining added). The question

raised by the error was not considered to be one capable
of solution simply by a literal interpretation of the
Treaty word by word; the Tribunal toock into congideration

a large quantity of historical evidence in crder to tiy
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and determine the river truly intended in the Treaty.
The samc is true of the case of United States v.

Zexas (162 U.S.1), where the Court took into considera-

tion other provisions of the treaty, a large volume of

historical evidence and the circumstances prevailing at
the time of the Treaty in attempting to solve the
- problem resulting from an erroneous nap which formed
part of it. To say simply, as Argentina does, that
'"the problem was again approached by the Court as being
one essentially of misdescription" thusvgives a quite
unbalanced view of the attitude of the Court. 5The fel-
lowing central passage.in the Jjudgment gives a clearer
clue to the principles guiding the Court:

"Undoubtedly, the intention of the two
Governments, as gathercd from the words of the
treaty, must control; and the entire instrument
nust be examined in order that Tho real inten-
tion of the contracting mrties may be
agcertained. For that purpose the map to which
the contracting parties referred is to be given
the same effect as if it had been expressly made
a part of the treaty. But are we Justificd,
upon any fair interpretation of the treaty, in
assuming that the parties regarded that map as
absolutely correct, in all respects, and not
to be departed from in any particular or under
any circumstances? Did the contracting parties
intend that the words of the treaty should be
Literally followed. 1T by so doing the rcal
object they had in mind would Do defeated?"
(Underlinings addcd).

And in the course of its Judgment the Court answered
these questions in the negative.
12. The above-mentioned decisions do not thercfore

appear to justify the conclusion drawn from then by
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Argentina that "in all such cases it is a nmaltter of

pure interpretation of language". Nor do they appear

to Justify the conclusion apparently drawn from them in
paragraph 226: "It follows from the "plain terms rule"
that the legal results of any mistake should be confined
to the part of the boundary line the description of which
i1s directly affectcd and rendered inaccurate by the
nistake." As to the passage from the International

Court's judgment in the Admission to the U.N. case,

this was not directed to a case of error. Morcover,

although stating the "plain terms rule" in a somewhat

strict form (indeed some have thought it too strict)

the Court was careful to state the whole of the rule,

not nmerely part of it as does Argentina. In short,

it linked the natural and ordinary meaning of the words
to their context and added a qualification as to cases
where the ordinary meaning gives an ambiguous or un-
reasonable result. Accordingly, this case also does
not appear to justify the Argentine thesis.

13. 1In paragraph 227 the Argentine Government broaches,
if a little gingerly, the question whether it is legally
pernissible in the present case to "sever" the erﬁoneous
part of the Award and then to fill "any actual lacuna
resulting from mistake". This question is indced a

delicate one for Argentina, because she is asking the

Court to accept two segments of the boundary as setbtled,




to interpret the Award as requiring the Arroyos Lopez-

Mallines to be regarded as the River Ehcuentro and then
still to find itsclf with an actual lacuna which it can
fill only by constructing a connecting link for which no
Justification can be found in the Award. Argentina's
case,.in short, asks the Court to eliminate from the
boundary described in the Awafd the part covered by

the mistaken words and thus leave a gap which the Court
by clever dentistry is to fill with a new tooth ofits
own construction. How this conception of the Court's
task is to be reconciled with Argentina's earlier tﬁesis
that the problem created by the error is essentially a

linguistic one of nisdescription and the ﬁethod of its

resolution one of interpretation she does not say.

Ilowever great may be the "dearth of authority" in inter-
national law on the question of the severability of
treaty provisions, some therc is and this authority

does not seem to give any support to the idea, apparently
advanced by Argentina, that the principle of severability
operates within the process of interpretation so as to
entitle the interpreter to eliminate a part of an agrce-
nent or Award and then insert something else in its
stead. |

4. Certainly, neither of the two passages from Judge

Lauterpacht's individual opinion in the Norwegian ILoans

case (I.C.J. Reports 1957, at page 56) appears to warrant
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any such concept of the interpreter's function. Judge
Lauterpacht was therce addressing himsclf to the quite
different question whether, given that one condition in

an instrument is invalid and has to be struck out alto-

gether without replacement, it is pernissible to sever

-that condition and uphold the rwcot of the instrument.

If this involves an element of interpretation in
appreciating the essential or non-ecssential character

of the condition as a determining factor in the consent
of the Parties to the instrument, it doés not permit any
"filling of the lacuna" caused by the disappearance of
the invalid condition. Similarly, thesGovernment of
Chile notes that in the discussion of "the severance of
treaty provisions" in Chapter XXVIIT of Lord McNair's

text-book on the ILaw of Treaties, therc is no suggestion

that the principle of severance may operate as part
of the process of interpretation. The discussion is
subsumed under five headings, the last two of which
are entitled:

"(D) Whether a tribunal can save and apply

a. treaty provision by severing and elinminating

from it a part which offends the requircments
of validity", :

"(E) Whether the invalidity, either original
or supervening, of a single treaty provision
strikes the whole treaty with invalidity ox

affects only that provision".-

Neither these nor any of the other three headings con-

template that in interpreting a treaty the interpreteor




nay eliminate an invalid provision and then proceed to Part Five
fill the gap with a provision of his own devising.
Ner is there any trace of any such process in the
International Law Commission's Draft Articles on the
Law of Treaties, to whose Article on the "separability
of treaty provision" Argentina does not refer., The
Article in question ~ Avbicle 46 in the Commission's
Report for 19651 - confines the operation of the prin-
ciples of separability to cases of "mllity", "términ—
ation", "suspension of the operation of. a treaty" or to
"withdrawal from.a treaty"; and the same istrue of the
final version of the Article adopted by the Commission
in January 1966, Equally, Articles 69-71, setting out
“-the rules for the interpretation of treaties, find no
place for "separability" as a principle or means of
interpretation enabling the interpreter to "fill the
gap" with a provision of his own construction.
15. Another no less inportant aspect of the principle
governing severance of treaty'prgvisions is that in no
circumstances is it perﬁissible to‘eliminate a provision
or part of a provision unless it is clearly and completely
sevarable fronm the remainder of the breaty. Jdudge
Lauterpacht, while recognising’that‘it 1s legitimate
and perhaps obligdtory to sever an invalid condition : i
|

from the rest of the instrument, underlined that this

1 Yearbook of the International Taw Commission, 1963, l
Vol. AT, p.277.
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Part Five is only on the basis that:

"havine regard to the intention of the parties
and the nature of the instrument the condition
in question doecs not constitute an essential
part of the instrument" (undecrlinings added).

Judge Lauterpacht, it is to be observed, manifestly
did not have in mind any mechanical process of literal
interpretation, deleting with a blue pencil the offending

provision and upholding the rcmainder regardiess of the

actual intention of those who drew up the instrument.

This aspect of the principle of severance is also

strongly enphasised in Article 46 of the International

Law Commission's Draft Articles, which permits severance
only on two conditions:

(a) the provision must be separable from

the remainder of the treaty with rcspectto

its application; and

(b) the acceptance of the provision must not

have been an essential basis of the consent of

the other party to the treaty as a whole.

Applying Judge Lauterpacht's test, the link betwecn

the source of the River Encuentro and the high watershed
carryiﬁg the boundary on to Post 17 was, in the Chilcan
Government's view, an "egsential part" of the provision

of the 1902 Award which described a continuous completely
integrated boundary for the Sector between Posts 16 and 17.

Similarly, applying the International Law Commission's

testsg but in the context of an Award, the words regard-
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-ing that link between the source and the watershed were Part Five

nanifestly not separable with regard to their applic-

ation from the remainder of the provision describing a
continuous integrated boundary for the whole Sector.
Equally those words nanifestly did form an essential

part of that provision in the nind of the 1902 Tribunal,
which certainly intended in its Award to lay down a
continuous integrated boundary for the whole Sector.

16. Argentina's contention that the Court should sever
the erroncous part of the boundary and fill the resulting
lacuna hardly seens reconcilable with her thesis that

the 1902 Award "settled" the boundary between Posts 16

and 17 or with her thesis +that the effect of the error

was essentially a linguistic nisdescription of the
boundary awarded by the Tribunal. If, as both Parties
agrce, the Tribunal handed down a valid decision regarding
thé boundary in the Sector, the functioh of interpretation
would scem to be limited to determining what, in the light
of the actual Geographical facts, was the boundary decided
upon in its Award; or, adopting the words of the Supreme
Court of the United States in the.ggggg case, to

ascertain the intention of the tribunal "aé gathered

from the words of the Award" and to examine the "entire

instrunent in order that the real intention of the

Tribunal nay be ascertained (underlinings added). The
Argentine contention, in itg completé disdain for the

actual intention of the Tribunal, is indeed in striking
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contradiction with all the legal authcrity which it cites.
Not only in the Texas case but also in the St. Croix

River Arbitration the Tribunal assumed that, having

regard to the ambiguity or obscurity created by the
error, its function was to determine the rcal intention
of the Parties to the Treaty; and, as has Jjust been scen,

Judge Lauterpacht, in the Norwegian Loans casg, stressed

the intention of the parties as a governing facbtor in-
cases of severénce. Even the International Court in
éndofsing the "plain terms rule" left nc doubt as to its
view that, where the terms of the treaty leave an
ambiguity or lead to an unreasonable fesult, the function

of the Court is tc "seek to ascertain what the partics

really did nean."

17. Further cases confirmingthce relevance of the real

intention. A number of other cases could be cited to

show that in cases of error or ambiguity in boundary
treatics or Awards the sclution is to be determincd by
reference to the real intention of the.Parties or
Pribunal. It will perhaps suffice to mention three

further cases: Sovereignty Over Fronticr Land: the

Costa Rica - Nicaracuan Boundary Arbitration; and the

Island of Timor Avrbitration.

18. Sovereignty Over Frontier Land (I.C.J.Rcports

1959, p. 209). This casc concerned an alleged error

in the transcription by a Mixed Boundary Commission of




a document defining the sovereignty in certain communes; Part Five
The transcription was incorporated in a "Descripfive .
Minute" 5f the Commission and the Court ultimately held

that in fact it had not been proved by the Netherlands |

that the alleged mistake had occurred. Although the

Court was adnittedly addressing itself to the different

ucstion of whether an apparent error was in fact one,

its general approach to the interpretation of the

situation is significant (at page 225):

"The Netherlands contends, however, that

it need not establish the origin of the
mistake, stince a simple comparison between
the copy of the Communal Minute produced by
it and that apvcaring in the Descriptive
Minutc reveals sufficiently that a mistake
occurred. The nmatter is not, however,
capable of being disposed of on this narrow
ground. The Court nust ascertain the in-
tention of the Parties from the provisions
of a trecaty in the light of all the circum-
stances.”" (Underlining added). .

In short, the moment that there was a prima_ facie

indication of error, the Court's approach to its task
was conpletely different from that in its Opinion in

the Admission to the U.N. case. It must ascertain the

intentions of the Parties from the provisions 1n the

light of all the circumstances,

19. Cesta Rica - Nicaraguan Boundary Arbitration.

(Moore, Intcrnational Arbitrations, Vol V, p.5074).

The casc concerned the starting point on the shore of

the Caribbean Sea of the boundary betwsen the two

countries, the relevant provision of the Treaty of 15th
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cart rfive April 1858 being open to more than one interpretation.
The Arbitrator, explaining the considerations which had
led hin not to accept the interpretation placed on the
Treaty by either Party, said (page 5075):

"Of these considerations the principal and
controlling one is that we are to interpret
and give effect to the Treaty of 15th April
1858 in the way in which it was mutually
understood at the time by its makers. (Italics
in the original text) ..... .o

Without attempting to reply in detail to
every argument advanced by e¢ither side in
,support of its respective claim, all will be
met and sufficiently answered by showling that
those who made the treaty mutually understood
and had in view another point, to wit, the
eastern headland at the mouth of the harbcour.

It is the meaning of the men who framcd
the treety that we are to seck, rather than
some possible meaning which can be forced
upon isolated words or sentences ......
(Underlinings added).

20. Island of Timor Arbitration (Wilson, Hague Arbitra-

ticn Cases, p.'575)=- In this casc a Mixcd Commission

had agreed on most of the boundary in 1899 and the
results of its work had been incorporated in a Convention
of 1904, Boundary Conmissions then attempted to com—~
plete the boundary but digagreed regarding a section of

a line and, in particular, regarding its starting point

at the confluence of the Noel Bilomi and the Oec-Sunan
rivers. In fact, there were two affluents at the place
mentioﬁed, but neither was called Oc-Sunan. The re-
sulting difficulties having been submitted to arbitra-

tion, the arbitrator began by citing authority to show
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" that his task was "to seek the actual will and not to be Part Five
held to the literal meaning of the expression" and "to
look for the actual common intention of the parties,

without dwelling on inexact expressions or names of

which use night have been made either erroneously or..."

(pages 401-2). Then, having examined some of the
evidéncc, the Arbitrator said (page 423):

"From what has gone before there evolves,

in other words, the conviction that the will

of the Contracting Parties ought to be inter-
preted in the cense that starting from point

A situated on the Bilomi River, the frontier

follews in a northerly direction the thalweg

of the river Kabun or Leos..." (Underlinings

added). . :

Reverting to the question, he later said (page 437):
"The general principles for the interpreta-
tion of Conventions demand account be taken
of the real and mutual intention of the
Parties without pausing on inexact expressions
or terms which possibly they may have used
erroneously'. The Parties have, 1t is true,
made a mistake in giving the name Oe-Sunan
to the affiuent coming from the north at
Point A ..... "
For this Arbitrator, therefore, the problem resulting
from the erroneous description was one of ascertalning
the real common intention of the Parties in the light
of all the circumstances of the case. Before leaving
this case the Chilean Government wishes to draw the
attention of the Court to a passage necar the end of
the Award, where the Arbitrator mentions certain con-

siderations as supporting the Netherlands rather than
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Part Five the Portuguesse version of the boundary line (page 441):

"The line of the ridge proposed by the
Netherlands Government between the source

of the river Kabun (Leos) to the south, and
the source of the Noel Meto to the north, is
sufficiently natural to be laid out on land
without great practical difficulties. It
offers the advantage that the water—-courses
uniformly descend from that line of the ridge
toward the territories all placed under Dubch
sovereignty. The layout supgpested by the
Portuguese Government on the contrary would
assign to different sovereignties the upper
and. the lower part of these several strcams."
(Underlinings added).

As the Court will appreciatbe, the "advanbage" emphasised
by the Arbitrator in this passage is precisely the con-
gsideration ﬁhich the 1902 Tribunal emphasised in Article
IIT of the Award for when it decided to cut the

Rivers Manso, Puelo, Futaleufu and Palena (and indeed
also the River Pico) at obligabory points, care was
taken to preserve the‘integrity of the secondary basins,
awarding the upper ones to Argentina, and the lower

ones to Chile.

21, It may be added that Argentina herself does not

appear always to have adopted so literal an approach
to the problem‘resulting from a geographical error.
In a boundary dispute with Bolivia, according to the

account given in Manuel Mercado's "Historia Internacional

de Bolivia" (pages 3%80-386), she scems clearly to have
considered that “the real intention" of the Parties
rather than the letter of the Treaty should govern the

solution of the problem. Article 1 of the relevant
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Treaty provides, inter alia, that the boundary shall;

"continue until it meets the Esmoraca range,
following by the highest peaks as far as the
western head of the La Quiaca pass, and
descending by this pass shall follow it to -
the point ot which it meets the River Yanalpa,
and shall continue its direction from west to
cast in a straight line as far as the summit
of the mountain of Porongal; and from this
point it shall descend to meet the western
source of the river of that name (Porongal)
and shall follow the waters of this river as
far as its confluence with the Bermejo opposite
the town of that name."

The difficultj was that the River Porongal did not flow
towards Bermejo but in a quite different direction.
Argentina, it ﬁppears7 contended in the resultihg
negotiations that a different mountain, the Cerro Mecoya
and a different river, the River Condado, corresponded
to the dintentions of the treabty and should therefore be
considered as the relevant mountain and rives even if

actually having other nomes.

22. Interpretation not Speculation or Revision. In

paragraphs 228-9 of her Memorial, as previously mentioned,
Argentina insists that the Court must confine "any effects
of mistake to parts of the Award which as a result of
nistake cannot, without some further legal process, be
applied to the ground"; and raises the spectre of what
night happen if the Court departs from this position.

If the Court enfters upon a course of‘speculatidn and
hypothesis concerning possible repercussions of mistake

upon this or that otherwise amply clear part of the line,
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it will not, according bo Argentina, be able to keep
within its functions under the Compronmiso. 1t may,
says Argentina, have to reconsider the entire frontier
line decided upon by Article IIT of the 1902 Award
northwards beyond Post 16 and southwards beyond Post 17
and the positions of those Posts themsclves. This, shc
adds, would involve speculation upon the motivation be-
hind this part of the Award and a vain attempt at assess-
mént of the influences which bore upon the mind of the
Arbitrator. The Court, she exclaims, "might well ccre
to the conclusion that the frontier would not have
crossed the River Carrenleufu at the point at which it
does cross and that Boundary Post 16 cught to have been
placed further west, at the confluence of the River
Cerrenleufu and the River El Salto"; and so on.

2%. The whole of this argument, in the view of the
Chilean Government, is at once fallacious, extraVagant
and beside the point. It is fallacious because it

begins with & complete petitio principii: namely, that

the mistake does not affcect the Cerro Virgen —‘Post 17
part of the boundary which, in Chile's view, it most
certainly does. It is extravagant because it disregards
not only the demarcation but alsoc the exblicit language of
Article IIT of the Award fixing the points at Posts

16 and 17 as obligatory points oun the boundory. It is

also extravagant in that Argentina invokes the error of
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her own expert concerning the head waters of the River

Salto to question the location of the mouth of the River
Encuentro, a quite different rivér. It is beside the
point because in the present case it is not a matter.

of speculating on the "motivations behind the Award and
the influences upon the mind of the Arbitrator" but of
determining the meaning of the tcyt of the Award by
reference to its terms and to the circumstances in which
1t was drawn up. .The Chilean Government, for its part,
 is asking the Court to deduce the meaning whiéh Chile
attributes to the Award'from the terms of the Award
itself while finding confirmation of that meaning in

the circumstances‘of the 1902 Arbitration and in the
subsequent acts of the Parties.

24. A recurrent theme of the Argentine Memoriazl is

that the Court has no power under the Comproniso to

revise the Award but only to interpret and fulfil it.

To this theme it returns in paragraph 2371, where it says:

"The question at issue is the effect in law
of a mistake of fact upon the meaning of the
decision as it is expressed in the Award; it
cannot be a question of speculation concerning
quite different decisions that the Arbitrator
could conceivably have preferred, had his
geographical knowledge been nore porfect but
which he did not in fact express in his Award.
Just as nmunicipal courts have adhered Lo the
principle that the interpretation of a contract
must stop short of making a new contract for
the parties, so algo, this Court cannot in the
name of interpretation and fulfilment of the
1902 Award, replace the latter by a new and
differant Award."” (Underlinings addcd).
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The Government of Chile is, of course, in agreement

with the proposition that the Court cannot, in the nane
of interpretation of the 1902 Award, replacec it by a
new and different Award. The question o .fulfilment

it will discuss later. But, although to that extent

in agrecuent with the Argentine Government, the Govermn-

ment of Chile is far from accepting the narrow concept,
apparently embraced by Argentina, of a Court's powers

of interpretation when confronted with an instrument
which, owing to an error, faills to give accuratc ex~
pression to the intentions of its framers. The woight
of legal outhority, as previously pointed out, is
overwhelmingiy in favour of the view that the function
of interpretation in such a case is to ascertain from
the terns ofthe instrument and the circumstances of

the casc the "real intention" of thce framers of the
instrument. This authority makes it no less clear

that, when a Court so ascertains and gives effect to

the "real intention", it is not, in law, to be con-
sidered as "replacing", "remaking" or "revising" the
instrument. And this is so e@ven although in the proccss
of interpretation the Court may find itself compelled

to set aside the "ordinary meaning" of the clauses or
phrases which fail to give accurate cexpression to the
ascertained intentionof the framers of the instrument.
By ascertaining and giving effect to the "real intention”
the Court does not substitute its own view for that of
the framers of the instrument; on the contrary, it
merely realises their inbtention and gives that accurate
expression to it which, owing to the error, is lacking
in the instrument.

25." The Court may, indeed, think that of the two
concepts of interpretation advanced by the Parties in
the present casc the one which does invite it to "replace
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the 1902 Award with a new and different one" is that PartbFive
of Aigentina, For Argentina is asking the Court to
content itself with ascertaining the intention of the
Tribunal with respcct to two parts of the description

of the boundary (even one 6f these is manifestly affected
by the error) and then to replace the remainder of the
description with "a new and different Award". The
Govermment of Chile, on the other hand, is asking the
Court to ascertain and give effect to the'"real intention"
of the 1902 Tribunal over the whole of the boundary
described in the Award for the Sector; and, as will now
be demonstrated, she isvaskiﬁg the Court to do this on
the basis of the language of the Award itself.

26, . The method of interpretation contended for by Chile.

Howéver close may be the analogies between a treaty &nd
an arbitral award for purposes of interpretation, the
interpretation of a judgment-oraward is clearly not on
preeisely the same footing as that of a treaty.
Moreover, if the legal authority on the interpretation
of international judgments and awards is not voluminous,

the general principles seem reasonably clear. In the

German Interests in Polish Upper Silesia case (P.C.I.J.

Series A, No.13, at page 14), for example, the Permanent
Court made certain observations of a general character
which provide some guidance in the present connection.

Dealing with the question whether the German Government
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Part Five had made out a sufficient case for requesting an inter-
pretation of two of its previous Judgments, the Court
observed:

"Mhe Polish Government also contends that the
German request for an interpretation does not
relate to the operativce part of the judgment
(which, according to the former Government,
can alonc be the subject of a roquest fov
interpretation), and asserts that it docs not
claim that the operative part contains a
rcservation of the kind referred to in sub-
mission No.1 of the German Government. The
Court, however, is unable to take this vicw.
For it is clear in any case that, although it
is not contested that the terms of the opera-
tive part of the Jjudgment do not contain the
reservation in question, the fact that the
grounds for the Judgment contain a passage
which one of the Parties construes as a rc-
servation (the effect of which would be to
restrict the binding force of Judgment No.7)
or as affirming a right inconsistent with the
situvation at law which the other Party con-
giders as established with binding force,
allows of the Court's being validly requested
to give an interpretation fixing the true
meaning and scope of the Judgment in question.”

The significance of this passage is that the Court, in
considering whether there was a dispute as to the

"mecaning and scope" of the judgment, did not limit itself

to the operative part but examined the whole judement

and accepted a request based on the reasoning in the

Judgment. Judge Anzilotti in a dissenting opinion
adopted a more formalist approach to the question, but
‘he also recognised that the Court's reasoning has nearly

always to be referred to:

"When I say that only the terms of a judgment
are binding, I do not mean that only what is




actually written in the operative part constit- Part Five
utes the Court's decision. On the contrary, it is

certain that it is almost always necessary o

refer to the sthatement of reasons to understand

clearly the opcrative part and above all to ascer-

tain the causa petendi. But, at all cevents, it

is the operative part which contains the

Court's binding decision and which consequently

may form the subject of a request for an inter-

pretation." (Underlinings added).

If in that case the Permanent Court had regard to
passages in the two Judgments outside the operative

-parts, a fortiori must regard be had to a Tribunal's

statement of reasons in order to resolve a problem of
interpretation reéulting from an éséential error of fact.
27. The Govermment of Chile, as alrecady emphasised, is
not asking the Court of Arbitration to}sPéculate
regarding the motives or intentions of theA1902 Tribunal.‘
It is asking the Court to ascertain and determine the
'”realvintention" of the Tribunal from the Award as a

whole. It is asking the Court to ascertain the true

ratio decidendi - the true ratio legis - of the Award

with respect to the Sector bebtween Posts 46band 17 and
to say that this must prevall over the inaccurate
description of the boundary introduced by error into
the terms of the Award. It relies e¢ssentially on the
languoge of Article IIT itself, where it provides:
"the boundary shall pass by Mount Tronador,
and thence to the River Palena, by the lines
of water-parting determined by certain obligatory
points which we have fixed upon the Rivers lManso,

Puelo, Fetaleufu and Palena (or Carrenlecufu);
awarding to Argentina the upper basins of those
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rivers above the points which we have fixed,
including the valleys of Villegas, Nuevo, Cholila,
Colonia de 16 Octobre, Frio, Humules, and
Corcovado; and to Chile the lower basins below
those points. From the fixed point on the

River Palena, the boundary shall follow the

River Encuentro to the peak called the Virgen,

and thence to the line which we have fixed
crossing Lake General Paz...." (Underlings added).

It also relies on a corresponding pasaage of the Report,
which includes the following:

"Crossing the Fetaleufu River at this point
it shall follow the lofty water-parting
separating the upper basins of the Fetaleufu
and of the Palena .... above a point in
longitude 7/1047'" W,.. from the lower basins

of the same rivers ...." (Underlinings added).

These passages, in the submission of the Government of
decidendi of the Award with respect to the Palena -
Lake General Paz Sector was bo cut the Palena alt its

Junction with the River Encucntro and to leave all the

basins of tributary rivers above thalt point to Argentina

and all the basins of tributiry rivers below that point

to Chile.

28. That this was the ratio decidendi of the Award in

the Sector is strongly confirmed by the fact that in’
the passage in question the Tfibunal applied preciscly
the same principle fo three other major rivers which
intersect the Cordillera fron cast to west in a manner
similar to the Palena. Indeed, in a later passage it
did so to yet another similaé'River to the south of

Post 17 - the River Pico.
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29. It is, in the submission of the Chilean Government, Part Five
no less clear that the "award" of the river basins above
Post 16 to Argentina and of the river basins below Post

16 to Chile belongs to bthe operative part of the Award -

to the'"dispositift". The "award" of the river basins

to the two countries is as much part of the Tribunal's
decision regarding the determination of the boundary in
the Sector as the words which purport to describe the
course of the boundary between thevPalena,and Liake General
Paz. » »

30. Since any boundary constructed between Bsts 16 énd
17 which passes through the Cerro Virgen must deny to
Chile part of the basin of the River Salto, a river which
~ flows into the Palena bélow Post 16, there is a manifest

contradiction between the ratio decidendi stated in

Article IIT and the descriptive words purporting to give
effect to it. Furthermore, neither the Award nor the
Report contains the SIightest indication that the Tribunal

“had any intention of derogating from that ratio decidendl

“when attemptiﬁg to define the course of the boundary
resulting from it. In addition, the evident cause
‘of the contradiction was that the Argentine experts
Tange and Moreno (see Maps A.10 aﬁd CH.12 B.)
conceived erroneously that certain of the btributaries
of the River Salto belonged to the River Encuentro

and transmitted this erroncous concept to the Tribunal.
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Had this supposition in fact been correct, there would
have been no contradiction between the Tribunal's
description of the course of the boundary and its

statenment of the ratio deoidendi of its Award. More-

over, 1t seems clear that the Tribunal itself believed
there to be no suchcontradiction; for the map on which

it delineated the boundary depicted the River Salto as

a river all of whose basin would pass to Chile,

21. When a legal instrument, in itself wvalid and
effective, contains provisions which contradict each
other, it is evident that one provision has to give way
to the cther. In the submission of the Government of
Chile, it is no less evident that, when one of the pro-

visions formulates the ratio legis of the instrument

with respect to the matter and the other is a descriptive

provision purporting to give effect tothat ratio legis,

in principle it is the descriptive provision which nust

give way to the ratio legis of the instrument.‘

In addition, when therc is not the slightest sug-
gestion of even a suspicion of an error in regard to
the formulation of the provision laying down the ratio
legis for the matter and when, on the contrary, the

descriptive provision is tainted with error, there can,

in the submission of the Government of Chile, be no
question whatever as to which of the provisions must,

as a matter both of law and logic, give way to the other.
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32. In the present case no suspicion of error at all Part Five

~attaches to the Tribunal's statement of its award of
the upper basins to Argentina and of the lower basins

to Chile. On the contrary, the accuracy of this pro-

vision as a statement of the Tribunal's ratio decidendi
is attested and reinforced by the Tribunal's application
of the same principle in the same berms to four other
rivers. But the provision describing the boundary
botween Posts 16 and 17 is seriously tainted with error.
All are agreed that the provision is correct to the
extent that it expresses the intention of the 1902
Tribunal that the boundary should follow the course of
the River Encuentro to its source on the slope of =2
mountain forming part of a watefshed. By naming that
mountain the Cerro Virgen, however, the provision

reveals that the Tribunal laboured under a scrious geo-
graphical error when formulating the description of thé
remainder of the boundary in the Sector; for the Ceer
Virgen is a mountain on none of whoso‘slopes_does the
River Encuentro or any of its tributaries have its source.
Accordingly, compelling reasons of both law and logic
would seem to require that fhe inaccurate, érror—infected,

provision purporting to apply the ratio decidendi in the

Post 16 - Post 17 Sector shouldyield to the clear,

certain, statement in Article IIT of the ratio decidendi

of the Award with respect to the boundary intended in

that Scctor.
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Part Five 3%. The same conclusion must, in the submission of the
Government of Chile, be arrived at even if the words of
Article IIT awarding the upper basins to Argentina and
the lower basins to ChHile are regarded - in its view,
incorrectly - merely as "reasoning" and not as part of
the "dispositif" of the Award. The cardinal geographical
error regarding the source of the River Encuentro's
belng on the western slope of the Cerro Virgen necesaarily
creates an ambiguity or obscurity in the "dispositif" as
to the course of the boundary intended by the Award for
the Sector. In order to resolve that ambiguity or
obscurity recourse may and must be had to the sontext,
namely, the full statement in Article IIT of the
Tribunai's reasons for its Award for the Sector. The
seme confradiction then appears and the same considera-
tions of law and logic compel an interpretation of the
Award which prefers the clear and certain statement of
the Tfibunal's intentions in its reasoning to the
inaccurate, error-infected, description in which it
sought to give expression to that intention.

34, By way of illustrating its submissions on this
aspect of the case the Government of Chile proposes to
refer to one further arbitration in which it was itself

- one of the Parties, namely, the Tacna-Arica Arbitration

(Reports of International Arbitral Awards, Vol.IT, p.923,

at pages 952-6). The other Party was Peru, and the
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Arbitrator was the President of the United States. Part Five
Among the issues in the arbitration was.the proper
interpretation of Article % of the Trealy of Ancona,
which read as foliows:
"The territorv of the provinceg cf Tacna
ana arica, bounded on the north by the River
Sema_from itsg cource in the Cordilleras on

the frontier of Bolivia to its mouth at the sea,
on the south ...." (Underlinings added).

Chile contended that the Article established a river

line which must be defined and followed as the northern
boundary irrespective of any Peruvian provincial boundary.
Peru, o1. the other hand, insisted that the Article

dealt solely with the provinces of Tacna and Arica as
defined by Peruvian Law. Chile argued that the reference
to "the two provinces" must be deened td be "Controlled
by the described river line"; but there is in fact no

river Sama which has "its source in the Cordilleras on

the frontier of Bolivia". Confronted with thigs fact,
Chile suggested to the Arbitrator that a Special Com-
mission should be appointed to investigate and propose
a bouhdary line in the area intervening betwecn the head
of one or other of the tributaries of the River Sama
and the frontier of Bolivia. |
Having pointed ouﬁ‘that the framers of the treaty
had had "little exact knowledge of the geographj of the
region”" and had written into the trecaty "an inaccurate

description”, the Arbitrator said (p.954):

335.

R




Part Five "Despite these difficulties, the Arbitrator
finds certain controlling considerations in
the construction of the treaty. The funda-
mental question is the intention of the Partics
and any artificial construction is to be
avoided. The Peruvian provinces of Tacna and
E-ica were well-known political divisionS.....

' - and the Peruvian province of Tarata was also
a well-known political division .... The
argument that this reference to political
divicions should yicld to a deccribed geo-
eraphical boundary assumes thal there ig a
definite geographical boundary laid down,
which is not the case, or that the description
of a geographical boundary indicates an in-
tention to include territory lying outside the
provinces of Tacna and Arica, when in Ttruth
the description of a geographical boundary
which did not exist serves to indicate that
they did not know where the geographical
boundary lay which they were attempting to
describe. The reference to the political
divisions known as the provinces of Tacna
and Arica cannobt, in the Jjudement of the
Arbitrator, be overridden by a descrinbicn
of a line which it is impossible to lay down
as described." (Underlinings added).

Later in the Award, having referred o cecrtain diplo-
natic exchanges, the Arbitrator observed (p.955):

"If Chile sought to include Tarata, she did

not succeed in securing a reference to the
province of Tarata in the description. If it
was thought that the mention of the river
boundary would effect this purpose, the fact
remains that the description of the territory
as that "of the provinces of Tacna and Arica
was put in the treaty and the river line was
deprived of controlling significance by its
inaccuracy. J1If 1t be assumed, as appears to

be the fact, that the question of the inclusion
of the territory of the province of Tarata was
presented, it is deemed to be decisive that the
treaty does not set forth a river line exclus-
ively and that the words "The Gerritory of tie
provinces of Tacna and Arica' were retained ..."
(Underlinings added).

25. The analogy between the Tacna-Arica case and the
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present one is obvious. dJust as the River Sama was Part five
not in fact a river which has "its source in the

Cordilleras on the fronticr of Bolivia", so the Cerro

Virgen is not a mountain which has the source of the

River Encuentro on its wostorn Slope, or on any other

of its slopes. Juzt as the Tfeaty of Ancon dealt

specifically with the "provinces of Tacna and Arica";

50 the 1902 Award deals specifically with the upper

and lower basins of the River Palena on either side

of Post 16. The Arbitrator in the Tacna-Arica case

declined to allow a specific expression of intention
in the treaty to be overridden by an inaccurate geo-
graphical description of a line which it was "impossible

to lay down as described". His reasoning, the Chilean
v ‘ ’

Government submits, applies equally and even a fortiori

to the present case, where the inténtion of the Tribunal
to award the upper and lowervbasins on either side of
the River Encﬁentro to Argentina and Chile respectively
is categorical and clear, and there is no underlying
anbiguity whatever with respect to that intention.

36. It is almost superfluous to add that the Tacna-Arica

Arbitration is yet another international Judicial

decision which is diametrically opposed to the litgral
method of interpretation advocated by Argentina, and

which cmphasises that the propcer method in thesc cases
is to ascertain the "real intention" of the framers of

the instrument.
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Part Five Chapter ITT

RETEVANCE OF THE SUBSEQUENT PRACTICE OF THE

PARTTES WITH RESPECT TO THE BOUNDARY IN THE
SECTOR

37. In paragraphs 211-4 of its Menmorial the Argentine
Government seeks to persuade the Court of the irrcle-
vance in law of the acts'of the partics on the ground
subsequent to the 1902-3 Award and Demarcation. First,
in order to try and minimise the significance of the
Chilcan nationality and Chilean sympatvhies of the
settlers in the vallcys of California, it cites a

dictum of Lord McNair in the Norwegian Fishcrics case

to the effect that the independent activity of private
individuals is of 1little value unless supported by

some form of govermmental activity on the part of the

claimant State. With this dictum the Govermment of
Chile respectfully agrees, but it does not assist
Argentina in the least in the present casc; for in
Part Two of her Memorial and Countecr-Memorial Chile has .
adduced ébundant evidence of Chilean State activity in
connection with the Chilecan scttlers and their settle-
ments.

28. Secondly, the Argentine Government advanccs the
general argument that, under the Co;;romiso, this is

a caée concerning "the correct course of a boundary
and not o case concerning ri#él claims to particular

parcels of territory". It says that in thec present
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case "the decisions as to sovereignty follow from the Part Five

determination of the boundary ling" not vice versa;

and that there can "be no gquestion of any new acquisi-
tion of sovercignty by either Party, whether by
occupation, prescription or otherwise'. Acts of
administration on the ground, she asserts, cannot in

the present case be a root of title: "if performed on
one side of whatever may be the correct 'course of the
boundary' they are withoutklegal significance, and if
performed on the other side, they are merely unlawful".
39. This argument completely disregards the express
reference in the Compromiso to "fulfilment of the Award"
- a matter which is discussed in the next Chapter.

Quite indcpendently of the question of fulfilment,
however, the Argentine analysis over-simplifies the
present case and, as a result, seriously undersstimates
the legal significance of Chile's acts_of administration
lon the ground. In the first place, the 1902 Award did ﬁot
do more than settle the boundary between Posts 16 and 17
"in principle"; it did not settle the boundary on the
ground cxcept to the extent Qf the demarcation of the
"chbligatory points" at Posts 16 and 17. The geographical
crror caused the description of the %oﬁrse of the boundary
to be ambiguous and obscure and, this being so, the sub-
sequent acts of the Parties on the ground are clearly

relevant as showing their understanding of the meaning
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and effect of the Award in the Sector in the light of

the actual geographical facts. Indeed, as the Court

is aware, the Chilean Government contends that the
diplomatic exchanges between the Parties in 1913-14

followed by the Chilean administration of the valleys

of California constituted in fact and in law a common

understanding and agreement between them that the

boundary runs from Post 16 along the "major channel®

to its source, leaving the valleys of California in
Chilean territory.

40, Cn the face of it, Argentina's proposition that
Chile}s acts of adninistration on the ground are wholly
irrelevant is, to say the least, a bold one when both
Parties accept that the boundary laid down by the 1902
Tribunal cannot, owing to error, be applied on the ground
as it is described in the Award and when itis over sixbty
years since the Award was given. Nor does that pro-
position find support in the Jjurisprudence of intornc—
tional tribunals, of which none is indeed cited in the
Argentine Memorial. On the contrary, international
Jurisprudence is the other way, recognising the
relevance of State acgivity in cases where the course

of a boundary is uncertain. In the classic judgnment

of Judge Huber in the Ialand of Palmas Arbitration, for.

example, there occurs among many passages emphasising

the significance of State activity as the criterion of
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sovereignty the following (Reports of Interﬁational
Arbitral Awards, Vol. iI,lat page 840): |

"If, however, no convenbtional line of
sufficient topographical precision exists

or if there arc gaps in the frontier other-
wise established, or if a conventlional line
leaves room fer doubt, or if, as e.g. in the
case of an 1sliand situated in the high seas,
the question arises whether a title is valid

erga omnes, the actual, conbtinuous and peaceful
display of State functions is in case of dis-

ute the sound and natural criterium of terri-
Gorial sovereignty." (Underlinings added).

41, In this connection, the Court may recall that the

Argentine ﬁoundary Commission, in its memorandum of
7th April 1955 explaining the grounds o7 sfich it

- purported to justify the line which i proposed for

regarding the relevance of Chilean possessidn in the
Palena area. (See pages 305-6 and Annex 47 of the
Chilean Memorial). Having developed its reascns for
contending that the Arbitrator, if he had known the
true facts, would not have used the junction of thé
Palena and the Encucntro as a point on the boundary,
the Argentine Comhission gave as one of its reasons
for not raising that question:

"Since it accepts the principle of uti

gssidetis applieq by reason of the situgtion

of the Palena settlement and the possession

exercised by Chile in the adjacent zone."
(Underlinings added).

And, reinforcing this reason, it added:

"Because it is of the opinion that the said
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situation has arisen, withoubt any doubt fron
a decision based on the most absolute good
faith of the Chilean Governnent.n (Underlinings

added) .
4o, That same "most absolute good faith of the

Part Five

Chilean Government" led it, as the evidence shows, on

the basis of the Argentine Govermment's own statements

in its diplomatic Netes to treat the channcl which

rises in the Cordon de las Virgenes as the boundary
between the two Qoumtries, and the Chilean settlements

in the valleys of California as under Chilean sovecreignty.
Turthermore, as the evidence examined in Part Two of the
Chilean Memofial and in Part Two of the present Counter-

Memorial abundantly shows, Chile openly, cffeetively

and continuously administered the arca. And, in

consequence, "the possession excrcised by Chile in the

adjacent zone" - 1in the zone, that is, adjacent to the

"Polena setbtlenment" - became esﬁablishod in all the

valleys of California.

4%, In paragraph 214 of its Memorial the Argentine
Governnent seeks to negative the relevance of Chilecan
administration of California by another ergumcnt:

namely, by asscriing that Chilcan nctivity in the

territory east of the "minor channel" has all been

subsequent to the establishment of the Mixed Boundary

Commission and, for the most part, subscquent to 1955.

Tt there naintains that it would be contrary to every

tenet of jurisprudence and contrary to common scnsc to
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suggest that acts on the ground, begun by one Party Part Pive
after the sctbting up of a boundary commission and

during its existence, could be relevant evidence as %o

the proper coursc of the boundary linc. And it refers

in this connechkion +Ho the Mingquiers and Ecrchos case

saying thét the Inbernational Court made it clear in
that case that even where, owing %o "special circun-
stances", the evidence of acts subscquent to the
"eritical datc" for allowing evidence night be
considered by the Court, this ceascd to be permissible
where"the necasure in question was taken with a view to
inproving the legel position of the party concerned™.
44, This argunent, as the Court will be aware'from the
informatiqn and evidence regarding Chileén adninistra-
tion in the Californin Valleys which is given in the
Chilean Menorial, is founded on a wholly crroneous
view of the facts. Chilcan administration of
California, so far fronm having begun after the
establishnent of the Mixed Boundary Commission, was
alrecady well-developed and being regularly and
continuously exercised maﬁy vears before that date.
Chilean acts on the ground during the périod of the
existence of the Mixed.ﬁoundary Conmission and

Chilean State activity with respect to the arca during

that period were no nore than the continuance or

natural developnent of acts previously done and of
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activity prcviously displeyed by Chilc. The new
information and cvidence presented to the Court in
Pert Two of the present Counter-lMenmorial strongly
confirms and re-inforcces the account given in the
Chilcan Menorial. It shows that at the time of the
cebablishnent of the Mixed Boundary Commincion the
scttlers in California and the lands which they
occupied or grozed had for nmany years been under
Chilcan adninistration and that the settlers rcegarded
thensclves both as being Chilecan and as living in
Chilean territory.

45. DNor, as already indicated above, can there be any

question of Chile's acts on the ground having becen

ncasures "token with a view to improving the legal
position of the party conccerned". On the contrary,
Just as Chile's execrcise of sovercignty with rcspcct

to the Palena settlenent had been based - in the words
of the Argentine Comnmission - "on the most absolute
good faith", so had its exorcise of sovercignty with
respect to the "adjacent zone" of California. ILabter on,
when Argentine gendarmes began to challenge Chile's
authority in the arca, Chile continued to displdy and
exercise her administrative activity in preciscly the
sane nanner. If she then took any special neasures, by
protest or otherwise, to assert her title to the

territory, they were taken with a view not "to improving
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her legal position" but to defending and naintaining a
‘legal position which she had already asserted and acted
upon Tor many ycars past. |

46, Before leaving the question of the so-called
critical date, the Chilean Government desires to reqall

that in the Minquiers and Ecrchos case the Court adopted

o somewhat cautious attitude towards the argunents ad-
vancced by ecach of the Partics designed to cxclude
evidence of State activity posteriof to a date allcged
by.the Party concerned to be "eritical". It reserves
the right, if nccessary, to say‘more on this peint at
the oral hcarings. Meanwhile, it contents itself with
observing that the term "eritical date" is used in nore
than one SeUSe in the cases; and that in many cascs it
signifies sinply an cppreciation by the Court that on
the evidence a particular dote or period is critical in
the scnsc that the existence or non-existence of a title
in onc or other Party at that tinc will on the facts be
docisive of the nerits of the respective clains of the
Partics with regard to the whole case. 'Tho Bastern
Greenland (P.C.I.J. Series A/B, No.53%, at page 45)

and Island of Palmas (U.N. Reports of International

Arbitral Awards, Vol.II, p.870) cases furnish wellknown

illustrations of this concept of a "critical date'.
It is also clear that there nay be more than one

critical date in a case. If in the present case
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Port Five there arce critical dates in the sense in wvhich thot
tern is used in the above-nentioned judicial decisions,
the first such date is the completion of the
Demarcation in 190%; for on the conpletion of the
denarcetion of Post 16 Chile acquired under Article III
of the Award o clear titlc to the river basins of all
strcans cntering the River Palcna below that point.

.In other words, on the completion of the demarcation,
Chile acquired a clecar title to the whole basin of the
River Salto, including its upper waters, the River
Engono, and its tributarices, the river Azul and the
Arroyo Matreras. The second such date is Argentina's
recognition in the correspondence of 1913~14 of the
fact that the river which enters the River Palena
opposite Post 16 has its source in the vicinity of the
Cerro Herrero; for by that receognition she inpliedly
rcecognised that the course of the river spccificd

in the Award as the boundary between the twoe countries

southwards of Post 16 is the coursce of the "majon

channel" and that the territory to the south and west

of that river is Chilcan under Article IIT of the
Award. In other words, she inplicdly recogniscd that,

inter alia, the Arroyo Lopcz - Arroyo Mallines valley

- one of the valleys of California - was Chilcan
territory under the Award. If the 1903 Demorcation

and 1913-14 correspondence should not for any rcason

346G,
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be thought to suffice to cstablish critical dates, Part Five
then the Chilean Government submits that the
imediately ensuing period of Chilean adminisﬁrative
activity with rcespect to California constitutes a
period criticzl for the decision of this case. In
that period Chilc in good faith displaycd and
exerciscd, both with respect to the Arroyo Lopez -
Arrcyo Mallines Valley and te all the other'valleys
of California, the sovereignty which she believed
herself to possess under the 1902 Award and the
péssossion of which by Chile Argentina herself
appeared to have recognised.
#7. In short, having regard to (a) the 1903
Demarcation which definitively identified and setvtled
the position of the mouth of tho River Encuentro and
the place of the cutting of the River Palena, (b)
Argentina's recognition in 1913-14 thdt the River
Encucntro hos its sourée in the vicinity of the
Cerro Herrero, and (c) the ensuing period of Chilecan
adninistrative activity in the valleyé of California,
- the Chilean Govermment subnits that fho cvidence
establishes a definitive Chilean title to the areas in
dispute; ana that, in conscquence, all Argentina's
attenpts to akéth and display her sovereignty with
regard to thesc arcas were - in the language of the

Pernonent Court in the Eastorn Greenland case (at page

45) - illegal and invalid.




2art Five

CHAPTER IV
FULFITIMENT OF THE AWARD

48, TUnder the Compromiso the Court to the extent

that it finds the course of the boundary beltween

Posts 16 and 17 to have remained unsettled since the
1902 Award is to report on that course "on the proper
interpretation and fulfilment" of the Award. The
Afgentine Govermment states in Paragraph 22C of its
Memorial that the question arises as to how far the

word "fulfilment" may be held to qualify "interpret-

ation". It then observes:
"fulfilment is certainly not o legal term of
art, and in its ordinary nmeaning would seem to
refer simply to the faithful carrying oult of an
Award by the Parties to whom it is addressed, a
neaning which it is given in Article XIII in the
General Treaty of Arbitration of 1902%.
However, it goes on to argue that in the
Compromiso the word "fulfilment" is used in a different
sense. Cilting a "further ncaning" given to the word

"Fulfil" in The Shorter Oxford English Dictionary it

suggests that in the Compromiso "fulfilment" means
"to make complete; to supply what is lacking in."

Then it observes:

"In such & sense, "fulfilment" may be thought
To be a cogent way of expressing precisely what
the Argentine Republic is asking this Court to
do in the middle part of the boundary line in
the Sector. But it is emphasised that this
further meaning of "fulfilment", as making




complete or supplying what is lacPLng, very
clearly excludes any questlon of revision, or
change, or modification, in those parts of the
1902 Award that are clcar ~ for this would not be
to supply what is 1ack1ng but to supply a
alternative for what ig already there".
49. The so called "plain terms" rule of interpretation,
S0 conspicuous in Paragraph 226 when the Argentine
Government asks the Court o apply Article III of +the
1902 Award, is absent here, when the Compromiso is ih
question and when it asks for the benefit of a
"further" heaning for the word "fulfilment". Surprising
also is the Argent 1ne Government': ‘reference to
Article XIITI of the 1902 Treaty of Arbitration in
order to illustrate the "ordinary neaning" of that
word. The Argentine Government is certainly correct
when it says that in Afticie XITI the word "fulfilment"
neans fulfilment by the Parties and that this ig its
ordinary meaning. it is also being entirely logical
when it refers to the 1902 Treaty in discussing the
meaning of "fulfilment"j for it is under this Tieaty
that the case has been submitted to Arbitration and
it is under this Trcaty that thekCompromiso was
concluded. Buk why, the Court may ask itself, does
the Argentine Government refer to A“tlcle XIIT of the
TJvaty, which has nothing to do with the present cace

when Article IT, the very Article under which the

case was submitted and the Compromiso concluded, also

349.
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~

conbtains the word "fulfilment" and the word there has
the same nmeaning? Is it because in ATticle II the
word "fulfilment" appears in significant proximibty to
the word "“interpretation"? TFor that Article reads

"Questions which have already been the subject of
definitive arrangenents betbween the Hich
Contracting Parties cannot in virtue of this
Treaty be re-opened. In such cases, arbitratiocn
will be limited exclusively to the questions
which may arise respecting the validity, the
interpretation and thn fulfilment of such
arrangemnents.”

Whatever may have been Argentina's reason for
referring to Article XIII, the word "fulfilment" was,

as the Court knows, included in the Compromiso with

reference to the language found in Article II of tThe
1902 Treaty.

50. Argentina's contention at any ratc is that the
Comproniso in virtue of the word "fulfilment" enables
the Court to fill, by a line of its own devising, the
large gap in the boundary which necessarily appears

in the middle of the sector if her method is adopled of
applying a literal interpretation of Ltwo pieces of the
Award at thé northern and southern ends of the scctor
and of then treating the middle piece of the‘Award as
completely nmissing owing to the error. In the view of
the Chilean Govermment, there are several reasons why
the Compromiso cannot be considered as en&bliﬁg the

Court to do any such thing. First, as pointed out in




the previous paragraph, the word "fulfilnent" in the- Part Five
Compromiso is not open to the interpretation which
Argentina seeks tc put upon it. Secondly, the word does
not "qualify" the word "interpretation" in the Comproniso,
as Argentina appesrs to éuggest. On the contrary, the
word "and" is clearly used in its normal conjunctive
sensce, so that "fulfilment" is a basis for the Court's
repért on the case of the boundary which is complementary,
to, and not a substitute for, interpretation.

57, Thirdly, Argentina's piecemeal and incomplete
interpretation of the Award is not reconcilable with

the intentions of the 1902 Tribunal or with the legal
process of interpretation as properly understood. It

is not rcceoncilable with the intentions of the 1902
Tribunal, because that Tribunal undouvbtedly intended

to, and did, lay down a single continuous and conplete
boundary line‘for the sector between Posts 16 and 17.

Argentina, however, asks that the Court should deduce

from the language of the Award two discontinuous
segnents of a boundafy.at the éxtremities of the
sector and to say that this deduction regarding the
two segments both constitutes and exhausts the legal
process of interpreting the Award; and she asks that
under the rubric of "fulfilment" the Court should
create a connecting boundary between the twe segments

as a substitute for the boundary awarded by the
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Tribunal in that part of the line. This determination
of some segments only of the boundary by so called
interpretation cannot, the Chilean Government submits,
legitimately be considered as falling within the legal
concept of interpretation. This is evident from the
very fact Argehtina's "inteipretation“ cannct stand

up as an interpretation of the provisions of the Award
regarding the boundery between Posts 16 and 17 without
the assistance of so called "fulfilment". Teave out
"fulfilnent" and, on Argentina's method of interpret-
ation, there is no boundary dcducible from the 1902
Averd for the whole sector. Yet, as alveady stated,
it is clear that the 1902 Tribunal intended to, and
did, lay down a single continuous and complete boundary
for that sector. Indeed, Argentina herself insists

that the whole boundary was scettled in principle by the

1002 Award and Demarcation.

- 52, Fourthly, the segnents at ecither end of the

boundary, which constitute the necessary premise for
any "fulfilment" in the middle of the sector, are then-
selves arrived at by an interpretation which diérezards
the effect of the geographical crror on the identifi-
cation of the Cerro Virgen as an element in the
boundary awarded by the Tribunal. Argentina osks the

Court to shut its eyes to the facls that the Cerro
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Virgen is not the nountain which has the source of the
River Encuentro on its s opes, and that. the 1902
Tribﬁnal intended the boundary to follow that River to
its source and thence ascend directly to the waﬁershed
on the nountain on which the source is found. She
asks the Court in short to turn its back on any attempt
to ascertain the true intentions of the Tribunal'and
to concoct a boundary on the basis of an illegitimate
nethod of interpretation plus so—called’fulfiimént.
55. TFifthly, the fulfilment for which Argentina asks
(a) would violate a cardinal principal of the
Award regarding the passing to'Chile of the basins
of éll rivers which enter the River Palena below
Post 16,
(b) would be wholly incompatible with the
descripticn of the boundary as proceeding contin-
uously upstream along the River Encuentro until
reaching the high watershed along which it is to
pass to Post 17; and
(c) would result in a boundary splitting apart
the communities of human beings in the area and
in other respects offending the most clementary
principles of sound boundary delimitation. |

S54. The word "fulfilment" in the Compromiso, the

Chilean Government submits, empowers and requires the

Part Five




Part HFive

Court tobese Its report on the case of the boundary on the
fulfilment of the Award by thc Parties as well as on
the interpretation of its tems. That is indicabed
not only by the provisions of Article II of the 1902
Treaty, but also by the very nabture of the case dealt
with in the Compromiseo, when more than 60 years have
elapsed since the Award was rendered. The Chilean
Government restes its claim first, on an interpretation
of the Award which seeks bto ascertain the true
intention of the 1902 Tribunal with respect to the
single continuous complete boundary which is laid down
for the sector and, secondly, on the evidcnce of the
fulfilment of the Award by the parties in the sector.
The utmost significance, it subnits, is to be attached
to the fact that the evidence of "fulfilment" strongly
confirms and re-enforces the meaning of the Award which
Chile presents to the Court as resulting from the
interpretation of the provisions of Article IIT

relating to the Post 16/17 sector in the context of the

Award as a whole - the only proper legal method of

interpreting those provisions. In other words, it
asks the Court to attach the utmost significance to
fhe fact that in the case submitted by Chile both
elements of the Compromiso - interpretation and

fulfilment - give the same result.
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55, In conclusion, the Chilcan Governnends would add
that, cven if the word "fulfilment" in.the Comproniso is
to be considered as covering fulfilment by the Court
as well as by the Parties, it cannot be unﬁerstood as
applying to the filling of the gap operatién envisaged
by Argentina, which denies to the process of inter-
pretation its proper function. On the other hand,

the interpretation of the terms of the Award and their
application to the ground neccssarily leave a number
of detailed questions for appreciation and determin-
ation by the Court. It is in the resolution of such
questions that, in the view of the Chilcan Governnent,
the Court could legitimately be represented as having
a certain role in the "fulfilment" of the Award under

the Compronmiso.

CHAPTER V
SUBMISSIONS OF THE.GOVERNMENT OF CHILE

1. On the basis of the considerations, evidence and
contentions set out in its Memorlal and in the present
Counter-Memorial, the Chilean Government maintains the
Submissions presented to the Court in Chapter V of Part
Flve of the Chilean Memorial,

2. On the basls of these same considerations, evidence
and contentions the Chilean Government’submits that the

Court of Arbitration should now reach the following

further conclusions:
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Part Five (L) The Submissions of the Argentine Government
summariéed in Chapter X of its Mémorial, together with
the arguments and detailed submisslons presented in the
preceding Chapters thereof, should be rejected except
insofar as they are not in conflict with the contentlons
and submissions contained in the Chilean Memorilal and

Counter-Memorial, . |

(M) The boundary line defined and submitted to the

Court’s consideration in Paragraphs 6 to 10 of the

Argentine Submissions, with the exXception of the part

between Post 16 and the confluence of the major and
minor channels 1s not the‘course of' the boundary which
results from the consideration of the question referred
to +the Court in Article I of the Compromiso, and must
be rejected by the Court, inter alila, on the following
grounds
(1) The Argentine version of the boundary line 1s
- not Justifiable as a "sroper interpretation”
of the 1902 Award, The method of interpreta-
tlon adopted by Argentina disregards the
cardinal rule of interpretation that the terms
of an instrument must be interpreted in the
context of the whole 1nstrument and in the lig
of its objects and purposes, It further dis-
regards the effect of the geographical error

in rendering ambilguous or obscure the meaning
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of the Award andbinadmissibly excludes any Part
reference to the real intentions of the 1902
Tribunal in Article III of 1ts}Award.

(11) The Argentine method of interpreting plecemeal

- the provisions of the Award relating to the
Post 16 - Post 17 sector of the boundary with-
out regard to the continuity or completeness
of the boundary 1s wholly‘inadmissible‘and in
1agrant contradiction with the evident _

intention of the Tribunal to lay down a single,

continuous and complete boundary for the sector,

Furthermore, this method of interpretation
includes a recourse to the principlé of the
separability of provisions which 1s illegiti-
mate in the case of the provisions formulating

a slngle, continuous and complete boundary

line, and which also has no place in the
Interpretation of instruments independently of
quesﬁions of nallity, termination, suspension
and the like,

(111) The Argentine version of the boundary line is

‘ not justifiable as a "proper interpretation™

of the 1902 Award equally because it is in
flagrant conflict with a cardinal provision
in the Award itself under which the Tribunal

allotted to Chile the river basins of all rivers
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(iv)

entering the River Palena below Post 16.

The Argentine version of the boundary line 1is
again not justifiable as a “proper interpreta
tion" of the 1902 Award because it is
irreconcilable with the whole concept of the
boundary as 1t appears in Article III: namely,
of a continuous unbroken line prodeeding from
north to south along the course of the River
Encuentro to its source on the slope of a
mountain forming part of a high watershed
along which the boundary would continue to

Post 17. It is further irreconcilable with
that concept in that it does not follow the
true course of the River Encuentro and does not
proceed and ascend continupusly along a river
line to the high watershed, On the contrary,
1% introduces alternate land and river elements
not provided for in the Award, introduces four
additional river elements not contemplated in
the Award, and for some distance descends one
of thesé-in a manner wholly out of keeping with
the boundary described in the Award, In additim
it arbitrarily divides the subordinate river
basins of the River Salto/Engano system in a
way which is in direct conflict with the
principles applied in Article III of the Award.
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(V?‘

(vi)

(vii?

The Argentine version of the boundary line is Part Five

dlso not Justifiable under the Compromiso

because it disregards the fulfillment _of the Award

by the Partles, as evidenced by the diplomatic
correspondence of 1915/14, Chile's administrative
activity in the area to the south and west of
the maJor channel, and the treatment by both
parties of the major channel as the boundary

line for a considerable period,

- The Interpretation which Argentina seeks to

give to "fulfilment in the Compromiso in order
to provide a Justification for her version of
the boundary llne puts an inadmissible construct -
ion on Article I of the Compromiso and at the
same tTlme presupposes that the Court will
adopt an inadmissible method of interpreting
piecemeal Article III of the Award.

Contrary to the contentions of the Argentine
Government in Paragraphs 6 and 9 of its
Submlssions, no.part of the boundary line
between Posts 16 and 17 was finally settled

by any unanimous decislon of the Mixed .
Boundary Commission in Minute No, 55 in 1955
for the reasons explained in Part III of the
Chllean Memorial and the corresponding part

of the present Counter-Memorial and surmarised
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(viii)

in the contentions and submissions of the
Chilean Government in Chapters IIT and V of
Part Five of 1%s Memorial,

The Argentine version of the boundary line,
in addition to being in confllct wlth fthe
whole concept of the boundary laild down.and
the principles stated in the 1902 Award, is
on practical grounds open to the strongest
obJections throughout a large part of its
length, Among these obJections 1s The fact
that it disregards and disrupts the natural

transit routes connecting the different valleys

of the area and the links of these valleys

with the town of Palena. Another is the

fact that the "minor channel" is a completely
impractical international_bbundary in a
populated mountaln valley, A third is the
fact that in the‘valleys of the minor channel
and of the Rivers Engano and Azul the
Argentine line would divide certain of the
landholdings or separate a landholder from
one of the plots which he possesses in the are
4 fourth is the fact that the line would split
in two the small isolated community of human

beings in the mountain valleys, leaving some
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of the Chilean families of this community
wlthin Chile and converting others'into

dwellers in a foreign country,

: : ’
VICTOR SANTA CRUZ JOSE MIGUEL BARROS

~ Agents for the Government of Chile,

B TP 3
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APPENDIX Appendix
NOTES ON SOME OF THE MAPS, PLANS AND SHEETS

ANNEXED TO THE ARGENTINE MEMORIAL

- In general, the following notes refer only to
the naps not of Chilean origin contained in the
Argentinc portfolio. Thé cormments are restricted,
moreovef, to the sector between boundary posts 16 and
17. | |

These notes are not exhaustive and it nay be
necessary to enlarge upon them in the course of the
oral hcarings. |

MAP A1 |
"Map annexcd to 1902 Award - Perez Rosales to Lake
Bucnos Aires - 1902 Tribunal - Scalc 1:200.000, 1902",

This nap is a copy of the map on the "Percz
Rosales" to "Lake Euenos Aires" sector attached to
the Arbitral Award of 1902.

Three points may be noted:

(a) That the Salto river appears as a different
water course from the Encuentro, further west, and
that the source of the Sdlto is presented as being on
the 720 neridian line;

(b) That the line connceting "C. d. 1. Virgen"
with the northern point of the cutting of Lake General

Paz - purporting to represent the boundary line in

1.




\ppendix that scctor - appears as a broken linec.

(¢) That "C. Colorado o E1l Morro" appoaru

between the "Encuentro® and the Salto.
MAP A2

"Comparative extracts of the 1902 Award Map and
rclated Maps. Drawn for the purposc of the present
procéodings“°

Attention is drawn to A) "Detail of Lange's Map
1902". It will be rccalled that Lange's map (4710)

dated 1901 appears to contain = represcentation of the

boundary line as determined by the Arbitral Award in
1902, The "detail" appearing on Map A2 hag no
boundary line. DNo indication has been given of when
this reprcduction was nade.

Special attention should be paid to the position
of the words "Rio Encucntro", which appcar on B) "The
sanne scctor on ﬁhe nap rcpresented before the Tribunal,
by the Argentine Ropublic™. The namc has been nmoved
southwards on the nap so ag to be both south and north
of the confluence of the "Engano" and the "Encucntro®.
This is particularly intercsting becausc a comnparison of
"A)" and "B)" reveals that this change is the only onc
between Lange's map and Moreno's ap «

MAP A
"Chile, between 43 and 46° 5 - Annexed to Chllewn

Statement in 1902 proceealngs"

2.




It is inberesting to obscrve that on this map‘the
river Encuentro appcars flowing from the cast.

This corrcct representation of the Encuentro
appeared on the "first Argentine nap" presented to the
British Arbitrator in 1901 (Map CH.10) (not reproduced
with the Argentine Memorial) but did not so appear on
the second Argentinian nap.

It nay be noted that even if Argentine Annex No.8
reproduces Dr. Steffen's account, the Argentine Memorial
itself deoes not refor anywhere to the description of

the Encucentro given by its discoverer, Dr. Steffen. It

"From his obscrvation point on Cuesta ("Ridge") 3,
at 352 1m. (sce Map No.A9 ond Annex No.8 p.14) he

was able to see not only the confluence of these two
rivers, but also the final stretch of the River En-
cucntro running inte the River Carrcenleufu'. (Argca—
tine Mcmorial, p.31, underlining added).

The precise words of the discoverer of the
Encuentro were:

"According to what could be seen from my obscrvation
point, the "abra" of this river descends from the
cast ..." ('lMcmorias e informes reclativos a la
hxpedicion Exploradora del Rio Palena" - Santiago,
1895 - page 71, underlining added).

The word "abra" is a geographic expression concern-
ing the general direction of a river or of a valley. In
that sense "abra"™ nay be translated as "vallcy fissurec,

or gorge". The difference between Steffen's ovm words

and the paraphrase in the Argentine Mcmorial nmay be
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significant.

The Argentine Memorial also does not nention
the fact that the nap prepared by the discoverer of
the Encuentro (Map A9) showed the river clearly

flowing from the east and not from the south.

MAPS A4 and AS

"Argentine Republic Map(s) uscd by Captain Dickson R.A.
annexed to Argentine Reply in 1902 proceedings".

'Thc Chilean Menorial refers to these shects at
page 119, |

It is intereosting to obscrve that on Shcet No.3
(Map A5) the eastern’range (Cordon de las Viggenes),
which is so clearly depicted on the maps subnitted by
Argentina to the Arbitrator in 1900/ (Map CH.10)
(but not annexcd to thé Argentine Memorial) has disap-
peared. This range has been replaced by the word
"Nevados". The heights of scveral of ‘the nountains
forning this range have also disappeared énd their
contour lines are drawn with dotted linoes.

Reference may be made in this connection to a note
which Stcffen included in the 1909 edition of his

report on the exploration of the Palena river:

"It is also advisable to rccall the fack that
senor Moreno in the 'Plano Preliminar' attachod
to his cbove-nentioncd work of 1897 (when that
arca had already been surveyed by the Argentince
Boundary Ccmmission) elininates conpletely the
high range culnminating in Cerro Cuche, putting
in its stead o big blank without mountains and



with the inscription ‘undulating slopes and glens'". Appendix
(Page 265).

In the sanc edition, in another ﬁote, Steffen
referred to the renresentation of the aren of the sources
of the rivers Palena and Futaleufu in the 1897 "plano"
of Dr. Moreno saying that: |

"Ho-cne would suspcct, for instance, that in the
arca north of the 430 parallel where g _broad blank
space appears, indicating a plateau with flat
suriace, therc exist indcecd the Lsquel and Lelej
siocrras which in their greater extent have all

thc features which characterize mountain ranges".
(Underlining added).

And Steffen added:

J "We might also ask why, aEparentlz on _purpose,
the data on heights, so abundant in other parts of
that 'plano' in the section of the divortiunm
aquarun corrcsponding to the chains of Esquel
and Lelejee.. hove been onitted?" (Underlining
added - page 285).

Incidentally, these Maps A4 and A5 are mentioncd
by Argentina as "Copies withoutbt change.... fron a
nap.... used in 1902 by Captain DICKSON". This is
obvicusly a nistake since the demarcation represented
on those shcets was made in 1903,

- It ought also to be noted that on Map A5. the linse
between "¢ d. 1. Virgen" and boundary post 17 appears
as a broken line. This may be recalled in connection

- with the following statement of the Argentine Menorial:
"ees.There is no doubt ébout the identity of the
water-parting referred to in the report of the
Tribunal, depicted on the 1902 map, and observed

by Captain Dickson in 1903 from boundary post 17".
(Para 278, page 252). (Underlining addcd).
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MAP A6
"Andecan Region of the Territory of Chubut - P.Ezcurra -
(1893)". |
No particular comments secn to be required by
this nmap except to say that it was prepared hefore

the discovery of the River Encuentro.

MAP A7

"Ierritory of Chubut - P. Ezcurra - 1893".

This nap, also drawn before the discovery of th
Encucntro, is nonetheless interesting fron the point
of view df lgnd scttlemcnt. It shows the colonization
systen (diviéion in sections, fractions and lots)

consistently used by Argentina until today.

MAP A8
"Perritory of Chubut - Eng. Cobos - 395",

This map, which appears to be the first
Argentinian nap concerning this area after the dis-
covery of the Encuentro, correctly shows this river
as being distinct from the River Salto and unconnccted
with the Engano lakes. The Argentine Menmorial (page 30,
refers to it as follows:

"This map nade in 1895 by Cobos shows a

"R. Encuentro" flowing northward into the River

Carrenleufu. The course of this river as depicted

upon Cobos' map eppears to be the samc as that ‘

called Rio del Encuentro on the map nade in 13894

by Dr. H. Steffen.... but Cobos shows the whole
course of this river whereas Steffen depicts only

its lowest, cast to west, reach".




1

No rcfercnce has, however, éome to the knowledge
of the Chilean Government of any exploration of that
area by seunor Cobos or any other Argentihé explorer,
made before or in 1895, which would Jjustify the

- coursce attributed to the Encuentro by senor Cobos on
this Map AS8. |

In this connection it is interesting to contrast
the course of the Ric Encucniro depicted on the 1898

nap drawn by Lange (see below the remarks relative to

Map A10). On the 1898 Map Lange placed the source

of the Encuentro aobout four miles from Cerro Central

and showed the river as flowing from an eastern source

in niuch the sane way as the najor channel.

MAP AQ
"El Rid Vuto-Palena - Dr. H. Steffen and O. de Fischer-
1894",

This nap concerning the Chilean explorations
during which'the Encuentro was discovered, represents
this river as it was secn by its discoverer: flowing
from the cast into the Palena (see above note on

Map A3).

map a10 (1) |
"Langc's Survey ~ G. Lange - 1:100.000 - 1900/01

(1) Map A10 will be considered together with the 1898
Lange map (Sub Comision No,8, Seccidn Norte, 1~ de
Agesto de 1898) though the latter is not in the Argen
tine portfolio but was introduced by Argentina during
the oral hearings of December 1965,

7.
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Lppendix (unpublished)"

It is unnecessary to stress the importance of
Map A10 and its relevance to these procecdings.

Attention is drawm, as far as the disputed arca
is concerned, to the following‘points:

(a) Map A.10 (dzted 1900/01) bears a
rcpresentation of the "boundary line" as it nppears
ou the Arbitral Award nap of 1902. The Argentine
Menorial alludcs to this fact stating that: "it is
not known whcn that boundary linc was narked upon
the map; it was not narked on it for the purpose of
the presént proccedings".

The Argentince Menorial provides a further
cxplanation in the following terms:

"That this linc did not featurc on Lange's

original can be deduced from the facts that such

a broken red crossed line docs not appear in the

detailed key shown at the lower right nargin of

the nap, and that the red line is supcerinposed on
the original drawing, from the date, 15th August

1901, above Langc's signature and from the fornal

date 1900-1901 on the map itself" (Pagec 35).

If the map,‘as stated, was really finished on
15th August 1901 (i.e. before Sir Thonas Holdich's
surveying journey) it was impossible for the original
map to have "featured" the boundary line debermined

by the Award more than a year later and it is

therefore hardly necessary to introducec the process

of deductiocn.




Anywey, it should be noted that the above- Appendix
nentioned rcd crossed line stops precisely where the
course of the "rio Encuentro" starts being depicted
with a brokcn line.

() "R. el Salto" appears on Map A.10 as a
distinct water-course fron the "Encuentro". Thé source
of the Salto appears on the line Qf the 720, that is
over 15' distant west from "C. d. 1. Virgen".

(e) Map A.10 did not feature, between the Palena
river and the Engano, any contour lines north of the
sﬁmmits of the transversal ridge shown between the
two rivers. The dotted contour lines which appear
on Sheet NOQB, Map XVIII ("The Second Argentine Map")
(Map CH.10), which is said to be based on Map A.10
would therefore scen to have been added by Moreno on
sone other basis. ‘ _

‘(d) The report to which Mop A.10 is said to have
been attadhedvrofers to several geogrophic features
such as "Valle Hondo", "Cerro Virgen", "Las Lagunitas"
etec., as 1if they had becn alrcady discovered and naned
oen previous explorations. That these nomes were already
known to Lange is the nore likely because when Lange
introduced a new nanc for a feature, he said =zo
expressly and furnished the reason for the nanc chosen

by hin (sec for inetance his explanation on the naning

of the Ingono Lakes).
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The questions rust therefore be posed: Who
discovered and nancd Valle Hondo, Cerro Virgen, Las
Lagunitas, Valle Norte, Ccrro del Salto? Was itv
Lange hinself in a previous ecxpedition in this region?
Are there in the Argentine Archives other rceports on
Argentine explorations which renaoin unpublished, as
Lange's map did for over 60 ycars?

The answers to these questions nay be signi;ﬁ‘icant°

During the oral hearings in Dccenber 1965 a new

Lange nop was produced by Argentina. This map had not

been included or even nenbioned in the statenent of
the carly explorations of the arca in the Argentine
Menorial, page 28 ¢t scq.

Tho first mention of this map was made by IMr.
Bathurst in the hecaring of Decenber 29th 1965. When
ansWering a question of the Court on the mapping of

the disputed area he alluded to a map made by "Gunardo

o

Lange (in) 1898 (on an) unknown scale". Mr. Bathurst
added that this nop had come to light in the
Archives of the Argentine Government "as a result of

'in response to a question

a further search being nade'
raised by the Court, (page 28 of the transcript).
During the hearings, the Chilean Government asked
for a copy of this map which was laber supplicd througst
the Solicitors for Argentina. The Chilean Governnent

through its Solicitors also tried to cbtain additional




Information on the exploration of Lange which this map
1898 seemed to indicate. As may be seen by the letter
dated 21 Aprll 1966 from Messrs. Coward Chance & Co. to
the Chilean Government's Solicitors, the reply was:
"Z, ©No report relating to the map prepared by
Lange 1n 1898 has been discovered yet, but
we are enqulring again, It would appear
that the lines shown on the map depiect the

route taken by lLange on that particular
expedition”. (Annex No. 39(37)).

No further information has been recéived by the
Chilean Agents on this subjeect.

The followlng comment 1s made therefore on the basis
of the photographic reduction of the original 1898 map
furnished by Messrs. Coward Chance & Co., on the
assumption thaf the Court has been or may be provided with
a simllar copy of the map. |

The map shows Lange's route leaving the house of
Steinkamp on the northern bank of the Palena river,
crossing the river and travelling therefrom to the mouth
of the Encuentro. On that Journey he first crosses a
minor tributary of the Palena and then goes round a
mountain referred to as "PA Fierro", crosses agaln a
tributary of the Palena having its source near Cerro
Herrero and then reaches the eastern bank of a water
course, which the map calls "Rio Encuentro" at a point
estimated to be about two mlles from its Junction with
the Palena. On this junction, there appears on the map

a number (240?) which seems %o correspond to a measurement

11,
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of the height of the point.

It may be observed that thls map cannot be considerec
as a reproductlon of Steffen's map of 1894. This 1898
map contains 1ndeéd several features which do not appear
on Steffen's map.

Particular attention is drawn to the fact that on
this map of Lange, the river Encucntro appears represented
wilth much more detaill than 1ts discoverer recorded on his
1894 map. In particular, it should not pass unobsarved
that the "Rio Encuentro“ shown on this 1898 Argentinian

map is represented clearly flowlng from the south east

and, what 1s more remarkable, 1ts source is repregented

as being legs than 7 kilometres from Cerro Central.

In the light of this map, i1t may be asserted that
what lange saw and depicted as Encuentro in 1898 can only

be the "major channel'.
MAD A1l

"Hydrographic sketch of the Zone Lake General Paz -
River Palena - Argentina-Chiie Mixed Boundaries
Commission (Chilean element) (1945/48)".

This “hydrographical sﬁetch" is ﬂot one of the
official documents mentioned by Article 21 of the "Plan
of Work and General Directives of the Mixed Boundary
Commission". Nor is 1t mentioned in any Minute of the
meetings of the Mixed Boundary Commission; nor is it

1included in the annexes to those minutes. A thorough
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examination of fhe files of the correspondence exchanged Appendl
betwéen the Chllean element of the Mixed Boundary

Commission and 1ts Argentinlan counterpart reveals no

direct or indirect allusion to this sketch which Argen-

tina attributed to "the Chilean element of the Mixed

Boundary Commission".

In any case, it should be recalled thaﬁ according
to the Plan of Work and General Directives, even "the
opinions of the Delegates as expressed at the meetings

will be of a personal nature and shall not represent the |

opinlon of the Delegation of the country to which they

belong". 1In the light of this provision, 1t is unneces=-
sary to emphaslze that fhis.sketch of unknown origin can
not represent the opinion of the "Chilean element of the
Mixed Boundary Commission" mueh less that of the
Government of Chile.

Nevertheless, in this sketeh 1% 1s interesting to
observe:

" a) The water courses which the Chilean Memorial
calls hmajor“ and "minor" channels are deplcted with
lines of approximatély the same wldth, while the Palena
River is shown with a double line. Thls suggests that
an attempt was being made to distingulsh between the
wldths of different rivers, and‘that the majJor channel
was not considered a subordinate to the minor channel.

Since the sketch states that it was based on

13.
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Argentine alr photographs, it may be presumed that these
photographs revealed that the "major" and "minor"
channels deserved to be deplcted at least with the same
symbols in the maps of the area. It being so, the
distorted and inaccurate representation of the
Encuentro/Lopez/Mallines system shown by Sheets VII—2 3
and VII;B of the Mixed Boundary Commission is still i
less understandable,

b) Arroyo Lopez (which in All appears without a

name) is represented as more substantlal than its

trib&tary the Mallines, aiso unnamed in the sketch.

¢) The Rio Salto isvcorrectly represented., It
bears élso the name "Tigre" at its confluence with the
Palena, which indicateé that 1ts source 1s in the

Engano lakes, as is the case. The "Azul" is also

represented as a tributary of the Salto or Tigre flowing
from the west, |
d) The true Encuentro appears in the sketch as

"Rio Engafio" a name which, as is well known, has been

glven for at least the last 60 years to the water course

which has 1ts source at the Engano lakes.

MAF Ale
"Chile between 430 and 4498 ~ From the book 'Report on
the Arbitral demarcation of the Argentina-Chlle Frontiex
(Bertrand) Santiago 1903",
It néed only be sald that this sketch map repeats
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the error of the Award Map of 1902, In otheg words; it Appendix
repeats the mistake contalned in the Lange 1901 Map and

in Sheet No. 3 (Map XVIII) prepared by Moreno for the
M%mmhw'ﬁmmtRmﬂfﬂn

The watér courses invthe disputed area are not glven
names, wlth the exception of the Palena river.

It is perhaps interesting to add that Senor Bertrand
referred to the series of plans from "which the Map Al2
has been ektracted, as follows:

"These plans are simply a 11ne%1 and autograﬁhic

2%22g_E%E_EE_E_,_Ji{§U§}$ﬂL£1._Q%_JﬂﬁiréifgL._EEEEEa

where the more important correctlions ve been

introduced". (Underlining added). (Report
presented by the Chllean Expert $o the Chilean
Foreign Minister on 16 October 1903),

MAPS Al3, All, Al5, Al6 and Al7

All these maps are seen to repeat the same error of
linking the Encuentro system with the Engano system, an
error which crept into the Arbltral Award Map as a

consequence of Moreno's Map XVIII,
MAP A18
"Lago Nahuel=-Huapi" - "American Geographlcal Soclety of

New York 1930",

This map of Amerlcan origln is clearly a reproduc=-
tion of the previous maps contalning the error of

Moreno's 1902 map. The "R. Enquentro" (sic) is linked

to the Engaﬁo lakes by Rio Engano.
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MAP Al9

"E1 Valle del Palena-Carrenleufy = From the book
"Patagonia Occidental" by Dr. H. Steffen - 1944".
This map, published in 1944, contains a reproduction
of the Arbitral Award Map mistake. |
Agaln, it may be pointed out that "Rioc del Salto"
appears as a river wholly different from the Encuentro
and half way between the international boundary and "Rio

del Torrente'.
MAP A20

”Quellon—Palena:Futaleufd‘~ Chilean Military Geographic
Institute 1945",

Once agaih, the hydrographical features of the 1902
Map are reproduced. No further comment seems %o be

called for,

MAP A2l

"Air Navigation Map (Castro Alsen) ~ Chilean Military
Geographic Institute ;:19469, -

The'pufpose of thls map, as stated on its title, is
to serve for air navigation purposes. In respect to the
disputed area 1t 1s a very sketchy map: |

a) It repeats the mistake derived from Moreno's
map on‘Lange's exploration.

b) The Engano lakes have disappeared.

¢) The Engano river appears without a name.
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d) The Palena river appears interrupted on the Appendlx
Argentine side of the boundary; 1ts source is not shown
1n Iake General Paz but on the eastern slopes of Cordon
de las Vi;genes.

Nevertheless, as in all maps, the River Salto appears

as different from the Encuentro and quite distant from

the boundary 1line through all of 1%s course,
MAP A22

"pyerto Montt~Rlo Chubut - U.S. Army Map Service‘; 1954",

This map "cobyright 1954 by the American Geographlcal
Society" appears to have been prepared by the U,S. Army
Corps}of Fngineers.

Attention 1s drawn to the warning printed on the
left lower quarter of the map: THE DELINEATION OF
INTERNATIONAL BOUNDARIES ON THIS MAP MUST NOT BE
CONSIDERED AUTHORITATIVE, »

Indeed, between River Palena and Lake General Paz
the "international boundary" does not follow even the
river called there "R. Encuentro". The "boundary" cuts
the Palena east of Post 16 and half way between the mouth
of the Encuentro and the Cajon (which bears no name on
this map). The "boundary" also cuts the lower course of
the Encuéntro. |

The Engano Iakes appear draining into Iake General

Paz and are not shown as the source of River EngaHo. The




River Engano 1tself is not named and its sources may be

detected elither on the eastern slopes of the CR de 1g

Virgen's minor range or on the castern slopes of the

Cordon de las Virgenes.

MAP A25

"Puerto Montt;Rio Chubut"'; U.S. Army Map Service - 1956"

This map, compiled and drawn by the American Geo;
graphical Society of New York "and copyrighted by the
Soclety in 1956" appears as a "provisional edition".
Indeed it is, for all practical purposes, a reproduction
of Map A22. Nevertheless, the warning on the delineatior
of the international boundary has disappeared.,

Insofar as the topography of the disputed area is .
concerned, 1t may be observed in the small sketch at the

foot called "relative reliabllity", that Map A23 is

mainly "adjusted from compiled maps"

It is interesting to observe in this map = publishe

after the Buenos Alres meeting of 195) - the following

features:

a)

The "international boundary" does not follow ar

part of "R. Encuentro", but cuts the lower part of the

river, descending across the_River Engano to Cerro de 1le

Virgen. Furthermore the purported boundary does not

cut the Palena at the Junction of Palena/Encuentro, but

further east, half way between the "Encuentro" and what

would appear to be "Arroyo Cajon".
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b) The Junction of the "Encuentro" and the Palena
is disélaced west.,

¢) The Engano lakes do not appear as sources of the
River éngaﬁo and are shown draining into lake General Paz.

d) The "Cordon de las Virgenes" appears as a much
more iﬁportant range than the Cerrd de la Virgen minor
range,

e) The name "R. del Salto" covers part of Rio El

Azul which has no name on this map.
MAP A24

"San Carlos de Bariloche - I,C.A.0, (Argentina) 1957".

This map 1s referred to as "Ediecion 1957" but on
the left hand side 1t reads "Informacicn Aeronautica
JUNIO 1962",

With reference to the sector between posts 16 and
17 the following remarks may be made:

a) There 1s no "River Encuentro" represented
(neithér the true Encuentro nor the "minor channel").

b) The whole area of California appears as
"inexpiorado" (unexplored) which would seem remarkable

for a map sald to have been compiled in 1957.

¢) The name "R, El Salto o Tigre" is assigned to

a river having 1ts source over five miles from the line

which would appear to represent the boundary.

_d) The Palena/Carrenleufu river appears represented,

19.
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represented with a dotted line (unsurveyed?) over the
whole of 1ts course in Argentine territory.- Part of
the Iake General Paz also apbears represented with
dotted lines. |

e) The "Cordén'de las Virgenes" appears as an
importént range from Cerro Hbrrero.to the Engaﬁo Lakes,
with a general height of between 4,921 and 6.890 feets
two of its summits appear in the range of the 6890-8858
feet,

MAP A25
"Monte Maca = U.S. Coast and Ceodetic Survey - 1942".

This copy 1s headed "advance proof subject to
correction”.

On the left hand side it reads: "Boundaries do
not necessarily carry the approval of the countries
involved",

The "boundary line" scems to follow partlally a
river therein called "Rio Engano"; but after some eight

miles south of the confluence of that river with the

Palena, 1t bends west towards "Pico Moro'. After

describing a curve towards north east, the 1ihe

proceeds south to the cutting point of Iake General Paz.
Neither the true Encuentro nor the Argentine version

of this river appear deplcted 1In this map. Cordén‘de las

Virgenes appears as a sSnowy massif.
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MAP A26 | Appendi’

"las Cordillerés Patagénicas". From the book 'Patagonia
Occidental by Dr, H. Steffen. 19447,

Between the Palena/Carrenleufu River and lake
General Paz, the "Chile:Argentine boundary" appears to
cut the river slightly west of the Junctlon of an
unnamed tribufary. Further south, the "boundéry" runs
parallel to this tributary and 'cuts 1t bending east.
Thereon, the lline proceeds south to Lake General Paz,

The map bears no reference to Rivers Encuentro,

Engano or Salto.

MAP _A2T
"WalllMap of Chile : Prof, Alejandro Rios V. and Anguita F,
941", | |
This map, published in 1941, cohtains a rather sketchy
representation of the "disputed area". Between the
Carrenleuf&/Palena river and Lake General Paz the whole

area has no rivers and no other geographical features.

MAP A28

"Geomorphological Map of Palena =~ Prof. Reynaldo Bgrgel O.

This map appears, indeed, to have been '"prepared and
dravn by Geomorphologlst Reynold Bgrgel on 15 June 1961"
(see right lower corner of the plate).

The Argentine Memorial refers to this map as 'one of
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the latest manifestations of changes of names on Chilean
maps" (page 91). Mr, Bathurst, leading Counsel for
Argentina, alsé referred to it in the December 1965
hearings but recognized that 1t was "not an official map
but the result of independent research" (page 39 of the
transeript). On that occasion, a coloured version of
Map A28 waé introduced., »

Since this map is admittedly a private work, and
since some references to i%ts author were made in the
December hearings, it has been thought advisable %o
obtain Professor Bgrgel's comments dn this map.

Professor Bgrgel has prepared 2 memorandum which 1s
reproduced hereunder as his personal views on Map‘A28 and

as his interpretatioh of some of the features of his map:

"EXPLANATTION OF MAP 528"

"1. This map is geomorphological. Consequently,
the slgns which appear thereon correspond to
indlividualized forms according to thelr external
aspect, without a bearing on detail which may
ex1st between them.

2. Fifteen fundamental forms have been selected.
The rivers have been identified by lines, without
indicating the absolute or relative dependence
which they maintain with thelr form, Nowhere in the
map has that intention been made manifest.

3, The fundamental form of this map 1s the "old
glacilacustrine depression” or Valley of California.
It occupies the main part of the map and spreads in
secondary branches toward the north west and south-
west, It appears cut: off by another form in Avan-
zada California., The "old glacilacustrine
depression" is %raversed by many water courses:
Palena or Carrenleufu, Encuentro, Lopez, Mallines,
Engano, ete, It corresponds to No.3 in the
conventional sligns,
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4L, The outerop in non-colonized rock (No. 11) and
the monoclinal residual ridges (grupas) (No.12)
together wlth the peaks affected by a show proeess
(No. 9) correspond to the positive forms of the map.
That is to say, they correspond to the high and
dominating features which surround by the east, west
and north west the depressions and valleys of the
reglon. The high importance of the relief in the
eastern sectlon of the sheet, may be observed.

5. The glacial berms supported on tumbled

lacustrine terraces (No, 7) follow the depression or

- valley of Callfornla in the greater part of its
extension, This fact allows the identification of

the depresslon of California as a compact form of
glacllacustrine base with terraces which have no
connectlion with any fluvial system. On the ‘
contrary, the water sources which reach the Californla
depression from the eastern side of the map, break
through these terraces forming a fluvial valley.

6. The form referred to as "lacustrine and others
in bas_de pente" (No. 1l4) bears a close relation to
the previous rform (No. 7) because the water courses
descending from the east-accentuate, on breaking
this formation, the fluvial nature of the valley.
It may be noted that this form goes on escorting
the depression or valley of California, for which
reason it may be saild to form part of the glaclla~
custrine unit which 1s described in paragraph 3
above, :

7. 'The form "course of river in narrow and deep
valley" (No. 15) which follows the line of river
called Encuentre in the map, indlicates the
existence of a deep fluvial valley inserted in a
broader form which would be the old glaclal valley
and which allows an observatlion of the contour
lines whilch escort thls form.

8. The lacustrine terraces (No. 2) identifled in
Avanzada California, correspond to-a lacustrine
origin form superimposed on primitive glacial forms.
Probably, the lake 1in California has modeled an old
central moralne: +that whilch at present scparates
the northern California valley from the southern and
western California.

9. The amphitheatres of old glaciers (No. 8) ~ the
present marshes or "mallines" - represcnt, in
conslderation of thelr extension, the main sources

25.
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Appendix of feeding. Those found in the part south of Pico
' Virgen are visibly important.

10, The remaining forms which appear in this map,
are forms of detail, which do not interfere in the
least with the outstanding forms above deflned.
(Signed) R. Borgel |
Santlago, 7 March 1966". |
In conneotlon with this map, Mr. Bathurst sald in
the December oral hearings that he was lnstructed that

"svanzada de California" 1s translated as "Advanced

Cslifornia (Transcript, page 27). This 1nstructioh

would appear to be erroneous: "Avanzada California’

is the name which usually 1s given to the Carabineros

Post which is situated near the bend of the River

Engano.

MAPS A29, A30 and A%l

"Lago General Paz:Palena - ArgentinaéChile Mixed
Boundaries Commission 1951/53"

"Cerro de la Virgen - ditto - 1952/53",

"Rio Encuentro - ditto ~ 1952/53".

The Chilean Memorial and this Countef;Memorial‘
comment extensively upon thesé three maps. Therefore,
it will only be stfessed here that these sheets contain
an evident misrepresentation of the whole hydrographic

system Encuentro/Lopez/Mallines.

The contrast represented therein between the "major”

and "minor" channels so far as the relatlve wildth of
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both channels 1s coneerned, is false, In addition, the
wildth of Arroyo Lopez would have justified the use of a
line thicker than the line used for the Mallines. To
have done thls would, of dourse, have suggested the
tributary nature of the Mallines and thls was avolded by
deplcting the Lopez with'a thiﬁ line. Further south (on
Sheet VII;E, Map A30) the line of the Mallines from 1ts
source untll it bendé %o the north 1s represented with
the dotted line reserved for dry streams of less than

5 m. width; but the line representing the so=called
"Ehcuentro" continues south practically to the marshes
which constitute the international boundary in this area
according to the Argentlne submlsslon.

Turthermore, the small lake in square 20/22-56/58,
appears in Map A30 draining into the Engaﬁo river. This
drainage has been added after the first edition of
Sheet VII-2. -

On Sheet VII-2 (A}O) there 1s a further feature
which ought to be noted.- It is the subordlnate tributary
nature of the watercourses flowing frbm the western
slopes of "Cerro de la Virgen", vis~a-vis the river Azul
which Sheet VII-2 callé "Rio el Salto o el Tigre".

Pinally, in spite of these sheets being.menﬁioned
as "copled without change" from the original, 1t should
be added that small changes have been introduced

unilaterally by Argentina: some dotted lines representing

25.
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several ninor water courses have been modified,

MAP_al9
"Field Sheet Argentina;Chile Mixed Boundaries‘CommiSsion

1952-53 (unpublished)"

The preliminary nature of this sketech is shown by
the hand written suggested alterations which appear on
1t. |

Obviously, the use of the name "Rio Encuentro" for
the "minor channel" cannot pass without comment by the
Chilean Goverrnment.

Purther, this sheet adds strength to the Chilean
contention that the "amjor channel" has never been
called "Falso Engano".

Leaving aslde the names attributed to water courses,
this sketch also reveals that in the first attempts of
the Mixed Boundary Commission to chard thé area, no one
thought that the "minor channel" deserved to be repre-
sented with a symbol suggesting a blgger bed width than
the "major channel".  In fact, on this map AH9, 1t 1s
clear that both "channels" were believed to deserve at
least the same symbol. This equal representation for
both channels was not maintained in Sheet VIi;3, prepared
on the basis of Map AH9.

In the oral hearing in December 1965, leading Counsel
for Argentina referred to a 1965 landslide in terms which

suggested thab he understood 1t to be the reason why
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Sheet VII~3 now contalns a wrong deplction of the
"atersmeet”. But Map A49 ("prepared in 1952/1953 by the

Mixed Boundaries Commission") appears %o contain a correct
representation of the watersmeet, as 1t exlsts today,

while (amazingly so) Sheet VII-3, also drawn in 1952/1953,

on the basis of Map A49 introduces the substantial
distortions which have been objected to by the Chilean
Government for over ten years. No one has suggested
that a landslide took place between the drawing of Map
Alg and the drawing of Sheet VII-B.

This map A49 1s also 1nterest1ng because it confirms
411 the data on the Chilean settlement of California
which have been furnished with abundant supporting
evidence, in the Chilean Memorial and in the Chllean
Counter=Memorial. . For instance, the square showing the
fenced property of N(olfa) Carrasco appears bissected by
the "minor channel" which; according to Argentlna, is
the international boundary in that sector.

But on Sheet VII-2, the same property seems to end
at the "minor channel'.

There 1s still a furtherAcommeﬁt. The '"minor
channel" appears with a dotted line about 500 metres
south of the home of Nolfa Carrasco. Sheet VII;2 (based
on this Map Al9) for reasons which the Argentine Memorial

leaves unexplained, prolonged the continuous line for

over one kilometre south appearing therein untll square
22/2U~62/64, |
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MAP 450

"Reduetlon of Maps Nos. A29, ABO and 331 ; Argentine

Bounda ries Commission - 1955 (unpublished)",

On this map which purports to be a "reducéion of
the aerophotogrametric survey" and 1s stated to be
"reduction of maps A29, 530 and 331", it may be noted
that:

a) the "minor channel", contrary to Sheet VII-2
but mofe in consonance with the geographical reality

appears with the fragmented line revealing its subordin-

ate nature, some 1.000 metres south of its Junction with

Arroyo Lopez.

b) The name "Rio El Salto o E1 Tigre" has been
boldlyudisplaced south suggestlng that thls river has
i1ts source in the neighbourhood of "CQ d, 1. Virgen".
On Sheet VII-2 the name "E1l Salto o E1 Tigre" appears
to be attributed to the important water-course flowlng
from the west and repfesented with a continuous double
line: E1 Azul. On this Map A50, by the subtle displace;
ment of a few letters, a change of the source of fthe
Salto would appear to be suggested.

¢) Of course it need hardly be added that on this
purporéed "reduction of A29, AZ0 and A31" there appears

a "poundary line" which does not_appear on the map A29,

A30 and A3Zl,

d) Furthermore, the name "Portezuelo de las Raices"
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freshly colned by Argentina, and apparently borrowed
from the name of the plot of Simén Lopez (See Doc. No.90)

appears as an unexplained addition,

e) The names of the Chilean settlers Bravo, Rosales,
Lafuente and Rivera (who appear on Sheet VII-2 at the
s outh ofvthe bend of the Engano) have disappeared from
this "reduetion" which cannot bé explained since the
name of other Chilean settlers have been maintalned east

of the "minor channel".

MAP A5l
My

Enlargement of Sector =~ Rio Encuentro = Palena taken
from maps Nos. A4 and A5 (overlay for Map A50) - Argentine
Boundaries Commission 1955 (unpublished)", )

| This map does not seem to deserve nny pérticular
remarks since 1t appears to be an enlargement of the map

used by Captain Dickson in 1903 (see remarks on Map A5).

MAP AB4

"Map with transparent overlay showing boundary claimed in
these proceedings by the Argentine Republic =~ Prepared for
the purpose of the prosent proceedings

The basis of this map (Sheets VII-l, VII-2 and VII-B)
has already been mentioned when dealing with maps A29,

A30 and A31l.

MAP A55

"Map showing the various lines Ffor the boundary".

This sheet contains a very striking representation
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of the problems posed by the tracing of the boundary

line between boundary posts 16 and 17 as a consequence

~of the erroneous map prepared in 1902 by the Argentine

Expert Dr. Moreno, In this respect it is noteworthy
that between "CQ d, 1, Virgen" and the northern bank

of Iake General Paz there appear four different lines.

The reason is unknown for the broken line which
has been chosen %o deplet the Engano Iakes and part of
the true Encuentro (which on this map appears as "Falso

Engano").

This sheet purports to represent the boundary lines

suggested by the Chilean Boundary Commlssion in 1955 and

the line '"which according to the Bicameral Chilean

Commigslon is the correct one'", But both lines appear
as reaching Cerro Central, a feature which has never
been a part of any boundary line,

The Argentine Memorial makes the same mistake
(paragraph 160, page 154) when stating that "the
Chilean representatives én the Mixed Commission were‘no
longer asserting that Cerro Central was the mountain
named 'Virgen' in the 1902 Award through which the
boundary was to pass".

The reason for this error of Argentina is unknown
since nelther the Chilean Congress nor the Chilean

Government nor the members of the Chilean Boundary

Commission have ever asserted that the boundary should
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pass through Cerro Central which 1s 2 well known

geographical feature different from Pico Virgene.
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